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COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. Chan Lai Ping (Appointed on 1 February 2019)
Mr. Siu Kai Yin Edward (Resigned on 1 February 2019)

LEGAL ADVISER
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Unit 1802
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Hong Kong

AUDITOR

BDO Limited

Certified Public Accountants
25/F, Wing On Centre

111 Connaught Road Central
Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited
1 Queen'’s Road Central

Hong Kong

China Minsheng Banking Corp. Ltd., Hong Kong Branch
40/F., Two International Finance Centre

8 Finance Street

Central, Hong Kong

Nanyang Commercial Bank, Ltd.
2/F., 359-361 Queen’s Road Central
Hong Kong

Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited
Bank of China Tower, 1 Garden Road
Central, Hong Kong

Industrial Bank Co., Limited, Hong Kong Branch
39/F ICBC Tower, 3 Garden Road
Central, Hong Kong
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CORPORATE INFORMATION
AC-g

PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER
OFFICE IN CAYMAN ISLANDS

SMP Partners (Cayman) Limited
Royal Bank House — 3rd Floor
24 Shedden Road, P.O. Box 1586
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Cayman Islands

HONG KONG BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR AND
TRANSFER OFFICE

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
Shops 1712-1716

17th Floor, Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East, Wan Chai

Hong Kong

REGISTERED OFFICE

Cricket Square
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P. O. Box 2681
Grand Cayman KY1-1111

Cayman Islands

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN HONG KONG
Rooms 4917-4932, 49/F
Sun Hung Kai Centre

30 Harbour Road, Wan Chai
Hong Kong

WEBSITE

www.haotianhk.com
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Hao Tian Development Group Limited ® £ X% EEEHR A7)

DIRECTORS, SENIOR MANAGEMENT AND STAFF

DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Mr. Xu Hai Ying, aged 65, was appointed as a Non-executive
Director of the Company on 1 January 2012 and was re-designated
as an Executive Director of the Company in February 2012. Mr. Xu
is the senior technical consultant and senior manager of F &R EEIR
REEBRAF (China Jieneng Huangbao Group Company
Limited*), whose principal business is the development of energy
conservation technologies, clean and new energy, and energy
infrastructure construction. Mr. Xu has substantial management
experience and has been the manager of the representative offices
of Wallem & Company Limited GEMMTEEB AR A7) in Shanghai
and Tianjin, The People’s Republic of China and the chief
representative of the Shanghai representative office of Hong Kong
Maritime Company Limited (B/8/8:E AR A F)]) and has served
other management positions. Mr. Xu currently serves as an
executive director of Fujian Nuogi Co., Ltd. (stock code: 1353), a
company listed on the main board of The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (“Stock Exchange”).
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Hao Tian Development Group Limited ® 2 XZEEEBHR QA

DIRECTORS, SENIOR MANAGEMENT AND STAFF

EE  SREEERET

DIRECTORS (continued)

Executive Directors (continued)

Dr. Zhiliang Ou, J.P., (Australia), aged 50, was appointed as an
Independent Non-executive Director of the Company on 11 June
2012 and was re-designated as an Executive Director of the
Company in August 2012. Dr. Ou holds a Doctor of Philosophy
degree in Civil & Resource Engineering from The University of
Western Australia, Australia. He also holds two Bachelor of
Engineering degrees in Engineering Management & Structural
Engineering respectively from Tongji University (B AZ2). Dr. Ou
has over 25 years of professional engineering and management
experience in oil & gas, mining and infrastructure industries both in
Australia and China. He has been a senior staff member in the
world's leading energy & resource firms including Kellogg Brown &
Root (formerly known as KBR Halliburton), WorleyParsons Pty Ltd.,
as well as Sedgman Ltd., which is specialising in coal processing
and handling plants. Dr. Ou participated in a number of key energy
and resource projects around the world such as acting as the Lead
Civil and Structural Engineer for BHP Billiton RGP6 Jimblebar
project; Rio Tinto iron ore Dove Siding expansion project; Chevron
Wheatstone Domgas LNG Pipeline project; Yemen LNG Project (in
the Republic of Yemen) and Western Australia Dampier to Bunbury
Natural Gas Pipeline (Stage 5B) project, etc. Dr. Ou also has
extensive experience and network in China. He was the general
manager of @& AL TIEAF] (Fujian Liming Construction
Company*) from 1993 to 1997. He was a Guest Professor for Inner
Mongolia University (A5 & AZ%) and Inner Mongolia University of
Science & Technology (A5 & BHAZ) in China. Currently, Dr. Ou
is an independent non-executive director of Rey Resources Limited
(@ company listed on ASX) and an executive director of Hao Tian
International Construction Investment Group Limited (stock code:
1341), which is a company listed on the main board of the Stock

Exchange.
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Hao Tian Development Group Limited ® £ X% EEEHR A7)

DIRECTORS, SENIOR MANAGEMENT AND STAFF

DIRECTORS (continued)

Executive Directors (continued)

Mr. Fok Chi Tak, aged 43, was appointed as an Executive Director
of the Company in September 2013. Mr. Fok was also the directors
of various subsidiaries of the Group and has been the Chief
Financial Officer of the Company since December 2010. In addition
to the responsibility to oversee the Group’s finance unit and
functions, Mr. Fok also involves in the formulation of strategic plans
for the business development of the Group, fund raising activities
and potential merger and acquisition activities of the Group. Mr.
Fok holds a master degree in business administration from the
University of Hong Kong. He is a fellow member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants. Mr. Fok is also a fellow member
of the Institute of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators and the
Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries. Mr. Fok currently
serves as an executive director of Hao Tian International
Construction Investment Group Limited (stock code: 1341), which is
listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange. Mr. Fok has
extensive experience in corporate finance, corporate governance,

mergers and acquisitions, auditing and financial management.
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Hao Tian Development Group Limited ® 2 XZEEEBHR QA

DIRECTORS SENIOR MANAGEMENT AND STAFF

EE . SAEEERET

DIRECTORS (continued)

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Chan Ming Sun Jonathan, aged 46, was appointed as an
Independent Non-executive Director of the Company in March
2012. Mr. Chan graduated from the University of New South Wales,
Australia with a Bachelor of Commerce degree in Accounting and
Computer Information Systems. He is a fellow member of the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and a member of
Certified Practising Accountants, Australia. Mr. Chan has over 20
years of experience in auditing, accounting, investment and
financial management. Mr. Chan is currently an investment
manager of Sprint Asset Management Limited. Mr. Chan is also an
independent non-executive director of each of China Dredging
Environment Protection Holdings Limited (stock code: 871),
Shenyang Public Utility Holdings Company Limited (stock code:
747), Up Energy Development Group Limited (stock code: 307) and
Fujian Nuogi Co., Ltd. (stock code: 1353), whose securities are listed
on the main board of the Stock Exchange, and of Changhong
Jiahua Holdings Limited (stock code: 8016), whose securities are
listed on GEM of the Stock Exchange. Mr. Chan resigned as
independent non-executive director of L&A International Holdings
Limited (stock code: 8195), Far East Holdings International Limited
(stock code: 36) and Dining Concepts Holdings Limited (stock code:
8056) on 3 March 2017, 18 July 2017 and 12 December 2018

respectively.
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Hao Tian Development Group Limited ® £ X% EEEHR A7)

DIRECTORS, SENIOR MANAGEMENT AND STAFF

DIRECTORS (continued)

Independent Non-Executive Directors (continued)

Mr. Lam Kwan Sing, aged 49, was appointed as an Independent
Non-executive Director of the Company in August 2012. Mr. Lam
graduated from the City University of Hong Kong with a degree in
Bachelor of Arts in Accountancy. He has more than 20 years of
experience in the commercial and corporate finance field.
Currently, Mr. Lam is a director of China Natural Resources, Inc. (a
company listed on NASDAQ since 2003), and an executive director
and the chief executive officer of SFund International Holdings
Limited (stock code: 1367) and an independent non-executive
director of Summit Ascent Holdings Limited (stock code: 102),
which are both listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange. Mr.
Lam was an executive director of China Smarter Energy Group
Holdings Limited (stock code: 1004) from August 2010 to August
2017.

Mr. Lee Chi Hwa Joshua, aged 47, was appointed as an
Independent Non-executive Director of the Company in September
2014. Mr. Lee is a fellow member of the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants and a member of Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. Mr. Lee has extensive experience in
the fields of auditing, accounting and finance. Mr. Lee currently
serves as an independent non-executive director of each of China
Fortune Investments (Holding) Limited (stock code: 8116), Code
Agriculture (Holdings) Limited (stock code: 8153) and Cornerstone
Financial Holdings Limited (stock code: 8112), which are listed on
GEM of the Stock Exchange. He currently serves as the
independent non-executive director of each of Hao Tian
International Construction Investment Group Limited (stock code:
1341), Up Energy Development Group Limited (stock code: 307)
and Fujian Nuogi Co., Ltd. (stock code: 1353), and an executive
director of China Healthcare Enterprise Group Limited (stock code:
1143), which are listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange.
He was also an independent non-executive director of Teamway
International Group Holdings Limited (stock code: 1239) from
March 2015 to August 2017.
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Hao Tian Development Group Limited ® 2 XZEEEBHR QA

DIRECTORS, SENIOR MANAGEMENT AND STAFF

EE  SREEERET

COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. Chan Lai Ping (FREEF), was appointed as a company secretary
on 1 February 2019. Ms. Chan is a solicitor qualified to practise in
Hong Kong and a member of The Law Society of Hong Kong. She
is also a consultant of a law firm in Hong Kong. Ms. Chan has many
years of experience in advising on corporate finance, mergers and
acquisitions, corporate governance, regulatory and compliance
matters. Prior to joining the Company, she was the company
secretary and general counsel of China Shandong Hi-Speed
Financial Group Limited, a company whose shares are listed on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 412). Ms. Chan has
a bachelor of laws degree and a postgraduate certificate in laws
from the University of Hong Kong. She also has a master of
corporate finance degree from the Hong Kong Polytechnic

University.
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Gao Zhangpeng (= ZM5), aged 40, was appointed as the Chief
Executive Officer of Hao Tian International Construction Investment
Group Limited (stock code: 1341) (“"Hao Tian International
Construction”) in March 2019. Mr. Gao graduated from Huazhong
University of Science and Technology in Wuhan, the People’s
Republic of China with a Bachelor's Degree in International
Finance. He also obtained a Degree of Doctor of Philosophy in
Economics from Nanyang Technological University in Singapore
under full scholarship. Mr. Gao has extensive experience in general
corporate management, international banking, finance and
investment management gained from international banks in
Singapore and Hong Kong. He worked in Malayan Banking Berhad,
Hong Kong branch. As part of the senior management team, he
was appointed as the manager of the financial institution under the
Banking Ordinance, playing a pivotal role in ensuring the financial
soundness, efficient operation, and compliance with applicable
laws and regulations. He is committed to society and also serves as

the Chairman of Wuhan Chamber of Commerce (Singapore).
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Hao Tian Development Group Limited ® 2 X% EE@AR A7)

DIRECTORS, SENIOR MANAGEMENT AND STAFF

SENIOR MANAGEMENT (continued)

Mr. Lau Chi Hang, aged 37, joined Hao Tian Finance Company
Limited as vice president on 2 February 2015 and had assumed as
General Manager in Hao Tian Credit Company Limited since 1
October 2017. Mr. Lau graduated from Benedictine College in USA
with a Bachelor Degree in Commerce. Mr. Lau has more than 10
years of experience in the banking and financial sector. Before
joining the Company, Mr. Lau had worked in South China Financial
Credit, Australia and New Zealand Banking Group Limited, and
Bank of China Credit Card Center.
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Hao Tian Development Group Limited ® 2 XZEEEBHR QA

DIRECTOR’S STATEMENT
EERES

On behalf of Hao Tian Development Group Limited (the
“Company”, and together with its subsidiaries, collectively the
‘Group”), | hereby present the annual results of the Group for the
year ended 31 March 2019 (the “Year").

During the Year, the Group completed a group restructuring to
transfer Hao Tian International Financial Holdings Limited to the
Group's listed subsidiary, Hao Tian International Construction
Investment Group Limited (Stock code: 1341). In addition, 1,200
million rights shares were successfully issued by Hao Tian
International Construction at a subscription price of HK$0.15 per
rights share. The gross proceeds from the rights issue were
approximately HK$180 million.

The Group actively explored new business and investment
opportunities for further development. During the Year, the Group
completed the acquisition of a property in London, namely “55
Mark Lane” on 12 April 2018 (London time) in accordance with the
agreed terms and conditions, with a final consideration of
approximately £ 128 million (equivalent to approximately HK$1,429
million). In addition, the Group has acquired 49% equity interests of
Grand Peaceful Global Limited (“Grand Peaceful”), a wholly owned
subsidiary of China Animation Characters Company Limited (stock
code: 1566), which is engaged in multimedia animation
entertainment business and holds the intellectual property rights of

certain cartoon figures.

For the existing business, despite the interest rate hikes of the
central banks of major countries and rising international financing
costs, there is still a strong demand for our money lending business.
However, we will take a prudent attitude under such circumstances.
The Group remains confident in the prospect of the licensed
financial business market in Hong Kong and we will continuously
focus on the development of such business. In additions, the Group
completed the disposal of a parcel of land located at Ganquanbao
Industrial Park, Urumgi, Xinjiang for HK$180 million on 23
November 2018. The Group also signed the sale and purchase
agreement for the disposal of a parcel of land located at Yuen Long
for HK$100 million which was completed on 29 April 2019. Besides,
the Group will also continue to actively expand its health business.
At present, a number of camellia oleifera and daily body care
products have been developed and are well-prepared to be

launched through both online and offline channels.
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Hao Tian Development Group Limited ® £ X% EEEHR A7)

DIRECTOR’S STATEMENT
EEHRES

Finally, on behalf of the Board, | would like to express my sincere &% ' RAZBARXRESZE @ ROBHBREMNEIE
gratitude to all shareholders for their tremendous support, and to  #  WRKHES - EEERE T AASEMELNE
our directors, management and staff for their invaluable E&E - AEBERHBERBEES - ABRIHIDH
contributions to the Group. The Group will focus on streamlining  E&#i8 @ K AREERLEEDR

the existing businesses and explore new business opportunities to

achieve fabulous returns for our shareholders.

Dr. Zhiliang Ou HMITEE
Executive Director BE=EL
Hong Kong, 10 June 2019 BB —E—NFxA+H
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Hao Tian Development Group Limited ® 2 X% E&£E AR A7)

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEENWE D

BUSINESS REVIEW

Money Lending Business

During the year, the money lending business of the Group
generated an interest income of approximately HK$73.5 million
(2018: approximately HK$118.0 million), representing a decrease of
approximately 37.7% as compared with last year. The main business
of this segment includes provision of property mortgage loans and
personal loans to customers in Hong Kong. As at 31 March 2019,
the outstanding loan receivables of the money lending business of
the Group (net of impairment) was approximately HK$555.3 million
(2018: approximately HK$726.0 million).

Securities Investment Business (financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss)

During the year, the net realised gains from disposal of financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss was approximately HK$2.7
million (2018: net realized gain from investments held for trading of
approximately HK$9.7 million) and the unrealised fair value loss
from financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, comprising
listed equity securities in Hong Kong and an unlisted fund, was
approximately HK$402.6 million (2018: unrealized fair value loss on
investments held for trading of approximately HK$154.8 million and
loss on available-for-sales investment of approximately HK$154.1

million).

As at 31 March 2019, the value of listed equity securities in Hong
Kong and an unlisted fund held by the Group which were
reclassified as financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
amounted to approximately HK$1,643.8 million (31 March 2018:
investments held for trading of approximately HK$1,258.2 million
and available-for-sale investments of approximately HK$702.0
million). Details of the Group's equity securities investments
classified as financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are

set out as follows:
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BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)

Securities Investment Business (financial assets at fair

Hao Tian Development Group Limited ® £ X% EEEHR A7)

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEEFNWR DN

EBOE(E)
HEREXB (UL FEFEEEBS{LT AR

value through profit or loss) (continued) mZEMEE)(E)
Percentage
Unrealised of total
fair value financial assets
(loss)/gain atfair Percentage of
Number of Percentage of Carrying for the year value through total assets of
shares held at Movement of shareholdings at amount at ended Fair value at profit or loss at the Group at
31 March balance during Investment 31 March 2019 31 March 31 March 31 March 31 March 31 March
2019 FY2019 cost (note 1) 2018 2019 2019 2019 2019
R=2-h%
HECR-1F ZR=t-Bf
R=®-1E ZA=1-8 NAVEHEE RoB-hE
R=B-1F Z8-0E ZBZt-R R=2-N% JiE3:4 H=8-1F AR ARR ZR=t-Bf
=A=t-A HREE LEREM ZR=t-B ZAERATE ZA=t-B CEMEESE  AEEEELE
fisRH#a i o] RERE (K1) ZEEE (B8)/ b ZAYE A} AR
Note HKS000 HK$ 000 HKS000 HK$000 HKS000
it T Thn Thn T T
Company Name/(Stock Code) 2748 /(R %)
China Shandong Hispeed ~ ELFRRERERERAT
Financial Group Limited 2
(2 2 3835879650 332,320,000 869,114 156% 1,051,067 (%519 1093226 6.51% 19.68%
Camival Group Intemational ~ EFZEERRBRA %)
Holdings Limited (996) 90,610,000 - 105,338 0.38% 3619 (28,360) 4259 026% 0.08%
Imperial Pacfic Intemational  BEAT#EEARARAR
Holdings Limited (1076) (1078) 3 4363,360,000 - %116 305% 41810 (174,539 L3075 1540% 4.56%
Far East Holdings Intemational 2R RERARAT (%)
Limited (3¢) 4983000 - 11,25 046% 3837 (1819 2018 012% 0.04%
Befing Properties (Holdings) 3t Rk (2R) RAZ 925
Limited (925) 8,140,000 - 1175 0.12% 28 (259 1,98 012% 0.04%
Up Energy Development Group &85 R & BATR A7)
Limited (307) 371,500,000 - 165179 8.19% - - - - -
Great Harvest Magta Group 58 SBA AR A7 (3683)
Holdings Limited (3683) 4 22,985,000 22,985,000 4839 241% - (7,708) 40683 247% 073%
Kingston Financial Group £ F/44BETARAH (1031)
Limited (1031) 3374000 3374000 6342 002% - 03 654 040% 0.12%
CClandHoldings Limted A E#ARERAT (1224
(122) 3.331,000 3,331,000 6,007 0.09% - 5% 6062 037% 011%
China Animation Characters  ZE81EH/ZHR A7 (156)
Company Limited (1566) 5 32,601,000 32,601,000 84,248 1.94% - (5,680) 78,568 478% 141%
Miricor Enterprises Holoings ~ 2312 EBERA(162)
Limited (1827) 3965000 3,965,000 7428 0.17% - (1,084) 6384 03%% 0.11%
Haitong Dynamic Mult-Tranche Haitong Global Investment SPC
Investment Fund [ SP.of Il Z Haitong Dynemic
Haitong Global Investment  Mult-Tranche Investment
SPCII Fund ISP, 6 NATER = 2309 NATER 27.9% (86,984) 151010 9.19% 212%
Disposal securities HERS NATER NATER NATER NATER 204800 - - - -
1960,166 (402,64) 1643817 100% 2.59%

As investment in equity securities accounts for a significant portion

of the Group's total assets, the management will closely monitor

the investment portfolio and capture opportunities arising from

investments in financial assets at fair value through profit or loss in

a prudent manner and balance investment risks.
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Hao Tian Development Group Limited ® 2 KR EEFR QA

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEENWE D

BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)
Securities investment business (financial assets at fair
value through other comprehensive income)

During the year, there was no disposal of financial assets at fair
value through other comprehensive income (2018: realised loss of
available-for-sale investments of approximately HK$1.7 million). As
at 31 March 2019, the aggregate value of unlisted equity
investments held by the Group which were classified as financial
assets at fair value through other comprehensive income amounted
to approximately HK$117.5 million (31 March 2018: available-for-
sale investment of approximately HK$123.2 million upon adoption
of HKFRS 9). Such value comprised of securities of unlisted

securities investments set out as follows:

EHORE(E)
HEREXB (UAFEFEBEZLFTAR
ez EREEREE)

RAFE  TEHEUAXTFEFEEEZ(LH AR
fhEHREseMEE(CT—N\F : R HE
EREEFBEMTIBEBAEL) R-_T—-NAF=H
=t+—B  AREMFAFLTRARE (REESD
BRAUATEFEBREEHAREMEESEZS
MEE)ZBREHNRNISABET(ZE-N\F=A
=t+—H: REMABTEMBHRELNEIREK - A
HEREN/I1232B8ET) - FREE(EHEIEL
MREFRE) #IIWT

Percentage
Unrealised of total
fair value financial assets
(loss)/gain and at fair value
(impairment loss) through other ~ Percentage of
Percentage of Movement Carrying Carrying for the Carrying  comprehensive  total assets of
shareholdings at of balance amount at amountat period ended amount at income at the Group at
31 March during Investment 31 March 1 April 31 March 31 March 31 March 31 March
2019 FY2019 cost 2018 2018¢ 2019 2019 2019 2019
RZB-nF
BEZ-1F ZR=1-Af
ZA=t-A NATETEE
fia- -] HSHA RZZ-AF
R-B-1E _ R-8-Nf  R-F-NE ZRERAYE  R-R-AF EtREMEz  ZA=t-A
) EN R SAst-R BA-A  (BR/MER  ZAST-R  ARAESE  GasEEE
ZERAM 2E883 RE&RK ZIRAE ZIRAE* (REES) b ZEA  BEZAM
Note HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000
(i T Tién FiAn T T T
Company Name AIER
Goodwill International  Goodwill International 1
(Holdings) Limited (Holdings) Limited 7.54% - 67,000 45,160 45,160 8214 36,946 31.44% 0.67%
Co-lead Holdings Limited Co-lead Holdings Limited 8 1.44% - 25018 25018 4021 1229 41,500 35.31% 0.75%
Others — unlisted A —FEm 9 NATHER - 41,910 41,910 37812 1261 3,019 325% 0.70%
- 133928 112,088 123243 (5718) 17,525 100% 212%

Effect arising from application of HKFRS 9
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Hao Tian Development Group Limited ® £ X R EE AR A7)

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)

Secu

rities investment business (financial assets at fair

value through other comprehensive income) (continued)

Notes:

The percentage of shareholdings is calculated with reference to the
monthly return of equity issuer on movements in securities for the month
ended 31 March 2019 of the issuers publicly available on the website of
the Stock Exchange.

China Shandong Hi-Speed Financial Group Limited (“CSFG") and its
subsidiaries (collectively called “CSFG Group”) were principally engaged
in various kinds of financial services, including financial leasing, operation
of an asset trading platform, investments in securities, money lending,
investment holding, online investment and technology-enabled lending
services, online new media services and assets management.

During FY2019, there were unrealised fair value loss of approximately
HK$96,519,000 arising from financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss. No dividend has been received during FY2019. Pursuant to CSFG
Group's annual result announcement for the period ended 31 December
2018 (“PE2018"), CSFG recorded revenue of approximately HK$427.2
million and total comprehensive loss of approximately HK$955.1 million.
As mentioned in the CSFG Group's annual result PE2018, following the
reform by the State Council on the financial regulatory system in the PRC
in 2018, monetary policies and macro-prudential policies are expected to
be fully coordinated and implemented and a regulatory framework which
is more consistent with the modern financial system will be gradually
established, which will in turn smoothen and stabilise the dynamics in the
financial sector in the PRC. It is expected that in the near future, new
operating models will be formed in the financial sector in the PRC. With
the strong support of Shandong Hi-Speed Group Co., Ltd* (LI E =R & E
' R 2
shareholder and by taking full advantage of the access to market and
funding provided by the Shandong Hi-Speed Group, CSFG Group will
continue to focus on various financial segments to achieve diversified
development. In March 2018, CSFG Group issued a total of US$600 million
3.9% Guaranteed Bonds for offshore project development, refinancing

A]) (“Shandong Hi-Speed Group”) which is our controlling

and general corporate purposes. It was believed that the controlling
shareholder of CSFG Group, Shandong Hi-Speed Group Co., Ltd., which
is a large-scale wholly state-owned comprehensive business group with
financial assets that worth more than RMB200 billion, would support CSFG
to establish a new growth niche in the financial technology sector, hence
create value to the shareholders of CSFG Group.

The Group acquired 332,320,000 shares of CSFG Group during FY2019.

BEENWE D

KO (E)
HEREXEK (ULAFES
feEERE s EREE)(E)

BHE®Z1

=1/ 2

T A

fein

\
/

N

—

BRAEE AL 2 E BT ARBR B AGRE -2
~NE=ZA=t+— B ARNRABFTANESEE A
BERIH

2. FRILEREEREEERARN(HELRSESH ]
REMBRAR (5 [FELRSRERER]) T2NE
TRERHNEERY  EEREEE BEXSFAE
B RBrRE WE REERR ERRERMERES
ERRY  BHEMERRGEAREEEE -

RZTE—NERREE AR TP EFEEEE(FAR
=7 MEEEEARER A FERIEL96,519,000747T
RZT—NERREFEE W EREEMRE - RIEFEFE L
REReREE8E—_Z— \E+_-_A=1+—HHH
(ZZ—N\FHEN2FE£ELE FELERRS
BERB L4227 2B BB T R EEEBAENS1H
EAT - BNPELESREHEE T — \FHHE2
FEEMM - E-T—N\F FEEKRAEANSEE
EBRETTHE  EFeRETRREXT BB H
RREBEEBRRBESKOBAREE  WELEY
HEBRREMMETER  FoRBRETERTRE-
KRR PRERMELEBETFRER TREAOEE
- FREEKTLRSRERAR AR (ILRER
SENDIEAHERRENGAE ] - THFBAETMSE
2 REEBRESED FELRRRSREERE
EEZESRRSE  BAOTESTEHNEERE - R
T—\F=A FEILERRSHEEREITT HFH600
BAEETHIOEERER  EDARBFREERE B
MER—REERSE - AKEHEE  FRILRSRESH
SEERBRRLRSRETFRAR (A—REREER
ERBARE2000ETHATZERGIEEBEE) -
R EILRE S ReAES B AT R I
RimATE LRSS RS REENRRAIEEE -

AREBE R =T — 1 F B B U 332,320,000 kA B L
KRR REERS -

17

Annual Report % 2018/19



Hao Tian Development Group Limited ® £ X2 E£EAR AT

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEENWE D

BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)
Securities investment business (financial assets at fair
value through other comprehensive income) (continued)

3. Imperial Pacific International Holdings Limited (“Imperial”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively called “Imperial Group”) were principally
engaged in the gaming and resort business, including the development of
an integrated resort on the Island of Saipan, Commonwealth of the
Northern Mariana Islands.

During FY2019, there was unrealised fair value loss of approximately
HK$174,535,000 arising from financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss. No dividend has been received during FY2019. Pursuant to Imperial
Group's annual result announcement for the year ended 31 December
2018, Imperial Group recorded revenue of approximately HK$3.25 billion
and total comprehensive loss of approximately HK$3.0 billion. In August
2014, Imperial Pacific International (CNMI), LLC (the”Licensee” or “IPI"),
an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of Imperial, and the Commonwealth
of the Northern Mariana Islands (“CNMI"”) entered into a casino license
agreement in respect of the exclusive casino resort developer license for
the Island of Saipan. In November 2015, the Licensee launched the grand
opening of the Temporary Casino within on the first floor of the T Galleria
by DFS Saipan in Garapan, Island of Saipan (“Best Sunshine Live”). The
grand opening of Best Sunshine Live supports the Group's continuous
evolution of Saipan into a diversified and world-leading entertainment
and tourism destination. In July 2017, the Licensee successfully transferred
operations of Best Sunshine Live to the casino portion of Imperial Pacific
Resort Hotel ® Saipan (“Imperial Hotel”) and commenced operation on
the same day. After the transfer, Imperial’s gaming capacity was increased
from 48 tables and 141 slot machines at the Best Sunshine Live to 78
tables and 246 slot machines with maximum capacity of up to 193 tables
and 365 slot machines upon completion of Imperial Hotel. On 31 August
2018, the parties to the Casino License Agreement entered into a written
amendment to the Casino License Agreement (the “Amendment
Agreement”) pursuant to which, among other things, the implementation
schedules under the Casino License Agreement have been amended and
the proposal requirements thereunder have been set out in more details.
It was believed that with the gaming capacity of Imperial Group to be
further enhanced and the development of supporting facilities, new
customers will continue to be attracted to Saipan and hence create value
to the shareholders of Imperial Group.

There was no acquisition or disposal of share of Imperial Group during
FY2019.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEENWE D

BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)

Securities investment business (financial assets at fair
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value through other comprehensive income) (continued)

Great Harvest Maeta Group Holdings Limited (“Great Harvest”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively “Great Harvest Group”) were principally engaged
in chartering of dry bulk vessels and property investment and
development.

During FY2019, there were unrealised fair value loss of approximately
HK$7,708,000 arising from financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss. No dividend has been received during FY2019. Pursuant to Great
Harvest Group's interim report for the period ended 30 September 2018,
Great Harvest Group recorded revenue of approximately US$ 8.2 million
and total comprehensive income of approximately US$7.5 million. For the
dry bulk vessels business, the fleet of Great Harvest Group maintained a
high operational level with an occupancy rate of approximately 99.7% for
the six months ended 30 September 2018. The average daily charter hire
income of the vessels was approximately US$11,596, representing an
increase of US$2,834 per day as compared to the corresponding period
last year, with a growth rate of approximately 32%, which is basically in line
with the market index level of same type of vessel. For the property
investment and development, Top Build Group Ltd, a wholly owned
subsidiary of Great Harvest Group, holds indirectly through its subsidiaries
91% interest in a company in the PRC which holds the Land in Haikou. The
Haikou local government subsequently rearranged its plans on the
surroundings and ancillary facilities of the Lands held by the Great Harvest
Group in Haikou, and Great Harvest and two individuals entered into a
memorandum of understanding (the “MOU") in relation to the proposed
investment by the Great Harvest Group in the online hospitality services,
online travel transaction services and real estate agency services business
in Hainan, the PRC. It was believed that driven by the increase in
population in Hainan, the limited supply of residential property due to
government policy, the land premium and prices of real estates in Hainan
would be in higher demand, and hence create value to the shareholders
of Great Harvest Group.

The Group acquired 22,985,000 shares of Great Harvest Group during
FY2019.

RUBMAERERAR ([RE]) REMEB AR (577 &R
LEEDIBREHERHERRYERERER °

R NERBRFE  UAFEHEAESLAR
mZEREEEERER ATERBIELT,708,000% T
KRB NFHRFELEREEMRE - RIFKE
ERE—_T— \FALA=+HALHMNTBRE %Y
EEHBNENS2EEE LA EANEEELNTSES
X REMEMELENS LLEEERE-_FT—N\
FANA=THIEAEANMMERERLNA99.7%  BRE
BHEERKT - MMM FEHERBRSBRANET K
11,5963 TC » b EZF R EF T 283457, /X » AL
532%  BEAEFEEMMTISIEEUKTERT - mER
ARBEMNE  SREEARAR (LLUEEN2EHE
AT EBMEARMEESE BT ERQRRED A
N%IE - B MOMEHMBNTEN RS LKL EBF
BEOTHAEBREREE  MESEETEREA
TR vREETE((FRETE])  NAEHELER
RPEERMER EERERY - R LEIRER SRS REH
ERBREESNEZRRESE - BEZSEE ALK
EF%s  HESRNEEYEEREEE RTHRSE -
T REMENEEEMEEERIER  #mARE
LEREAEEE -

AR EE B R =B — LA B B4 [ 0B 22,985,000 A% 48
EEBL

Annual Report 4%k 2018/19 19



Hao Tian Development Group Limited ® 2 X% E&£E AR A7)

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEENWE D

BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)
Securities investment business (financial assets at fair
value through other comprehensive income) (continued)

B,

20

China Animation Characters Company Limited (“China Animation”) and
its subsidiaries (collectively “China Animation Group”) were principally
engaged in the trading of animation derivative products, establishment
and operation of indoor theme parks and multimedia animation
entertainment.

During FY2019, there was unrealized fair value loss of approximately
HK$5,680,000 arising from financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss. No dividend has been received during FY2019. Pursuant to China
Animation Group's interim report for the period ended 30 September
2018, China Animation Group recorded revenue of approximately
HK$425.5 million and total comprehensive income of approximately
HK$9.5 million. As mentioned in China Animation’s interim report, China
Animation will continue to expand its theme park business and the
multimedia animation entertainment business. The multimedia animation
entertainment business includes online animation games, movies and
television and online entertainment programmes, online platform and
other entertainment and mobile applications focusing on a series of
animation characters. New technology, such as the VR technology, will
continue to be used for the purpose of promoting different business
segments with synergistic benefits. It is believed that the media,
entertainment and culture industry is optimistic.

The Group acquired 32,601,000 shares of China Animation during FY2019.

Haitong Dynamic Multi-Tranche Investment Fund (the “Fund”) invested in
a wide range of listed securities issued by listed companies established in
or whose principal place of business is located in the Greater China
Region (which includes Mainland China, Hong Kong, Macau and Taiwan)
including but not limited to listed equities, preferred stocks, convertible
securities, notes and other financial products. It was believed that with the
reputable investment track record of the investment manager, the Fund
investment would provide the Group with opportunity to enhance
investment returns in light of the uncertain and challenging economic
environment.

During FY2019, there was unrealised fair value loss of approximately
HK$87.0 million. No dividend has been received during FY2019. There was
no acquisition or disposal of the Fund during FY2019.

Goodwill International (Holdings) Limited (“Goodwill Int'l”) invested in a
number of property investment projects in Hong Kong and the PRC. The
properties would be sold to market upon completion of each projects,
and investors (including Goodwill Int’l) would receive dividend. No
dividend has been received during FY2019. There was no acquisition or
disposal of Goodwill int'l during FY2019.

Co-lead Holdings Limited (“Co-lead”) is principally engaged in trading of
securities, provision of finance and holding of investments in financial
services industry. No dividend has been received during FY2019. There
was no acquisition or disposal of Co-lead during FY2019.

Being investment in a private entity, which is indirectly holding 0.15% of a
digital bank in the People’s Republic of China (“PRC"). No dividend has
been received during FY2019. There was no acquisition or disposal during
FY2019.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)
Rental of a mixed-use property in the United Kingdom

Upon completion of the acquisition of a company holding a mixed-
use property located at 55 Mark Lane, London, the United
Kingdom, on 12 April 2018, contributed a revenue of approximately
HK$66.3 million and a fair value gain on investment property of
approximately HK$38.7 million, contributing to a net gain of
approximately HK$108.0 million during the year.

Construction machinery business

During the year, the construction machinery and sales of
construction materials contributed revenue of approximately
HK$162.4 million (2018: approximately HK$165.9 million) and a
segment loss of approximately HK$10.0 million (2018:
approximately HK$200.7 million). There was a goodwill impairment
loss of approximately HK$172.8 million, in respect of the goodwill
allocated to Hao Tian International Construction Investment Group
Limited (“Hao Tian International Construction”) at the date of
acquisition, recorded in last year. There was an operating loss of
approximately HK$10.0 million (2018: approximately HK$27.9
million) from the construction machinery and sales of construction
materials during the year.

Commodities, futures and securities brokerage business

During the year, commodities, futures and securities brokerage
segment contributed revenue of approximately HK$15.5 million
(2018: approximately HK$11.5 million) and a segment loss of
approximately HK$21.6 million (2018: approximately HK$12.2
million). The growth of segment revenue was mainly attributable to
the brokerage service provided for the subscription of shares at
initial public offerings.

Retailing of men’s and women'’s apparels business

During the year, Fujian Nuogi Co., Ltd. (stock code: 1353) (“Fujian
Nuogqi”) contributed revenue of approximately HK$1.8 million
(2018: approximately HK$34.6 million) and a segment loss of
approximately HK$43.4 million (2018: approximately HK$158.5
million). The decrease in revenue was mainly due to intense market
competition in the apparel industry in the PRC. There was a
goodwill impairment loss of approximately HK$143.5 million, in
respect of the goodwill allocated to Fujian Nuogqi at the date of
acquisition, recorded in last year. There was an operating loss of
approximately HK$43.4 million from Fujian Nuogi during the year.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEENWE D

FINANCIAL REVIEW

The Group had incurred a loss attributable to the owners of the
Company of approximately HK$380.9 million for the year ended 31
March 2019 (2018: loss of approximately HK$444.9 million). Such
loss was mainly attributable to the fair value loss on financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss ("FVTPL")/investment held for
trading of approximately HK$399.9 million (2018: loss of
approximately HK$148.9 million). The decrease in loss attributable
to owners of the Company was due to profit generated from the
money lending business and the rental business of a mixed-use
property in the United Kingdom, and there was no impairment loss
on goodwill for the year ended 31 March 2019. There was
impairment loss on goodwill of approximately HK$316.3 million in

last year.

Interest income from money lending business amounted to
approximately HK$73.5 million (2018: approximately HK$118.0
million). The decrease was mainly attributable to the decrease in
personal loan business, and was partially offset by continual
increase in the number of customers for our property mortgaged
loan business. The Group financed the money lending business by

external and internal resources during the year.

The Group recorded losses in other gains and losses of
approximately HK$303.5 million for the year ended 31 March 2019
(2018: approximately HK$384.1 million). Such loss was mainly
attributable to the fair value loss on financial assets at FVTPL of
approximately HK$399.9 million (2018: loss of approximately
HK$148.9 million). Such impact was partially offset by the fair value
gain on the property located at 55 Mark Lane, London, the United
Kingdom of approximately HK$38.7 million.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

Administrative Expenses

During the year, the administrative expenses were approximately
HK$219.5 million (2018: approximately HK$226.6 million),
representing a decrease of approximately HK$7.1 million or 3.1% as
compared with last year. The decrease was mainly due to the
decrease in legal and professional expenses and rental expenses

incurred during the year.
Finance Costs

During the year, the finance costs were approximately HK$141.4
million (2018: approximately HK$79.6 million), representing an
increase of approximately HK$61.8 million or 77.6% as compared
with last year. The increase was mainly attributable to the increase
in borrowings to finance the acquisition of the property located at

55 Mark Lane, London, the United Kingdom during the year.
Taxation

During the year, the net income tax credit was approximately
HK$63.9 million (2018: approximately HK$12.6 million). The net
income tax credit was generally in line with the existence of fair

value loss on financial assets of FVTPL incurred during the year.
Loss Attributable to Owners of the Company

During the year, the Group recorded a loss attributable to owners
of the Company of approximately HK$380.9 million (2018:
approximately HK$444.9 million) which was attributable to the

factors mentioned above.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEENWE D

FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

Liquidity, Capital Structure and Financial Resources

The Group mainly financed its operations from a combination of
operating cash flows, borrowings and equity. As at 31 March 2019,
the Group had bank balances and cash (including pledged bank
deposits) of approximately HK$271.7 million (31 March 2018:
approximately HK$801.1 million). The Group's working capital
increased to approximately HK$1,762.6 million (31 March 2018:
approximately HK$1,627.8 million).

As at 31 March 2019, the Group had outstanding borrowings
(including secured notes and obligations under finance leases) of
approximately HK$2,440.8 million (31 March 2018: approximately
HK$1,372.1 million). The Group had various banking facilities
provided by financial institutions in Hong Kong which were secured
by certain assets of the Group, including (i) the Group's financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss of approximately
HK$1,348.5 million; (i) certain bank deposits held by the Group; (iii)
certain leasehold land and building; and (iv) certain machinery and

motor vehicles.

Gearing ratio (being the ratio of total borrowings, including secured
notes and obligations under finance leases, to total assets) as at 31
March 2019 was 43.9% (31 March 2018: 27.3%). The increase in
gearing ratio was mainly attributable to the acquisition of the
property located at 55 Mark Lane, London, the United Kingdom
during the year.

Capital Commitments

As at 31 March 2019, the Group had capital commitments which
amounted to approximately HK$19.3 million (31 March 2018:
approximately HK$1,435.1 million). As at 31 March 2019, the capital
commitments in respect of addition of property, plant and
equipment were mainly related to the purchase of construction

machinery for rental purpose.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

Contingent liabilities

As at 31 March 2019, the Group provided performance guarantee
amounting to approximately HK$10.2 million (31 March 2018:
corporate guarantee and performance guarantee amounting to
approximately HK$0.3 million and approximately HK$11.2 million
respectively) to banks in respect of obligations under finance leases
and the Group's obligations under contracts with certain third party
customers respectively. Pursuant to the guarantees, the Group
would be liable to pay the banks if the banks are unable to recover
the outstanding amounts under these finance leases from these
customers or the Group failed to perform relevant obligations to
these customers. As at 31 March 2019 and 2018, no provision for
the Group's obligation under the guarantee had been made as the
Directors considered that it was not probable that the repayment
of the finance lease would be in default and it was not probable

that a claim will be made against the Group.

Save as disclosed above, the Group had no material contingent
liabilities as at 31 March 2019.

Exposure to Fluctuations in Exchange Rates

The Group's revenues and other income are mainly denominated
in Hong Kong dollars (“HK$"), United States dollars ("US$"),
pounds sterling (“GBP") and Renminbi (“RMB"). The Group's
purchases and expenses are mostly denominated in HK$, US$,
GBP, RMB, Japanese Yen and Euro Dollar. The Group has certain
foreign currency bank balances and investment in foreign
operations, which are exposed to foreign currency exchange risk.
The Group currently does not have a foreign currency hedging
policy. However, the management monitors foreign exchange
exposure of the Group from time to time and will consider hedging

significant foreign currency exposure should the need arise.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEENWE D

FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

Employee Information

As at 31 March 2019, the Group had a total of approximately 227
employees (31 March 2018: 281 employees) in Hong Kong and the
PRC. The Group maintains a mandatory provident fund scheme for
its employees in Hong Kong and participates in the state-managed
retirement benefit schemes for its employees in the PRC. The
Group's remuneration policies are formulated according to market
practices, experiences, skills and performance of individual

employees and are reviewed every year.

The Group has also adopted a share option scheme and a share
award scheme. A summary of the share option scheme of the
Group is set out in the notes to the consolidated financial
statements of the Company. Details of the share award scheme are
set out in the announcement of the Company dated 27 September
2013.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEENWE D

EQUITY FUND RAISING ACTIVITIES IN THE PAST
TWO YEARS

RBEMFETZRAEETEE

AEERBEMFETZERAEE RS - EHEK
REE RS R AFHE EIW BmZFHBOT

The Group carried out a number of equity fund raising activities in
the past two years. The details of equity fund raising activities and

the actual use of proceeds are as follows:

Date of Approximate Actual use of proceeds
announcement  Event net proceeds Intended use of net proceeds as at the date of this report
NERH £ BRMERRRE fERaRERERR REFERRZFETRERAR
10 May 2017 Placing of 200,000,000 new shares  Approximately The net proceeds was previously intended to  The net proceeds of approximately HK$121.4
with aggregate nominal value HK$121.4 million be used in real estate development and million has been utilised. Of this,
of HK$2,000,000 by a subsidiary investment properties and expansion approximately HK$12.2 million was utilised
of the Company, Hao Tian opportunities in respect of the rental of as intended for general working capital
International Construction at construction machinery business in the purposes and approximately HK$109.2
the placing price of HK$0.62 PRC, Singapore, Vietnam and the United million was utilised in respect of the HTIFH
per placing share (and net Kingdom by Hao Tian International Disposal.
issue price being HK$0.605 per Construction; and for the general working
placing share). The closing capital of the Hao Tian International
price of the shares on 10 May Construction. In view of recent business
2017 was HK$0.66. development strategies and investment
opportunities, Hao Tian International
Construction amended the intended use
of proceeds to satisfy part of the
consideration payable under the HTIFH
Disposal (details of which are set out in the
paragraph headed "Disposal of Hao Tian
International Financial Holdings" below).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEENWE D

EQUITY FUND RAISING ACTIVITY IN THE PAST

TWO YEARS (continued)

Approximate
net proceeds

BOREHERE

Intended use of net proceeds

FEREFELRERE

RiBEMFET

ZRAEEESR (F)

Actual use of proceeds
as at the date of this report
REFERRZAETEERAR

Date of

announcement Event

DERHE EAE

25 June 2018 Hao Tian International
Construction proposed a 1-for-
2 rights issue (the "Rights
Issue”) to raise proceeds of
approximately HK$180 million.
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Approximately
HK$178 million

HIT8BEBTL

The net proceeds from the Rights Issue was
intended to be used in the following manner:

() approximately HK$142.4 million
(representing 80% of the estimated net
proceeds from the Rights Issue) will be
applied for money lending business or
Relevant acquisition(s);

(i) approximately HK$17.8 million
(representing 10% of the estimated net)
Proceeds from the Rights Issue) will be
applied for financial services and securities
business; and

(iii) the remaining proceeds (representing 10%
of the estimated net proceeds from the
Rights Issue) will be applied for general
working capital.
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Of the net proceeds of approximately HK$178
million, approximately HK$160.2 million
has been utilised. Of this, approximately
HK$17.8 million was utilised as intended
for general working capital purposes and
approximately HK$142.4 million was
utilised for money lending business. As of
the date of this report, approximately
HK$17.8 million of the proceeds has not
yet been utilized.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENT, MATERIAL
ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSAL
Exercise of Put Option by the Investor

On 9 April 2018, Rui Sheng Global Holdings Limited (the
“Investor”) (an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of Prosperity
International Holdings (H.K.) Limited which is a listed company in
Hong Kong (stock code: 803)) exercised its right under a put option,
pursuant to which the Group was required to acquire from the
Investor 100 million shares in Hao Tian Finance Company Limited
(“Hao Tian Finance”) at a consideration of HK$115 million, which
was settled partly by way of offsetting the indebtedness owed by
an affiliate of the Investor to the Group and partly by way of cash.
Please refer to the Company’s announcement dated 9 April 2018
for details. The acquisition has been completed and the Company's
indirect interests in Hao Tian Finance have been increased from
75.2% to 83.5%.

Acquisition of a company holding 55 Mark Lane, EC3

On 20 January 2018, Hao Tian Asia Investment Company Limited
(“Hao Tian Asia Investment”), an indirectly wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, as buyer and Reignwood Europe
Holdings S.A.R.L (“Reignwood Europe”) as seller, entered into a
sale and purchase agreement, pursuant to which Hao Tian Asia
Investment conditionally agreed to acquire, and the seller
conditionally agreed to sell, the entire issued share capital of 55
Mark Lane S.A R.L., a company incorporated under the laws of the
Grand Duchy of Luxembourg, together with certain intra-group
debts owed by it to Reignwood Europe. 55 Mark Lane S.A.R.L owns
the property known as “55 Mark Lane, EC3” situated at 52-58 Mark
Lane, London, EC3R 7NE, the United Kingdom, which is let to a mix
of office and retail tenants at a consideration of £128 million
(equivalent to approximately HK$1,429 million). This transaction
constitutes a major transaction of the Company under the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the
"Listing Rules”). The acquisition has been completed on 12 April
2018. For details, please refer to the announcements of the
Company dated 7 December 2017, 21 January 2018 and 12 April
2018, respectively, and the circular of the Company dated 23 March
2018.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEENWE D

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENT, MATERIAL
ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSAL (continued)

Disposal of Hao Tian International Financial Holdings

On 28 March 2018, the Company as seller, Solution Pro Investments
Limited (“Solution Pro”), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of
Hao Tian International Construction, as purchaser and Hao Tian
International Construction entered into a sale and purchase
agreement, pursuant to which Solution Pro conditionally agreed to
acquire, and the Company conditionally agreed to sell the entire
issued share capital of Hao Tian International Financial Holdings
Limited (the “HTIFH Disposal”), a company incorporated under the
laws of the BVI (“Hao Tian International Financial Holdings"”). Hao
Tian International Financial Holdings holds several subsidiaries
engaged in the provision of financial services involving SFC
regulated activities, insurance agency and money lending. This
transaction constitutes a discloseable transaction of the Company,
and a major and connected transaction of Hao Tian International

Construction.

On 25 June 2018, the parties entered into a supplemental
agreement to amend certain payment terms of the HTIFH Disposal.
Originally, a portion of the consideration for the HTIFH Disposal of
HK$50 million shall be settled by way of issue of shares of Hao Tian
International Construction to the Company. Pursuant to the
supplemental agreement, if Hao Tian International Construction
would not be able to meet the public float requirement under Rule
8.08(1)(a) of the Listing Rules following issue of its shares to the
Company under the HTIFH Disposal, Hao Tian International
Construction shall issue such a lower number of shares to the
extent required to meet the public float requirement and the

shortfall shall be satisfied by way of cash.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENT, MATERIAL
ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSAL (continued)
Disposal of Hao Tian International Financial Holdings
(continued)

On 24 July 2018, the parties entered into a second supplemental
agreement pursuant to which (i) the consideration for the HTIFH
Disposal shall be reduced from HK$200 million to HK$180 million
and shall be satisfied wholly by cash; and (ii) the HTIFH Disposal
shall be subject to an additional condition precedent that the
indebtedness between the Company and Hao Tian International
Financial Holdings shall be first offset against each other and the
remaining indebtedness owed by Hao Tian International Financial
Holdings to the Company shall be irrevocably waived and
discharged. The HTIFH Disposal has been completed on 13
December 2018. Upon completion of the HTIFH Disposal, Hao Tian
International Financial Holdings has become an indirect wholly-
owned subsidiary of Hao Tian International Construction and an
indirect non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Company. For details
of the HTIFH Disposal, please refer to the announcements of the
Company dated 28 March 2018, 25 June 2018 and 24 July 2018,

respectively.

Acquisition of Rights Shares in Hao Tian International
Construction

On 25 June 2018, Hao Tian International Construction proposed a
1-for-2 rights issue (the “Rights Issue”) to raise gross proceeds of
HK$180 million. Hao Tian Management (China) Limited (“HTM
China”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into
(1) an irrevocable undertaking to take up 750 million rights shares,
representing its provisional allotment under the Rights Issue; and (2)
an underwriting agreement (the “Underwriting Agreement”) to
take up a maximum of an additional 450 million rights shares if
none of the qualifying shareholders of Hao Tian International
Construction subscribes for the Shares under the Rights Issue. The
transactions contemplated under the irrevocable undertaking and
the underwriting agreement constitute a discloseable transaction of

the Company under the Listing Rules.
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SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENT, MATERIAL
ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSAL (continued)
Acquisition of Rights Shares in Hao Tian International
Construction (continued)

On 2 August 2018, the Rights Issue was completed and all
conditions precedent to the Underwriting Agreement were fulfilled.
As a result, the Company’s interests in Hao Tian International
Construction increased from 62.5% to 64.79% after taking up the
rights shares under the provisional allotment and the Underwriting

Agreement.

For details, please refer to the announcements of the Company
dated 25 June 2018 and 8 August 2018, respectively.

Acquisition of Notes and Issue of Bonds

On 28 June 2018, the Company entered into an agreement with its
controlling shareholder, Asia Link Capital Investment Holdings
Limited (“Asia Link”), pursuant to which the Company agreed to
purchase from Asia Link a US$30 million 8.5% note due 2020 issued
by Imperial Pacific International Holdings Limited, a company listed
on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange, for a consideration of
US$27.8 million, which shall be satisfied by issue of US$27.8 million
4% bonds due 2019 by the Company. The acquisition constitutes a
disclosable and connected transaction of the Company under the

Listing Rules and was subsequently completed on 11 October 2018.
For details, please refer to the announcements of the Company

dated 28 June 2018 and 11 October 2018 and the circular of the
Company dated 6 September 2018, respectively.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENT, MATERIAL
ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSAL (continued)
Disposal of 100% interest in an investment holding
company with logistics project in Urumqi

On 9 November 2018, Shan Dian Technology (HK) Company
Limited (“Shan Dian”) as purchaser, Tenfield Investments Limited
("Tenfield”, a direct wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company) as
vendor, and Access Profit Global Enterprises Group Limited
("Access Profit”) as the target company, entered into a sale and
purchase agreement (the “Access Profit SPA”) pursuant to which
Tenfield conditionally agreed to sell, and Shan Dian conditionally
agreed to purchase, 1,000 fully-paid ordinary shares of Access
Profit, representing its entire issued share capital, at a consideration
of HK$180 million (the “Disposal of Access Profit”). Access Profit,
through its subsidiaries, indirectly holds a parcel of land with a total
site area of approximately 151,100 sg.m. located in Urumgi of the
PRC. Upon completion of the Disposal of Access Profit, each of
Access Profit and its subsidiaries ceased to be a subsidiary of the
Company and the financial results of Access Profit and its
subsidiaries will no longer be consolidated into the Group's
financial statements. This disposal constitutes a discloseable
transaction of the Company and was completed on 22 November
2018. For details of the Disposal of Access Profit, please refer to the
announcements of the Company dated 9 November 2018 and 23
November 2018.

Acquisition of equity interest in multimedia animation
entertainment business

On 13 February 2019, Hao Tian Media & Culture Company Limited,
a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into a sale and
purchase agreement with China Animation Holding (BVI) Limited in
relation to the acquisition of 10,290,000 shares of Grand Peaceful
Global Limited, representing 49% of its entire issued share capital
at the consideration of HK$80,776,500 which would be satisfied by
the Company issuing consideration shares. The acquisition
constitutes a discloseable transaction of the Company under the
Listing Rules and completion of the acquisition took place on 22
February 2019 and 372,585,332 shares were issued by the
Company.

For details, please refer to the announcements of the Company
dated 13 February 2019 and 22 February 2019.
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SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENT, MATERIAL
ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSAL (continued)
Disposal of a property holding company

On 1 March 2019, Crawler Krane Business Limited (a non-wholly
owned subsidiary of the Company) entered into a sale and
purchase agreement with Bravo Rich Limited in relation to the
disposal of all issued shares in Chim Kee Crane Company Limited
at the cash consideration of HK$100,000,000. The disposal
constitutes a discloseable transaction of the Company under the
Listing Rules and completion of the disposal took place on 29 April
2019.

For details, please refer to the announcements of the Company
dated 1 March 2019 and 29 April 2019.

Subscription of interest in Fund

On 5 March 2019, Glory Century Limited, a non-wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company, placed an order with Millennium Fund
Services (Asia) Limited to subscribe for the 319,325.73 participating
shares in the Riverwood China Growth Fund at the subscription
amount of approximately US$20,000,000, which was satisfied by
way of transferring the 588,680,000 shares in China Shandong Hi-
Speed Financial Group Limited to the Riverwood China Growth
Fund. The subscription constitutes a discloseable transaction of the
Company under the Listing Rules and completion of the
subscription took place on 6 March 2019.

For details, please refer to the announcement of the Company
dated 5 March 2019.

Proposed Nuogi Transaction

On 6 November 2017, Fujian Nuogji, Zhong Hong Holdings Group
Limited, a company incorporated in the Cayman Islands (“Zhong
Hong”) and Mr. Hu Yulin entered into a sale and purchase
agreement, pursuant to which Fujian Nuogqi has conditionally
agreed to acquire, and Zhong Hong has conditionally agreed to
sell, the entire issued share capital in Zhong Hong International
Limited (the "Target Company”), a company incorporated in the
British Virgin Islands (the “Proposed Nuogi Transaction”). The
consideration payable by Fujian Nuogqi shall be HK$1,053,024,128
and shall be satisfied by Fujian Nuoqi by allotment and issue to
Zhong Hong of 1,541,878,659 new H Shares (the “Consideration
Shares"), credited as fully paid, at an issue price of HK$0.6829 per
Consideration Share.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENT, MATERIAL
ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSAL (continued)

Proposed Nuoqi Transaction (continued)

Assuming the Consideration Shares are fully issued, the
shareholding interest of the Company in Fujian Nuogi will be
diluted from 59.93% to 17.00% and the Proposed Nuoqi
Transaction will constitute a deemed disposal of the Company

under the Listing Rules.

The Proposed Nuogi Transaction is also subject to a number of

conditions precedent, including, in particular:

(@) the grant of approval by the Stock Exchange to the
resumption proposal and the resumption of trading in the H
Shares of Fujian Nuog;;

(b)  the Chinese Securities Regulatory Commission granting the
approval(s) necessary for the issue and allotment of the

Consideration Shares; and

() the Executive of the Securities and Futures Commission
granting a waiver to Zhong Hong to the effect that neither
Zhong Hong nor any party acting in concert (as defined in the
Code on Takeovers and Mergers) (the “"Takeovers Code”)
with it will be obliged to make a general offer for the shares
of Fujian Nuoqi under the Takeovers Code as a result of the
allotment and issue of the Consideration Shares to Zhong

Hong.

The Proposed Nuogi Transaction was yet to be completed up to

the date of this report.
EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Save as disclosed in note 52 of the financial statements, the Group

had no material event after the reporting period.

BEENWE D

EXARE EEWBRHEE(E)

R ERDEREET ARARBERS
A% RS R 59.93% B E 17.00% » MiE#E T X515
BRARRNR EMRAE N ZRIELEEHE -

BEmARXHIINBGETRRGHEERR - 70
FE  EREFECLER)

@) HMXPfEREEZRBEFRTZHRIREER

= -

=

b) FEEFEEETEZB@RBTREHEREKR
RO VEE R

© BRRHAEEBERZEGIHNTAERATERE
Rh#%  BEPRSEMEE-BITSZA
T (EERARKERAGTA (TWHEFAL)
1 /AR A P R A 3 e BT B R AR R UK
BrAlEERTRNREE2EEL -

BEARERY  BEETRXIHAKRTK

BREMRER

B B 765 3 3k P 1 52 PR BE & b
WA ERFIE o

REBN R E HER

Annual Report %% 2018/19 35



Hao Tian Development Group Limited ® 2 XZEEEBHR QA

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEENWE D

BUSINESS PROSPECTS

The China-US trade frictions intensified the risk factors affecting the
pace of global economic recovery and the financial markets has
been experiencing huge volatilities amid rising protectionism.
Hong Kong economy is facing increasingly downward pressure in
2019, but there are some positive factors such as strong labor
market, proactive fiscal policy implemented by the government and
advantages of ever-deepening economic integration with the
Mainland China that will continue to support the economic
performance ahead. Therefore, the Company is optimistic about
the local property market and expects a stable growth in our
mortgage loan business. The Group will continue to adopt a
cautious approach when granting loans and will increase the
proportion of first mortgage loans and second mortgage loans.
Whilst the Group strives to sustain its business growth, the
management will continue to run the business in a prudent manner
through enhancing risk control to cope with the possible economic

fluctuations.

Capitalising on Hong Kong's role as a leading financial center for
fund raising and asset management, the increasing connectivity of
stock and bond with the Mainland China as well as fast-paced
development of financial technology as new growth drivers, the
Group is prepared to take an active part in new business
opportunities in financial services and will also actively explore the
possibility of developing digital assets management and related

services.
It is our intention to increase our presence in the financial market in

Hong Kong and Mainland China by either organic growth or

working with reputable partners.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BUSINESS PROSPECTS (continued)

We started the first fund with Riverwood Asset Management
(Cayman) Limited with a total assets under management (“AUM")
of USD40,000,000 during the year. It combined the strength of
Atlantis Investment Management Limited and the Company to tap
the opportunities arising from the new preferential policies for The
Greater Bay Area announced on 18 February 2019. We have
confidence to grow the AUM further to USD100,000,000 in FY2020,
in which the fee income will contribute to our asset management
business in FY2020. In the future, we will set up different kind of
funds in different asset class ranging from equities, fixed income,
initial public offering, property and project financing, etc. We strive
for the success of our client’s investments by creating tailored-
made solutions for clients through our expertise of investment

capabilities.

Also, the Group will set up a new business in FY2020, that is, family
office business, to serve wealthy families, mainly from Mainland
China. We see a strong demand to have offshore asset allocation
to HKD or USD assets. That created the market opportunities for

our new business to serve high net worth wealthy families.

During the year, we acquired 35% of an asset management fund
capitalizing on economic development and resources in Yan'an, the
PRC with objectives to promote innovative industrial integrations
and provide high quality investment services to the country (the
“"Yanan Asset Fund”).

development fund approved by the National Development and

Yanan Asset Fund is a state-level

Reform Commission, which mainly invests in sub-funds for projects
in relation to energy and chemical engineering, clean energy,
construction of infrastructure, green energy, patriotic tourism and
industrial poverty alleviation projects in Yan'an. In FY2020, we will
work with local partners in Yan'an, Shaanxi Province of the PRC, to

develop the private equity businesses.
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BEEENWE D

BUSINESS PROSPECTS (continued)

Despite the impending withdrawal of the United Kingdom from the
European Union, the real properties in London are still attractive to
the international investors. The Group has completed the
acquisition of 55 Mark Lane, a real property located in London, the
United Kingdom. Currently, the rental income is in line with our
expectations. The Group is in the process of optimizing the usage
of the building structure by way of exploring the possibilities of
constructing two to three additional floors to increase the rentable

area and therefore the value of the property.

We will continue to look for merger and acquisition opportunities in
Hong Kong, Mainland China and South East Asia that may
strengthen our position in the area of financial services. We are also
preparing an innovative fin-tech platform that will better serve our

customers in a more efficient way.

We are excited what will happen in FY2020 and will work diligently

with the team to create value for shareholders.

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board does not recommend the payment of a final dividend
for the year ended 31 March 2019 (2018: Nil).
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The Directors of the Company present their annual report and the
audited consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year
ended 31 March 2019 (the “year under review").

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. As at the date of
this annual report, its subsidiaries are principally engaged in the
business of (a) provision of financial services and related financial
advisory services through subsidiaries licensed to conduct (i) Type 1
(dealing in securities), Type 2 (dealing in futures contracts), Type 4
(advising on securities) and Type 9 (asset management) regulated
activities under the SFO; (ii) money lending activities; and (iii)
brokerage of general insurance and long term (including linked
long term) insurance; (b) securities investment; (c) rental and trading
of construction machinery; (d) property investment and leasing; and
(e) the retailing of men’s and women'’s apparels. The principal
activities of its subsidiaries are set out in note 47 to the
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March
2019.

BUSINESS REVIEW
A review of the Group'’s financial and business
performance

A review of the Group's business and the analysis using the financial
key performance indicators are set out on page 14 to page 26 of
this annual report under the paragraphs headed “Business Review”
and “Financial Review” in the section headed “Management,
Discussion and Analysis” of this annual report. For the year under
review, the Group had incurred a loss attributable to the owners of
the Company of approximately HK$380.9 million (2018:
approximately HK$444.9 million), which was mainly attributable to
the fair value loss on financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss/investment held for trading of approximately HK$399.9 million
(2018: loss of approximately HK$148.9 million). The gearing ratio
(being the ratio of total borrowings, including secured notes and
obligations under finance leases, to total assets) as at 31 March
2019 was 43.9% (31 March 2018: 27.3%). The increase was mainly
attributable to the acquisition of 55 Mark Lane during the year.
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BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)

Environmental, Social and Governance

The Group is committed to operating in compliance with the
applicable environmental laws as well as protecting the
environment by minimising the negative impact of the Group's
existing business activities on the environment. During the year
under review, the Group strived to build an environmentally friendly
enterprise with enhancement of energy usage efficiency,
implementation of various emission reduction measures and
improvement in resource usage efficiency. Details of the
environmental policies and performance will be set out in the
Environmental, Social and Governance Report of the Company
which will be available on the websites of the Company and the
Stock Exchange on or before the end of September 2019.

Relationship with Employees, Customers and Suppliers

The Group recognizes the importance of having good working
relationship with its employees. During the year under review, the
Group has not experienced any significant problems with its staff or
any significant labour disputes. As at 31 March 2019, the Group had
a total of approximately 227 employees in Hong Kong and the PRC.
The Group's remuneration policies are formulated according to
market practices, experiences, skills and performance of individual
employees and are reviewed every year. The Group has also
adopted a share option scheme and a share award scheme, details
of which are set out in the notes 44 to the consolidated financial

statements of the Group.

The Group understands the importance of maintaining a good
relationship with its customers and suppliers to its immediate and
long-term business goals. During the year under review, the
aggregate revenue and purchases attributable to the Group's five
largest customers and suppliers were approximately 26% and 67%
of the Group's total revenue and purchases respectively. As at 31
March 2019, the majority of the Group's five largest customers and
suppliers have a length of relationship with the Group for more
than 10 years.

Compliance with laws and regulations with significant
impact

Based on the best knowledge of the Directors, the Group has

complied in all material respect with laws and regulations that have

a significant impact on the Group.
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BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)

Principal risks and Uncertainties

The Group identified and determined the major risks which may
affect the operations results and financial conditions of the Group
through risk management process, which including the following:

Risk in delay or default of payment in the Group’s money
lending business

As at 31 March 2019, the outstanding current loan receivables of the
money lending business of the Group (net of impairment) was
approximately HK$440.6 million, representing approximately 17% of
the total current assets of the Group. Any delay or default in payment
of the loans will have an adverse impact on the Group's working
capital, cash flow and subsequently the profits of the Group.

To manage such risk, the Group requires borrowers to provide
appropriate security and closely monitors the loan receivable
collection cycle from time to time to get full collection of the
outstanding amounts due from customers. The Group will assess
and decide to enforce the security provided by customers or take
legal actions as appropriate. All exposures are subject to regular
review and assessment for possible impairment.

Compliance risk

The Group operates financial services business through subsidiaries
with appropriate licenses to conduct regulated activities, insurance
agency and money lending. During the course of providing such
financial services, the Group would be exposed to compliance risk,
including the risk of legal liability, being subject to regulatory
proceedings, disciplinary action, or loss of property or business
reputation arising from violation of laws, regulations and rules due
to the operation and management or practices of the Group or its
personnel. In order to effectively control compliance risk, the Group
has put in place a practicable compliance management system and
provided resources and support to develop lawful and compliant
operations of the Group.

Financial risk

The Group's diversified business is exposed to a variety of risks,
such as market risks, credit risk and liquidity risk. Further details of
the financial risk management objectives and policies are set out in
note 50 to the consolidated financial statements.
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RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year under review are set out in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income for the year ended 31 March 2019 on pages 84 and 85 of
this annual report.

No final dividend was recommended by the Directors for the year
under review (2018: Nil).

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

As at 31 March 2019, the Company’s reserves available for
distribution amounted to approximately HK$3,029.4 million (2018:
HK$2,613.1 million). The distributable reserves include the
Company'’s share premium reserve of approximately HK$4,353
million (2018: HK$4,273 million), which may be distributed subject
to Section 34 of the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands and the
Articles of Association of the Company. Details of the movements
in the reserves of the Group during the year are set out in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity on pages 90 and 91 of

this annual report.
PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in the property, plant and equipment of
the Group are set out in note 15 to the consolidated financial

statements for the year under review.
SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the share capital of the Company are set out in note 41
to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
March 2019.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company'’s Articles of Association and the Companies Law of the
Cayman lIslands, which would oblige the Company to offer new

shares on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and assets and liabilities of the Group for
the last five financial years ended 31 March 2019 is set out on page
296 of this annual report.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the year

under review.
DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year under review and up to the date of

this annual report were:

Executive Directors

Mr. Xu Hai Ying

Dr. Zhiliang Ou, J.P. (Australia)
Mr. Fok Chi Tak

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Mr. Chan Ming Sun, Jonathan

Mr. Lam Kwan Sing

Mr. Lee Chi Hwa, Joshua

According to the Company'’s Articles of Association, Mr. Xu Hai
Ying and Mr. Chan Ming Sun, Jonathan shall retire and being
eligible, offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual

general meeting.
DIRECTORS SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the Directors has entered into a service contract or a letter
of appointment with the Company for a term of three years, which
can be terminated by not less than three months’ notice in writing
served by either party on the other. No Director proposed for re-
election at the forthcoming annual general meeting has a service
contract with any company in the Group which is not determinable
by the Group within three months without compensation (other

than statutory compensation).
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Each of the Independent Non-executive Directors has confirmed
their independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The
Board considers all of the Independent Non-executive Directors

are independent.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

Save as provided in the paragraph headed “Connected
Transaction” below, no other transaction, arrangement or contract
of significance to which the Company, its ultimate holding
company, any of its fellow subsidiaries or subsidiaries was a party
and in which a Director of the Company had a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at

any time during the year under review.

ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as provided in the paragraph headed “Connected
Transaction” below, at no time during the year under review was
the Company, its controlling shareholders, holding companies, or
any of its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries a party to any
arrangements to enable the Directors to acquire benefits by means
of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or
any other body corporate, and neither the Directors nor the chief
executive, nor any of their spouses or children under the age of 18,
had any right to subscribe for the securities of the Company, or had

exercised any such right.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES' INTERESTS

AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND

UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE COMPANY AND ITS

ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS

As at 31 March 2019, the interests and short positions of the
Directors and chief executives of the Company in shares, underlying
shares and debentures of the Company or its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and
Futures Ordinance (the "SFO”"), as recorded in the register required
to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or
as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
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pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers of the Listing Rules (the “Model Code"),

were as follows:

Long positions in ordinary shares and underlying shares

of the Company

REQXRDEBRKEEBRGD 2HR

RE-ZE-NAF=ZA=+—H EERERRTET
BABRARRREBEEE (EERIFFRMYPE K
BI([BERBMEMRE ) EXVED) < Bfy - 1R
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Approximate

Number of percentage of

Name of Director/ Nature of Number of underlying Total  total issued

chief executive Capacity interest shares held shares held interests  share capital

HEBT

V4 Pl PR [t

FETHABHA e BEtE #H ROEE BEa BHEAL

(Note 1)

(FizE1)

Fok Chi Tak Beneficial owner Personal interest 53,783,262 - 53,783,262 1.02%
EEE ERBAA EARER

Xu Hai Ying Beneficial owner Personal interest 733,752 = 733,752 0.01%
TEE ERBAA (EYN; £

Zhiliang Ou Beneficial owner Personal interest 733,752 = 733,752 0.01%
S ERBEA (YN 3

Chan Ming Sun, Jonathan Beneficial owner Personal interest 733,752 - 733,752 0.01%
Brénst ExAA (BN &

Lam Kwan Sing Beneficial owner Personal interest 733,752 - 733,752 0.01%
MEH ERBAA B ARER

Lee Chi Hwa, Joshua Beneficial owner Personal interest 733,752 = 733,752 0.01%

ERBAA

fEL A B
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES' INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE COMPANY AND ITS
ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS (continued)

Long positions in ordinary shares and underlying shares
of the Company (continued)

Note:

1. The percentage of shareholding is calculated on the basis of 5,284,798,915
shares in issue as at 31 March 2019.

Other than as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2019, none of the
Directors or chief executives of the Company had any interests or
short positions in any shares, underlying shares and debentures of,
the Company or any of its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as recorded in the register required
to be kept under Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model
Code.

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

The Company has adopted a new share option scheme on 25
September 2015 and a share award scheme on 27 September 2013,
respectively. Particulars of the Company’s share option schemes
and details of movements in the share options are set out in note
44 to the consolidated financial statements. There is no share award
granted under the share award scheme during the year under
review. As at the date of this annual report, the total number of
shares available for issue under the share option scheme was
328,430,310 shares, representing approximately 6.21% of the issued
shares of the Company.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
The allotment and issuance of new emolument shares to
Mr. Fok Chi Tak

The Company issued and allotted 14,175,779 emolument shares on
26 March 2019 to Mr. Fok Chi Tak, pursuant to the directors’ service
agreement dated 26 September 2016 for his appointment as an
Executive Director of the Company for a term of three years,

commencing from 27 September 2016.

Mr. Fok, being an Executive Director of the Company, is a
connected person of the Company under the Listing Rules.
Accordingly, the issue of the emolument shares to Mr. Fok
constituted a connected transaction of the Company under the
Listing Rules. Details of such transaction were set out in the
announcement dated 26 September 2016 and the circular dated 26
January 2017 of the Company.

The related party transaction regarding the service agreement as
set out in note 45 to the consolidated financial statements

constitute connected transaction of the Company.
Acquisition of Notes and Issue of Bonds

On 28 June 2018, the Company entered into an agreement with its
controlling shareholder, Asia Link, pursuant to which the Company
agreed to purchase from Asia Link a US$30 million 8.5% note due
2020 issued by Imperial Pacific International Holdings Limited, a
company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange, for a
consideration of US$27.8 million, which shall be satisfied by issue of
US$27.8 million 4% bond due 2019 by the Company. The
transaction was completed on 11 October 2018. For details, please
refer to the announcements of the Company dated 28 June 2018
and 11 October 2018 and the circular of the Company dated 6
September 2018 respectively.

Hao Tian Development Group Limited ® £ X% EEEHR A7)

REPORT OF DIRECTORS
ESEHRE

HEXS
ESELERBERBTHRBRG

RZZB-—NAF=ZRA-+RA " AREEREEHR
TE-RFNANATRBZEERBHERAEER
FEHEBITRECE 14,175,779 BB - ZEF IR
HHEDIREREIERARRNITEEMRIL - B
“ERFAA-TLEBERE=%F-

RELEHRA ARRRTEFELRERL AR
AL e Bt - RIBEETRR - MEBEREEITREK
MBRARRZHERS - FHURSHBTHEANRALR
RABBAZE—R"RFNAZTRAZAERAEA
—Z—+F AT RBZBEH -

NG AV BHRMTASEERBHRZBETR
SERANRRZBER S

BREERBRTES

RZBE-NFRAZ+NR » NA A EEZERRR
DERIERI S % - Bt - AR RIRIE R E R
RFrERETAREERFFERZERBR AR
BITIBEBETBSH _E_ZFIHEE  KE
R2IBEBET AARREITZ8ABERITTI% —
Z-NFRAMZEFEN XHER=_F-N\F+
AT—B%xK - BEHIE  F2HARFARHA-Z
—NERAZ+TNBEZZE-NA\F+tA+—BHA
EARAKRBEBMA T N\FAANRBREK -

Annual Report 4%k 2018/19 47



Hao Tian Development Group Limited ® 2 XZEEEBHR QA

REPORT OF DIRECTORS
ESEHRE

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING
SHARES OF THE COMPANY

As at 31 March 2019, so far as is known to the Directors or chief
executives of the Company, the following entities (other than a
Director or chief executive of the Company) have interests or short
positions of 5% or more in the shares and underlying shares of the
Company which were recorded in the register of substantial
shareholders maintained under Section 336 of the SFO or had

otherwise notified to the Company:

FERRREARARGREBROTES
ZREBRAR

RZZB-NF=ZR=+—RH REFHERRAEE
TTRABMA  UTEB(BEFHARAEETHA
BRI RAR BB RARBI RO B 5% A £
ZHERTOAR  ARAERIRAEERHENRIEES
RAERPISE B FREFE 2 EBRRECMAK
ERTHEARRA

Approximate
Number of Number of percentage of
ordinary underlying total issued
Name of shareholder Shares held Shares held  Capacity Total interests share capital
HEBT
Frisg Bk iigsiEl R
BRREE #A RG#E 56 ERAc CRER
(Note 1)
GED
Li Shao Yu (“Ms. Li") (Note 2) 3,061,584,773 - Interest of controlled corporations 3,067,161,815 58.04%
O35 (%5L]) (it AT
5,577,042 - Beneficial owner
ERfERA
Asia Link Capital Investment Holdings 3,061,584,773 - Beneficial owner 3,061,584,773 57.93%
Limited (" Asia Link") (Note 2) ESfAA
DHEIEERERAR ([EH])(H:E2)
China Construction Bank Corporation - 454,930,000 Interest of controlled corporation 454,930,000 8.61%
(“China Construction Bank”) (Note 3) RN Al
hEIRRRTRNBRAA
(B RBAT]) (F17E3)
Haitong Securities Co., Limited - 1,948,333,333  Security interest 1,948,333,333 36.87%
(“HSCL") (Note 4) ERES
BREFRNHERAF
(Is@R% ) (HEa)
China Animation Characters 372,585,332 - Interest of controlled corporation 372,585,332 7.05%
Company Limited XA ER

(“China Animation Characters”)
(Note 5)

EEHEVRERAH
([ZEHBHZ]) (M5
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING
SHARES OF THE COMPANY (continued)

Notes:

1.

The percentage of shareholding is calculated on the basis of 5,284,798,915
shares in issue as at 31 March 2019.

These 3,061,584,773 shares were held directly by Asia Link, which was
beneficially wholly-owned by Ms. Li.

China Construction Bank, through Vandi Investment Limited, which is its
indirect wholly-owned subsidiary, held the call option to require the
Company to issue 454,930,000 ordinary shares (adjusted as result of bonus
issue of the Company as set out in the announcement dated 25 July 2017).
Central Huijin Investment Limited held 57.11% of the issued shares in
China Construction Bank.

HSCL, through Haitong International Holdings Limited, which is its directly
wholly-owned subsidiary, held 63.08% of the issued shares in Haitong
International Securities Group Limited, which in turn held 100% of the
issued shares in Haitong International Financial Products (Singapore) Pte.
Ltd (“HIFP Singapore”). HIFP Singapore held the security interest in those
1,948,333,333 shares in the Company.

China Animation Characters, through China Animation Holding (BVI)
Limited, which is its direct wholly-owned subsidiary, held those
372,585,332 shares in the Company. China Animation Characters was
owned as to 55.38% by Bright Rise Enterprises Limited which in turn was
wholly owned by Newgate (PTC) Limited. Mr. Chong Heung Chung Jason
is the sole shareholder of Newgate (PTC) Limited. Based on the notices of
disclosure of interest, Mr. Chong and its concert parties pursuant to an
agreement under Section 317 of the SFO are deemed to be interested in
the 372,585,332 shares in the Company.

Other than as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2019, the Company

has not been notified by any persons (other than Directors or chief

executive of the Company) who have interests or short positions in

any shares or underlying shares of the Company, which would fall

to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2
and 3 of Part XV of the SFO) as recorded in the register required to
be kept under Section 336 of the SFO.
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MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of
the whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company

were entered into or existed during the year.
TAX RELIEF

The Company is not aware of any relief from taxation available to
shareholders by reason of their holding of the shares of the

Company.
EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is
recommended by the Remuneration Committee and determined
by the Board on the basis of their merit, qualifications and

competence.

The emoluments of the Directors of the Company are
recommended by the Remuneration Committee and determined
by the Board having regard to the Company’s operating results,

individual performance and comparable market standards.

The Company has adopted the share option schemes and the
share award scheme as incentives to the Directors and eligible

employees.
MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year, the aggregate revenue and purchases attributable
to the Group's five largest customers and suppliers were
approximately 26% and 67% of the Group's total revenue and
purchases respectively and the revenue and purchase attributable
to the Group's largest customer and supplier were approximately
6% and 42% of the Group's total revenue and purchases

respectively.

At no time during the year did a Director, an associate of a Director
or a shareholder of the Company (which to the knowledge of the
Directors owns more than 5% of the Company’s share capital) have

an interest in any of the Group's five largest customers or suppliers.
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DIRECTORS’ INDEMNITY

According to the articles of association of the Company, the
Directors for the time being of the Company shall be indemnified
and secured harmless out of the assets and profits of the Company
from and against all actions, costs, charges, losses, damages and
expenses which they or any of them, shall or may incur or sustain by
reason of any act done, concurred in or omitted in or about the

execution of their duty in their respective offices.

The Company has taken out appropriate insurance cover in respect

of legal action against the Directors during the year under review.
SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is public available to the Company
and to the best knowledge of the Directors, during the year under
review, at least 25% of the Company'’s issued shares were held by
the public as required under Rule 8.08 of the Listing Rules.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company is committed to the establishment of good corporate
governance practices and procedures that are consistent with the
“Corporate Governance Code” (the “CG Code”) set out in
Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”).
The corporate governance principles of the Company emphasize
on a quality Board of Directors, sound internal control, transparency

and accountability to all shareholders of the Company.

The Company has applied the principles and complied with all
relevant code provisions of the CG Code during the year ended 31
March 2019, save and except Code Provisions A.2.1 and A.5.1:

() The CG Code recognizes the importance of the management
of the Board and the day-to-day management of the business.
The Company has not appointed the chairman and the Board
provides leadership for the Company. Having considered the
business operation of the Group at the material time, it is
believed that the Board, which consists of experienced
professionals, can function effectively as a whole, while the
Executive Directors along with other members of senior
management of the Company are effective in overseeing the
day-to-day management of the Group under the strong

corporate governance structure in place.

(i)  The Nomination Committee is chaired by an Executive
Director and comprises a majority of the Independent Non-
executive Director. The Board believed that an executive
Director involved in the daily operations of the Company may
be better positioned to review the composition of the Board

so as to complement the Group's corporate strategy.
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GOVERNANCE FRAMEWORK

The Board is collectively responsible for the long-term success of
the Group and for its leadership, strategy planning, risk
management, corporate governance, financial performance and
culture. The Board has established Audit Committee, Remuneration
Committee, Nomination Committee and Executive Committee,
each with defined terms of reference (available on the websites of

the Company and the Stock Exchange), which are on no less

A\l "-\\
TEERBE

ExgAARAER
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exacting terms than those set out in the CG Code to oversee

particular aspects of the Company’s affairs and to assist in the

execution of the Board's responsibilities.

The Board
EExg
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Z
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Collectively responsible for promoting long-term success of the Company by providing leadership, strategic planning
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and managing risk and supervising corporate governance, financial performance and culture
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Audit Committee

EREEE

Bae - RHERBERIILERE

Remuneration Committee

FHWEES

BIWEEBHER

C IBRBERUE

Nomination Committee

REZES
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Executive Committee

BITEEE

Reviews risk
management and
internal control systems
WETEREE RAE R
EHIE

Monitors internal and
external auditors

EER A ED R HNIBAZ BLAM
Oversees financial

reporting process

ERMBRERF

Sets remuneration
policy for Directors and
senior management
HEEERSREEA
8 2 HIE R

Recommends to Board

on Executive Director(s)’

and senior
management’s
remuneration and
incentives
RHTEERSRER
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EERbES

Recommends to Board
on appointment, re-
appointment of
Directors
REEREHEEES
mMEZSRLESR
Reviews Board structure,
composition and
diversity
BEEFEECRE A
DS E e

Assesses independence
of Independent Non-
executive Directors
AHEBMIERITEEZ
B

e Act general
management committee
under the direct
authority of the Board to
enhance the efficiency
for business decisions
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GOVERNANCE FRAMEWORK (continued)

Each Committee has authority to obtain external professional
advice and to seek information from employees, and the Company
will provide sufficient resources to the Committees for performance
of its duties and responsibilities. Minutes of the Committees
meetings are kept by the Company Secretary and all decisions of
the Committees are reported to the Board. To further reinforce
independence and effectiveness, all Audit Committee members are
Independent Non-executive Directors, and the Nomination and
Remuneration Committees have been structured with a majority of
Independent Non-executive Directors as members. Details and

reports of the Committees are set out below.
BOARD COMPOSITION AND BOARD PRACTICES
Role and function

The Board has the responsibility of promoting the success of the
Company by formulating its strategic direction and supervising its
operations and affairs in an effective manner. Each Director has a
fiduciary duty and statutory responsibilities towards the Company.

Each Director is aware of his collective and individual
responsibilities to all shareholders and that he should give sufficient

time and attention to the affairs of the Company.

With the objective of enhancing shareholder value, the Board is
responsible for the formulation and approval of overall business
strategies and policies of the Group, management of the business
and affairs of the Group, and monitoring of the performance of the
management of the Group and is charged with presenting a
balanced, clear and understandable assessment of the Group's
performance, position and prospects in its annual and interim
results, other announcements containing inside information and
financial disclosures of the Company required under the Listing

Rules and other applicable rules.
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BOARD COMPOSITION AND BOARD PRACTICES
(continued)

Role and function (continued)
Some of the key responsibilities of the Board include:

o establishing and maintaining the strategic direction and

objectives of the Group

° evaluating significant investment proposals, major acquisitions
or disposals

° appointment or re-appointment of Directors and Committee
Members

o ensuring the financial statements are prepared to give a true

and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group

o ensuring that a framework of prudent and effective controls is

in place to enable risks to be assessed and managed

o monitoring major capital transactions or other significant

operational or financial matters
o monitoring the performance of management

Daily operations and management of the Group’s business are

delegated to the management.
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BOARD COMPOSITION AND BOARD PRACTICES

(continued)

Composition

As at the date of this annual report, the Board comprises three

ESSHRRESEER(E)

o

Executive Directors and three Independent Non-executive MIFH{TES -

Directors.

Membership of Board Committee(s)

EEZEECHE

Executive Directors:
HITES

Mr. Xu Hai Ying
FHEE -

Dr. Zhiliang Ou, J.P.
B ESIET - A Fat

Mr. Fok Chi Tak

Independent Non-executive Directors:
BYFHTES:

Mr. Chan Ming Sun Jonathan
BR&8 28 SE A

Mr. Lam Kwan Sing
MBBITE

Mr. Lee Chi Hwa, Joshua
TEELELE
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Member of the Executive Committee
WITZEEKE

Chairman of the Nomination Committee
REEEEERE

Member of the Remuneration Committee
FMEEGKE

Member of the Executive Committee

HITEBEKE

Member of the Executive Committee

HITEBEKE

Chairman of the Audit Committee
BEREESERE

Member of the Nomination Committee
REEZEEGKE

Chairman of the Remuneration Committee

FMEREETR

Member of the Audit Committee
BERLZEEKE

Member of the Nomination Committee
REEBEGKE

Member of the Remuneration Committee
FMEEGKE

Member of the Audit Committee
EZEZEENE
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BOARD COMPOSITION AND BOARD PRACTICES
(continued)

Composition (continued)

Their biographical details are set out on pages 5 to 9 of this annual

report.

The three non-executive members of the Board, which represented
more than one-third of the entire Board, bring a wide range of
business and financial experience to the Board, which contributes
to the effective direction of the Group and the development of the
Group's strategies and policies and promotes checks and balances
of the management process to safeguard shareholders’ interest.
The Board will review regularly the Board’'s composition and
considers that the composition of the Board is well balanced with
each Director having sound knowledge, experience and expertise
relevant to the business operations and development of the Group.
The Board was also satisfied that all Independent Non-executive
Directors meet the guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules and are independent pursuant to the requirements of the
guidelines and the Company complied with the requirements
under Rule 3.10(1) and Rule 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules throughout
the year ended 31 March 2019.

A list of our Directors and their respective role and function has
been published on the website of the Company and that of the
Stock Exchange, and is also disclosed in relevant corporate
communications issued by the Company pursuant to the Listing

Rules.
Appointment and re-election of Directors

Formal procedures were adopted by the Board for governing the
appointment, re-election and removal of Directors in accordance

with the articles of association of the Company.

Each Director has entered into a service contract or a letter of
appointment with the Company for a term of three years, subject to
the retirement by rotation n at least once every three years under
the articles of association of the Company. Pursuant to the articles
of association of the Company, at each annual general meeting,
one-third of the Directors for the time being shall retire by rotation
and retiring Directors are eligible for re-election in accordance with

the articles of association.
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BOARD COMPOSITION AND BOARD PRACTICES
(continued)

Appointment and re-election of Directors (continued)

The Company may by ordinary resolution elect any person to be a
Director either to fill a casual vacancy on the Board, or as an
addition to the existing Board. The Board may from time to time
appoint a Director either to fill a casual vacancy or as an addition to
the Board. Any Director so appointed by the Board shall hold office
only until the next following annual general meeting of the

Company and shall then be eligible for re-election.

If a shareholder wishes to propose a person for election as a
Director at a general meeting of the Company, a shareholder may
serve the Company a written notice and follow the designated
procedures for nomination of Directors under the articles of
association of the Company, which are available on the websites of
the Company and the Stock Exchange.

Director’'s commitment

The Board meets at least four times a year at quarterly intervals and
holds additional meetings as and when the Board thinks
appropriate to discuss matters relating to the Group's strategies,
business operations, performance, governance and material

investments.

Attendance record of the Directors and Committee Members for

the year ended 31 March 2019 are set out as follows:
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Attendance/Number of meetings

LEERAY BTERNY

Executive Audit ~ Nomination Remuneration General

Board Committee Committee Committee Committee meeting

EB®  H{7Z8€  BHZEE  REZEE  HMZEe e VN

Total number of meetings BIERERE 2 8 3 1 1 3
Executive Directors: HTES:

Mr. Xu Hai Ying TEERA 21122 8/8 N/A NEH N/A TEF N/A TNER 33

Dr. Zhiliang Ou BErET 2112 8/8 N/A NER 11 11 33

Mr. Fok Chi Tak ESELE 2122 8/8 N/A NER N/A MER N/A NER 33
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BOARD COMPOSITION AND BOARD PRACTICES
(continued)

Director’'s commitment (continued)
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Attendance/Number of meetings

HEEERY BTEERR

Executive Audit ~ Nomination ~Remuneration General
Board Committee Committee Committee Committee meeting
EZg  Yf7Z88€  ENZEE®  REZEE  FHZRS RRAE

Independent Non-executive ~ BUEHTEES :

Directors:

Mr. Chan Ming Sun Jonathan ~ FR$84 %4 2/2 N/A REf 33 1 11 33
Mr. Lam Kwan Sing WEMEE 212 NATER 33 171 1/1 33
Mr. Lee Chi Hwa, Joshua FRERE 20/22 N/A NER 23 N/A M ER N/A TEF 33

The Board reviews the performance of the Directors regularly to
ensure they are contributing to the Board in a manner that allows
them to perform their responsibilities to the Company and that
they are spending sufficient time doing so. The Board was satisfied
that the Directors had a strong commitment to the Company and
positively contributed to the Board through their participation in
the Company's affairs and the Board's discussions and decisions, as
reflected in their high attendance record on the Board and its

Committee meetings during the year.
Board process

All Board members have full access to relevant information both at
the meetings and at regular intervals. Notice of not less than 14
days was given to directors for the regular Board meetings. The
Company Secretary assists the Board in preparing the meeting
agenda and, during which, the Directors are consulted for matters
to be included in the agenda for all regular meetings of the Board.
It has been the practice of the Board and accepted by all members
of the Board that relevant information of Board meetings will be
sent to all Directors three days in advance of the relevant meetings

or any reasonable time before such meetings.
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BOARD COMPOSITION AND BOARD PRACTICES
(continued)

Board process (continued)

Board meetings involve the active participation, either in person or
through other electronic means of communication, by all of the
Directors present. Board minutes are prepared and kept by the
Company Secretary record in sufficient details the matters
considered and decisions reached by the Board or Committees,
including any concerns raised or dissenting views voiced by any
Director. All draft and final minutes of Board meetings and
meetings of Committees are sent to Directors or Board Committees
members as appropriate for comments, approval and records.
Board records are available for inspection by any Director upon

request.

Matters on transactions where Directors are considered having a
conflict of interest or material interests would not be dealt with by
way of written resolutions and a separate Board meeting shall be
held where Independent Non-executive Directors who have no
material interests should be present at such meeting. Directors
having a conflict of interest or material interests in a transaction
shall, before the meeting of the Board, declare his interest(s)
therein in accordance with the articles of association of the
Company, and shall abstain from voting on the resolution(s) and
shall not be counted in the quorum present at such Board meeting.
Such declaration of interests will be duly noted in the minutes of

the relevant Board meeting.

The Company Secretary shall provide professional advice on
governance matters to the Directors. Members of the management
have been reminded that they have an obligation to supply the
Board and the Board committees with adequate information on a
timely basis to enable each of them to make informed decisions. All
Directors are entitled to have access to board papers, minutes and
related materials. The Board and each Director have separate and
independent access to the Group’s senior management. In
addition, the Directors are able, upon reasonable request, to seek
independent professional advice under appropriate circumstances,
at the Company’s expense. The Board may resolve to provide
appropriate independent professional advice to the Directors to

assist the relevant Directors to discharge their duties.
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(continued)

Board process (continued)

With the support of the Company Secretary, the Executive Directors
seek to ensure that all Directors are properly briefed on issues
arising at Board meetings and receive adequate and reliable

information in a timely manner.

Induction, information and ongoing professional
development

Each newly-appointed Director is provided with a package of
orientation materials setting out the required duties and
responsibilities of directors under the Listing Rules and other
relevant statutory requirements of Hong Kong and received an
orientation covering meeting with external legal adviser for a
briefing on director’s duties and obligations and meeting with
management for an overview of the Group. Our Directors are kept
informed from time to time on the latest development of any
changes to the regulatory requirements and the progress of
compliance of applicable rules and regulations by the Company as

well as business development and operation plans of the Company.

In compliance with code provision A.6.5, the Company has
arranged for, and provided fund for, the Directors and the
Company Secretary of the Company to participate in continuous
professional development organized in the form of in-house
training, seminars or other appropriate courses to keep them
refreshed of their knowledge, skill and understanding on the Group
and its business or to update their skills and knowledge on the
latest development or changes in the relevant statutes, the Listing

Rules and corporate governance practices.

All Directors are required to provide the Company with their
training records on an annual basis. For the year ended 31 March
2019, all Directors have attended the training sessions arranged by
the Company. They have also attended and/or were given speech

or training materials at external seminars/training sessions.
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BOARD COMPOSITION AND BOARD PRACTICES
(continued)

Liability insurance for the Directors

Appropriate insurance cover on directors’ and officers’ liabilities
has been arranged and is in force to protect the Directors and
officers of the Group from their risk exposure arising from the

businesses of the Group and potential personal liabilities.
BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Company has adopted a board diversity policy during the year.
A summary of such board diversity policy, the measurable
objectives set for implementing such board diversity policy, and the
progress made towards achieving those objectives are disclosed as

below.

The Board sets out its approach to achieving diversity in the Board

Diversity Policy which is available on the websites of the Company.

Summary of the Board Diversity Policy

With a view to achieving a sustainable and balanced development,
the Company sees increasing diversity at the Board level as an
essential element in supporting the attainment of its strategic
objectives and its sustainable development. In designing the
Board's composition, Board diversity has been considered from a
number of aspects, including but not limited to gender, age,
cultural and educational background, professional experience, skills
and knowledge. All Board member's appointments will be based
on merit, and candidates will be considered against objective
criteria, having due regard for the benefits of diversity on the
Board.

Measurable Objectives

Selection of candidates will be based on a range of diversified
perspectives, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and
educational background, professional experience, skills, knowledge
and length of services. The ultimate decision will be based on merit
and contribution that the selected candidates will bring to the
Board. The Board's composition will be disclosed in the corporate

governance report annually in accordance with the Listing Rules.
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BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY (continued)
Monitoring

The Nomination Committee is responsible for monitoring

implementation of the board diversity policy.
Diversity of the Board

The existing Board members are of different backgrounds,
qualifications and experiences, including extensive experiences in
resources, auditing, accounting, investment, corporate finance,
project development and management. In view of the present size
and complexities of the Group’s operations and the nature of the
risks and challenges it faces, the Nomination Committee considers
the Company has achieved a right balance of skills, experience,

knowledge and diversity among the present Board members.
EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

An Executive Committee was set up in June 2010 and comprises all
existing Executive Directors. The Executive Committee operates as
a general management committee under the direct authority of the
Board to enhance the efficiency for business decisions. In
accordance with its terms of reference, the Executive Committee
monitors the execution of the Company’s strategic plans and
operations of all business units of the Group and discusses and
makes decisions on matters relating to the management and day-

to-day operations of the Group.
AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company established an Audit Committee in May 2006 with
specific terms of reference (as amended and restated with effect
from 1 January 2016). During the year ended 31 March 2019 and up
to the date of this annual report, the Audit Committee comprised
three independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Chan Ming
Sun Jonathan, Mr. Lam Kwan Sing and Mr. Lee Chi Hwa, Joshua.
The principal duties of the Audit Committee are to review and to
supervise the Group's statutory audit, interim and annual accounts
of the Group and internal control system. It also acts as an
important link between the Board and the Company’s auditor in
matters within the scope of the Group audit. Meetings shall be held

at least twice a year.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE (continued)

A summary of the work performed by the Audit Committee during
the year ended 31 March 2019 and up to the date of this annual

report included:

(@) reviewing the audited accounts and final results
announcement for the year ended 31 March 2019 and the
interim report and the interim results announcement for the
six months ended 30 September 2018;

(b)  reviewing the accounting principles and practices adopted by
the Group and ensured the compliance with relevant
accounting standards, the Listing Rules and other statutory

requirements;

(c) reviewing the effectiveness of internal control and risk

management systems; and

(d) meeting with the auditors to discuss any significant audit
issues or key findings noted during the audit of the Group's
final results for the year ended 31 March 2019 and the
unaudited interim results for the six months ended 30
September 2018.

During the year ended 31 March 2019, no issues brought to the
attention of the management and the Board were of significant

importance to require disclosure in this annual report.

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee require that proper
whistle-blowing arrangements should be put in place by which
employees can report any concerns, including misconduct,
impropriety or fraud in financial reporting matters and accounting
practices, in confidence and without fear of recrimination for fair
and independent investigation of such matters and for appropriate
follow-up action. To this end and upon recommendation of the
Audit Committee, the Board adopted an internal guidelines on

whistle-blowing of concerns on 21 June 2013.

In addition, the Company has also adopted a policy that subject to
prior approval by Audit Committee, no employees or former
employees of external auditor can be appointed as director or
senior executive of internal audit or finance function of the Group,
within 12 months preceding their employment by the external

auditor to enhance independent reporting by external auditor.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company set up a Nomination Committee in August 2009 with
specific terms of reference (as amended and restated with effect
from 21 June 2013) for the purpose of setting out formal, considered
and transparent procedure for the appointment of Directors to the
Board. During the year ended 31 March 2019 and up to the date of
this annual report, the Nomination Committee comprised one
executive Director, namely Dr. Zhiliang Ou and two independent
non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Chan Ming Sun Jonathan and
Mr. Lam Kwan Sing. Its written terms of reference cover
recommendations to the Board on the appointment of Directors,
evaluation of board composition, assessment of the independence
of Independent Non-executive Directors, the management of board
succession and monitoring the training and continuous professional

development of Directors and senior management.

A summary of the work performed by the Nomination Committee
during the year ended 31 March 2019 and up to the date of this

annual report included:

(@) reviewing and discussing the Board’s structure, size and
composition, diversity as well as the competence, experience,

academic background and qualification of its members;

(b) reviewing retirement of Directors by rotation, the re-
appointment of retiring Directors at annual general meetings;
and

(c) assessing the independence of Independent Non-executive

Directors.
REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company set up a Remuneration Committee in May 2006 with
specific terms of reference (as amended with effect from 21 June
2013) with principal responsibility to review and give
recommendation to the Board regarding the remuneration package
of the Directors and the senior management of the Company
taking into consideration of the market practice, competitive
market position and individual performance. During the year ended
31 March 2019 and up to the date of this annual report, the
Remuneration Committee comprised one executive Director,
namely Dr. Zhiliang Ou and two independent non-executive
Directors, namely Mr. Chan Ming Sun Jonathan and Mr. Lam Kwan
Sing.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE (continued)

During the year, the Committee has discussed, reviewed the
performance and gave recommendation to the Board on the
remuneration packages for the Directors and management team,

discussed on the proposal of employee incentive scheme.

During the process of consideration, no individual Director will be

involved in decisions relating to his own remuneration.
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTION

Pursuant to the terms of reference of the corporate governance
function, the Board and the Committees shall be responsible for (a)
developing and reviewing the Company’s policies and practices on
corporate governance and make recommendations to the Board;
(b) reviewing and monitoring the training and continuous
professional development of Directors and senior management; (c)
reviewing and monitoring the Company'’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements; (d) developing,
reviewing and monitoring the code of conduct applicable to
employees and Directors; and (e) reviewing the Company’s
compliance with the code and disclosure in the corporate

governance report.

This corporate governance report has been reviewed by the Board

in discharge of its corporate governance function.
ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
financial statements of the Group which give a true and fair view of
the state of affairs of the Group on a going concern basis and in
presenting the interim and annual financial statements,
announcements and other financial disclosures required under the
Listing Rules. Members of the management have provided the
Board with monthly updates and sufficient information for the
Board to develop and maintain a balanced and understandable

assessment of the Company’s performance, position and prospects.

The Directors ensure the preparation of the financial statements of
the Group is in accordance with the statutory requirements and the
applicable accounting standards. The Directors also ensure that the
publication of the financial statements of the Group is in a timely

manner.
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT (continued)

BDO Limited has been appointed as the auditors of the Company
with effect from 25 March 2019 to fill the vacancy following the
resignation of Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu and to hold office until
the conclusion of the forthcoming annual general meeting of the
Company. For the year ended 31 March 2019, the Group paid BDO
Limited, HK$2,070,000 as audit fees. Members of the Audit
Committee have been satisfied with the findings of their review of
the audit fees, process and effectiveness, independence and

objectivity of BDO Limited as the Company's external auditor.

The statement of the auditor of the Company regarding their
reporting responsibilities on the financial statements for the year
ended 31 March 2019 is set out in the Independent Auditor's
Report on pages 74 to 83 of this annual report.

NOMINATION POLICY

The Nomination Committee may invite nominations of candidates
from Board members for its consideration. The Nomination
Committee may also put forward candidates who are not
nominated by Board members. The factors in assessing the

suitability of a proposed candidate for director include:

o business experience relevant and beneficial to the Company,
Diversity in all its aspects, including but not limited to gender,
age, cultural and educational background, knowledge,

professional experience and skills

J character and integrity

o accomplishments in personal careers

o independence

J willingness to devote adequate time to discharge duties as a

Board member,

and such other perspectives appropriate to the Company’s
business. The Nomination Committee shall make recommendations

for the Board's consideration and approval.
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DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company has adopted a dividend policy. The Board would
consider, inter alia, the following factors before declaring or

recommending dividend to the shareholders:
(@)  the Company's actual and expected financial performance;
(b) retained earnings and distributable reserves of the Company;

() the level of the Company’s debts to equity ratio, return on

equity and the relevant financial covenants;

(d) any restrictions on payment of dividends that may be

imposed by the Company’s contracting parties;

(e) the Company’'s expected working capital requirements and

future expansion plans;

()  general economic conditions, business cycle of the
Company's business and other internal or external factors that
may have an impact on the business or financial performance

and position of the Company; and
(9) any other factors that the Board may deem appropriate.

Any payment of dividend is also subject to compliance with
applicable laws and regulations including the laws of the Cayman

Islands and the Company's Articles of Association.

The Board will continually review the dividend policy from time to
time and there can be no assurance that dividends will be paid in

any particular amount for any given period.

INTERNAL CONTROL, RISK MANAGEMENT AND
THEIR EFFECTIVENESS

The Board has the overall responsibility for overseeing sound and
effective internal controls and risk management for the Group to
safeguard the interests of its shareholders and the assets of the
Group at all times. In this connection, an internal control and risk
management system has been established to provide reasonable,
but not absolute, assurance against material misstatement or loss
and to manage or mitigate rather than eliminate risks of failure to

achieve the Group's business objectives.
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INTERNAL CONTROL, RISK MANAGEMENT AND AEREERE EREERAERM(E)
THEIR EFFECTIVENESS (continued)

The Company has in place an integrated framework of internal  ARQARIEHTE —EEBE B LTAIA SBR[ AEL
control which is consistent with the principles outlined in the  Ef{FEimRE IR — HEARZE | B /R B 2 474 MEB
“Internal Control and Risk Management — A Basic Framework” — ES}4EZ2 - FEISRIALLNT ¢

issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants

as illustrated below:

Monitoring

B

Information and

Communication

&R B

Control Activities

EEED

Risk Assessment

[ B 5T A

Control Environment
EEIRIRIE

Ongoing assessment of control systems’ performance
FEAAEEHE 2RI
Internal audits performed by internal audit department

BRI BBFTAE T N BT

Information in sufficient detail is provided to the right person timely
LEFREEATRERSFRTZER

Channels of communication across the Group and with customers, suppliers and
external parties

RUANEEANHARERS - HEBEUINNLTZBBRE

Channels of communication for people to report any suspected improprieties

RYAHBRREFMARIETRIBBERE

Policies and procedures for ensuring management directives are carried out
HIE AT ERAITEIRIES ZHERIEF
Control activities include performance review, segregation of duties, authorization,

physical count, access control, documentation and records, etc.

EREDOERRRY  BEST ER - BB FERH - FRRESS

Identification, evaluation and assessment of the key risk factors affecting the
achievement of the Company'’s objectives are performed regularly

EHER - FERFEFEERARREEZIEARREE

Undertake proper actions to manage the risks so identified

REVRETTENABE R AR Z AR

Channels to communicate the Company’s commitment to integrity and high ethical
standards to the staff are established

RURBAE TEERNRBAHNBRFBERSDERRE

Organizational chart and limits of authority are set and communicated to staff
concerned

HIEIL FAERE B TEERQRIREE RER

Reporting lines in accordance with organizational chart and line of authority are set
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INTERNAL CONTROL, RISK MANAGEMENT AND
THEIR EFFECTIVENESS (continued)

The internal audit department is responsible for conducting
independent reviews of the adequacy and effectiveness of the
Group's internal control and risk management system, reporting
regularly the results to the Board through the Audit Committee and
making recommendations to the relevant department management

for necessary actions.

During the reporting period, the internal audit department had
conducted reviews on the effectiveness of the internal control
system covering all material factors related to financial, operational,
compliance controls, various functions for risk management and
physical and information security. Internal control reports
containing its findings and results were reported to the Audit
Committee during the Audit Committee meetings and had been

delivered to all Directors for review.

The Audit Committee had reported during the Audit Committee
meetings the key findings identified by the Company’s external
auditors in respect of the Group's internal controls and discussed
findings and actions or measures taken in addressing those
findings. The Company considers the internal control systems and
risk management is effective during the year under review. No
material issues on the Group's internal control system have been
identified by the Group's internal audit department and the
Company’s external auditors during the reporting period which

required significant rectification measures.

MODEL CODE FOR DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of the Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”)
set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules as its own code of
conduct for Directors’ securities transactions. The Company has
made specific enquiry to all Directors and all Directors confirmed
that they have fully complied with the Model Code for the year
ended 31 March 2019.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. Chan Lai Ping, was appointed as a company secretary on 1
February 2019. Ms. Chan is a solicitor qualified to practise in Hong
Kong and a member of The Law Society of Hong Kong. She is also
a consultant of a law firm in Hong Kong. Ms. Chan has many years
of experience in advising on corporate finance, mergers and
acquisitions, corporate governance, regulatory and compliance
matters. Prior to joining the Company, she was the company
secretary and general counsel of China Shandong Hi-Speed
Financial Group Limited, a company whose shares are listed on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 412). Ms. Chan has
a bachelor of laws degree and a postgraduate certificate in laws
from the University of Hong Kong. She also has a master of
corporate finance degree from the Hong Kong Polytechnic

University.

During the year ended 31 March 2019, Ms. Chan has satisfied the
requirement of the Listing Rules for receiving 15 hours of

professional training.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Board is committed to maintaining high degree of
transparency to ensure that the investors and the shareholders
receive accurate, comprehensive and timely information of the
Group by publication of announcements, circulars, interim and
annual reports. All shareholders’ communications are also available

on the Company's website.

The annual general meeting of the Company provides a useful
forum for shareholders to exchange views with the Board. All
Directors will make an effort to attend and the external auditor is
also available at the annual general meeting to address
shareholders’ queries. In case of any general meeting to approve a
connected transaction or any other transaction that is subject to
independent shareholders’ approval, members of the independent
Board committee will also make an effort to attend to address

shareholders’ queries.

Pursuant to Rule 13.39(4) of the Listing Rules, all votes of the
shareholders at general meetings would be taken by poll.
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SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHT

Shareholders’ right to convene extraordinary general
meeting

Pursuant to article 58 of the articles of association of the Company,
extraordinary general meetings of the Company (the "EGM”) shall
be convened on the requisition of any one or more shareholder(s)
(the "Requisitionist(s)”) holding at the date of deposit of the
requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the
Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the

Company.

The Requisitionist(s) shall have the right, by written requisition to
the Board or the Company Secretary of the Company, to require an
EGM to be called by the Board for the transaction of any business
specified in such requisition; and the EGM shall be held within two
months after the deposit of such requisition. If within twenty-one
days of such deposit the Board fails to proceed to convene such
meeting, the Requisitionist(s) may do so in the same manner, and
shall be entitled to reimbursement of all reasonable expenses
incurred by the Requisitionist(s).

Putting enquiries to the Board

To ensure effective communication between the Board and the
shareholders, the Company has adopted a shareholders’
communication policy (the "Policy”), which is available on the
websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange. Under the
Policy, information of the Group shall be communicated to the
shareholders mainly through general meetings, including annual
general meetings, financial reports, and its corporate
communications and other corporate publications on the
Company’'s website and the Stock Exchange’s website.
Shareholders may at any time make a request for the Company’s
information to the extent that such information is publicly available.
Any such questions shall be first directed to the Company

Secretary:
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SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHT (continued)
Putting enquiries to the Board (continued)

By post

Rooms 4917-4932, 49/F
Sun Hung Kai Centre

30 Harbour Road, Wan Chai
Hong Kong

By email
jovey.chan@haotianhk.com

Shareholders may also directly raise questions during the

shareholders’ meetings.
Putting forward proposals at Shareholders’ meeting

The number of shareholders necessary for putting forward a
proposal at a shareholders’ meeting shall be any number of
shareholders representing not less than one-tenth of the paid up
capital of the Company carrying the right of voting at general
meetings at the date of the request. The request to put forward a
proposal must be made within 30 days from the date of the relevant

shareholders’ meeting.
INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company believes that maintaining a high level of transparency
is a key to enhancing investor relations. It is committed to a policy
of open and timely disclosure of corporate information to its
shareholders and public investors. The Company updates its
shareholders on its latest business developments and financial
performance through its annual and interim reports. The corporate
website of the Company (http://www.haotianhk.com) has provided
an effective communication platform to the public and the

shareholders.

SIGNIFICANT CHANGES IN CONSTITUTIONAL
DOCUMENTS

There was no changes in the constitutional document of the
Company during the year ended 31 March 2019.
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IBDO

EEE - +852 2218 8288
{8E : +852 2815 2239
www.bdo.com.hk

To the Shareholders of Hao Tian Development Group Limited
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Hao Tian
Development Group Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(together the "Group”) set out on pages 84 to 295, which comprise
the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 March
2019, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in
equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year
then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements,

including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as
at 31 March 2019, and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") and have
been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure

requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the “Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements” section of our report. We are independent of the
Group in accordance with the HKICPA's “Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants” (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our

other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We
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believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and

appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on

these matters.
Impairment assessment of loan receivables

As at 31 March 2019, the carrying amount of loan receivables was
HK$555,272,000 (2018: HK$726,001,000). An amount of loss
allowance of HK$4,119,000 was reversed for the year ended 31
March 2019.

Expected credit loss ("ECL") on loan receivables is measured at an
amount equal to 12-month ECL (“12m ECL"), unless there has been
a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, in which
case the Group recognises lifetime ECL. The assessment of whether
lifetime ECL should be recognised is based on significant increases
in the likelihood or risk of a default occurring since initial

recognition.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all possible
default events over the expected life of the relevant receivables. In
contrast, 12m ECL represents the portion of lifetime ECL that is
expected to result from default events that are possible within 12
months after the reporting date. Assessment are done based on
the Group's historical credit loss experience, adjusted for factors
that are specific to the debtors, general economic conditions and
an assessment of both the current conditions at the reporting date

as well as the forecast of future conditions.

We identified the assessment of loss allowance on loan receivables
as a key audit matter because the impairment assessments
prepared by management are complex and involve a significant
degree of judgment and estimates which may be inherently
uncertain and could be subject to management bias. Refer to
Notes 27 and the accounting judgements and estimates set out in

Note 4 to the consolidated financial statements.
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Our response

Our procedures in relation to assess the impairment assessment of

loan receivables included the following:

76

obtaining an understanding of and assessing the design,
implementation and operating effectiveness of key internal
controls relating to credit control, debt collection and the
calculation of the ECLs;

assessing the loan receivables ageing report by group based
on shared credit risk characteristics and the days past due by
comparing the details of individual items with underlying

invoices and agreements on a sample basis;

obtaining an understanding of the basis of management'’s
approach to measuring ECLs of loan receivable balances and
assessing the reasonableness of management’s loss
allowance estimates by examining the information used by
management to form such judgments, including testing the
accuracy of the historical default data, evaluating whether the
historical loss rate are appropriately adjusted based on
current economic conditions and forward-looking

information;

comparing cash receipts from debtors subsequent to the
financial year end relating to loan receivable balances with
bank statements and relevant underlying documentation on a

sample basis; and

engaging an independent and qualified valuation specialists
to assist us in evaluating the methodology used by
management in the preparation of the calculation of the ECLs
with reference to the requirements of the prevailing

accounting standards.
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Impairment assessment of goodwiill

The Group has goodwill of HK$98,914,000 as at 31 March 2019
(2018: HK$98,914,000), which was allocated to the cash-generating
unit, representing the construction machinery and sales of
construction materials segment. In determining the recoverable
amount of the cash generating unit (“CGU"), the Group engaged
an independent professional valuer to perform such valuation. The
value in use calculation applied by the valuer is determined based
on the cash flow projection for the CGU discounted to its present
value and it requires the use of key assumptions, including the
discount rate, terminal growth rate, budgeted revenue, and gross
margin, taking into account the financial budgets approved by the
directors based on the poor performance of the relevant business
and also the management’s expectations for the market

development.

We identified the impairment assessment of goodwill as a key audit
matter due to its complexity and significant judgement exercised
by the Group’s management in determining the recoverable
amount of the CGU where goodwill have been allocated. Refer to
Notes 21 and the accounting judgements and estimates set out in

Note 4 to the consolidated financial statements.
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Our response BPzZEHGZE

Our procedures in relation to assess the impairment assessment of  HMIEMEETEHE ZRER G EFEEATEE

goodwill included the following:

o understanding the Group's impairment testing process, e
including the valuation model adopted, the CGU allocation,
assumptions used and the involvement of independent valuer

appointed by the Group;

o evaluating the competence, capabilities and objectivity of the

independent professional valuer;

o engaging our independent and qualified valuation expert to e
evaluate the appropriateness of the valuation model adopted

and discount rate used,;

J evaluating the reasonableness of the budgeted revenue and e
gross margin by considering the approved financial budgets,
the managements business, entity-specific information, the

available industry and market data;

o re-performing sensitivity analysis on the key inputs to evaluate
the magnitude of their impacts on the recoverable amount of
the CGU; and

o comparing financial budgets used in the calculation of value e

in use with actual results for the annual assessment of
impairment as at 31 March 2019.
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Valuation of financial liabilities at fair value through profit
or loss

The carrying amount of the Group's financial liabilities at FVTPL as
at 31 March 2019 amounted to HK$185,249,000 (2018:
HK$238,893,000).

In determination of the fair value of financial liabilities designated
at FVTPL, it requires the uses of key assumptions, including
selection of appropriate valuation technique and currently available

market data adjusted for specific features of these instruments.

We identified the valuation of financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss ("FVTPL") of the Group as a key audit matter
due to the significance of the balance to the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, combined with the significant judgments
associated with determining the carrying value. Refer to Note 20
and the accounting judgements and estimates set out in Note 4 to

the consolidated financial statements.
Our response

Our procedures in relation to assess the valuation of financial
liabilities at FVTPL included the following:

o evaluating the competence, capabilities and objectivity of the

independent professional valuers;

J obtaining an understanding from the independent
professional valuers about the valuation techniques,
significant assumptions adopted, critical judgemental areas,

key inputs and data used in the valuations; and

o engaging our independent and qualified valuation specialists
to assist us in evaluating the appropriateness of the valuation

model adopted and key assumptions used in the valuation.
Other Matter

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year
ended 31 March 2018, were audited by another auditor who
expressed an unmodified opinion on those statements on 22 June
2018.
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OTHER INFORMATION IN THE ANNUAL REPORT

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Company’s
annual report, but does not include the consolidated financial

statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of

assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we
conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing

to report in this regard.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued
by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement,

whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease

operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.
The directors are also responsible for overseeing the Group's

financial reporting process. The Audit Committee assists the
directors in discharging their responsibility in this regard.
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AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. This report is made
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with the terms of our
engagement, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the

contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of

these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism

throughout the audit. We also:

o identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,

or the override of internal control.

J obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an

opinion on the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.
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o evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and e
the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related

disclosures made by the directors.

o conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the e
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a

going concern.

. evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that

achieves fair presentation.

o obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the e
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain

solely responsible for our audit opinion.
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We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among KEMEBIEIN  RMEEZEZESEB TTENSE
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and  Ft&iE - BEZH - EAEAHES - ERMES
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internal control that we identify during our audit.
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We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we
have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our

independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the directors, we determine
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such

communication.

BDO Limited

Certified Public Accountants
Wan Che Bun

Practising Certificate no. P05804

Hong Kong, 10 June 2019
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For the Year ended 31 March 2019 & —%

—hFE=ZA=+—RLFE

2019 2018
—E-AF —\%
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
Lz FET FET
Revenue WA 5 319,513 330,017
Cost of revenue L ONDN (166,174) (184,291)
Gross profit EF 153,339 145,726
Other income HaUg A 6 27,519 7,012
Other gains and losses H b e & EHE 7 (303,503) (384,123)
Administrative expenses TR (219,488) (226,642)
Expected credit loss on financial assets TREEBREEEE (2,626) -
Share of profit (loss) of associates DEEE N ELE T (E518) 159 (769)
Share of profit of joint ventures DIHEERERF 5,453 -
Finance costs A& KA 8 (141,430) (79.595)
Loss before taxation BrEiRTE R (480,577) (538,391)
Taxation credit BIEE % 9 63,941 12,621
Loss for the year FAERE 10 (416,636) (525,770)
Other comprehensive expense: Hth2HEAX :
Items that will not be reclassified to TeEHN S BERm A -
profit or loss:
Fair value loss on investments in equity A B2 B EB LR A
instruments at fair value through Hih 2 EWm o Em TR
other comprehensive income ’EZ N VEEE (5,718) -
Items that may be reclassified AJRERAEET DT
subsequently to profit or loss: BB -
Available-for-sale investments: AHEERE :
— fair value changes — N FEEH = (155,880)
— impairment loss recognised — BEWRRERSR - 1,748
Exchange difference arising on BMEGINEGEE ZEN 258
translation of foreign operations (4,667) 20,767
Other comprehensive expense FREMEERY - REE
for the year, net of tax (10,385) (133,365)
Total comprehensive expense FANEEMZERE
for the year (427,021) (659,135)
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For the Year ended 31 March 2019 &2 —Z—hF=A=+—HIFE

2019 2018
—E-hEFE —T)N\F
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B EE FHET FTET
Loss for the year attributable to: PG F AES 1S
Owners of the Company RARBEE A (380,871) (444,9006)
Non-controlling interests JEFE IR R S (35,765) (80,864)
(416,636) (525,770)
Total comprehensive expense BIEFAZER B :
for the year attributable to:
Owners of the Company ViIN/NETE 2 =N (388,376) (569,116)
Non-controlling interests Bl T (38,645) (90,019)
(427,021) (659,135)
Loss per share BREE 14
— Basic and diluted (HK cents) — RS (B (7.71) 9.11)
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e M BRI ERE

At 31 March 2019 ®=Z—hFE=A=+—H

2019 2018
—E-hAE —ZE-N\F
Notes HK$’'000 HK$'000
Lz FHET FHET
Non-current assets EMBNE E
Property, plant and equipment WE - BE KRG 15 449,684 540,906
Investment properties EE 16 1,381,320 -
Prepaid lease payment FENHEEIE 17 11,239 33,940
Premium over prepaid lease payment FENHEREZ #E 18 - 125,102
Available-for-sale investments it ERE 19 - 814,059
Financial assets at fair value through AR Ez=E B EE LT A
profit or loss BRzemEE 20 239,752 =
Financial assets designated at ETEUAAFEFZEHEHE LA A
fair value through other HirmlE e mEE
comprehensive income 19 117,525 -
Goodwill 5k 21 98,914 98,914
Intangible assets ML EE 22 174,857 178,650
Finance lease receivables L& TR & e W R 23 6,901 9,529
Loan receivables FElE = 27 114,689 195,716
Investments in associates REEENT ZIKE 28 78,402 6
Investments in joint ventures REEEZRE 29 165,387 -
Deferred tax assets EETRIBEE 35 52,856 4,743
Pledged bank deposits EEIRIRI TR 26 4,654 4,627
Deposits for acquisition of property, W% - BERRBZA®
plant and equipment 3,657 2,986
Deposit paid for acquisition of W EE — M B AR AT E] &
a subsidiary 24 - 137,761
2,899,837 2,146,939
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Hao Tian Development Group Limited ® £ X% EEEHR A7)

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
e BRI ERE

At 31 March 2019 R=Z—AF=A=+—8

2019 2018
—E-hEFE —T)N\F
Notes HK$’'000 HK$'000
B &E FHET FHET
Current assets MENEE
Inventories FE 25 5,513 22,876
Trade receivables FEUBR TR 26 83,623 177,157
Other receivables, deposits and HEmEWsIE - flek

prepayments TR IR 26 18,715 17,997
Loan receivables FElE = 27 440,583 530,285
Finance lease receivables A FH & pE W EkiE 23 7,104 6,959
Consideration receivable FEUAAB 31 95,183 24,980
Corporate note BERIR 30 254,474 =

Financial assets at fair value through ARAF{Ez=E B E#{LET A
profit or loss BaRnzemEE 20 1,404,065 =
Investments held for trading HIEBEEIRE 20 - 1,258,246
Tax recoverable Al Y B 7518 2,740 2,278
Prepaid lease payment TafT A ERRIE 17 276 365
Pledged bank deposits BEIEMFIRITER 26 - 15,000

Bank balances, trust and RITHER  ERERBIERP
segregated accounts 26 7,266 44,998
Bank balances and cash IRITHEHR RS 26 267,040 781,431
2,586,582 2,882,572

Non-current assets classified as PERFIELE ZERBEE
held for sale 32 68,086 =
2,654,668 2,882,572

Annual Report %25 2018/19 87



Hao Tian Development Group Limited ® 2 XZEEEBHR QA

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

e M BRI ERE

At 31 March 2019 ®=Z—hFE=A=+—H

2019 2018
—E-hEFE  —T)N\F
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
hg=a FET FET
Current liabilities MEAE
Trade payables FETBR R 33 14,869 76,634
Other payables, deposits received HibprNEE - 2 WEe &
and accruals FEEHFRIA 33 56,407 54,571
Contract liabilities EHEE 33 628 =
Borrowings B’E 36 622,645 606,580
Secured notes BIPEE 34 = 155,840
Obligations under finance leases LA TEE e 37 4,153 4,340
Financial liabilities at fair value through A AFEFFE B HE &Lt A
profit and loss BanzemaE 20 185,249 238,893
Other liability HihBE = 114,420
Tax payables FEN TR 8,043 3,533
891,994 1,254,811
Liabilities directly associated with assets EHfEAFEHEEETE
classified as held for sale HEzE8E 32 40 -
892,034 1,254,811
Net current assets mEEEFE 1,762,634 1,627,761
Total assets less current liabilities BEMAERRBAE 4,662,471 3,774,700
Non-current liabilities EmEaE
Borrowings B’E 36 1,458,258 247,005
Secured notes BIEEE 34 350,000 350,000
Obligations under finance leases BhETE EAIE 37 5,704 8,341
Deferred tax liabilities REHIBEEE 35 64,542 105,920
1,878,504 711,266
Net assets BEFEE 2,783,967 3,063,434
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Hao Tian Development Group Limited ® 2 X% EE@AR A7)

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
RS BRI L R R

At 31 March 2019 R=Z—AF=A=+—8

2019 2018
—E-hEFE —T)N\F
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
{iEs FET FAT
Capital and reserves B Kk

Share capital R 41 52,848 48,980
Reserves EX= 42 2,577,956 2,742,650

Equity attributable to owners of Z/NGIE7 2 DN =g
the Company 2,630,804 2,791,630
Non-controlling interests FEPE AR i 153,163 271,804
Total equity s 4aRE 2,783,967 3,063,434

The consolidated financial statements on pages 84 to 295 were
approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 10
June 2019 and are signed on its behalf by:

Fok Chi Tak
DIRECTOR
EF

FOE2ENBE AN BRRCHEFTEN -F
—NERATEERERETE  YATHESEK

REE

Xu Hai Ying
TR
DIRECTOR
E
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Hao Tian Development Group Limited ® 2 KR EEFR QA

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

For the Year ended 31 March 2019 &2 - —hWE=A=+—HILtFE

Share Total
options and attributable
Statutory ~ emolument Asset to owners Non-
Share Share surplus shares  revaluation FvToci Special  Translation Other  Putoption Accumulated ofthe  controlling Total
capital  premium reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve losses  Company interests equity
NATEHR
BRER BEEAHA A7
EERE KRR BEEH  Af2E B 4 REA
BE  BHER (i B HE  KEZRE  RHEE  EXBR  AtEE fE  RiFE  BGRE FERER  BREE
HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000
i Thn Fin Thn TEn Tikn Fhn Thn Tin Fin TFhn Thn Fin Thn
(note a) (note b) (note ¢) (note d)
(Hita) (Hitb) (Ee)  (d)
At31 March 2017 RZF-t£=f=1-H 082 42552 3539 127 631,389 - (5,754) 9,250) (97,531) 5238 (152263 3323989 27495 351484
Loss for the year FRER = = = - - = = = = S (ba908) (4900 (80864 (25770)
Other comprehensive (expense) A2 (F%) i
income - - - - (142077 - - 17,867 - - - (124210) (9,155) (133,.365)
Total comprehensive (expense) FREE(BL) kaeE
income for the year - - - - (142,077 - - 17,867 - - (444,906) (569,116) (90,019) (659,135)
Share options lapsed BREXK - - - 37 - - - - - - 37 - - -
Issue of new shares upon bonus issue ~ ALREFTRETHR A
(note 41) (Bizta1) 6976 (6976) - - - - - - - - - - - -
Issue of emolument shares (note 41) BRBRG (HEa) 142 4858 - - - - - - - - - 5000 = 5000
Change inthe Group's ownership interest A EBRABHBAR 2 AR
in existing subsidiaries 5y &) - - - - - - - - 31,757 - - 31,757 124,38 156,085
At 31 March 2018 RZE-NE=A=1-A 48960 4273404 3539 800 489312 - (5,754) 8,617 (65,774) 5238 (196673 2791630 71804 3063434
HKFRS Adjustments (note 2) ARGtksEn 2 9%
() - - - - 93 303 - - - - G313 (5615 (3789
At 1 April 2018 (restated) RZF-/\ERA-A(E5)) 48980 4,273,404 3539 800 - (213,034) (5,754) 8,617 (65,774) 5238 (1,322,559 2733457 256,189 2,989,646
Loss for the year EPEE - - - - - - °© o o - (380871)  (380,871) (35,765)  (416,636)
Other comprehensive expense H2ERT - - - - - (4,564) - (2,941) = o - (7,505) (2880)  (10,385)
Total comprehensive expense FRRERER
forthe year - - - - - (4,564) - (2.941) - - (380871)  (388,376) (38,645)  (427,021)
Deemed acquisition of nterest in BIEMBENERHHB (EER
Hao Tian Finance (as defined in note ) Jf3E5) 22 (238C)
(note 38C) - - - - - - - - 84,151 (5,238) - 78913 (78913) -
Capital contribution from SRERER (RERMEN)Z
non-controling interests of Heo Tian ~ JERFRBZEE (Hiz36A)
International Construction
(as defined in note 21) (note 384) - - - - - - - - - - - - 54,248 54,248
Deemed acquisiton of interest in BIENENERERER
Hao Tian International Construction (&R 2R
(as defined in note 21) (note 384) (GEX] - - - - - - - - (1,792) - - (1,792) 1,792 -
Capital contribution from ultimate REGERRL TR
shareholder note 30) (MzE30) - - - - - - - - 40,235 - - 40,235 - 40,235
Issue of consideration shares (note 41)  Z/TRERL (it 41) 3726 74,397 - - - - - - - - - 78,123 - 78123
Issue of emolument shares (note 41) Z{TRBRG (1) 142 4,858 B - = = - - - - - 5,000 = 5,000
Change in the Group's ownership REBRAANBAFL
interest n exiing subsidiaries ERERERD - - - - - - - - 85 - - 85244 (M508) 43736
At31 March 2019 RZE-AEZA=1-H 52848 4,352,659 3,539 800 - (217,598) (5,754) 5676 142,064 - (1,703430) 2,630,804 153,163 2,783,967
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Notes:

Hao Tian Development Group Limited ® £ X R EE AR A7)

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

mEERBER

For the Year ended 31 March 2019 &2 —Z—hFE=A=+—HILFE

As stipulated by the relevant laws and regulations of the People’s Republic
of China (“PRC"), before distribution of the net profit each year, each of
the Group's subsidiaries established in the PRC shall set aside 10% of its
net profit after taxation to the statutory surplus reserve. The reserve fund
can only be used, upon approval by the board of directors of these PRC
established subsidiaries and by the relevant authority, to offset
accumulated losses or increase capital. During the years ended 31 March
2019 and 2018, there was no transfer from accumulated profits to the
statutory surplus reserve since the Group’s PRC subsidiaries incurred net
loss.

Special reserve of HK$5,754,000 represents the difference between the
nominal amount of share capital issued by Winbox (BVI) Limited and the
Company and the nominal amount of the share capital of the acquired
subsidiaries and Winbox (BVI) Limited respectively arisen from a group
reorganisation occurred in prior years.

Other reserve represents (i) the difference between the fair value of the
capital injections from non-controlling shareholders and the carrying
amount of the subsidiary attributable to the non-controlling interests; (ii)
the value of the put option arising from HTM subscription (as defined in
note 38) issued by the Company. Details are set out in note 38 to the
consolidated financial statements and (iii) fair value from exchange of
financial assets with controlling shareholder.

Put option reserve represents the fair value of the put option issued by the
Company on date of issue, 13 May 2015.

Bt

REFEARLANE (THEDBBEERERRE K
SEEPBEKRIZHEME QR GFIGABERBTRAT
10%1EEE B REDTADIKAT - @A
RRNEH R BRIEMER - EREZFN R BRI
MBRRMNEREE RARKEILE B2 —NF
RZZ-—N\FZA=+—HIEFE BRFEENTEH
MEARELFER RUEYERSEARMENERE
ETE BB

RBEFEEETEEEAEENSKREHRR 5,754,000
JC * J5#E Winbox (BVI) Limited K2 2R A & #) B 31T IR AN
BB U BB B B A &) K Winbox (BVI) Limited B AR EIE <
HEEMEE -

B B 0 R 2 SRR U R 2 A T SR
EREHBATZEREZZE: ARAARIKER
SR 9O (G 2% R 38) F R 17 300K SO 2 (B E o #EAS
HRGAMBRENES R RERERATERE
EZAFE -

REPEREEARTRT 2 RGHERETEHA =2
—AFREA+=HZAFE-
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Hao Tian Development Group Limited ® 2 XZEEEBHR QA

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

mERTRER

For the Year ended 31 March 2019 &2 - —hWE=A=+—HILtFE

2019 2018
—E-hF —E—)\F
HK$’'000 HK$'000
TET FAT
OPERATING ACTIVITIES BT
Loss before taxation R 7% Al B 18 (480,577) (538,391)
Adjustments for: KA IAFE -
Interest income MEMA (1,883) (1,249)
Interest earned on financial assets REHERAIR @B E
at amortised cost Fi7 BRERF B, (12,254) =
Finance costs BhE A AN 141,430 79,595
Loss on early redemption of secured notes IRFERL A EPEE” EE = 700
Expected credit loss on financial assets TREEEREEEE 2,626 -
Share of (profit)/loss of associates DiaEE AT OFH),Eia (159) 769
Share of profit of joint ventures DEE B ERF (5,453) =
Depreciation of property, W - WERREBITE
plant and equipment 52,826 63,535
Impairment loss on property, Wz - BB R&REZRERBE
plant and equipment 30,680 9,100
Impairment loss on prepaid lease payment RN HEERIE 2 REEE 5,000 -
Amortisation of prepaid lease payment T A & R IE B 386 622
Amortisation of premium over prepaid TEN A ERIE 2 5 B i
lease payment 1,360 2,720
Impairment loss on interest in N—EE QA w2 BERE
an associate 9,009 -
Amortisation of intangible assets mIAERH 3,793 -
Dividend income from financial assets BENARFEFEREEZ(ETA
designated at fair value through other Hih2EWES 2z CREE,/
comprehensive income/available-for-sale Al E R E RS A
investments (1,220) (780)
Impairment loss on available-for-sale AMEEERE 2 REEE
investments = 1,748
Share-based payments VARR A TE AR 5,000 5,000
Gain on disposal of property, HEWE - BB MRENIWER
plant and equipment (357) (519)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEME QR Z S (57,293) -
Reversal of allowance for bad and BBl RIEIREE
doubtful debts - (9.795)
Allowance for bad and doubtful debts RIZEREHE - 921
Fair value gain on financial liabilities NAFEFEEREZ A ABRZ
at fair value through profit or loss TREBENDTERR (37,990) (77,679)
Fair value gain on investment property KEYE Z AN FEWZ (38,742) -
Impairment loss on loan and interest FEWE K F B Z R EE B
receivables = 511
Impairment loss on inventories FEZREERE - 5,582
Impairment loss on goodwill & 2 REEE - 316,250
Unrealised fair value loss on financial assets ARFEFE AR A
at fair value through profit or loss/ BRZEREE BIEESE
investments held for trading WENARER QT ERE 402,644 154,881
Issue costs of bonus share issue of — BB R R AT P EE 1T 2 B TRAR
a subsidiary = 447
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Hao Tian Development Group Limited ® £ X% EEEHR A7)

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
MERERER

For the Year ended 31 March 2019 &2 —Z—hFE=A=+—HILFE

2019 2018
—E-NEF —E-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHIT
Operating cash flows before movements in BEESEHINCERERE
working capital 18,826 13,968
Decrease in inventories FERL 21,903 13,567
Decrease(increase) in trade and JiE UK BR 3Rk K PR R I B0 A (1 n)
interest receivables 102,092 (20,943)
(Increase)/decrease in other receivables, Hib WA  sT& K&
deposits and prepayments B FREGEM), R (1,402) 44,565
(Increase)/decrease in loan receivables FEUWE R (3EH), W (19,932) 68,331
Increase in financial assets at fair value A ESFEREZ LT AR
through profit or loss TRIEEEN (133,215) =
Increase in investments held for trading BEEEREEIN - (157,257)
Decrease in trade payables FETBRFOR A (61,765) S
Decrease in other payables, HEMEMZHIE  BWEIe Rk
deposits received and accruals FESTFE R A (42,523) (6,574)
Decrease/(increase) in finance lease receivables gt& 8 & el k8w 2~ (3Eh0) 1,583 (2,135)
Increase in contract liabilities AHBEEM 628 -
Decrease/(increase) in bank balances, IRITHEER - ERERBYRP
trust and segregated accounts w, (1) 37,732 (12,598)
Net cash used in operations EEMARSFH (76,073) (66,076)
Finance costs paid for money lending business & %7 2 1+ &l & Ak 48 = (5,741)
Finance costs paid for securities investment BHEEBREREKRAR
business = @
Income tax paid BEARFEH (7,850) (18,391)
NET CASH USED IN OPERATING ACTIVITIES KE&X£KAARSFEE (83,923) (90,210)
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Hao Tian Development Group Limited ® 2 XZEEEBHR QA

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

mERTRER

For the Year ended 31 March 2019 &2 - —hWE=A=+—HILtFE

2019 2018
—E-hAE —ZE-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
INVESTING ACTIVITIES RETEE
Purchases of property, plant and equipment BB AYZE - FE L& & (68,015) (71,483)
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEWE  BENMBREEHIE
plant and equipment 1,161 2,061
Placement in pledged bank deposits BEFREARTER (27) (24)
Withdrawal of pledged bank deposits B B RITIER 15,000 29,661
Deposit paid for acquisition of subsidiary WEEKT B A R E] & - (137,761)
Net cash used in acquisition of investment BB BB AR KRB EE
property through acquisition of a subsidiary ~ Fffi 238 4 %% (1,291,674) -
Deposits paid for acquisition of property, WEEYR - BE KRNI &
plant and equipment (2,719) (1,093)
Purchases of available-for-sale investments BEIHEERE - (275,202)
Proceeds received from redemption of BREEA R EFEEHEE
financial assets designated at fair value FFABRZ SREEMSHRIE
through profit or loss - 25,000
Dividend income received from financial WHEE AR T EE EEELETA
assets designated at fair value through Hih ek S rEE,~
other comprehensive income/ A HERERREKRA
available-for-sale investments 1,220 780
Proceeds from disposal of HE RN ERE B HRIE
available-for-sale investments - 69,752
Collection of consideration receivable from W B] & B A Bl R FE AR (B
disposal of subsidiaries 108,980 35,440
Consideration paid for investment in MR —EBERRZIREZ
an associate ERRE (9,282) -
Consideration paid for investment in MR— AR EZEREZ
a joint venture BERRE (3,934) =
Interest received 2 2 1,883 1,249
NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES REZEFMARESEE (1,247,407) (321,620
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Hao Tian Development Group Limited ® £ X% EEEHR A7)

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
MERERER

For the Year ended 31 March 2019 # 2 —E—AE=A=+—RHIFE

2019 2018
—E-hEFE —TN\F
HK$’'000 HK$'000
THET FET
FINANCING ACTIVITIES R EE
Interest paid EAFIE (98,673) (61,488)
Proceeds from issue of secured notes BT HREEE SR - 505,840
Proceeds from disposal of shares of a subsidiary  H & — KB 2 7R FTER0E - 35,927
Borrowings raised HigEsE 1,871,821 1,037,414
Repayment of borrowings EEEE (662,642) (1,122,848)
Repayment of other liability BEREMERE (6,627) -
Proceeds from share placing of a subsidiary Bl & — BT /&8 & B1AR 19 P15 58 - 124,000
Expenses on placing of shares of a subsidiary Bl & —RIHHB A TR BIF % = (2,630)
Expenses on issue of bonus shares of —EM B AR TR
a subsidiary = (447)
Payment on early redemption of secured notes 12 Ff& [l H IR EIE 2 5K - (155,308)
Repayment of secured notes EREERER (155,840) -
Repayment of obligations under finance leases f{£3& &l & G AYE (4,236) (5,408)
Repayment of bonds BiEES (217,639) =
Capital injection from non-controlling KA KB AR Z FEIEARAL R
shareholders of subsidiaries Z2EE 97,984 =
NET CASH GENERATED FROM BEETDFERSFHE
FINANCING ACTIVITIES 824,148 355,052
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
MERERER

For the Year ended 31 March 2019 &2 - —hWE=A=+—HILtFE

2019 2018
—E-hEFE  —T)N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET TR
NET DECREASE IN CASH AND RERREEENRL FE
CASH EQUIVALENTS (507,182) (56,778)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT REAZRERREESEY
BEGINNING OF THE YEAR 781,431 816,372
EFFECT OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE RATE EXSH ¥
CHANGES (7,209) 21,837
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS ATEND OF REKRZBHERRESEY
THE YEAR REPRESENTED BY ERITEBRES
BANK BALANCES AND CASH 267,040 781,431
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Hao Tian Development Group Limited ® £ X% EEEHR A7)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B RRE

For the year ended 31 March 2019 #E—T—AF=A=+—HBI-FE

GENERAL

Hao Tian Development Group Limited (the “Company”) is
incorporated in the Cayman Islands as an exempted company
with limited liability and its shares are listed on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). Its
immediate and ultimate holding company is Asia Link Capital
Investment Holdings Limited, which is incorporated in the
British Virgin Islands (“BVI"”), and the ultimate controlling
shareholder is Ms. Li Shao Yu ("Ms. Li"). The registered office
of the Company is located at Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive,
P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman, KY-Illl, Cayman Islands. The
principal place of business of the Company in Hong Kong is
located at Rooms 4917-4932, 49/F, Sun Hung Kai Centre, 30
Harbour Road, Wan Chai, Hong Kong.

The principal activities of the Company are investment
holding and provision of management service to its

subsidiaries.

The Group's consolidated financial statements are presented
in Hong Kong dollars (“HK$"), which is also the functional

currency of the Company.

—RER

EREREEERAF(EAF)ERSES
FHMRK L REREERA R RERMDNE S
ERGMAERAR ([BRF]) £ - HEER
RISERARARRERE LS ((RBE L #
EDFMK Iz THAIEERERAT - MKk
BIERBRERFIFLT([FELL]) - AT
/) &F fift #% =& B 2 7 Cricket Square, Hutchins
Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman, KY-IIlI,
Cayman Islands ° NA R BB E B & E M2
7 PR3 78 V& 1 78 & 38 30 5% 37 %8 B A 04948
4917-4932 = -

ARANEBEBRIREER R AENE AT
REERRS -

REBRGE BRI ABIT((ET]) 275
MATIRARNRR ZINEEEE -
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Hao Tian Development Group Limited ® 2 XZEEEBHR QA

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M HRR M

For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z —F— A F=A=+—HBIFE

RN RAIER] B R M B REER
([EBMBREERA])

AEEEERRATIHEESMAE (&
BESEAQE ) ARG YRARE TN\
FOA— B2 &R HRFEERZIET
NERT R Rk ([T R BRI 580K
BEEA]) -

Amendments to HKFRS 1, First-time
adoption of Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards

Amendments to HKAS 28,
Investments in Associates and

Classification and Measurement of
Share-based Payment Transactions

Applying HKFRS 9 Financial
Instruments with HKFRS 4
Insurance Contracts

Revenue from Contracts with

Revenue from Contracts with
Customers (Clarifications to

Transfers of Investment Property

Foreign Currency Transactions and
Advance Consideration

BAERBERELR BAERBERELER
—T-NEZRE F1RZBET BR
—TRFRH RNE B RS %R
< FEYE

AW REER BAGRERZE 285
—T-NER ZIER]  IREE AR
—T—NFRH REEREIRE
2 EENE

BERBERELER PR AR S
F 252155 HRERETE

BEMREER BEMEREEREIH
B4R 2B [T A BEEHL

WEERE A
[RERE#] —OHER

BERBERELER SRTE
F95%

BEMREER BEFPAHZIA
55155

BEMEREER BEPEH WA (BS
F155R255] B RS 155

ZEE)

EFGHERFEL0%  ERERENE
ZIER]

a5 (BB B INERZ S RFBRNRE
REZE®)-

BEZ 2R

B TS - RANEE B RFTR] REIER] R

2. ADOPTION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“"HKFRSs")

The Group has applied for the first time the following new
and revised standards and interpretation (“new and revised
HKFRS") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants ("HKICPA") which are effective for the
Group's financial year beginning on or after 1 April 2018.
Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2014-2016 Cycle
Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2014-2016 Cycle

Joint Ventures
Amendments to HKFRS 2
Amendments to HKFRS 4
HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments
HKFRS 15

Customers
Amendments to HKFRS 15

HKFRS 15)
Amendments to HKAS 40
HK(IFRIC)-Int 22
Except as described below, the application of the new and
revised HKFRSs in the current year has had no material impact
on the Group's financial performance and positions for the
current and prior years and/or on the disclosures set out in
these consolidated financial statements.
The new and revised HKFRSs have been applied in
accordance with the relevant transition provisions in the
respective standards and amendments which results in
changes in accounting policies, amounts reported and/or
disclosures.
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Hao Tian Development Group Limited ® 2 X% EE@AR A7)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

S B IS R R Y R

For the year ended 31 March 2019 #E—T—AF=A=+—HBI-FE

ADOPTION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (continued)

Changes in accounting policies of application on
HKFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts with
Customers” ("HKFRS 15")

In the current year, the Group has applied HKFRS 15 for the
first time retrospectively with the cumulative effect of initially
applying this Standard recognised at the date of initial
application, 1 April 2018. HKFRS 15 superseded HKAS 18
"Revenue”, HKAS 11 “Construction Contracts” and the
related interpretations with no material effect on timing and
amount of revenues recognised in the consolidated financial

statements.

The Group recognises revenue from the following major

sources:
° Leasing of construction machineries

° Leasing of investment property

o Lending of money

. Provision of commodities, futures and securities

brokerage services

° Provision of various services for construction machineries
o Sales of construction machineries and materials
o Sales of men’s and women's apparels

Revenue from leasing of construction machineries and
investment property will continue to be accounted for in
accordance with HKAS 17 “Leases”.

Interest revenue is accounted for under HKFRS 9.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 = =% —

2.

NE=Z[A=+—RHLFE

ADOPTION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (continued)

Changes in accounting policies of application on
HKFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts with
Customers” ("HKFRS 15") (continued)

Revenue from provision of various services for construction
machineries and provision of commodities, futures and
securities brokerage services are recognised at a point in time
when the Group completes satisfaction of the relevant

performance obligation.

Revenue from sales of construction machineries and materials
and sale of men’s and women'’s apparels is recognised when
the respective goods have been completed and delivered to
the customers which is a point in time when customers have
the ability to direct the use of the construction machineries
and materials and obtain substantially all of the remaining

benefits of the construction machineries and materials.

HKFRS 15 introduces a 5-step approach when recognising

revenue:

o Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a customer

o Step 2: Identify the performance obligations in the
contract

° Step 3: Determine the transaction price

o Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the
performance obligations in the contract

o Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the Group

satisfies a performance obligation

Under HKFRS 15, the Group recognises revenue when (or as)

a performance obligation is satisfied i.e. when “control” of
the goods or services underlying the particular performance

obligation is transferred to the customer.
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Hao Tian Development Group Limited ® 2 X% EE@AR A7)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

S B IS R R Y R

For the year ended 31 March 2019 #E—T—AF=A=+—HBI-FE

ADOPTION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (continued)

Changes in accounting policies of application on
HKFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts with
Customers” ("HKFRS 15") (continued)

A performance obligation represents goods and services (or a
bundle of goods or services) that is distinct or a series of

distinct goods or services that are substantially the same.

Control is transferred over time and revenue is recognised
over time by reference to the progress towards complete
satisfaction of the relevant performance obligation if one of

the following criteria is met:

° the customer simultaneously receives and consumes the
benefits provided by the Group’s performance as the

Group performs;

o the Group's performance creates and enhances an asset

that the customer controls as the Group performs; or

o the Group's performance does not create an asset with
an alternative use to the Group and the Group has an
enforceable right to payment for performance

completed to date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time when the

customer obtains control of the distinct goods or services.
Principal versus agent

When another party is involved in providing goods or services
to a customer, the Group determines whether the nature of
its promise is a performance obligation to provide the
specified goods or services itself (i.e. the Group is a principal)
or to arrange for those goods or services to be provided by

the other party (i.e. the Group is an agent).

The Group is a principal if it controls the specified good or
service before that good or service is transferred to a

customer.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z=%

2.

—NhE=ZA=+—RLFE

ADOPTION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (continued)

Changes in accounting policies of application on
HKFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts with
Customers” ("HKFRS 15") (continued)

Principal versus agent (continued)

The Group is an agent if its performance obligation is to
arrange for the provision of the specified good or service by
another party. In this case, the Group does not control the
specified good or service provided by another party before
that good or service is transferred to the customer. When the
Group acts as an agent, it recognises revenue in the amount
of any fee or commission to which it expects to be entitled in
exchange for arranging for the specified goods or services to
be provided by the other party.

Existence of significant financing component

In determining the transaction price, the Group adjusts the
promised amount of consideration for the effects of the time
value of money if the timing of payments agreed (either
explicitly or implicitly) provides the customer or the Group
with a significant benefit of financing the transfer of goods or
services to the customer. In those circumstances, the contract
contains a significant financing component. A significant
financing component may exist regardless of whether the
promise of financing is explicitly stated in the contract or
implied by the payment terms agreed to by the parties to the
contract.

For contracts where the period between payment and transfer
of the associated goods or services is less than one year, the
Group applies the practical expedient of not adjusting the

transaction price for any significant financing component.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 #E—T—AF=A=+—HBI-FE

ADOPTION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (continued)

Changes in accounting policies of application on
HKFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts with
Customers” ("HKFRS 15") (continued)

Incremental costs of obtaining a contract

Incremental costs of obtaining a contract are those costs that
the Group incurs to obtain a contract with a customer that it
would not have incurred if the contract had not been
obtained.

The Group recognises such costs as an asset if it expects to
recover these costs. The asset so recognised is subsequently
amortised to profit or loss on a systematic basis that is
consistent with the transfer to the customer of the goods or
services to which the assets relate. The asset is subject to

impairment review.

The Group applies the practical expedient of expensing all
incremental costs to obtain a contract if these costs would
otherwise have been fully amortised to profit or loss within

one year.

The directors of the Company have assessed that the revenue
from sales of construction machineries and materials and
men’s and women's apparels represent only one performance
obligation and, accordingly, revenue will be recognised for
this performance obligation when control over the

corresponding goods is transferred to the customer.

In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the
application of HKFRS 15 has no material impact on the
amounts recognised in the consolidated financial statements
and classification of items in the consolidated statement of

financial position.
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z —F— A F=A=+—HBIFE

2.

ADOPTION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (continued)

Impacts and changes in accounting policies of
application on HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments” and
the related amendments

In the current year, the Group has applied HKFRS 9 “Financial
Instruments” (“HKFRS 9”) and the related consequential
amendments to other HKFRSs. HKFRS 9 introduces new
requirements for (1) the classification and measurement of
financial assets and financial liabilities, (2) expected credit
losses (“ECL") for financial assets and (3) general hedge

accounting.

The Group has applied HKFRS 9 in accordance with the
transition provisions set out in HKFRS 9, i.e. applied the
classification and measurement requirements (including
impairment) retrospectively to instruments that have not been
derecognised as at 1 April 2018 (date of initial application)
and has not applied the requirements to instruments that
have already been derecognised as at 1 April 2018. The
difference between carrying amounts as at 31 March 2018 and
the carrying amounts as at 1 April 2018 are recognised in the
opening accumulated losses and other components of equity,

without restating comparative information.

Accordingly, certain comparative information may not be
comparable as comparative information was prepared under
HKAS 39 “Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement” ("HKAS 39").
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 #E—T—AF=A=+—HBI-FE

ADOPTION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO 2.

HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (continued)

Impacts and changes in accounting policies of
application on HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments” and
the related amendments (continued)

Key changes in accounting policies resulting from
application of HKFRS 9

Classification and measurement of financial assets

Trade receivables arising from contracts with customers are

initially measured in accordance with HKFRS 15.

All recognised financial assets that are within the scope of
HKFRS 9 are subsequently measured at amortised cost or fair
value, including unquoted equity investments measured at

cost less impairment under HKAS 39.

Debt instruments that meet the following conditions are

subsequently measured at amortised cost:

o the financial asset is held within a business model whose
objective is to hold financial assets in order to collect

contractual cash flows; and

o the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on
specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount

outstanding.
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z —F— A F=A=+—HBIFE

2.

ADOPTION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (continued)

Impacts and changes in accounting policies of
application on HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments” and
the related amendments (continued)

Key changes in accounting policies resulting from
application of HKFRS 9 (continued)

Classification and measurement of financial assets (continued)

Debt instruments that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at fair value through other

comprehensive income (“FVTOCI"):

o the financial asset is held within a business model whose
objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash

flows and selling the financial assets; and

o the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on
specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount

outstanding.

All other financial assets are subsequently measured at fair
value through profit or loss (“FVTPL"), except that at the date
of initial application/initial recognition of a financial asset the
Group may irrevocably elect to present subsequent changes
in fair value of an equity investment in other comprehensive
income if that equity investment is neither held for trading nor
contingent consideration recognised by an acquirer in a
business combination to which HKFRS 3 “Business

Combinations” applies.

In addition, the Group may irrevocably designate a debt
investment that meets the amortised cost or FVTOCI criteria
as measured at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or significantly

reduces an accounting mismatch.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 #E—T—AF=A=+—HBI-FE

ADOPTION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (continued)

Impacts and changes in accounting policies of
application on HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments” and
the related amendments (continued)

Key changes in accounting policies resulting from
application of HKFRS 9 (continued)

Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets that do not meet the criteria for being
measured at amortised cost or FVTOCI or designated as
FVTOCI are measured at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value at the
end of each reporting period, with any fair value gains or
losses recognised in profit or loss. The net gain or loss
recognised in profit or loss excludes any dividend or interest
earned on the financial asset and is included in the “Other

gains and losses” line item.

The directors of the Company reviewed and assessed the
Group's financial assets as at 1 April 2018 based on the facts
and circumstances that existed at that date. Changes in
classification and measurement on the Group's financial

assets and the impacts thereof are detailed below.
Impairment under ECL model

The Group recognises a loss allowance for ECL on financial
assets which are subject to impairment under HKFRS 9
(including trade receivables, loan receivables, other
receivables, finance lease receivables, pledged bank deposits
and bank balances). The amount of ECL is updated at each
reporting date to reflect changes in credit risk since initial

recognition.
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z —F— A F=A=+—HBIFE

2.

ADOPTION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (continued)

Impacts and changes in accounting policies of
application on HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments” and
the related amendments (continued)

Key changes in accounting policies resulting from
application of HKFRS 9 (continued)

Impairment under ECL model (continued)

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all
possible default events over the expected life of the relevant
instrument. In contrast, 12-month ECL (“12m ECL")
represents the portion of lifetime ECL that is expected to
result from default events that are possible within 12 months
after the reporting date. Assessment are done based on the
Group's historical credit loss experience, adjusted for factors
that are specific to the debtors, general economic conditions
and an assessment of both the current conditions at the

reporting date as well as the forecast of future conditions.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade
receivables. The ECL on trade receivables are assessed

collectively using a provision matrix with appropriate
groupings.

For all other instruments, the Group measures the loss
allowance equal to 12m ECL, unless there has been a
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, in
which case the Group recognises lifetime ECL. The
assessment of whether lifetime ECL should be recognised is
based on significant increases in the likelihood or risk of a

default occurring since initial recognition.

After performing the assessment of expected credit loss on
the Group's existing trade receivables, loan receivables, other
receivables and finance lease receivables, HK$98,193,000
expected credit loss allowance was recognised by the Group
as at 1 April 2018.
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 #E—T—AF=A=+—HBI-FE

ADOPTION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (continued)

Impacts and changes in accounting policies of
application on HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments” and
the related amendments (continued)

Key changes in accounting policies resulting from
application of HKFRS 9 (continued)

Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased significantly
since initial recognition, the Group compares the risk of a
default occurring on the financial instrument as at the
reporting date with the risk of a default occurring on the
financial instrument as at the date of initial recognition. In
making this assessment, the Group considers both
quantitative and qualitative information that is reasonable and
supportable, including historical experience and forward-
looking information that is available without undue cost or
effort.

In particular, the following information is taken into account

when assessing whether credit risk has increased significantly:

o an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
financial instrument’s external (if available) or internal

credit rating;

o significant deterioration in external market indicators of
credit risk, e.g. a significant increase in the credit
spread, the credit default swap prices for the debtor;

o existing or forecast adverse changes in business,
financial or economic conditions that are expected to
cause a significant decrease in the debtor’s ability to

meet its debt obligations;

o an actual or expected significant deterioration in the

operating results of the debtor;
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z —F— A F=A=+—HBIFE

2.

ADOPTION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (continued)

Impacts and changes in accounting policies of
application on HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments” and
the related amendments (continued)

Key changes in accounting policies resulting from
application of HKFRS 9 (continued)

Significant increase in credit risk (continued)

o an actual or expected significant adverse change in the
regulatory, economic, or technological environment of
the debtor that results in a significant decrease in the

debtor’s ability to meet its debt obligations.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment, the
Group presumes that the credit risk has increased significantly
since initial recognition when contractual payments are more
than 30 days past due, unless the Group has reasonable and

supportable information that demonstrates otherwise.

Despite the aforegoing, the Group assumes that the credit
risk on a debt instrument has not increased significantly since
initial recognition if the debt instrument is determined to
have low credit risk at the reporting date. A debt instrument
is determined to have low credit risk if (i) it has a low risk of
default, (ii) the borrower has a strong capacity to meet its
contractual cash flow obligations in the near term and (iii)
adverse changes in economic and business conditions in the
longer term may, but will not necessarily, reduce the ability of
the borrower to fulfil its contractual cash flow obligations. The
Group considers a debt instrument to have low credit risk
when it has an internal or external credit rating of ‘investment

grade’ as per globally understood definitions.

The Group considers that default has occurred when the
instrument is more than 90 days past due unless the Group
has reasonable and supportable information to demonstrate

that a more lagging default criterion is more appropriate.
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 #E—T—AF=A=+—HBI-FE

ADOPTION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (continued)

Impacts and changes in accounting policies of
application on HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments” and
the related amendments (continued)

Key changes in accounting policies resulting from
application of HKFRS 9 (continued)

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the probability of
default, loss given default (i.e. the magnitude of the loss if
there is a default) and the exposure at default. The
assessment of the probability of default and loss given default
is based on historical data adjusted by forward-looking

information.

Generally, the ECL is estimated as the difference between all
contractual cash flows that are due to the Group in
accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the
Group expects to receive, discounted at the effective interest

rate determined at initial recognition.

Interest income is calculated based on the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset unless the financial asset is
credit impaired, in which case interest income is calculated

based on amortised cost of the financial asset.

The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss in profit or
loss for all financial instruments by adjusting their carrying
amount, with the exception of trade receivables, where the
corresponding adjustment is recognised through a loss

allowance account.

As at 1 April 2018, the directors of the Company reviewed and
assessed the Group's existing financial assets for impairment
using reasonable and supportable information that is
available without undue cost or effort in accordance with the
requirements of HKFRS 9. The results of the assessment and

the impact thereof are detailed in below.
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z —F— A F=A=+—HBIFE

2. ADOPTION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO 2. EAFEIRKETERMBREEAR
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING ((EEMBREED ] (E)
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (continued)

Impacts and changes in accounting policies of ERAEBVBREENEIR &M TA ]
application on HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments” and REBETZEFBERZEEREE (B)
the related amendments (continued)
Summary of effects arising from initial application of N E BN BREEREIRELECHE
HKFRS 9 #E
The table below illustrates the classification and measurement TRETRVBEABRA-_Z—\FHA—H
(including impairment) of financial assets and financial RIBEB BV ERELEDNE IS M F B2 ER
liabilities and other items subject to ECL under HKFRS 9 and EIRELHZeHEERSRABAREME
HKAS 39 at the date of initial application, 1 April 2018. BHREEBEMBRRIER 22 ERFTE (B
A o
Investment
held for
trading/
Financial ~ Amortised
assets at cost
Financial FVTPL  (previously Financial
Available- assets  requiredby  classified liabilities Financial Asset Non-
forsadle  designated  HKAS 39/ asloans  Deferred atamortised liabilities  revaluation FVTOCI  Accumulated  controlling
investments  at FVTOCI HKFRS 9 receivables) tax assets cost at FVTPL reserve reserve losses interests
EReEl
£0%/E%
BREER
FIBRERE
ERAATE EERE/
HEAESY NAVEHE WATEHE WATEHE
FARM  BES(  BEEE REERA BEB{A BESHA
bR HABEz  (F%AEA S i Hh2E
TRLERE  SBEE  SHEE  ENER) EEREEE 0 SREE  CHAE HREGER  Gu2BE 0 ZHEE  HERER
Notes HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
i TR TR TR T T T TR TR TR T T
Closing balance at RZ2-\E=A=1-R
31 March 2018 LBRER
—HKAS %) —EREEAE NS 814059 - 1M s 41 1873 B3 93N - (1% I
Effect arsing from intial EREAN AR
application of HKFRS9: SRS
Reclassfication Exivp]
From avaiable-for-sales BAHERE
investments (@ (814,059 112,088 70191 - - - - - - - -
From asset revaluation resene  HEEB(HEE 2] - - - - - - - (689312 - 489312 -
From accumulated osses hEHER a) - - - - - - - - (220408) 20408 -
Remeasurement Efife
Impaiment under ECLmodel B EEEEAET
pa i (o) = - - 98,193) 13250 - - - - (65,547) (19,39)
From cost less impairment HHARAEZATE
to fair value &) - 11,155 - - - - - - 13714 - 3781
Opening balance at R=E-)\EBA-A
1 April 2018 JHNEs - 123243 1960217 839450 17993 1617731 238,893 - 213038 (1322559) 25,189

112 Annual Report F#f 2018/19



Hao Tian Development Group Limited ® 2 X% EE@AR A7)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

S B IS R R Y R

For the year ended 31 March 2019 #E—T—AF=A=+—HBI-FE

ADOPTION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (continued)

Impacts and changes in accounting policies of

application on HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments” and

the related amendments (continued)

Summary of effects arising from initial application of
HKFRS 9 (continued)

(a)

Available-for-sale investments (“AFS”)

From AFS investments to financial assets at FVTPL or
financial assets at FVTOCI

At the date of initial application of HKFRS 9, the Group's
listed equity investments and unlisted fund of
HK$701,971,000 were reclassified from available-for-sale
investments to financial assets at FVTPL. The
accumulated fair value change of HK$489,312,000
relating to those investments were transferred to

accumulated losses as at 1 April 2018.

In respect of unlisted equity investments, which are not
held for trading and not expected to be sold in the
foreseeable future of HK$112,088,000, the Group makes
an irrevocable election (on an instrument-by-instrument
basis) to designate these investments as at FVTOCI at
the date of initial application. The fair value gain of
HK$11,155,000 related to these unlisted equity
investments previously carried at cost less impairment
losses adjusted to financial assets at FVTOCI, FVTOCI
reserve and non-controlling interest as at 1 April 2018.
In addition, impairment losses previously recognised of
HK$220,408,000 were transferred from accumulated
losses to FVTOCI reserve as at 1 April 2018.
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BERENTIAEZERNHERERESR
NAFEFEBEZ T ALMEER
o HWEFEMBRABREREA AT
B Y 25 11,155,000 7T 38 1F 32 B 2 8k
HEEEE YR -E—N\FEMA—H
ABRZUAFEFEBEEZE (L AEM
2EWEZSBMEE LWAFETER
HE(bir AH b2 E U 2 fhfl R IEE
BRMERS o AN BERRZRMEESIE
220,408,000 TR —Z— \EM A —H
M EEERENAFEFEAESE
EEt AR 2 RS 2 FEf o

Annual Report 4%k 2018/19 113



Hao Tian Development Group Limited ® 2 KR EEFR QA

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M HRR M

For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z —F— A F=A=+—HBIFE

2.

ADOPTION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (continued)

Impacts and changes in accounting policies of

application on HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments” and

the related amendments (continued)

Summary of effects arising from initial application of
HKFRS 9 (continued)

(a)

Available-for-sale investments (“AFS”) (continued)

Investments in equity instruments at FVTOCI are initially
measured at fair value plus transaction costs.
Subsequently, they are measured at fair value with gains
and losses arising from changes in fair value recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated in the
FVTOCI reserve; and are not subject to impairment
assessment. The cumulative gain or loss will not be
reclassified to profit or loss on disposal of the equity
investments, and will be transferred to accumulated

losses.

Dividends on these investments in equity instruments
are recognised in profit or loss when the Group's right
to receive the dividends is established in accordance
with HKFRS 9, unless the dividends clearly represent a
recovery of part of the cost of the investment. Dividends
are included in the “other income” line item in profit or

loss.
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 #E—T—AF=A=+—HBI-FE

ADOPTION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (continued)

Impacts and changes in accounting policies of

application on HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments” and

the related amendments (continued)

Summary of effects arising from initial application of
HKFRS 9 (continued)

(b)

Impairment under ECL model

The Group applies the HKFRS 9 simplified approach to
measure ECL which uses a lifetime ECL for trade
receivables. To measure the ECL, contract assets and
trade receivables have been grouped based on shared

credit risk characteristics.

Loss allowances for other financial assets at amortised
cost mainly comprise of loan receivables, other
receivables and finance lease receivables, are measured
on 12m ECL basis and there had been no significant

increase in credit risk since initial recognition.

As at 1 April 2018, the additional credit loss allowance
of HK$98,193,000 has been recognised against
accumulated losses. The additional loss allowance is

charged against the respective asset.
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z —F— A F=A=+—HBIFE

2. ADOPTION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO 2. RAFIIREBITEBUBREER
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING ((EBYBHREED D) (E)

STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (continued)

Impacts and changes in accounting policies of ERAERVBRELENEIR &M TA ]
application on HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments” and REBBIT 2ETRRIEEREE (B)

the related amendments (continued)

Summary of effects arising from initial application of HIBEFRE BB REEN IR ELE R E
HKFRS 9 (continued) #BE(E)
(b)  Impairment under ECL model (continued) (b) TEHIEEEERENIE T2 RE )

All loss allowances for financial assets including trade
receivables, loan receivables, finance lease receivables
and other receivables as at 31 March 2018 reconcile to
the opening loss allowance as at 1 April 2018 is as

follows:

SREE (BEEIER - BRER
& 78 B e YRR TR B HL At R IE) R —
—NEF=A=+—RHz2IEEREHE
R=ZT—N\FWEA— B ZEVEERE
ZHERMAT

Bt
P

Finance
Trade Loan lease Other
receivables  receivables  receivables  receivables
MERE HithEUR
FEBUAR ERER PE IR A
At 31 March 2018 — HKAS 39 RZE-\E=R=+—H
— BB GHERE 395 177,157 726,001 16,488 17,997
Amounts remeasured ERBY R EBBERN
through opening HFECEE
accumulated losses (9,024) (86,988) (1,600) (581)
At 1 April 2018 — HKFRS 9 RZZT—\FMA—AH
— BRI BRELENSE % 168,133 639,013 14,888 17,416

Except as described above, the application of other
amendments to HKFRSs in the current year has had no
material effect on the amounts reported and/or
disclosures set out in these consolidated financial

statements.
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z—T—AF=A=+—HItFE

ADOPTION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO 2. EAFEIRKETERMBREEAL
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING ((ERTEHREER]) (E)
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (continued)
Impacts on opening consolidated statement of FE 3 2 BB 57 5T ZE R HR R 4R & B S AR R
financial position arising from the application of all R"ZTE
new standards
As a result of the changes in the Group's accounting policies MR EXPI AR EE ST BREE - BiRe
above, the opening consolidated statement of financial AR R KRBT ETY o TRIIRHSERIE
position had to be restated. The following table shows the AR HE -
adjustments recognised for each individual line item.
31 March 1 April
2018 HKFRS 9 HKFRS 15 2018
BB BB
—ZT—)\F HAER WERER —F—-N\F
=A=+—H FE 95 #£15%  MWA—H
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET FHET FHET
(Audited) (Restated)
(FEE=%) (&e&E5)
Non-current Assets FRBEE
Available-for-sale AEEERE
investments 814,059 (814,059) — —
Financial assets at fair value ~ LARF(EE 2B HE L
through profit or loss STABRZEREE - 701,971 - 701,971
Financial assets designated ~ #§F AR F(EF 2B H
at fair value through other St AE M 2 E W
comprehensive income ZEmMEE = 123,243 = 123,243
Loan receivables EWE 195,716 (1,689) = 194,027
Finance lease receivables b A = E W EE 9,529 - - 9,529
Deferred tax assets FEERIBEE 4,743 13,250 = 17,993
Others with no adjustments Hin A& FHRIBER 1,122,892 = — 1,122,892
2,146,939 22,716 - 2,169,655
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z —F— A F=A=+—HBIFE

2. ADOPTION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO 2. BRI RELEBITERMBERSEEAR
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING ((EEMBREED ] (E)
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (continued)

Impacts on opening consolidated statement of FE 3 2 BB 57 5T 22 R HA M 4R & BA S AR R
financial position arising from the application of all Rk2HE(E)

new standards (continued)

31 March 1 April

2018 HKFRS9  HKFRS 15 2018
TEME  BBMG

—EB-)N\F SR HEER —T-N\F

=A=+—~ E 9 £15%  WA—H

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAT TAT TAT TAET

(Audited) (Restated)
(FEE=%) (Fe=3%1))
Current Assets mENEE
Trade receivables TEURBR ZX 177,157 (2,024) = 168,133
Other receivables, deposits Hib U EIE « 515
and prepayments NMIERFRIA 17,997 (581) - 17,416
Loan receivables EWE = 530,285 (85,299) = 444,986
Finance lease receivables BhA TR E e i kiE 6,959 (1,600) - 5,359
Investments held for trading ~ #H{EEHRE 1,258,246  (1,258,246) = =
Financial assets at fair value ~ LAR{ET 8 B H &1L
through profit or loss AR EREE = 1,258,246 = 1,258,246
Tax recoverable AT B R I8 2,278 = = 2,278
Others with no adjustments Hih AL ARIER 889,650 = = 889,650
2,882,572 (96,504) - 2,786,068
Current Liabilities REEE
Contract liabilities EHAaE - = 1,951 1,951
Other payables, deposits HMEMAIE - EWET&
received and accruals K FEET A 54,571 = (1,951) 52,620
Others with no adjustments Hih AKARIER 1,200,240 = = 1,200,240
1,254,811 . ~ 1,254,811
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z—T—AF=A=+—HItFE

ADOPTION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO 2. BRI RELEBITBERBMBEREEAR
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING ((EEMBREED ] (E)
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (continued)

Impacts on opening consolidated statement of FE 3 2 BB 57 5T ZE R HR R 4R & B S AR R
financial position arising from the application of all R"2HE(E)

new standards (continued)

31 March 1 April

2018 HKFRS9  HKFRS 15 2018
TEMYE  BBMG

—“E-NF BEEHN  wEEY —EN\F

=A=+—~ E 9 £15%  WMA—H

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAT TAT TAT TAT

(Audited) (Restated)
(f&FEZz) (F&&E7)
Net Current Assets REEEFE 1,627,761 (96,504) - 1,531,257
Total Assets less Current EEHERRBAR
Liabilities 3,774,700 (73,788) - 3,700,912
Capital and Reserves BEARR#E
Equity attributable to owners  ANQ A H A RIS LS
of the Company 2,791,630 (58,173) = 2,733,457
Non-controlling interests FEIZE R e 271,804 (15,615) = 256,189
Total Equity AT 3,063,434 (73,788) - 2,989,646
Non-current Liabilities kRBERE
Deferred tax liability FEEIBEE 105,920 - = 105,920
Others with no adjustments ~ E L R&&FEIEF 605,346 - - 605,346
711,266 - - 711,266
Total Equity and Non-Current #E# %R ERE S B
Liabilities 3,774,700 (73,788) - 3,700,912
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z —F— A F=A=+—HBIFE

2.

ADOPTION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (continued)

New and revised HKFRSs and interpretations in
issue but not yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and
revised HKFRSs and interpretations that have been issued but

are not yet effective:

HKFRS 16 Lease'
HKFRS 17
Amendments to HKFRS 9

Insurance Contracts®

Prepayment Features with Negative
Compensation'

Amendments to HKFRS 10
and HKAS 28

Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture*

Amendments to HKAS 19 Plan Amendment, Curtailment or
Settlement!

Amendments to HKAS 28 Long-term Interests in Associates and
Joint Ventures'

HK(IFRIC)-Int 23 Uncertainty over income tax
treatments'

Amendments to HKFRS 3, HKFRS 11,

HKAS 12 and HKAS 23’

Annual Improvements
2015-2017 Cycle

Amendments to HKAS 1
and HKAS 8
Amendments to HKFRS 3

Definition of material?

Definition of Business?

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2020
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021

2w -

No mandatory effective date yet determined but available for
adoption

Except as described below, the directors do not anticipate
that the application of the new and revised HKFRSs will have
material impact on the Group's financial statements and/or
the disclosures to the Group's consolidated financial

statements.

120 Annual Report %%k 2018/19

RAFEI RS TRV BREER
(TERMBHREER ) (E)

C MM {B [ R A Rz # 7] RIS RT BB Rt
SR
AEEWEREFEATIICEMERRERZ
el RSB BB U MEER LT :

BRMBMERAE 165  HE

ERUBREEANER  RRAKS
BB RS ERE 95 HARERE
ZAERT BAFE
EEMEREEANEI0RE BREEEHBEAAT
BB AERISE 285 FAEEREZHZ
ZIEET BEHEHZA
BRGIERFE 195 2ERT  FEIERT - SRk
#E
BEETERE 282 ET RBEARKEERE
ZREER
&% (AR BHRE2E FisRiREY
REE)-REZEBH AR
“T-REE-T—tF  BENEREER

BEzFEIE

BRETEAE RN

EERIAAEOR 2T

BRRBMERNE IR
ZIER]

A wooN -

E3% - BBHE
MEERIE 115
ARG ERE12%
REFGHER

F 2352 EET
BAZER’

B ER?

MZZT—NF— B —HaMERinZ FEHBRAER

KT —4F— A — Rk AMRRIG 2 FEHIRAR
iR AREERE SRR A R - HERTERAR

BTz  EXTRHEAT REETES
MBHEL TS HAREBMPBRRLE,HA
SEGEMBHRRARESHEREATE -



Hao Tian Development Group Limited ® 2 X% E & EHR A A

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

S B IS R R Y R

For the year ended 31 March 2019 #E—T—AF=A=+—HBI-FE

ADOPTION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (continued)

New and revised HKFRSs and interpretations in
issue but not yet effective (continued)

HKFRS 16 — Lease

HKFRS 16, which upon the effective date will supersede HKAS
17 "Leases” and related interpretations, introduces a single
lessee accounting model and requires a lessee to recognise
assets and liabilities for all leases with a term of more than 12
months, unless the underlying asset is of low value.
Specifically, under HKFRS 16, a lessee is required to recognise
a right-of-use asset representing its right to use the
underlying leased asset and a lease liability representing its
obligation to make lease payments. Accordingly, a lessee
should recognize depreciation of the right-of use asset and
interest on the lease liability, and also classifies cash
repayments of the lease liability into a principal portion and
an interest portion and presents them in the statement of
cash flows. Also, the right-of-use asset and the lease liability
are initially measured on a present value basis. The
measurement includes non-cancellable lease payments and
also includes payments to be made in optional periods if the
lessee is reasonably certain to exercise an option to extend
the lease, or to exercise an option to terminate the lease. This
accounting treatment is significantly different from the lessee
accounting for leases that are classified as operating leases
under the predecessor standard, HKAS 17.

In respect of the lessor accounting, HKFRS 16 substantially
carries forward the lessor accounting requirements in HKAS
17. Accordingly, a lessor continues to classify its leases as
operating leases or finance leases, and to account for those

two types of leases differently.
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2.

ADOPTION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (continued)

New and revised HKFRSs and interpretations in
issue but not yet effective (continued)

HKFRS 16 — Lease (continued)

As set out in Note 43, total operating lease commitment as
lessee of the Group in respect of leased premises as at 31
March 2018 and 2019 amounted to HK32,171,000 and
HK$11,806,000 respectively. The directors of the Group do
not expect the adoption of HKFRS 16 as compared with the
current accounting policy would result in significant impact on
the Group's result but it is expected that certain portion of
these lease commitments will be required to be recognised in
the consolidated statement of financial position as right-of-

use assets and lease liabilities.

The Group intends to elect the practical expedient to apply
HKFRS 16 to contracts that were previously identified as
leases applying HKAS 17 and HK(IFRIC)-Int 4 Determining
whether an Arrangement contains a Lease and not apply this
standard to contracts that were not previously identified as
containing a lease applying HKAS 17 and HK (IFRIC)-Int 4.
Therefore, the Group will not reassess whether the contracts
are, or contain a lease which already existed prior to the date

of initial application.

Furthermore, the Group intends to elect the modified
retrospective approach for the application of HKFRS 16 as
lessee and will recognise the cumulative effect of initial
application to opening retained profits without restating

comparative information.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with HKFRS (which include all HKFRS, Hong Kong
Accounting Standards (“HKASs"”) and Interpretations) issued
by the HKICPA, accounting principles generally accepted in
Hong Kong and the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance. The consolidated financial
statements include applicable disclosures required by the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange (“Listing Rules”).

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on
the historical cost basis except for certain financial
instruments, which are measured at fair values, as explained
in the accounting policies set out below. Assets classified as
held for sale are stated at the lower of their carrying amounts
and fair values less costs to sell.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset
or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date, regardless of
whether that price is directly observable or estimated using
another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value of an
asset or a liability, the Group takes into account the
characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants
would take those characteristics into account when pricing
the asset or liability at the measurement date. A fair value
measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a
market participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by
using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to
another market participant that would use the asset in its
highest and best use. Fair value under HKFRS 13 Fair Value
Measurement is an exit price regardless of whether that price
is directly observable or estimated using another valuation
technique. Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure
purposes in these consolidated financial statements is
determined on such a basis, except for share-based payment
transactions that are within the scope of HKFRS 2 Share-
based Payment, leasing transactions that are within the scope
of HKAS 17, and measurements that have some similarities to
fair value but are not fair value, such as net realisable value in
HKAS 2 Inventories or value in use in HKAS 36 Impairment of
Assets.
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8

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on
the degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements
are observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair
value measurement in its entirety, which are described as

follows:

o Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity
can access at the measurement date;

° Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices
included within Level 1, that are observable for the asset

or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

o Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or
liability.

The principal accounting policies are set out below:

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries.
Control is achieved when the Company:

o has power over the investee;

. has exposure, or rights, to variable returns from its

involvement with the investee; and
o has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.
The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if

facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to

one or more of the three elements of control listed above.
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 #E—T—AF=A=+—HBI-FE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains
control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses
control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses of
a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are
included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income from the date the Group gains
control until the date when the Group ceases to control the
subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive income
are attributed to the owners of the Company and to the non-

controlling interests.

Total comprehensive income and expense of a subsidiary is
attributed to the owners of the Company and to the non-
controlling interests even if this results in the non-controlling

interests having a deficit balance.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies

into line with the Group’s accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity transactions,
balances, income, expenses and cash flows relating to
transactions between members of the Group are eliminated

in full on consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented

separately from the Group's equity therein.
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8

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing
subsidiaries

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing
subsidiaries that do not result in the Group losing control
over the subsidiaries are accounted for as equity transactions.
The carrying amounts of the Group's relevant components of
equity including reserves and the non-controlling interests are
adjusted to reflect the changes in their relative interests in the
subsidiaries. Any difference between the proportionate share
of net assets attributable to the non-controlling interests are
adjusted after re-attribution of the relevant equity
component, and the fair value of the consideration paid or
received is recognised directly in equity and attributed to

owners of the Company.
Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred in a
business combination is measured at fair value, which is
calculated as the sum of the acquisition-date fair values of the
assets transferred by the Group, liabilities incurred by the
Group to the former owners of the acquiree and the equity
interests issued by the Group in exchange for control of the
acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are generally recognised

in profit or loss as incurred.
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 #E—T—AF=A=+—HBI-FE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Business combinations (continued)

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and
the liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair value,

except that:

. deferred tax assets or liabilities, and assets or liabilities
related to employee benefit arrangements are
recognised and measured in accordance with HKAS 12
Income Taxes and HKAS 19 Employee Benefits

respectively;

o liabilities or equity instruments related to share-based
payment arrangements of the acquiree or share-based
payment arrangements of the Group entered into to
replace share-based payment arrangements of the
acquiree are measured in accordance with HKFRS 2 at
the acquisition date (see the accounting policy below);

and

° assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held for
sale in accordance with HKFRS 5 Non-current Assets
Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations are

measured in accordance with that standard.

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interests in the acquiree, and the fair value of the acquirer’s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree (if any) over the
net amount of the identifiable assets acquired and the
liabilities assumed as at acquisition date. If, after re-
assessment, the net amount of the identifiable assets
acquired and liabilities assumed exceeds the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interests in the acquiree and the fair value of the acquirer’s
previously held interest in the acquiree (if any), the excess is
recognised immediately in profit or loss as a bargain purchase

gain.
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8

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Business combinations (continued)

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership interests
and entitle their holders to a proportionate share of the
relevant subsidiary’s net assets in the event of liquidation may
be initially measured either at fair value or at the non-
controlling interests’ proportionate share of the recognised
amounts of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. The choice
of measurement basis is made on a transaction-by-transaction

basis.

If the initial accounting for a business combination is
incomplete by the end of the reporting period in which the
combination occurs, the Group reports provisional amounts
for the items for which the accounting is incomplete. Those
provisional amounts are adjusted during the measurement
period, and additional assets or liabilities are recognised, to
reflect new information obtained about facts and
circumstances that existed at the acquisition date that, if
known, would have affected the amounts recognised at that
date.

Goodwiill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried at
cost as established at the date of acquisition of the business
(see the accounting policy above) less accumulated

impairment losses, if any.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated
to each of the Group’s cash-generating units (or groups of
cash-generating units) that is expected to benefit from the
synergies of the combination, which represent the lowest
level at which the goodwill is monitored for internal
management purposes and not larger than operating

segment.
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 #E—T—AF=A=+—HBI-FE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Goodwill (continued)

A cash-generating unit (or group of cash-generating units) to
which goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment
annually or more frequently there is indication that the unit
may be impaired. For goodwill arising on an acquisition in a
reporting period, the cash-generating unit (or group of cash-
generating units) to which goodwill has been allocated is
tested for impairment before the end of that reporting
period. If the recoverable amount is less than its carrying
amount, the impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the
carrying amount of any goodwill and then to the other assets
on a pro-rata basis based on the carrying amount of each

asset in the unit (or group of cash-generating units).

Revenue recognition (accounting policies applied
from 1 April 2018)

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when
control of goods or services is transferred to the customers at
an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Group
expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or
services, excluding those amounts collected on behalf of third
parties. Revenue excludes value added tax or other sales

taxes and is after deduction of any trade discounts.

Depending on the terms of the contract and the laws that
apply to the contract, control of the goods or service may be
transferred over time or at a point in time. Control of the
goods or service is transferred over time if the Group's

performance:

o provides all of the benefits received and consumed

simultaneously by the customer;

. creates or enhances an asset that the customer controls

as the Group performs; or

. does not create an asset with an alternative use to the
Group and the Group has an enforceable right to

payment for performance completed to date.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Revenue recognition (accounting policies applied
from 1 April 2018) (continued)

If control of the goods or services transfers over time, revenue
is recognised over the period of the contract by reference to
the progress towards complete satisfaction of that
performance obligation. Otherwise, revenue is recognised at
a point in time when the customer obtains control of the

goods or service.

When the contract contains a financing component which
provides the customer a significant benefit of financing the
transfer of goods or services to the customer for more than
one year, revenue is measured at the present value of the
amounts receivable, discounted using the discount rate that
would be reflected in a separate financing transaction
between the Group and the customer at contract inception.
Where the contract contains a financing component which
provides a significant financing benefit to the Group, revenue
recognised under that contract includes the interest expense
accreted on the contract liability under the effective interest
method. For contracts where the period between the
payment and the transfer of the promised goods or services is
one year or less, the transaction price is not adjusted for the
effects of a significant financing component, using the
practical expedient in HKFRS 15.

Sale of rental machinery, machinery and spare parts

Customers obtain control of the machinery and spare parts
when the goods are delivered to and have been accepted.
Revenue is thus recognised at a point in time basis upon
when the customers accepted the machinery and spare parts.

There is generally only one performance obligation.
Provision of transportation service

Transportation services are generally provided within one
day. Revenue of transportation service is recognised at a
point in time basis when the customer obtains control of the

services. There is generally only one performance obligation.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Revenue recognition (accounting policies applied
from 1 April 2018) (continued)

Provision of dealing and broking services on securities,
futures and options

Commission income on securities dealing and broking,
futures and options dealing and broking are recorded as
income on a trade date basis at a point in time when the
control of relevant contract notes are transferred to
customers. Control of the promised goods are transferred to
the customer on completion of delivery of the goods. There is

generally only one performance obligation.

Revenue generated from retailing of men’s and women’s

apparels

The Group sells goods directly to retail customers within retail
stores and wholesale customers from the warehouse. Revenue
recognised from sale of goods to retail customers is
recognised when the product is transferred to the customers
upon sale. Payment of the transaction price is due
immediately when the customers purchase the good. The
payment is usually settled in cash or using credit cards,
Wechat pay and Alipay online platform. For wholesale,
customers obtain control of the casual apparels when the
goods are delivered to and have been accepted. Revenue is
recognised upon when the customers accepted the casual
apparels. There is generally only one performance obligation.
Wholesale customers are required to pay in advance before
delivery of goods.

Other service income

Other service income which generated from rental of
construction machinery and sales of construction materials
business, the Group provides goods and service such as fuel
& lubricant and inspection service to customers. Revenue of
other service income is recognised at a point in time basis
when the customer obtains control of the goods or services.

There is generally only one performance obligation.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z —F— A F=A=+—HBIFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. FESHEE(E)

(continued)

Revenue recognition (accounting policies applied
from 1 April 2018) (continued)

Revenue from other sources

Rental income is recognised on a time proportion basis over

the lease terms.
Interest income generated from money lending

Interest income was generated from money lending business
of providing property mortgage loans, machinery loans and
personal loans. Revenue represents interest income earned

from loans offered to the Group's customers.

Interest income is accrued on a time basis using the effective
interest method by apply applicable interest rate on (i) the
amortised cost (i.e. gross carrying amount less loss allowance
for credit-impaired financial assets) or (i) the gross carrying

amount for non-credit impaired financial assets.
Other income

Dividend income is recognised when the shareholders’ right
to receive payment has been established, it is probable that
the economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow
to the Group and the amount of the dividend can be

measured reliably.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

S B IS R R Y R

For the year ended 31 March 2019 #E—T—AF=A=+—HBI-FE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Revenue recognition (applicable before 1 April
2018)

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the economic
benefits will flow to the Group and when the revenue can be

measured reliably, on the following bases:

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable and services provided in the normal
course of business, net of discounts and sales related taxes

and returns.

Revenue is recognised when the amount of revenue can be
reliably measured; when it is probable that future economic
benefits will flow to the Group and when specific criteria have
been met for each of the Group’s activities, as described

below.

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the

goods are delivered and titles have passed.

Finance lease interest income including handling fees (if any)
represents interest income from financial leasing business, is
allocated to accounting periods so as to reflect a constant
periodic rate of return on the Group’s net investment

outstanding in respect of the leases.

Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to
the principal outstanding and at the effective interest rate
applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts the
estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of
the financial asset to that asset’s net carrying amount on initial

recognition.

Service income generated from provision of transportation

and other services is recognised when services are provided.
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8

—NhE=ZA=+—RLFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Revenue recognition (applicable before 1 April
2018) (continued)

Commission income on securities dealing and broking,
futures and options dealing and broking and bullion contracts
dealing are recorded as income on a trade date basis when

the relevant contract notes are executed.

Dividend income from investments is recognised when the

Group's rights to receive payment have been established.
Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including land and buildings
held for use in the production or supply of goods or services,
or for administrative purposes (other than art works as
described below) are stated in the consolidated statement of
financial position at cost less subsequent accumulated
depreciation and subsequent accumulated impairment losses,

if any.

Art works are stated at cost less subsequent accumulated

impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of items
of property, plant and equipment less their residual values
over their estimated useful lives, using the straight-line
method. The estimated useful lives, residual values and
depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each
reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate

accounted for on a prospective basis.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

S B IS R R Y R

For the year ended 31 March 2019 #E—T—AF=A=+—HBI-FE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost of items of
property, plant and equipment (other than art works) over
their estimated useful lives and after taking into account of
their estimated residual value, using the straight-line method,
at the following rates per annum:

Leasehold land and building Over the lease terms

Leasehold improvements 10% to 20%
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 20% to 25%
Motor vehicles 10% to 25%
Machinery 10%

Yacht 5%

Art works are stated at cost less any identified impairment

loss (if any).

The leasehold land and building of the Group are held under
medium-term lease in Hong Kong and amortised over the

term of lease of 30 years.

Assets held under finance leases are depreciated over their

expected useful lives on the same basis as owned assets.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any
gain or loss arising on the derecognition of the asset is
determined as the difference between the sales proceeds
and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in

profit or loss.
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z —F— A F=A=+—HBIFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Investments in associates and joint ventures

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant
influence. Significant influence is the power to participate in
the financial and operating policy decisions of the investee

but is not control or joint control over those policies.

A joint venture is a type of joint arrangement whereby the
parties that have joint control of the arrangement have rights
to the net assets of the joint venture. Joint control is the
contractually agreed sharing of control of an arrangement,
which exists only when decisions about the relevant activities

require the unanimous consent of the parties sharing control.

The Group's investments in associates and joint ventures are
stated in the consolidated statement of financial position at
the Group's share of net assets under the equity method of
accounting, less any impairment losses. The Group's share of
the post-acquisition results and other comprehensive income
of associates and joint ventures is included in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and consolidated
other comprehensive income, respectively. In addition, when
there has been a change recognised directly in the equity of
the associate or joint venture, the Group recognises its share
of any changes, when applicable, in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity. Unrealised gains and losses
resulting from transactions between the Group and its
associates or joint ventures are eliminated to the extent of the
Group's investments in the associates or joint ventures,
except where unrealised losses provide evidence of an
impairment of the assets transferred. Goodwill arising from
the acquisition of associates or joint ventures is included as
part of the Group’s investments in associates or joint

ventures.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

S B IS R R Y R

For the year ended 31 March 2019 #E—T—AF=A=+—HBI-FE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Intangible assets
Intangible assets acquired in a business combination

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination are
recognised separately from goodwill and are initially
recognised at their fair value at the acquisition date (which is
regarded as their cost).

Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible assets acquired in
a business combination with finite useful lives are reported at
cost less accumulated amortisation and any accumulated
impairment losses, on the same basis as intangible assets that
are acquired separately. Intangible assets acquired in a
business combination with indefinite useful lives are carried at
cost less any subsequent accumulated impairment losses (see
the accounting policy in respect of impairment losses on
tangible and intangible assets below). Amortisation is provided
on a straight-line basis over their useful lives as follows:

Customer list 5 years

Both the period and method of amortisation are reviewed
annually.

Impairment on tangible and intangible assets other
than goodwill (see the accounting policy in respect
of goodwill above)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets with
indefinite useful lives to determine whether there is any
indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss.
If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the
asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the
impairment loss, if any. When it is not possible to estimate the
recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Group
estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit
to which the asset belongs. When a reasonable and consistent
basis of allocation can be identified, corporate assets are also
allocated to individual cash-generating units, or otherwise
they are allocated to the smallest group of cash-generating
units for which a reasonable and consistent allocation basis
can be identified.
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8

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Impairment on tangible and intangible assets other
than goodwill (see the accounting policy in respect
of goodwill above) (continued)

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of
disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific
to the asset (or a cash-generating unit) for which the estimates

of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating
unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the relevant asset (or a cash-generating
unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount. In allocating the
impairment loss, the impairment loss is allocated first to
reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill (if applicable) and
then to the other assets on a pro-rata basis based on the
carrying amount of each asset in the unit. The carrying
amount of an asset is not reduced below the highest of its fair
value less costs of disposal (if measurable), its value in use (if
determinable) and zero. The amount of the impairment loss
that would otherwise have been allocated to the asset is
allocated pro rata to the other assets of the unit. An

impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is increased to
the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that
the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined had no impairment
loss been recognised for the asset (or a cash-generating unit)
in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised

immediately in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 #E—T—AF=A=+—HBI-FE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of
the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as

operating leases.
The Group as lessor

Amounts due from lessees under finance leases are
recognised as receivables at the amount of the Group's net
investment in the leases. Finance lease income is allocated to
accounting periods so as to reflect a constant periodic rate of
return on the Group's net investment outstanding in respect

of the leases.

Rental income from operating leases is recognised on a
straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease. Initial
direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an
operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the
leased asset and such costs are recognised as an expense on

a straight-line basis over the lease term.
The Group as lessee

Assets held under finance leases are recognised as assets of
the Group at their fair value at the inception of the lease or, if
lower, at the present value of the minimum lease payments.
The corresponding liability to the lessor is included in the
consolidated statement of financial position as a finance lease
obligation.

Lease payments are apportioned between finance expenses
and reduction of the lease obligation so as to achieve a
constant rate of interest on the remaining balance of the
liability. Finance expenses are recognised immediately in
profit or loss, unless they are directly attributable to qualifying
assets, in which case they are capitalised in accordance with
the Group's general policy on borrowing costs (see the
accounting policy below). Contingent rentals are recognised

as expenses in the periods in which they are incurred.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Leasing (continued)
The Group as lessee (continued)

Operating lease payments, including the cost acquiring land
held under operating lease, are recognised as an expense on

a straight-line basis over the lease term.

In the event that lease incentives are received to enter into
operating leases, such incentives are recognised as a liability.
The aggregate benefit of incentives is recognised as a

reduction of rental expense on a straight-line basis.
Leasehold land and building

When a lease includes both land and building elements, the
Group assesses the classification of each element as a finance
or an operating lease separately based on the assessment as
to whether substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to
ownership of each element have been transferred to the
Group, unless it is clear that both elements are operating
leases in which case the entire lease is classified as an
operating lease. Specifically, the minimum lease payments
(including any lump-sum upfront payments) are allocated
between the land and the building elements in proportion to
the relative fair values of the leasehold interests in the land
element and building element of the lease at the inception of

the lease.

To the extent the allocation of the lease payments can be
made reliably, interest in leasehold land that is accounted for
as an operating lease is presented as “prepaid lease
payments” in the consolidated statement of financial position
and is amortised over the lease term on a straight-line basis.
When the lease payments cannot be allocated reliably
between the land and building elements, the entire lease is

generally classified as a finance lease.
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 #E—T—AF=A=+—HBI-FE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Investment properties

Investment properties are interests in land and buildings
(including the leasehold interest under an operating lease for
a property which would otherwise meet the definition of an
investment property) held to earn rental income and/or for
capital appreciation, rather than for use in the production or
supply of goods or services or for administrative purposes; or
for sale in the ordinary course of business. Such properties
are measured initially at cost, including transaction costs.
Subsequent to initial recognition, investment properties are
stated at fair value, which reflects market conditions at the
end of the reporting period.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair values of
investment properties are included in the statement of profit

or loss in the year in which they arise.

Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an
investment property are recognised in the statement of profit
or loss in the year of the retirement or disposal.

Non-current assets held for sale and disposal groups

Non-current assets and disposal groups are classified as held

for sale when:

. they are available for immediate sale;
o management is committed to a plan to sell;
o it is unlikely that significant changes to the plan will be

made or that the plan will be withdrawn;

o an active programme to locate a buyer has been
initiated;
o the asset or disposal group is being marketed at a

reasonable price in relation to its fair value; and

° a sale is expected to complete within 12 months from

the date of classification.
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8

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Non-current assets held for sale and disposal groups
(continued)

Non-current assets and disposal groups classified as held for

sale are measured at the lower of:

o their carrying amount immediately prior to being
classified as held for sale in accordance with the Group's

accounting policy; and
° fair value less costs to sell.

Following their classification as held for sale, non-current
assets (including those in a disposal group) are not

depreciated.

The results of operations disposed of during the year are

included in profit or loss up to the date of disposal.
Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the functional
currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are recognised at
the rates of exchanges prevailing on the dates of the
transactions. At the end of the reporting period, monetary
items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at
the rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items carried
at fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies are
retranslated at the rates prevailing on the date when the fair
value was determined. Non-monetary items that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are

not retranslated.
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 #E—T—AF=A=+—HBI-FE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Foreign currencies (continued)

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the retranslation of monetary items, are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.
Exchange differences arising on the retranslation of non-
monetary items carried at fair value are included in profit or
loss for the period except for exchange differences arising on
the retranslation of non-monetary items in respect of which
gains and losses are recognised directly in other
comprehensive income, in which cases, the exchange
differences are also recognised directly in other

comprehensive income.

For the purpose of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group's foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency of
the Group (i.e. HK$) at the rate of exchange prevailing at the
end of the reporting period. Income and expenses items are
translated at the average exchange rates for the year, unless
exchange rates fluctuate significantly during the period, in
which case, the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of
transactions are used. Exchange differences arising, if any, are
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated

in equity under the heading of the translation reserve.

On the disposal of a foreign operation (that is, a disposal of
the Group’s entire interest in a foreign operation, or a
disposal involving loss of control over a subsidiary that
includes a foreign operation, or a partial disposal of an
interest in a joint arrangement or an associate that includes a
foreign operation of which the retained interest becomes a
financial asset), all of the exchange differences accumulated
in equity in respect of that operation attributable to the

owners of the Company are reclassified to profit or loss.
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z —F— A F=A=+—HBIFE

8

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get
ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of
those assets until such time as the assets are substantially
ready for their intended use or sale. Investment income
earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings
pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted
from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which they are incurred.

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to state-managed retirement benefit scheme and
the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme are recognised as an
expense when employees have rendered service entitling
them to the contributions.

Short-term and other long-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are recognised at the
undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be paid as
and when employees rendered the services. All short-term
employee benefits are recognised as an expense unless
another HKFRS requires or permits the inclusion of the benefit
in the cost of an asset.

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees
(such as wages and salaries, annual leave and sick leave) after
deducting any amount already paid.

Liabilities recognised in respect of other long-term employee
benefits are measured at the present value of the estimated
future cash outflows expected to be made by the Group in
respect of services provided by employees up to the
reporting date. Any changes in the liabilities’ carrying
amounts resulting from service cost, interest and
remeasurements are recognised in profit or loss except to the
extent that another HKFRS requires or permits their inclusion
in the cost of an asset.
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Hao Tian Development Group Limited ® £ X% EEEHR A7)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B RRE

For the year ended 31 March 2019 #E—T—AF=A=+—HBI-FE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from ’'loss before taxation’ as
reported in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income because it excludes items of
income and expense that are taxable or deductible in other
years and it further excludes items that are never taxable or
deductible. The Group's liability for current tax is calculated
using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively

enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
consolidated financial statements and the corresponding tax
base used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax
liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for
all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available against which
those deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such
assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary
difference arises from goodwill or from the initial recognition
(other than in a business combination) of other assets and
liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit

nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries except
where the Group is able to control the reversal of the
temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred
tax assets arising from deductible temporary differences
associated with such investments and interests are only
recognised to the extent that it is probable that there will be
sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise the benefits
of the temporary differences and they are expected to reverse

in the foreseeable future.
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z —F— A F=A=+—HBIFE

8

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Taxation (continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of the reporting period and reduced to the extent that it
is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be

available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the
liability is settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rate
(and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively

enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects
the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in
which the Group expects, at the end of the reporting period,
to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and

liabilities.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss,
except when they relate to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case, the
current and deferred tax are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.
Where current tax or deferred tax arises from the initial
accounting for a business combination, the tax effect is

included in the accounting for the business combination.
Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost comprises direct materials and, where applicable,
direct labour costs and those overheads that have been
incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location
and condition. Costs of inventories are calculated using the
weighted average method. Net realisable value represents
the estimated selling price less all estimated costs to

completion and costs necessary to make the sale.
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Hao Tian Development Group Limited ® £ X% EEEHR A7)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

S B IS R R Y R

For the year ended 31 March 2019 #E—T—AF=A=+—HBI-FE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Financial instruments (applicable from 1 April 2018)

(i)

Financial assets

A financial asset (unless it is a trade receivable without a
significant financing component) is initially measured at
fair value plus, for an item not at fair value through profit
or loss (“FVTPL"), transaction costs that are directly
attributable to its acquisition or issue. A trade receivable
without a significant financing component is initially

measured at the transaction price.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets
are recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that
the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset.
Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of
financial assets that require delivery of assets within the
period generally established by regulation or

convention in the market place.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are
considered in their entirely when determining whether
their cash flows are solely payment of principal and

interest.

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends
on the Group's business model for managing the asset
and the cash flow characteristics of the asset. There are
three measurement categories into which the Group

classifies its debt instruments:

Amortised cost: Assets that are held for collection of
contractual cash flows where those cash flows represent
solely payments of principal and interest are measured
at amortised cost. Financial assets at amortised cost are
subsequently measured using the effective interest rate
method. Interest income, foreign exchange gains and
losses and impairment are recognised in profit or loss.
Any gain on derecognition is recognised in profit or

loss.
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8

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Financial instruments (applicable from 1 April 2018)

(continued)

(i)

Financial assets (continued)

Debt instruments (continued)

Fair value through other comprehensive income
("FVOCI"): Assets that are held for collection of
contractual cash flows and for selling the financial
assets, where the assets’ cash flows represent solely
payments of principal and interest, are measured at fair
value through OCI. Debt investments at fair value
through other comprehensive income are subsequently
measured at fair value. Interest income calculated using
the effective interest rate method, foreign exchange
gains and losses and impairment are recognised in
profit or loss. Other net gains and losses are recognised
in other comprehensive income. On derecognition,
gains and losses accumulated in other comprehensive

income are reclassified to profit or loss.

Fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL"): Financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss include financial
assets held for trading, financial assets designated upon
initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss, or
financial assets mandatorily required to be measured at
fair value. Financial assets are classified as held for
trading if they are acquired for the purpose of selling or
repurchasing in the near term. Derivatives, including
separated embedded derivatives, are also classified as
held for trading unless they are designated as effective
hedging instruments. Financial assets with cash flows
that are not solely payments of principal and interest are
classified and measured at fair value through profit or
loss, irrespective of the business model.
Notwithstanding the criteria for debt instruments to be
classified at amortised cost or at fair value through other
comprehensive income, as described above, debt
instruments may be designated at fair value through
profit or loss on initial recognition if doing so eliminates,

or significantly reduces, an accounting mismatch.
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Hao Tian Development Group Limited ® £ X% EEEHR A7)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

S B IS R R Y R

For the year ended 31 March 2019 #E—T—AF=A=+—HBI-FE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Financial instruments (applicable from 1 April 2018)
(continued)

(i)  Financial assets (continued)
Equity instruments

On initial recognition of an equity investment that is not
held for trading, the Group could irrevocably elect to
present subsequent changes in the investment'’s fair
value in other comprehensive income. This election is
made on an investment-by-investment basis. Equity
investments at fair value through other comprehensive
income are measured at fair value. Dividend income are
recognised in profit or loss unless the dividend income
clearly represents a recovery of part of the cost of the
investments. Other net gains and losses are recognised
in other comprehensive income and are not reclassified
to profit or loss. All other equity instruments are
classified as FVTPL, whereby changes in fair value,
dividends and interest income are recognised in profit

or loss.
(i)  Impairment loss on financial assets

The Group recognises loss allowances for expected
credit loss ("ECL") on trade and bills receivables,
contract assets, financial assets measured at amortised
cost and debt investments measured at FVOCI. The
ECLs are measured on either of the following bases: (1)
12 months ECLs: these are the ECLs that result from
possible default events within the 12 months after the
reporting date: and (2) lifetime ECLs: these are ECLs
that result from all possible default events over the
expected life of a financial instrument. The maximum
period considered when estimating ECLs is the
maximum contractual period over which the Group is

exposed to credit risk.
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8

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Financial instruments (applicable from 1 April 2018)

(continued)

(ii)

Impairment loss on financial assets (continued)

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of credit
losses. Credit losses are measured as the difference
between all contractual cash flows that are due to the
Group in accordance with the contract and all the cash
flows that the Group expects to receive. The shortfall is
then discounted at an approximation to the assets’

original effective interest rate.

The Group has elected to measure loss allowances for
trade and bills receivables and contract assets using
HKFRS 9 simplified approach and has calculated ECLs
based on lifetime ECLs. The Group has established a
provision matrix that is based on the Group'’s historical
credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-looking
factors specific to the debtors and the economic

environment.

For other debt financial assets, the ECLs are based on
the 12-months ECLs. However, when there has been a
significant increase in credit risk since origination, the

allowance will be based on the lifetime ECLs.

When determining whether the credit risk of a financial
asset has increased significantly since initial recognition
and when estimating ECL, the Group considers
reasonable and supportable information that is relevant
and available without undue cost or effort. This includes
both quantitative and qualitative information analysis,
based on the Group’s historical experience and
informed credit assessment and including forward-

looking information.

The Group assumes that the credit risk on a financial
asset has increased significantly if it is more than 90 days
past due.

1 50 Annual Report F % 2018/19

3.

TEETBERE)

TR

(4
W=

(ii)

tTE(E=Z2-N\FHNA—-HBEAR)

(435

/

EREEZREER ()

BHGEEBERAEEER X INER
e EEEBNEREASBIRESOER
B & QIR & m 2 B 5 F 58 B U B AR
ERENBEZENERETE - ZEEH
e iR B & R A B A EARE 2 K FRE
H o

AEBDREBEEATAVHHRELNF9
S BT BRI R EERE
NREHEEZEBEREE LRE2H
BHEEERAEEREERE - K&
BERIUREAKBEREEEBHRLR
SHEZBEER - WIZREE AR EAE
MREREERBIEHRAE -

HEiEHemEEBMERERINI2
BEARBEEBERREE - R - HWE
EUARGEERBRIRZE N - BIBAERIA
EHRBEEERREE -

EETEREEZEERR B MHER
ARBRBEE N G RREEEE
B AREZREZABBEBAMNET
BERARIE AN RS I R Al X $5
ZER - WBERBEASEBELR R
EREEFEREZEEREEER X
DT (BIERELEER) -

AEESAMBBOEY SREERE
BIEERREZEM -



Hao Tian Development Group Limited ® £ X R EE AR A7)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 #E—T—AF=A=+—HBI-FE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Financial instruments (applicable from 1 April 2018)

(continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Impairment loss on financial assets (continued)

The Group considers a financial asset to be credit-
impaired when: (1) the borrower is unlikely to pay its
credit obligations to the Group in full, without recourse
by the Group to actions such as realising security (if any
is held); or (2) the financial asset is more than 90 days

past due.
Financial liabilities

The Group classifies its financial liabilities, depending
on the purpose for which the liabilities were incurred.
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are
initially measured at fair value and financial liabilities at
amortised costs are initially measured at fair value, net

of directly attributable costs incurred.

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
include financial liabilities held for trading and financial
liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair

value through profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if
they are acquired for the purpose of sale in the near
term. Derivatives, including separated embedded
derivatives, are also classified as held for trading unless
they are designated as effective hedging instruments.
Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are

recognised in profit or loss.
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z —F— A F=A=+—HBIFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Financial instruments (applicable from 1 April 2018)
(continued)

(iii)  Financial liabilities (continued)

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

(continued)

Where a contract contains one or more embedded
derivatives, the entire hybrid contract may be
designated as a financial liability at fair value through
profit or loss, except where the embedded derivative
does not significantly modify the cash flows or it is clear
that separation of the embedded derivative is
prohibited.

Financial liabilities may be designated upon initial
recognition as at fair value through profit or loss if the
following criteria are met: (i) the designation eliminates
or significantly reduces the inconsistent treatment that
would otherwise arise from measuring the liabilities or
recognising gains or losses on them on a different basis;
(i) the liabilities are part of a group of financial liabilities
which are managed and their performance evaluated on
a fair value basis, in accordance with a documented risk
management strategy; or (iii) the financial liability
contains an embedded derivative that would need to

be separately recorded.

Subsequent to initial recognition, financial liabilities at
fair value through profit or loss are measured at fair
value, with changes in fair value recognised in profit or
loss in the period in which they arise, except for the
gains and losses arising from the Group's own credit risk
which are presented in other comprehensive income
with no subsequent reclassification to the statement of
profit or loss. The net fair value gain or loss recognised
in the statement of profit or loss does not include any

interest charged on these financial liabilities.
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 #E—T—AF=A=+—HBI-FE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Financial instruments (applicable from 1 April 2018)

(continued)

(iii)

(iv)

Financial liabilities (continued)

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities at amortised cost including trade and
other payables, borrowings, certain preference shares
and the debt element of convertible loan note issued by
the Group are subsequently measured at amortised
cost, using the effective interest method. The related

interest expense is recognised in profit or loss.

Gains or losses are recognised in profit or loss when the
liabilities are derecognised as well as through the

amortisation process.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial asset or financial
liability and of allocating interest income or interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest
rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future
cash receipts or payments through the expected life of
the financial asset or liability, or where appropriate, a

shorter period.
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8

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Financial instruments (applicable from 1 April 2018)

(continued)

(v)

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset when the
contractual rights to the future cash flows in relation to
the financial asset expire or when the financial asset has
been transferred and the transfer meets the criteria for

derecognition in accordance with HKFRS 9.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the
obligation specified in the relevant contract is

discharged, cancelled or expires.

Where the Group issues its own equity instruments to a
creditor to settle a financial liability in whole or in part as
a result of renegotiating the terms of that liability, the
equity instruments issued are the consideration paid
and are recognised initially and measured at their fair
value on the date the financial liability or part thereof is
extinguished. If the fair value of the equity instruments
issued cannot be reliably measured, the equity
instruments are measured to reflect the fair value of the
financial liability extinguished. The difference between
the carrying amount of the financial liability or part
thereof extinguished and the consideration paid is

recognised in profit or loss for the year.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 #E—T—AF=A=+—HBI-FE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Financial instruments (applicable before 1 April
2018)

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position when a group
entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the

instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured
at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to
the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial
liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities at
fair value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted
from the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities,
as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs
directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are

recognised immediately in profit or loss.
Financial assets

The Group's financial assets are classified into financial assets
at FVTPL, loans and receivables and available-for-sale
financial assets. The classification depends on the nature and
purpose of the financial assets and is determined at the time
of initial recognition. All regular way purchases or sales of
financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade
date basis. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or
sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within
the time frame established by regulation or convention in the

marketplace.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. FESTHBEGE)

(continued)

Financial instruments (applicable before 1 April
2018) (continued)

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset and of allocating interest
income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
(including all fees and points paid or received that form an
integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs
and other premiums or discounts) through the expected life
of the financial asset, or, where appropriate, a shorter period

to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest basis for
debt instruments, other than those financial assets classified
as FVTPL, of which interest income is included in net gains or

losses.

Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets are classified as at FVTPL when the financial
asset is (i) held for trading; or (ii) it is designated as at FTVPL.
A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

o it has been acquired principally for the purpose of

selling in the near term; or

° it is a part of an identified portfolio of financial
instruments that the Group manages together and has

a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

o it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a

hedging instrument.
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 #E—T—AF=A=+—HBI-FE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Financial instruments (applicable before 1 April
2018) (continued)

Financial assets at FVTPL (continued)

A financial asset other than a financial asset held for trading

may be designated as at FVTPL upon initial recognition if:

o such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a
measurement or recognition inconsistency that would

otherwise arise; or

o the financial asset forms part of a group of financial
assets or financial liabilities or both, which is managed
and its performance is evaluated on a fair value basis, in
accordance with the Group's documented risk
management or investment strategy, and information
about the grouping is provided internally on that basis;

or

° it forms part of a contract containing one or more
embedded derivatives, and HKAS 39 permits the entire
combined contract (asset or liability) to be designated
as at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value, with
changes in fair value arising from remeasurement recognised
directly in profit or loss in the period in which they arise. The
net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss excludes any
dividend or interest earned on the financial assets. Fair value

is determined in the manner described in note 50.
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8

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Financial instruments (applicable before 1 April
2018) (continued)

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an
active market. Subsequent to initial recognition, loans and
receivables (including deposits, trade and interest receivables,
other receivables, loan receivables, finance lease receivables,
consideration receivable, pledged bank deposits, bank
balances, trust and segregated accounts and bank balances
and cash) are carried at amortised cost using the effective
interest method, less any identified impairment losses (see
accounting policy on impairment loss on financial assets

below).
Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that are
either designated as available-for-sale or are not classified as
financial assets at FVTPL, loans and receivables or held-to-
maturity investments. Equity securities held by the Group that
are classified as available-for-sale financial assets are
measured at fair value at the end of each reporting period
except for unlisted equity securities whose fair value cannot
be reliably measured. Changes in the carrying amount of
available-for-sale monetary financial assets relating to interest
income calculated using the effective interest method and
dividends on available-for-sale equity investments are
recognised in profit or loss. Dividends on available-for-sale
equity instruments are recognised in profit or loss when the
Group's right to receive the dividends is established. Other
changes in the carrying amount of available-for-sale financial
assets are recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated under the heading of asset revaluation reserve.
When the investment is disposed of or is determined to be
impaired, the cumulative gain or loss previously accumulated
in the asset revaluation reserve is reclassified to profit or loss
(see the accounting policy in respect of impairment loss on

financial assets below).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

S B IS R R Y R

For the year ended 31 March 2019 #E—T—AF=A=+—HBI-FE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Financial instruments (applicable before 1 April
2018) (continued)

Available-for-sale financial assets (continued)

For available-for-sale equity investments that do not have a
quoted market price in an active market and whose fair value
cannot be reliably measured (i.e. unlisted equity securities)
are measured at cost less any identified impairment losses at
the end of the reporting period (see accounting policy on

impairment loss on financial assets below).
Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets, other than those at FVTPL, are assessed for
indicators of impairment at the end of the reporting period.
Financial assets are considered to be impaired where there is
objective evidence that, as a result of one or more events that
occurred after the initial recognition of the financial assets,
the estimated future cash flows of the financial assets have

been affected.

For an available-for sale equity investment, a significant or
prolonged decline in the fair value of that investment below

its cost is considered to be objective evidence of impairment.

For all other financial assets, objective evidence of impairment

could include:

o significant financial difficulty of the issuer or

counterparty; or

o breach of contract, such as default or delinquency in

interest or principal payments;

o it becoming probable that the borrower will enter

bankruptcy or financial re-organisation; or

° disappearance of an active market for that financial

asset because of financial difficulties.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Financial instruments (applicable before 1 April
2018) (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

For certain categories of financial asset, such as trade
receivables, assets that are assessed not to be impaired
individually are, in addition, assessed for impairment on a
collective basis. Objective evidence of impairment for a
portfolio of receivables could include the Group's past
experience of collecting payments, an increase in the number
of delayed payments in the portfolio past the average credit
period of 90 to 180 days, observable changes in national or
local economic conditions that correlate with default on

receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount of
the impairment loss recognised is the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the
estimated future cash flows discounted at the financial asset’s

original effective interest rate.

For financial assets carried at cost, including those available-
for-sale equity investments carried at cost, the amount of the
impairment loss is measured as the difference between the
asset's carrying amount and the present value of the
estimated future cash flows discounted at the current market
rate of return for a similar financial asset. Such impairment

loss will not be reversed in subsequent periods.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the
impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the
exception of trade receivables, where the carrying amount is
reduced through the use of an allowance account. Changes in
the carrying amount of the allowance account are recognised
in profit or loss. When a debtor is considered uncollectible, it
is written off against the allowance account. Subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited to

profit or loss.

1 60 Annual Report F % 2018/19

TEETBERE)

TRIAR(R=FT-NFHA—-BHAEA)

/2=
(25 )
\=/

EHEERE (F)

BETEREER (MEEERF)ME - HF
fmARRERNREZEESTTREREEETR
B - BRRIBEANEBRER RN 21
AEBERBERFES  HEATBERER
BTHEEHEI0Z 180 H AR EIL AN - LA K& H
& s e TR 7 A A A O 2 B i3 7 AR B AR L B AT

B -

FAIRB AT IR S RMEET = © WA
EBERSBNEZEENREELRRZERE
EREERNERRNGARRRSRERE
I ZERE -

RIEK A ENEREE(BRZEAHLE
ARSI R AR E) M E - BEBRERE
EREEEAUSREERRITTSEHRKEE
ROt ARBEREREEANZETE - Z
BEREBRETERTRFEED -

HAEEREEMS  eREEZRAERRE
REBBRERRD - ERBERRERIN - HARE
BERERBRERMADS - BRERNREE
BENBEAER o M EUKRRBR AEEK
B - BB A RN - 2R ER U@ A B E
R - AIFFAREA -



Hao Tian Development Group Limited ® £ X% EEEHR A7)
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 #E—T—AF=A=+—HBI-FE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Financial instruments (applicable before 1 April
2018) (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

When an available-for-sale financial asset (other than those
carried at cost less accumulated impairment) is considered to
be impaired, cumulative gains or losses previously recognised
in other comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or

loss in the period.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a
subsequent period, the amount of impairment loss decreases
and the decrease can be related objectively to an event
occurring after the impairment loss was recognised, the
previously recognised impairment loss is reversed through
profit or loss to the extent that the carrying amount of the
asset at the date the impairment is reversed does not exceed
what the amortised cost would have been had the impairment

not been recognised.

Impairment losses on available-for-sale equity investments
previously recognised in profit or loss are not reversed
through profit or loss. Any increase in fair value subsequent to
impairment loss is recognised directly in other comprehensive
income and accumulated under the heading of asset

revaluation reserve.
Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by a group
entity are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity
instruments in accordance with the substance of the
contractual arrangements and the definitions of a financial

liability and an equity instrument.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Financial instruments (applicable before 1 April
2018) (continued)

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of the Group after deducting all of its
liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Company are

recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.
Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash
payments (including all fees and points paid or received that
form an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction
costs and other premiums or discounts) through the expected
life of the financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter

period, to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis,
other than those financial liabilities classified as at FVTPL, for

which the interest expense is included in net gains or losses.
Financial guarantee contracts

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires the
issuer to make specified payments to reimburse the holder
for a loss it incurs because a specified debtor fails to make
payment when due in accordance with the terms of a debt

instrument.
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 #E—T—AF=A=+—HBI-FE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Financial instruments (applicable before 1 April
2018) (continued)

Financial guarantee contracts (continued)

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Group are initially
measured at their fair values and, if not designated as at

FVTPL, are subsequently measured at the higher of:

(i) the amount of obligation under the contract, as
determined in accordance with HKAS 37 Provisions,

Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets; and

(i) the amount initially recognised less, where appropriate,
cumulative amortisation recognised over the guarantee

period.
Financial liabilities at FVTPL

Financial liabilities are classified as at FVTPL when the
financial liability is (i) held for trading; or (ii) it is designated as
at FTVPL.

A financial liability is classified as held for trading if:

o it has been acquired principally for the purpose of

repurchasing it in the near term; or

o on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of
identified financial instruments that the Group manages
together and has a recent actual pattern of short-term

profit-making; or

o it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as

hedging instrument.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Financial instruments (applicable before 1 April
2018) (continued)

Financial liabilities at FVTPL (continued)

A financial liability other than a financial liability held for
trading(or contingent consideration that may be paid by an
acquirer as part of a business combination) may be
designated as at FVTPL upon initial recognition if:

° such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a
measurement or recognition inconsistency that would

otherwise arise; or

o the financial liability forms part of a group of financial
assets or financial liabilities or both, which is managed
and its performance is evaluated on a fair value basis, in
accordance with the Group's documented risk
management or investment strategy, and information
about the grouping is provided internally on that basis;

or

° it forms part of a contract containing one or more
embedded derivatives, and HKAS 39 permits the entire
combined contract (asset or liability) to be designated
as at FVTPL.

Financial liabilities at FVTPL are measured at fair value, with
changes in fair value arising from remeasurement recognised
directly in profit or loss in the period in which they arise. The
net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss includes any
interest paid on the financial liabilities. Fair value is

determined in the manner described in note 50.
Financial liabilities at amortized cost

Financial liabilities including trade payables, other payables
and accruals, borrowings, secured notes and other liability are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective

interest method.
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Hao Tian Development Group Limited ® £ X% EEEHR A7)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

S B IS R R Y R

For the year ended 31 March 2019 #E—T—AF=A=+—HBI-FE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Financial instruments (applicable before 1 April
2018) (continued)

Warrants

Warrants issued by the Company that will be settled by a
fixed amount of cash for a fixed number of the Company’s
own equity instruments are equity instruments. The net
proceeds received from the issue of warrants are recognised
in equity (warrant reserve). The warrant reserve will be
transferred to share capital and share premium accounts
upon the exercise of the warrants. When the warrants are still
not exercised at the expiry date, the amount previously
recognised in the warrant reserve will be transferred to

accumulated profits (losses).
Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value at the date
when derivative contracts are entered into and are
subsequently remeasured to their fair value at the end of the
reporting period. The resulting gain or loss is recognised in

profit or loss immediately.
Call option on subscription of the shares of the Company

Call options on subscription of the shares of the Company
written to a non-controlling shareholder of a subsidiary, which
will be settled other than by exchange of fixed amount of
cash for a fixed number of shares in a subsidiary is treated as
derivative and is recognised at fair value upon initial
recognition. Any changes in fair value in subsequent reporting

dates are recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z —F— A F=A=+—HBIFE

8

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Financial instruments (applicable before 1 April
2018) (continued)

Obligation arising from put options on shares of a
subsidiary written to a non-controlling shareholder

The gross financial liability arising from the put option is
recognised when contractual obligation to repurchase the
shares of a subsidiary is established even if the obligation is
conditional on the counterparty exercising a right to sell back
the shares to the Group. The liability for the share redemption
amount is initially recognised and measured at present value
of the estimated repurchase price with the corresponding
debit to the non-controlling interests. In subsequent years,
the remeasurement of the present value of the estimated
gross obligation under the written put option to the non-

controlling shareholder is recognised in profit or loss.
Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or
when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the

risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity.

On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the consideration
received and receivable and the cumulative gain or loss that
had been recognised in other comprehensive income and

accumulated in equity is recognised in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligations
specified in the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled or
expired. The difference between the carrying amount of the
financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid

and payable is recognised in profit or loss.

166 Annual Report F#f 2018/19

TEETBERE)

TRIAR(R=FT-NFHA—-BHAEA)

(43
(45 )

HERB R ARG ZZGHETHERRRE
EZEH

AEHRELA L SR BRENHELEDNE
RABID 2 B HEERER - AMEAREREA
FRBEFITERNAAREELD KM A
1R - RIPBESBEITS KA BN RAETE
BB REERRTE - BEKRERIG AFE
PetEss - RERFE - HERG T IFER
BIRZ it REB 2 R EZ BT ENIRRHE

e

BUETERR

ARBEREERS RS0 DEFIEH -
R RS EBAEARAERE ROBALH
ARRERNBES —HRE  BERRL R
A7 -

RECERR —BeREER EEREERD
Wk ERARBARE R R 2 RS R R
AR R RBENENZENERE - IR
B NER o

EMHBES QM AR EERE - EHIER
- @B ESIUERER - BEUSERHO 2R
BENKREEEENRENRERNEZENE
AR ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

S B IS R R Y R

For the year ended 31 March 2019 #E—T—AF=A=+—HBI-FE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions
Share options granted to employees

The fair value determined at the grant date of the equity-
settled share-based payments is expensed on a straight-line
basis over the vesting period, based on the Group's estimate
of equity instruments that will eventually vest, with a

corresponding increase in equity (share option reserve).

At the end of each reporting period, the Group revises its
estimate of the number of equity instruments expected to
vest. The impact of the revision of the original estimates, if
any, is recognised in profit or loss such that the cumulative
expense reflects the revised estimate, with a corresponding

adjustment to share option reserve.

When share options are exercised, the amount previously
recognised in share option reserve will be transferred to share
premium. When the share options are forfeited after the
vesting date or are still not exercised at the expiry date, the
amount previously recognised in share option reserve will be

transferred to accumulated profits (losses).
Share award scheme and emolument shares

The fair value determined at the grant date of the equity-
settled share-based payments is expensed on a straight-line
basis over the vesting period, based on the Group's estimate
of equity instruments that will eventually vest, with a

corresponding increase in equity.

At the end of each reporting period, the Group revises its
estimate of the number of equity instruments expected to
vest. The impact of the revision of the original estimates, if
any, is recognised in profit or loss such that the cumulative

expense reflects the revised estimate.
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z —F— A F=A=+—HBIFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Government grant

Government grants are recognised in the statement of
financial position initially when there is reasonable assurance
that they will be received and that the Group will comply with
the conditions attaching to them. Grants that compensate the
Group for expenses incurred are deducted in reporting the
related expense or recognised as income in profit or loss on a
systematic basis in the same periods in which the expenses
are incurred. Grants that compensate the Group for the cost
of an asset are deducted the grant in calculating the carrying
amount of the asset that is recognised in profit or loss over
the life of a depreciable asset as a reduced depreciation
expense. An unconditional government grant is recognised in
profit or loss as other revenue when the grant becomes

receivable.
Segment reporting

The Group identifies operating segments and prepares
segment information based on the regular internal financial
information reported to the executive directors for their
decisions about resources allocation to the Group's business
components and for their review of the performance of those
components. The business components in the internal
financial information reported to the executive directors are

determined following the Group's major product lines.

For the purposes of assessing segment performance and
allocating resources between segments, the directors assess
segment profit or loss by gross profit or loss as measured in
HKFRS financial statements.

For the purpose of presenting geographical location of the
Group's revenue from external customers and the Group's
non-current assets, country of domicile is determined by
reference to the country where the majority of the Company'’s

subsidiaries operate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

S B IS R R Y R

For the year ended 31 March 2019 #E—T—AF=A=+—HBI-FE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
obligation as a result of a past event, and it is probable that
the Group will be required to settle that obligation and a
reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the
obligation. Provisions are measured at the best estimate of
the consideration required to settle the present obligation at
the end of the reporting period, taking into account the risks
and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. Where a
provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle
the present obligation, its carrying amount is the present
value of those cash flows (where the effect of the time value

of money is material).
Related parties

For the purposes of the Financial Information, a party is

considered to be related to the Group if:

(@) A person or a close member of that person’s family is
related to the Group if that person:

() has control or joint control over the Group;
(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(i) is a member of key management personnel of the

Group or the Company's parent.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Related parties (continued)

(b)

An entity is related to the Group if any of the following

conditions apply:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(vii)

(viii)

The entity and the Group are members of the
same group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the

others).

One entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the other entity is a

member).

Both entities are joint ventures of the same third

party.

One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and

the other entity is an associate of the third entity.

The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of the employees of the Group or an
entity related to the Group.

The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a

person identified in (a).

A person identified in (a)()) has significant influence
over the entity or is a member of key management
personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the

entity).

The entity, or any member of a group of which it is
a part, provides key management personnel

services to the Group or to the Company’s parent.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 #E—T—AF=A=+—HBI-FE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Related parties (continued)

Close members of the family of a person are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be influenced

by, that person in their dealings with the entity and include:
(i) that person’s children and spouse or domestic partner;

(i) children of that person’s spouse or domestic partner;

and

(i) dependents of that person or that person’s spouse or

domestic partner.
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group's accounting policies, which
are described in note 3, the directors of the Company are
required to make judgments, estimates and assumptions
about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are
not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and
associated assumptions are based on historical experience
and other factors that are considered relevant. Actual results

may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an on-going basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the
revision affects only that period, or in the period of the
revision and future periods if the revision affects both current

and future periods.

The key assumptions concerning the future, and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting
period, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities

within the next financial year, are discussed below.
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4.

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(continued)

Impairment assessment of loan receivables

The Group assesses provision for impairment of loan
receivables based on an estimate of the recoverability of loan
receivables. Provisions are applied to loans receivables on an
individual basis where events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the balances may not be collectible. The
identification of impairment of loan receivables under HKFRS
9 requires the use of estimates and judgement. Where the
expectation is different from the original estimate, such
difference will impact the carrying value of loan receivables
and provision for impairment losses in the period in which
such estimate has been changed. The Group uses judgement
in making assumptions and selecting the inputs to its ECL
calculation, based on the Group's past history, possibility of
default, existing market conditions as well as forward looking
estimates at the end of each reporting period. Details of loan
receivables and the impairment allowances are disclosed in
note 27.

Carrying value of financial instruments not quoted in
an active market

As at 31 March 2019, the carrying value of the Group's
financial assets at FVTOCI and financial liabilities at FVTPL
(2018: financial liabilities at FVTPL) were determined by
valuation technique as these financial instruments do not
have a quoted market price. The directors of the Company
use their judgments in selecting an appropriate valuation
technique. Valuation techniques commonly used by market
practitioners are applied. In determining the carrying value of
these instruments, assumptions are made based on currently
available market data adjusted for specific features of these

instruments (see note 20 for details).
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 #E—T—AF=A=+—HBI-FE

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY 4.

(continued)
Impairment assessment on goodwiill

In impairment testing, the Group determines the recoverable
amount of the cash generating unit to which the assets
belong. Determining whether impairment needs to be
provided requires an estimation of future cash flows expected
to arise from the cash generating units. The value in use
calculation requires the Group to estimate the future cash
flows expected to arise from the cash generating unit and a
suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present value.
Where the actual future cash flows are less than expected, or
a change in facts and circumstances which results in
downward revision of future cash flows, a material impairment
loss may arise. Details of the recoverable amount calculation

for cash generating units are set out in note 21.
Estimated impairment loss of intangible assets

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amount of the intangible assets to determine
whether there is any indication that they have suffered an
impairment loss respectively. If any such indication exists, the
recoverable amount of the intangible assets are estimated in

order to determine the extent of the impairment loss, if any.

Determining whether the intangible assets are impaired
require an estimation of the recoverable amount of the
respective cash-generating unit (“CGU") to which the
intangible assets have been allocated. Recoverable amount
of the respective CGU is determined based on higher of value
in use calculation and fair value less cost to sell. The key
assumptions for the value in use calculations are those
regarding discount rates, growth rates and expected changes
to service fee and rental income and direct costs. Where the
actual cash flows are less than expected, a material

impairment loss may arise.
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5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 5. WARSTHER
2019 2018
=E-NF —E—)N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHET FAT
Revenue from contracts with customers EFEHZHA
Commission income generated from BRm - HEREHFL L HRR
commodities, futures and securities ZIREWA
brokerage 15,540 11,524
Revenue generated from retailing of men’'s B 3% & TR 2 WA
and women's apparels 1,835 34,618
Other service income generated from B S SR SR S TS
construction machinery and sales of BRER 2 Hoh AR s UL A
construction materials business 9,540 11,093
Trading income generated from construction B E MM MLV HE 275
machinery and sales of construction AL B S (it a)
materials business (Note a) 54,760 47,999
81,675 105,234
Revenue from other sources B RIRZ WA
Rental income generated from leasing of BHREREYERN A KA
investment property 66,270 -
Rental income generated from construction B ZEEBHRELZ AU A (HisEb)
machinery (Note b) 98,109 106,777
Interest income generated from B RE BRELZ A 2 UG A
money lending 73,459 118,006
319,513 330,017
Notes: EE
(a) Amount represents revenue generated from sales of machinery and (a) ZeRIERHERMRERTHES 2 W -

spare parts.

(b)  Amount represents revenue generated from leasing and sub- b) ZEeBEAREREEMMESZREREMR
leasing of machinery and other service income. A -
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 #E—T—AF=A=+—HBI-FE

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 5.
(continued)

WARDEBER (B)

Revenue from contracts with customers BEESHZBA

(i) Disaggregated revenue information (i)

DERAEH

For the year ended 31 March 2019 BE—F-—NF=H=1+—HIFE

Construction
Commodities, machinery  Retailing of
futuresand  and sales of men's and
securities  construction women's
Segments brokerage materials apparels Total
B HER  BEEER SER
28 RHLE  BENRHE TREE @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR T TR T
Type of goods or services EnskBER
Sale of machinery and spare parts HERBRBRTH - 54,760 - 54,760
Transportation service ERR% - 1,549 - 1,549
Other service income HiBREMA - 7,991 - 7,991
Dealing and broking services on securities A E E RIS RiE 15,540 - - 15,540
Men's and women's apparels BERLETE - - 1,835 1,835
15,540 64,300 1,835 81,675
Geographical markets hEG
Hong Kong =8 15,540 63,659 - 79,199
Macau bl - 641 - 641
PRC # - - 1,835 1,835
15,540 64,300 1,835 81,675
Timing of revenue recognition WABRRE
At a point in time RE—FE% 15,540 64,300 1,835 81,675

RERNERFASHARZRA

Revenue recognised that was included in contract
liabilities at the beginning of the reporting period:

2019
—E-NEF
HK$'000
FExT

Sale of machinery and spare parts S MO R BT 1,951
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z —F— A F=A=+—HBIFE

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION
(continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)

(ii)

Performance obligations

Information about the Group’s performance obligations
is summarised below:

Sale of machinery and spare parts

Customers obtain control of the machinery and spare
parts when the goods are delivered to and have been
accepted. Revenue is thus recognised at a point in time
basis upon when the customers accepted the machinery
and spare parts. There is generally only one
performance obligation.

Transportation service income

Transportation services are generally provided within
one day. Revenue of transportation service is
recognised at a point in time basis when the customer
obtains control of the services. There is generally only
one performance obligation.

Other service income

Other service income which generated from repair and
maintenance services which are generally provided
within one day. Revenue of other service income is
recognised at a point in time basis when the customer
obtains control of the services. There is generally only
one performance obligation.

Commission income generated from commodities,
futures and securities brokerage

The performance obligation is satisfied at a point in
time when the execution of purchase, sales or other
transactions or services by the Group on behalf of its
clients at an agreed rate.

Men’s and women'’s apparels

Customers obtain control of the men’s and women's
apparels when the goods are delivered to and have
been accepted. Revenue is thus recognised at a point in
time basis upon when the customers accepted the
men’s and women'’s apparels. There is generally only
one performance obligation.
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Hao Tian Development Group Limited ® 2 X% EE@AR A7)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

S B IS R R Y R

For the year ended 31 March 2019 #E—T—AF=A=+—HBI-FE

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 5.
(continued)

Summary of revenue and gross proceeds from the
sales of financial assets at fair value through profit

WARDEBER (B)

WARRBHEUR P EFEEES T
ABRzEHEECMERBREIHRE

or loss
2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-NF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Revenue WA 319,513 330,017
Gross proceed from the sale of financial EHENATEE BEE L
assets at fair value through profit or loss FABRZEREEZ
PSRRI A5 446,151 574,003
Total ast 765,664 904,020

The Group is currently organised into the following operating

divisions and mainly carried out by the following subsidiaries:

a.  Money lending division carried out by Hao Tian Finance
Company Limited ("Hao Tian Finance”), Hao Tian
Credit Company Limited, Hao Tian International Finance
Company Limited and KB Leasing Limited

b.  Securities investment division carried out by Hao Tian
Management (Hong Kong) Limited (“Hao Tian
Management”), Fortune Jumbo Limited and Esteem
Ocean Limited

c. Commodities, futures and securities brokerage division
carried out by Hao Tian International Bullion Limited,
Hao Tian International Futures Limited, Hao Tian Asset
Management Limited, Hao Tian International Wealth
Management Limited and Hao Tian International
Securities Limited ("Hao Tian Securities”)

d.  Construction machinery and sales of construction
materials division carried out by Crawler Krane Business

Limited and its subsidiaries

$%@H IBID RATRESTILETRHAT

HEA

Pt
WEH AR XVBKERLQF (R XE
¥ - 2EREEBRAF - R REERE
BERAT RE LA BEERARLE

ELHRER BEXEE(FR)ARA
FA(RXEE]) SHARIAREF
BRARKE

B HEREFZLIE - ARKE
BReEERAF  RAEBRBHEARA
G %%%ﬁ%%fiﬁﬁﬁ A~ EXER
MEEEAERARMERABERESEGR
RA([RREH ] EZ

BEEBRBREEMHRIEE I B
Crawler Krane Business Limited & £ Ff}
BArgE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M HRR M

For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z —F— A F=A=+—HBIFE

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION
(continued)

Summary of revenue and gross proceeds from the
sales of financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss (continued)

e. Retailing of men’s and women'’s apparels division
carried out by Fujian Nuogi Co. Ltd., (“Fujian Nuoqi”)

and its subsidiaries

f. Leasing of investment property carried out by 55 Mark
Lane S AR.L.

During the year, the trading of futures segment has been

ceased.

These operating divisions are the basis of internal reports
about components of the Group that are regularly reviewed
by the board of directors of the Company, being the chief
operating decision maker, in order to allocate resources to

segments and to assess their performance.
No segment assets and liabilities are presented as the chief

operating decision maker does not regularly review segment

assets and liabilities.
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Hao Tian Development Group Limited ® 2 X% EE@AR A7)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

(continued)

Segment revenue and results

The following is an analysis of the Group's revenue and results

by operating and reportable segment.

For the year ended 31 March 2019

S B IS R R Y R

For the year ended 31 March 2019 #E—T—AF=A=+—HBI-FE

WARDEBER (B)

P eI E S

TXRAKEIREE AT 2H/D EE D 2 Wk
KB

BE-_E-NEF=A=1+—HIFE

Provision of
Construction
machinery  Retailing of
and sales of men's and
Money Securities construction women's Property
lending  investment materials apparels leasing  Consolidated
BEERE

REZ BER
HE BERE NRHEE REBE NERE ]
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR TET TR THET TR

Gross proceeds from sale of RELENATFEHERE
financial assets at fair value Bt \BRoREAE

through profit or loss LR TERE = 446,151 o = = = 446,151
Segment revenue DElhEE 73,459 - 162,409 1,835 66,270 319,513
Segment results PHEE 64,439 (415,558) (21,628) (10,049) (43,426) 107,963 (318,259)
Other income HiWA 15,357
Other gains and losses Ao lis R EE 103,633
Central administration costs HRATER (145,490)
Share of profit of associates 7 E {EBE R AR 159
Share of profit of joint ventures ~ HMEAELERT 5453
Finance costs gﬂl BRA (141,430)
Loss before taxation BHAIEE (480,577)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B IS R R MR

For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z —F— A F=A=+—HBIFE

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION
(continued)

Segment revenue and results (continued)

For the year ended 31 March 2018

5.

WA RS EBER (F)

7 JB U a B SR AR (48

BE-_E-N\F=A=1+—HIFE

Construction

Commodities, machinery  Retailing of

futuresand  and sales of men's and

Money Securities Trading of securities  construction women's
lending investment futures brokerage materials apparels  Consolidated

e FREHA,

HER s BER
HE EHRE HEER EHEL MEEE TETE Ee
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T TiBr TBT T B TBr THx

Gross proceeds fromsaleof ~ REHEREEERE

investments held for trading ZFTEERE - 574,003 = = = = 574,003
Segment revenue Pl 118,006 - - 11,524 165,869 34,618 330,017
Segment results PEEE 81,984 (145,149) (3,793) (12,168) (200,701) (158,516) (438,343)
Other income Hil A 6,626
Other gains and losses HiphaRER 81,353
Central administration costs hRTHER (107,663)
Share of result of an associate M —HEEA DA EE (769)
Finance costs BER K (79,595)
Loss before taxation BRAIER (538,391)

All of the segment revenue reported for both years were from

external customers.
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Hao Tian Development Group Limited ® 2 X% EE@AR A7)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

S B IS R R Y R

For the year ended 31 March 2019 #E—T—AF=A=+—HBI-FE

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 5. KWARZBERGE)
(continued)
Other segment information Hth 55 ZRE ¥
Construction
Commodities, ~ machinery  Retailing of
futuresand ~ and salesof ~ men’s and
Money  Securities securities  construction women's Property Segment
lending investment brokerage materials apparels leasing total  Unallocated  Consolidated
BERH
B B8 REEMH F%R
HE BERE  REBEL #HE THEE xRS A AR &4
HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T#n TEn TEn TEn TER TEn TER TEn TEn
31 March 2019 5%
=A=1-A
Amounts reqularly providedto  EERMEFTELE
the chief operating decision ~ REEERGE
maker but notincludedinthe ~ HHERE
measure of segment profitor ~ AFitAZ4%:
[oss:
Interest income FIEMA - - - - - - - 1,883 1,883
Share of profit of associates ~ A{EE = N &R - - - - - - - 159 159
Share of profit of joint ventures - A{EA & & - - - - - - - 5453 5453
Gain on disposal of property,  HEYE - BER
plant and equipment RGNS - - - - - - - 357 357
Impairment loss on property,  ¥1% * B k&
plant and equipment HEER - - - - 30,373 - 30,373 307 30,680
Depreciation & - - - 34,886 5,386 - 40,272 12,554 52,826
Finance costs BERA 132 1412 (] 4,429 - 35,437 54,716 86,714 141,430
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B IS R R MR

For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z —F— A F=A=+—HBIFE

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 5. RARZBER(E)
(continued)
Other segment information (continued) Hitt o MER (&)
Construction
Commodities, ~ machinery  Retailing of
futresand ~ andsalesof ~ men'sand
Money Secuiies  Trading of securities  construction wonen's Segment
lending  investment futures brokerage materials apparels total  Unallocated ~ Consolidated
BEHH
Am BE  REEmH EE
HE EriE HEER  REsER #HE REZE pr:te) AR )
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Th Thr i Thr ThT Thr ThT Thr ThL
For the year ended H2 F-) 1%
31 March 2018 ZAZT-AILEE
Amounts reqularly providedto  EERMEFTELE
the chief operating decision ~ REZEN:TE
maker but not included g e
inthe measure of segment ~ FFHAZELE:
profit or loss:
Interest income HEMA - - - - - - - 1,249 1,249
Share of loss of anassociate A —EHERAFE - - - - - - - 769 769
Gain on disposal of property,  HEYE - BER
plant and equipment Bl - - - - 466 2% 492 i 519
Impairment loss on property,  ¥1% * B k&G
plant and equipment AR - - - - 9,100 - 9,100 - 9,100
Depreciation g - - - - 50320 8,121 58,447 5,088 63535
Allowance for bad and doubtful REE&fE
debs - - - - Al - 1 - YAl
Reversal of allowance forbad ~ BEIRSERALR
and doubtful debts = = = = 9,795 = 9,79 = 979
Finance costs BEMA 574 - - 2 7630 5235 18,608 60987 79,595
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Hao Tian Development Group Limited ® 2 X% EE@AR A7)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S B IS R R Y R

For the year ended 31 March 2019 #E—T—AF=A=+—HBI-FE

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 5. WARSHER(E)
(continued)

Geographical information HEER

The information about the Group's revenue by location of AEBIZABEEEE 2 CEMEE D 2 WA
operations of the relevant group’s entities and the Group's RASEREEMREMRE S ERBEEL
non-current assets by geographical area in which the assets BREFBOT

physically are located is detailed below:

Revenue Non-current assets (note)
WA IERENE 2 (PFIEE)
2019 2018 2019 2018

—E-hEF —FT)N\F ZE-hF —FTN\F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’'000 HK$'000
FET TAT FTERT TET

Hong Kong BE 248,197 295,399 803,394 847,847
Macau R 3,211 - - -
The PRC A 1,835 34,618 178,746 270,418
United Kingdom HEH 66,270 - 1,381,320 -
319,513 330,017 2,363,460 1,118,265
Note: Non-current assets excluded available-for-sale investments, M : SERBEETEREAHRLEERE  HENARXTE
financial assets designated at fair value through other SFEREEZHAREMEMKREZERERE A
comprehensive income, financial assets at fair value through profit :HEquiE.H“ﬂSqu)\TE S EREE - ngﬁl
or loss, loan receivables, finance lease receivables, pledged bank - BEMAERWHE BEBRITER
deposits and deferred tax assets. Lﬁﬂlﬁﬁﬁ
Information about major customers BREERFZEH
No customer of the Group has individually contributed 10% FEN - NG E AT ME BIE A SR B A U A
or more of the Group's total revenue during the year (2018: 10% KA E2BF (ZE—/\F : &) AW
Nil) and no information about major customers is presented E2IEMANRFEFEEFZER
accordingly.
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Hao Tian Development Group Limited ® 2 KR EEFR QA

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M HRR M

For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z —F— A F=A=+—HBIFE

6. OTHER INCOME 6. HA
2019 2018
—F-hnEFE —ZT)N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FH&T
Interest earned on bank deposits IRITIFRFTBRELZ FI B 1,883 1,249
Interest earned on financial assets at REBHER A RN B E
amortised cost Fr R EX 2 H1) 8, 12,254 =
Government subsidies* XA Fl B 4,402 =
Sundry income HIE UL A 2,531 4,983
Compensation received from a customer Bl —Z B FE(E 5,229 -
Dividend income from financial asset at REAAFEF=E EEFEEA
FVTOCI/available-for-sale investments HtzEhm s emEE,~
A ERE 2 REMA 1,220 780
27,519 7,012
* There were no unfulfilled conditions and other contingencies * B HERR 2 U #78 BA b 4 Y 75 R 2 AR A6k e Eo At 3k
attaching to government subsidies that had been recognised. AREIE -
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OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES

Hao Tian Development Group Limited ® £ X% EEEHR A7)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

S B IS R R Y R

For the year ended 31 March 2019 #E—T—AF=A=+—HBI-FE

7. HitWEREE

2019 2018
—E-NF —T)N\F
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FHET FAT
Fair value loss on financial assets at AT EEBEES# b ABa
FVTPL/investments held for trading HERBE, B EEEIRE
AT EEE (399,903) (148,942)
Fair value gain on investment property HEMEN N T ER S 38,742 —
Fair value gain on financial liabilities AP EFERERE T AER
at FVTPL Nem e ENATEKS 37,990 77,679
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HE B A Al /AU Es 57,293 -
Gain on disposal of property, HEME - W MRENER
plant and equipment 357 519
Impairment loss on property, M - BEREENRERSE
plant and equipment (30,680) (9,100)
Net foreign exchange gain M 3 Wb 2 5 1,707 6114
Impairment loss on available-for-sale A ERERRERE
investments - (1,748
Impairment loss on interest in an associate ¥ —REE&A AR 2 % 2 MEER (9,009) -
Loss on early redemption of secured notes 12 F &[0 5 IR =K 2 Ei8 - (700)
Impairment loss on loan and FEURE X & F) B R R E 518
interest receivables = (511
Allowance for bad and doubtful debts RIZIRHE = (921)
Reversal of allowance for bad and 0] RIZ AR B4 R U EAR R A 2
doubtful debts and receipt of
related interest - 12,961
Refund of costs incurred for a litigation SREARK AR 7R - 2,358
Impairment loss on inventories FERERERER - (5,582)
Impairment loss on goodwill B REREE = (316,250)
(303,503) (384,123)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z —F— A F=A=+—HBIFE

8. FINANCE COSTS 8. ®MERX
2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Interest expense on borrowings EEZHN B 141,113 71,339
Interest expense on other liability HEmaE s MaRz = 7,930
Interest expense of obligations under BB EAE 2 M B
finance leases 317 326
141,430 79,595
9. TAXATION CREDIT 9. BiEESR
2019 2018
ZB-hE ZZ)N\F
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FTHET T
Current tax: BUEATIA
Hong Kong B 7,046 15,614
Overseas RSN 5,040 =
Underprovision (overprovision) RIBEFERED T GRREEE)
in prior years 214 (1,416)
12,300 14,198
Deferred tax (note 35) IRIERIA (M % 35) (76,241) (26,819)
Income tax credit PSR (63,941) (12,621)
Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at the rate of 8.25% on BLALEHREER B IS 2 54 2,000,000 8 7T & -
the estimated assessable profit up to HK$2,000,000 and 16.5% EAFEHAMEFEIEREL.25%E -
on any part of estimated assessable profit over HK$2,000,000 AL AT REER TR A E(AT 2B 43 8 38 2,000,000 8 7T
for both years. MmE @ Bk 16.5%= & o
Taxation arising in other jurisdictions are calculated at the Hih RDEERPTE L 2 IRV IR B RDER R
rates prevailing in the relevant jurisdictions. ZIRITHEGHE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

S B IS R R Y R

For the year ended 31 March 2019 #E—T—AF=A=+—HBI-FE

TAXATION CREDIT (continued)

The taxation credit for the year can be reconciled to the loss
before taxation per the consolidated statement of profit or

loss and other comprehensive income as follows:

9.

BiRER (8)

FARBEERRGABREREMEEKERA
ZBRBRAIEEEERANT

2019 2018
—E-hEF  —FTN\F
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Loss before taxation M F Al E 18 (480,577) (538,391)
Tax at Hong Kong Profits Tax rate of 16.5% 12 & B FEHE16.5% 18 2 Fi1E (79,295) (88,835)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible PAMBRZ 2 B2
for tax purposes 49,821 77,188
Tax effect of income not taxable BERBRBA Z IS L
for tax purposes (49,433) (17,675)
Underprovision/(overprovision) in respect  BEFEEREEN T, GREEREE)
of prior years 214 (1,416)
Tax effect of estimated tax losses not RIER G HEEB RIS E
recognised 14,098 17,706
Tax effect of different jurisdictions TRIBER Z G E 654 180
Others EHfth = 231
Taxation credit for the year FRFIBEE R (63,941) (12,621)

As at 31 March 2019, the Group has unused tax losses of
HK$635,672,000 (2018: HK$550,230,000) available for offset
against future profits. A deferred tax asset has been
recognised in respect of HK$23,752,000 (2018: HK$28,745,000)
of such losses. No deferred tax asset has been recognised in
respect of the remaining HK$611,920,000 (2018:
HK$521,485,000) due to unpredictability of future profit
streams. All tax losses may be carried forward indefinitely.

RZZE—hF=A=1+—0 ~EEERHHA
4 I8 & $8635,672,000% (= T — )\ §F:
550,230,000 7T ) A] A K S5 R SR = Fll - B 5h
Z F 5 823,752,000 (= T — )\ F:
28,745,000 7T) ERIBELEB HE E - BAR KR
FRE AT TERNE - BEAE R ISR 2 611,920,000
BT (= Z— )\ : 521,485,00078 7T ) MERIEAE
MIBEE - FTARIBEEEREERRLES -
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z —F— A F=A=+—HBIFE

10. LOSS FOR THE YEAR 10. FREBIE
2019 2018
ZB-nEFE T N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FH&T
Loss for the year has been arrived FERNEETENG TS IBEBIER
at after charging:
Auditor's remuneration % EREM BN & 2,405 3,000
Amortisation of prepaid lease payment TE {4 A0 & BOE 386 622
Amortisation of premium over prepaid TR & FRIE 2 (B 5
lease payment 1,360 2,720
Amortisation of intangible assets A 3,793 =
Cost of inventories recognised as expenses &R &MY 2 TF SR A 56,273 47,383
Depreciation of property, M - BERRETE
plant and equipment 52,826 63,535
Impairment loss on property, Y% - BERERERREEBRE
plant and equipment 30,680 9,100
Impairment loss on prepaid lease payment BT E I8 7 H{EEE 5,000 -
Operating lease rentals in respect of HAMEZKEEERS
rented premises 19,647 24,962
Direct operating expenses arising from MEIES WA ZIREMEFRES
investment properties that generated CEEEERY
rental income 33,464 -
Staff costs: B I :
Directors’ emoluments EE=ZWE 11,618 10,994
Chief executive’'s emoluments TERRE B & = 1,221
Other staff costs Efth B TRKA
— salaries, bonus and other allowances — Fe o [EA R E b ERY 113,633 117,572
— retirement benefit scheme — RIREFIFTEI R
contributions 3,431 3,145
128,682 132,932
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

11.

S B IS R R Y R

For the year ended 31 March 2019 #E—T—AF=A=+—HBI-FE

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
EMOLUMENTS

The emoluments paid or payable to each of the directors,

chief executive and senior consultant of the Company were as

11. EERTHEARZHNE

ENXKENTARRASES  TRERLSR
BEzMemT

follows:
2019 2018
“E-NE 3\
Retirement Retirement
Salaries Performance benefit Salaries  Performance benefit
and other based scheme  Emolument and other based scheme  Emolument
Fee allowances  bonuses contributions shares Total Fee allowances  bonuses contibutions shares Total
58k nmEGER  BHEA Heh EERRER  RWER
e HEE ZEAL HEHE  ZBRG a5 e EtER JEL GEER RBRG 4%
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKSO000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HK$000
Tin Tén Tén Tn T#n T T T ThIL T Thr T
Executive directors #Es
Xu Hai Ying (note b) SR (i) - 600 - - - 600 - 80 - - - 600
Zhiliang Ou (note b) B (skb) - 650 - - - 650 - 600 50 - - 650
Fok Chi Tak (“Mr. Fok") EhE(B%E)
(note b) (Hizkb) - 4792 - 36 5,000 9,828 - 3%9% 176 R 5,000 9,204
- 6,042 - 36 5,000 11,078 - 519 26 R 5,000 10454
Independent non-executive ~ BUFHTES
directors
Chan Ming Sun, Jonathan 544 180 - - - - 180 180 - - - - 180
Lam Kwan Sing WEH 180 - - - - 180 180 - - - - 180
Lee Chi Hwa, Joshua TR 180 B B = - 180 180 = = = = 180
540 - - - - 540 540 - - - - 540
Sub-total Nt 540 6,042 - 36 5,000 11,618 540 519 26 kY 5,000 10,994
Chief executive TREH
Gao Sufang (note ¢) BE% (M) - - - - - - - 1212 - 9 = 1221
Senior consultant/ controlling ~ BHEE/BRRE
shareholder
Ms. Li note 2 Ered(iGE) - 14300 - 18 - 1438 - 1100 1280 18 - 1298
Total At 540 20,342 - 54 5,000 25936 540 17408 1,506 5 5,000 2513
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z —F— A F=A=+—HBIFE

11.

12.

DIRECTORS’' AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
EMOLUMENTS (continued)

Notes:
(a) Ms. Li is a controlling shareholder of the Group.
(b) The emoluments of executive directors of the Company, including

Mr. Xu Hai Ying, Mr. Zhiliang Ou and Mr. Fok were for their services
in connection with the management of the affairs of the Company
and the Group. The emoluments of remaining directors of the
Company were for their services as directors of the Company.

() Mr. Gao Shufang was resigned as the chief executive of the
Company on 30 September 2017.

During both years, no emoluments were paid by the Group to
any of the directors or chief executive of the Company as an
inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as
compensation for loss of office. None of the directors or chief
executive of the Company has waived any emoluments during
both years.

EMPLOYEE'S EMOLUMENTS

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in the
Group, two (2018: three) were director or senior consultant of
the Company whose emoluments were included in the
disclosures in note 11 above. The emoluments of the

remaining three (2018: two) individuals were as follows:

11.

12.

EERTRARHE (&)

Wi
@ FELAREBZREE -

b) ARANRTEF(BEATELE BER
ERBREE)CHERBERARBRAEEE
BEKHTEERENREMER - KARRHHKRT
BEEZHFMARERETARRAESEARHEZR
BMmESR °

© EBETEEER-E—LFNASTEBERR
A2 ITHMR -

RAESER - ANEE &R ARD B EE
EHITBRRINHEER/IMARKE AR
B S SR BE AR (E - RAEFEALEAR
AINEERTRAHBETHE -

BEME

RAEAEEREEEMEA LTS MEH(ZF
—N\FZR)RARPEELSRER K
e FHIEE R X115 - Bp=%R(=
T-N\F: MB)ALZHMEWT

2019 2018

—E-hEF —E-NF

HK$’'000 HK$'000

FET FET

Salaries and other allowances e R HADER 4,467 2,597
Discretionary or performance based bonus Btz RIRE T 2 FEAL - 183
Retirement benefit scheme contributions BIREFIET B 51 35
4,518 2,815
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 #E—T—AF=A=+—HBI-FE

12. EMPLOYEE'S EMOLUMENTS (continued) 12. EEME (E)
The emoluments were within the following bands: e FToIEEz AR
2019 2018
—ZE-hEF —E-N\F
Number of Number of
employees employees
EEAE EE AE
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 7L & 1,500,000 78 7T 1 1
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 7 7T & 2,000,000 78 7T 2 1
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 2,000,001 3% 7T 2,500,000 7T - -
HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000 2,500,001 & 7T 2 3,000,000 7% 7T = =
During both years, no emoluments or discretionary bonus RABEEERN  NEEBYER HSFSE A
were paid by the Group to the above highest paid individuals TS BB IEAT B BN A 2N S B 3 A B
as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as B 2 BB S BB (e o

compensation for loss of office.

13. DIVIDEND 13. RE
No dividend was paid or proposed by the directors of the AN REFBPMWEFE Y E S 25K 3
Company for both years nor has any dividend been proposed B BREBHRENEEZREEMARS -

since the end of the reporting period.
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z —F— A F=A=+—HBIFE

14. LOSS PER SHARE 14.

The calculation of basic and diluted loss per share attributable

to the owners of the Company is based on the following data:

BREE

AR T AR SRR RIS BT T
B REHH -

2019 2018
—E-hEF —E—)\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET TR
Loss BB
Loss for the purposes of basic and diluted ~ AT EFRERREEEE 2
loss per share (loss for the year BE(ARRIHAAEEZ
attributable to the owners of FAEE)
the Company) (380,871) (444,906)
2019 2018
—E-hFE ZE-N\F
‘000 ‘000
TR Fh
Number of shares BROEE
Weighted average number of ordinary BAUFTEERERREEEIE Y
shares for the purposes of basic and M AR INAE 5 £
diluted loss per share 4,937,061 4,884,056

For the years ended 31 March 2019 and 2018, the
computation of diluted loss per share does not assume the
exercise of the Company’s outstanding share options and
issue of emolument shares since their assumed exercise or

issue would result in a decrease in loss per share.
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Hao Tian Development Group Limited ® 2 X% EE@AR A7)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S B IS R R Y R

For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z—T—AF=A=+—HItFE

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 15. 1% - REREE
Leasehold Furniture,
and and Leasehold fixtures and Art Motor
building  improvements equipment works vehicles Machinery Yacht Total
HELH BENE G O%E
RETF &E e Biim A& 1 il a5t
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000

TEL TER TR TAL TAL TEL TER TER

COST A
At Apil 2017 o
TA-H 171,858 7,343 6,593 18,957 14,402 310,237 65,331 594721
Exchange alignment EggheS 7,246 132 179 = 210 = = 71821
Additions NE 6,104 2897 1,387 - 631 64,419 218 76,256
Redlassification to ENABERE
inventories - - - - - (36,834) - (36,834)
Disposals e - - (1,040) - (3,040) = = (4,080)
At 31 March 2018 RZE-N\E
=A=1-H 185,808 10372 719 18,957 12,263 337,822 65,549 637,890
Exchange alignment ExE% 189 (1%) 94 - ) ; - (13)
Additions AE 387 34 355 - 618 66,634 3,447 T1A75
Reclassification to ENNEERE
inventories - - - - - (20,770) - (20,770)
Classified as held for sale NEBBELE @321 - = = = = = m3.m)
Disposal of subsidiary HE-BHBAR - (374) - - (901) - - (1,275
Disposals TE - (546) (429) - (1,333) - - (2,308)
At 31 March 2019 R=B-1%
=A=t-8 112,055 9,287 6951 18,957 10470 383,686 68,99 610402
DEPRECIATION AND FERWE
IMPAIRMENT
At April 2017 e
mA-A 1,035 3208 2,304 - 5283 6469 13129 31428
Exchange alignment i 314 2 107 = 129 = = 512
Impairment oss HEER - = = = = 9,100 = 9100
Provided for the year FREE 10,293 764 1,200 - 2378 45,504 339 63535
Reclassification to inventories  EFPEEHE - - - - - (5,079) - (5.079)
Disposal 1E = - (583) - (1,989) - - 2,572
At 31 March 2018 RZE-\fF
=h=t-H 11,642 399% 3,028 - 5,801 55,994 16,525 96,984
Exchange alignment X A% (1,108) 21 (112) = (167) = = (1,364)
Impairment loss REER 30,373 = = = = 307 = 30,680
Provided for the year FREE 9913 1,647 1,109 - 1,863 34,886 3,408 52,826
Redlassification to ENABERE
inventories - - - - - (11,045) - (11,045)
Classified as held for sale NEBRELE (5228) = = = = = = (5,228)
Disposal of subsidiary HE-BHBAR - - - - (770) - - (770)
Disposals hirt = (20) (169) - (1,176) - - (1,365)
At 31 March 2019 R=Z-1%
=A=t-H 45,59 5642 3,8% - 5551 80,142 19933 160,718
CARRYING VALUES REE
At 31 March 2019 RZB-N%E
=R=t-H 66,461 3,645 3,095 18,957 4919 303,544 49,063 449,684
At 31 March 2018 RIE-N\E
=h=t-H 174,166 6,378 400 18,957 6,462 281,828 49,024 540,906
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z —F— A F=A=+—HBIFE

15.

16.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 15. Y% - BMERRE(E)
(continued)
As at 31 March 2019, the carrying value of machinery and RZZE-NEF=A=+—8 #EWMRAIEZK
motor vehicles includes amount of HK$6,991,000 and HERFHEREHELHREEENRE S
HK$1,691,000 (2018: HK$151,864,000 and HK$2,537,000) in EE 9 Rl 46,991,000 77T 1 1,691,000 8 T (=&
respect of assets held under finance lease arrangement, — J\% : 151,864,000 7% 7T % 2,537,000 7T )
respectively. The liabilities arising from finance lease RMEHERHEEZBEERBRERRIER
arrangements were either classified as borrowings or EEIREHERE - BE_T—hhFE=A4
obligation under finance leases as at the end of reporting =T—BIEEE  BERE THERBEHRRERRE
period. During the year ended 31 March 2019, HK$307,000 307,000 7T (ZF—/\4F : 9,100,000 7T) °
(2018: HK$9,100,000) impairment loss has been provided for
certain of machinery.
As at 31 March 2019, leasehold land and building with a RZZE—NE=A=+—08  A5EECKFE
carrying amount of HK$574,000 (2018: HK$596,000) to secure [ {8 574,000 8 7T ( —F — J\4F : 596,000/& 7T )
bank borrowings granted to the Group. ZHE i MR FIARUS AN E BRER 2 RITE
Bo

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 16. REYI*

HK$'000

THETT

Fair value DNEE
At 1 April 2018 R-Z2—N\FMA—H -
Additions NE
— acquisitions — i 1,335,251
Fair value gain NP ERE 38,742
Exchange alignment PE 5% 58 7,327
At 31 March 2019 R=-E—hE=RA=+—H 1,381,320

The fair value of the Group’s investment properties at 31
March 2019 has been arrived at on market value basis carried
out by Cushman & Wakefield Debenham Tie Leung Limited,
an independent valuer who holds a recognized and relevant
professional qualification and has recent experience in the
location and category of the investment property being

valued.

The fair value of investment properties is a level 3 recurring

fair value measurement.
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Hao Tian Development Group Limited ® £ X% EEEHR A7)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

16.

For the year ended 31 March 2019 &= =% —

S B IS R R Y R

NE=ZRA=+—HLFE

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued) 16. REWME(E)

Fair value is determined by applying the income approach, ANTFEIRARAE  BERBRAEREB R
using the income capitalisation method with a nominal % BEREBREREREZME2METE
equivalent yield applied to the estimated rental value of the CEEMETE - BEZFEREXZAVNF RS
property. The nominal equivalent yield is a weighted average KRB R 2 T AME -

of the net initial yield and the reversionary yield.

Significant unobservable inputs Range
ERTITBERAHE gE
Nominal equivalent yield BEEBRHRE 4.97%
The higher/lower the nominal equivalent yield, the lower/ ZHRZBRERUEHE AFEAY
higher the fair value will be. K,/ 15 e

There were no changes to the valuation techniques during FRN - HEFEWEZES o

the year.

The fair value measurement is based on the above properties’
highest and best use, which does not differ from their actual

use.

Investment property is pledged to a bank to secure a
mortgage loan granted to the Group (note 36).

During the year ended 31 March 2019 there were no transfers
into or out of Level 3 or any other Level. The Group's policy is
to recognise transfers between Levels of the fair value
hierarchy as at the end of the reporting period in which they

occur.

RFEAEDER LAY EZ R RRER
% RHERASYEEZER -

HEMECER T —RBTIEARNERERIL
BERZER(MFE36) °

BE_T-NF=ZA=T—"BLFE F=4K
HEMEMERLBEEALEL - AREZHK
RRRAFESER 2 HELER 2 REHRHE
REMEE -
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z —F— A F=A=+—HBIFE

17. PREPAID LEASE PAYMENT 17. ERHEERIE
The prepaid lease payment comprises: ANEEFIERRE
2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-N\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET THET
Leasehold land outside Hong Kong BABREINEE T3 11,515 34,305
Analysed for reporting purposes as: MMEENDNAE -
Current portion BREAER 5> 276 365
Non-current portion JERNER SR 11,239 33,940
11,515 34,305
The leasehold land is amortised on a straight-line basis over THE T sh TR B R A # S -
the remaining term of the lease.
18. PREMIUM OVER PREPAID LEASE PAYMENT 18. FAHERIEZHE
HK$'000
THET
COST 2%
At 1 April 2017, 31 March 2018 RZE—+tFMNA—H  ZF—N\F
=RA=+—8” 133,261
Disposal HEE\ (133,261)
At 31 March 2019 R=ZB-AF=A=+—H =
AMORTISATION e
At 1 April 2017 W-—Z—tFmA—AR 5,439
Provided for the year FNEE 2,720
At 31 March 2018 RZZE-N\FE=ZA=+—H 8,159
Provided for the year FE RN 1,360
Disposal HEEIA (9,519)
At 31 March 2019 RZE-NF=A=+—H =
CARRYING VALUES IREE
At 31 March 2019 R=ZB-hE=A=+—-H =
At 31 March 2018 RZE—-N\F=A=+—H 125,102
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 #E—T—AF=A=+—HBI-FE

18. PREMIUM OVER PREPAID LEASE PAYMENT

(continued)

During the year ended 31 March 2015, the Group acquired
the entire interest of Access Profit Global Enterprises Group
Limited (“Access Profit”) and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred as the “Access Profit Group”) at a consideration of
HK$150,000,000 from Sunshine Zhong Xing Capital Holdings
Limited (“Vendor"). The principal asset of the Access Profit
Group is a plot of land located in Urumgji, the capital city of
the Uyghur Autonomous Region of Xinjiang in the PRC. The
land is designated for logistics and warehousing development
purpose. In the opinion of the directors of the Company, it is
probable that the future economic benefits will flow to the
Group as a result of engaging in the logistics and
warehousing development on this land. At the date of
acquisition, the excess of the fair value of the land,
determined based on a valuation performed as on 31 March
2015 by Roma Appraisals Limited, over the amount prepaid
by Access Profit Group when it acquired the land use right, is
recognised as premium over prepaid lease payment in
accordance with HKAS 38 Intangible Assets.

At the date of the completion of the acquisition, the Group
recorded HK$18,131,000 and HK$133,261,000 as prepaid
lease payment and premium over prepaid lease payment
respectively. The premium over prepaid lease payment is
amortised on a straight-line basis over the remaining term of

the leases of the prepaid lease payment of 49 years.

As detailed in the circular issued by the Company on 23
January 2015 (the “Logistics Circular ”), the Vendor
undertakes, amongst others,

(i) the net profit after tax of Access Profit Group for the
year ending 31 December 2018 is not less than RMB25
million (the "Guaranteed Profit”), the Vendor agrees
and undertakes to pay the Group a compensation in the
amount equivalent to the shortfall between the actual
net profit after tax and the Guaranteed Profit of the
Access Profit Group; and

8. ANHEEREZRE(E)

HE-_TZ-—AE=-A=+—RALEE K&£H
LA {E 150,000,000 7% 7T B /5 ¢ B BUE A5 i B
BRARI(EAD)BEMRERCEERFTRA
BB REWBAR (KB MEESE])
2RISR - W EEZEZEERNNFTE
MBRTREREEERmEBARE 2 —EL
#ho ZTHIEEEMREEREERALR - AR
RIERRA  BRSHZ T E2YR KA
BR - RRGRAEIJREA LB &R M AE
B REEE R > iz AT ERBMNBE
BN HWEZ T ARERNTEN 2 BB
(RERESBRBRFHEERAAIR-ZE—RF=
A=+—BETZHEEER) RES S
AE385k I A ERRRANAETRE L HE -

RERWEEE B - AEBESSEMNHESERER
BT & IE 2 4 B 9 51118,131,0004% 7T K&
133,261,000/ 7T » TN EFIB 2 # ERBET
TAERIBEZ 85 N4 F A BE G EE S o

HBIORRBN B —RF - A +=HFIE
ZB K ([MIRIBeR |) Frafal - BJ5Ags (L
B

() BEZZ-N\F+-A=1T—HLFE
MEEBEZRBEMAFNTIORARE
25,000,000 7T ([RERF ) - EHREL
AEAAEERSNSERASRINNEE
BB BR 1% A A BLR 3B s I 2 Z= FE A0 R
B R
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z —F— A F=A=+—HBIFE

18. PREMIUM OVER PREPAID LEASE PAYMENT
(continued)

(i)

in case the valid permit for commencement of the
construction works or the land title certificate or any of
the requisite permits, licenses, approvals, authorisations,
consents, registrations and filings referred to the
Logistics Circular is not obtained, or made as the case
may be, by the Access Profit Group by 31 December
2018, the Vendor agrees and undertakes to pay RMB25
million to the Group as compensation and the parties
agreed to unwind the transaction, whereupon, the
entire issued share capital of the Access Profit will be
transferred to the Vendor without consideration and
HK$150,000,000, representing the consideration paid by
the Group, will be returned to the Group.

19. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS AND
FINANCIAL ASSETS DESIGNATED AT FAIR
VALUE THROUGH OTHER COMPREHENSIVE

18. ANHEENREZGRE(E)

WMMEBRYTER-_Z—N\F+=A
=+ —BHABRESETERTERmE)
W) K FT i 2 A GRS T2 e TRF Al
BT EEFENEMSEFTE
MR HE - B BE - BRRER
AEFRBTAFBAAEEZFAR
# 25,000,000 T 1E AR E - MR 475 [
EMBRRS Bt MBEBZ2HE
BOIRAKEBREEZTE T R
150,000,000 7T (HHE R A& B X 2
RE)BEBTAEE -

19. THHERERIEEUQAFEFER
HBLHAHMEZEREZSREE

INCOME
Available-for-sale investments AHHERE
2019 2018
—EB-NF —E-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET T
Equity securities listed in Hong Kong, REB EMHRAZS -
at fair value bi-/NS | - 463,977
Unlisted fund investment, at fair value FLETESKRE  HAFE - 237,994
Unlisted equity securities, at cost EETRAEZ - R - 405,145
Less: accumulated impairment loss B REDRERE = (293,057)
Unlisted equity securities, at cost less FEETRRAE S » R
accumulated impairment loss 2FHREEE = 112,088
- 814,059
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 #E—T—AF=A=+—HBI-FE

19. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS AND

FINANCIAL ASSETS DESIGNATED AT FAIR
VALUE THROUGH OTHER COMPREHENSIVE
INCOME (continued)

Financial assets designated at FVTOCI

19. AHHEREREEUAQFEFER

HELTFAHMEZEARSE2CHMEE
(&)

EENAFEFEERSTAHMEE
hEzEMEE

2019 2018

—B-NF —E-N\F

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET TET

Unlisted equity securities JE LR AFEH 117,525 -

Unlisted equity securities represent investments in unlisted
equity securities issued by three private entities. The business
of these companies is investments holding. Upon application
of HKFRS 9 on 1 April 2018, the Group has reclassified all AFS
investments to financial assets at FVTPL or financial assets at
FVTOCI. As at 31 March 2018, unlisted equity securities were
measured at cost less impairment at the end of the reporting
period because the variability in the range of reasonable fair
value measurements is so significant and the probabilities of
the various estimates with the range cannot be reasonably
assessed that the directors of the Company are of the opinion

that their fair values cannot be measured reliably.

FEEMRAESER =M ATRETZIL
MBRABZ 2RE - RFRARAZEBRREE
Ko R-_Z-NFOA-BERBEUBHHRS
HRFERR - AEEEBABAIHLERE
EMSBRENRATEFEBREG ABSEZ
EREESIARFEAEEEB(CHAE LR
HfmsEREE - RZE-NF=A=+—
B BRIFLHEAELFNEERFEFTER
BZREER  AHBENE THrmrseN
TEAEFE  NAREFRRERFERZX
AISEMET B HOF L TRAR SN B EBRIZ
RAINRIRER & ©
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z —F— A F=A=+—HBIFE

20. INVESTMENTS HELD FOR TRADING/ 20.
FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH
PROFIT OR LOSS/FINANCIAL LIABILITIES AT

FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

FEEERE URAFEFEEHS
Lt AN BB EMEE UDFEF
ERHE# G ABBECERER

2019 2018
—E-hEF —E—)\F
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FET FAET
Investments held for trading: FEEERE :
Equity securities listed in Hong Kong, REB LM ZRAFES
at fair value b 7/NS 1= - 1,258,195
Derivatives listed outside Hong Kong, REBBINEM2HTET A
at fair value b7 /NS L= - 51
- 1,258,246
Financial assets at FVTPL AR EFEBEE(LEA
Ban eREE
Current: mE -
Equity securities listed in Hong Kong, REB LM 2 BRAES
at fair value b /N[ 1,253,025 =
Unlisted fund, at fair value FEMES BATE 151,040 =
1,404,065 -
Non-Current: ERE -
Equity securities listed in Hong Kong, REB L2 RAFES
at fair value N ] 239,752 -
1,643,817 -
Financial liabilities at FVTPL: AAFER=E B EBEEA
Bansemas
HTF Warrants (note i) ERUBERIES (F3ED) = 11,750
Option arising from HTM Subscription ESREERESTEMEA Y
(note ii) HR#E (B aEii) 185,249 227,143
185,249 238,893

Fair values of listed investments were based on quoted

market bid price in the active market.
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 #E—T—AF=A=+—HBI-FE

ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR
LOSS/FINANCIAL LIABILITIES AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS (continued)

As at 31 March 2019, included in the Group's financial asset at
FVTPL, carrying amount of HK$869,102,000 (2018:
HK$628,580,000), nil (2018: HK$418,740,000) and
HK$479,443,999 (2018: HK$204,800,000) (the “Pledged
Shares”) are pledged to secure banking facilities of
HK$330,000,000 (2018: HK$621,604,000) with a term of nine
months, the secured notes and a securities margin loan
respectively. The Pledged Shares as security will be released
upon the full repayment of the loans. Details of the secured
notes, the banking facilities and the securities margin loan are

disclosed in notes 34 and 36 respectively.

Notes:
(i) The fair value of the HTF Warrants was calculated using the
Binomial Option Pricing Model. The inputs into the valuations were

as follows:

HTF Warrants

20. INVESTMENTS HELD FOR TRADING/FINANCIAL 20. i EEERE UAFEERHSE

Lt AN BB SMEE UDFEF
EEHSGABR2SRMAEE)

RZZE—NF=ZA=+—8  stAXEEHUR
FEFEEHECTABEZEREEZRR
& 5 7l 5869,102,0008 T( = & — )\ F:
628,580,000 7t )« EH T(=ZF — N &F:
418,740,000 JT ) k479,443,999 ;L ( = &
— J\4F 204,800,000 7T ) 2 B 17 ([ B & 8 B
BHEEFRABERABENEAZRITRE
330,000,000 75 (= — /\4F : 621,604,000 7
) EREEEREFRESER - DM
R 1E R EREFEBERRER - B
FERARE  RITAEREHFRESERZF
B9 RIREEROBIEE 34 J2 36

Wi

(i) SRV HRREEN R FETDER R
BRAFE - HENHAZRNAT

At 31 March 2018
R=B-NF=ZA=+—H

KRR BAREF

Equity value (note a) fEHEEE (MisEa)
Risk free rate (note b) B A 2 (B EEb)
Expected life (note c) FEHREHA (B st c)
Expected volatility (note d) TEER R IR (s d)
Notes:

(a) Being equity value of Hao Tian Finance determined by

reference to the net asset value of Hao Tian Finance as at 31
March 2018 with adjustment on marketability and minority
discount.

(b)  Risk free rate is determined by reference to the yield of the
Hong Kong Exchange Fund Notes with duration similar to
the expected life of the warrants.

(c) Expected life is the expected remaining life of the warrants.

(d)  Expected volatility is estimated by reference to the volatility
of other companies which shares are listed on the Stock
Exchange and engaged in similar industry of Hao Tian
Finance.

HK$0.828 /& 7T
0.964%

0.291 years F
24.033%

@ ERUBZBREBEDESEZRUBR
R N\F=ZA=T—RZEEREG
R D BATREL A E) MERE

b) ERBFIRTESEFHERREZNE
HEHRONFBINEES R R REE
o

© ERFHERRESNEHRGREY -
(d)  TAHDRIETIE2E Bin BB S A LT R

MRTEESRPHRAUZEB 2 EMA
B2 RIEm A fEt
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z —F— A F=A=+—HBIFE

20. INVESTMENTS HELD FOR TRADING/FINANCIAL
ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR
LOSS/FINANCIAL LIABILITIES AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(i)

During the year ended 31 March 2017, the Group issued HTD
Option to Vandi (as detailed and defined in note 38B), an
independent third party. According to the HTD Option Deed (as
defined in note 38B), Vandi has the right to subscribe up to
389,940,000 shares, representing 9.53% of the issued share capital
of the Company as enlarged by the allotment and issue of shares
upon exercising the HTD Option, of the Company at an exercise
price of HK$0.8 per share (adjusted to 454,930,000 shares and
HK$0.69 per share after completion of the Year 2017 Bonus Issue)
(the “HTD Option Price”). Upon the exercise of the HTD Option,
the HTD Option Price will be settled by: (i) cash; (i) transfer of Hao
Tian Management'’s shares owned by Vandi at a fixed price of
US$48,721 per Hao Tian Management share; or (i) a combination
of payment of (i) and (ii).

The option arising from HTM Subscription carried in the
consolidated statement of financial position as financial liabilities at
FVTPL.

The fair value of the HTD Option was calculated using the Monte-
Carlo Simulation Model. The inputs into the valuations were as
follows:

20. HHEEBERE ULAFEFERHS
Lt A BB ERMEE A FER
ERHEBFTAERZzEREE(E)

(#)

BE-_T—+F=-A=1+—"BHLEFE £E£EM
B 5 =5 Vandi BT HTD BA#E (GEIE R E & R KT
FE38B) ° IRFEHTD EARER 1% (& RFTFE38B)
Vandi B EZTHEEZROSEBET(REX=-F
—EFEARIFITE TR R 454,930,000 AR5 &
FR0OE T)(HTDH EE ) RBE &2
389,940,000 RA R Al ) » IHERARBIRHTD
HRETHER  SRRBERBFITROCEAZE
ITHR AN 9.53%  MATEHTD B4 1% - HTD Hi 4
BREATHAREZM ()RS () REATESK
SREERMNA8,721 X T EEVandiBEBE Z R R
EIRRRAD ¢ (i) A ()R 2 AR o

SREERBEEMEL 2 HERARFEAE
BEE(HABRZ ERAAENGSHBRRE
KA

HTDHIZ AFEIEARREERER
H o MENBABBOT

At 31 March 2019 At 31 March 2018

R-E-AF R=F—/\F

=A=+-8 =A=+-A
Equity value of Hao Tian Management (note a) S RE R E(E (Hta) HK$28,009 % 7T HK$56,351 87T
Stock price of the Company RARIRSE HK$0.22 3 T HK$0.285/8 7T
Strike price TEE HK$0.690 % T HK$0.690 7 7T
Risk free rate (note b) EEBFIR (D) 1.42% 1.529%
Expected life (note c) TREAEEA (Mt 5T c) 2.4 years 3.40 years ©F
Expected volatility of the Company (note d) RN EEER R (T d) 51.19% 79.97%

Notes:

a. Being equity value of Hao Tian Management determined by
reference to the net asset value of Hao Tian Management as
at 31 March 2019 and 2018 respectively with adjustment on
marketability and minority discount.

b. Risk free rate is determined by reference to the yield of the
Hong Kong Exchange Fund Notes with duration similar to
the expected life of the option.

c. Expected life is the expected remaining life of the option.

d. Expected volatility is estimated by calculating the historical
weekly share price volatility of the stock price of the
Company.

202  Annual Report 45 2018/19

EREEZREBENCLEEREED
AR =—T—-—NAR=ZF-—NF=A=+—H
ZEAEFEABMERDEITEELA
B)MEE °

)

b. EREMNEE2ZFHARENERF

HEUNBEEINEES RROKEEE -

c. R F RN TREARGE -

d. TAERE DS EARARRENERES
BB EmEfAE o



Hao Tian Development Group Limited ® £ X% EEEHR A7)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

S B IS R R Y R

For the year ended 31 March 2019 #E—T—AF=A=+—HBI-FE

21. GOODWILL 21. @&
2019 2018
—E-NF —E-NF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FH&T
The amount arises on acquisition of: WEELA T IEEFTEL S ¢
(i)  Hao Tian International Construction (i) Z2XBEEERIKEE
Investment Group Limited SEERAR]
("Hao Tian International ([RREIBRER])
Construction”) (Note a) (M7t a)
— Original amount — RESEE 271,670 271,670
— Impairment loss — REREE (172,756) (172,756)
98,914 98,914
(i) Fujian Nuoqi (Note b) (i) wEHEm(Eb)
— Original amount — RESH 143,494 143,494
— Impairment loss — BEEE (143,494) (143,494)
Total carrying amount HBERHEE 98,914 98,914
Notes: Pt o -
(@)  The recoverable amount of Hao Tian International Construction has (a) S REIBR R 2 A UK [0 5 58 TH B B N 4 (8 A 2

been determined based on a value in use calculation prepared by
an independent valuer, Chft Advisory and Appraisal Limited
("Chft"). That calculation uses cash flow projections based on
financial budgets approved by management covering a five-year
period with a discount rate of 10.7% (31 March 2018: 12.7%). Cash
flows after the five-year period are extrapolated at 3% (31 March
2018: 3%) growth rate. Another key assumption for the value in use
calculation is the budgeted revenue and gross margin, which is
determined based on the unit's past performance and
management'’s expectations for the market development. An
impairment test in relation to the goodwill allocated to Hao Tian
International Construction and the related intangible asset has
been performed by the Group. Due to the unfavorable market
situation, the directors of the Company reduced the budgeted
revenue estimation, which caused the carrying amount of Hao Tian
International Construction as at 30 September 2017 exceeded its
value in use based on cash flow projections. Accordingly, an
impairment loss of HK$172,756,000 was recognised to goodwill
allocated to Hao Tian International Construction during the year
2018. As at 31 March 2019, the recoverable amount as determined
by the market price of Hao Tian International Construction exceeds
its carrying amount, no further impairment is required.

BATEERAR ([ Ey ) FREEERAEEZ
FTEETE sTEAAEREEEEIZIA10.7%
—E-N\F=ZA=1+—H 127%) BB RFHE
MAFHBBEEMENESREREA - AFHRZ
BERBHEERN(ZE—N\FEF=ZA=+—8:
3%)WEX - FABENENS —BEEZREA
TBHBRAREMNE  DIRZEMBEZREARE
BEEUMSER2EYPET - AEBERIET
SRERRERAEEREENSEEITRENR
A BERAFTR  AARESHEEE RAMG
it BREXEBRESKR-_ZT—tFhA=1+AH
WEEEEBRAERBEReREEATENERE
BBt RZE-N\FERIEEZRRERE
BRI BRI (EEE 172,756,000/ 7T c R=F
—NE=R=1+—8 BEAEBFRINTEE
TR R E S RERBEREE QB EE—$
SAE o

Annual Report % 2018/19 203



Hao Tian Development Group Limited ® 2 X% E&£E AR A7)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M HRR M

For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z —F— A F=A=+—HBIFE

21. GOODWILL (continued) 21.
Notes: (Continued) B aE
(b) The recoverable amount of Fujian Nuogi has been determined (b)

based on a value in use calculation by management. The key
assumption for the value in use calculation is the budgeted revenue
and gross margin, which is determined based on management’s
expectations for the market development.

During the year 2018, the directors of the Company reassessed the
financial budgets of the existing business of Fujian Nuogji, taking
into account the Proposed Nuogi Transaction (as defined at below).
After the budget reassessment, the carrying amount allocated to
Fujian Nuogi as at 31 March 2018 exceeds its value in use based on
cash flow projections. Accordingly, an impairment of
HK$143,494,000 was recognised to goodwill allocated to Fujian
Nuogqi in last year. As at 31 March 2019, no further impairment is
required since the goodwill was fully impaired.

22. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

- ()

BEAFZAINOSECHEREREERAERE
AEHEE - EAEEFECIERRATESRA
REME  DHREBBHTSER I TAMEE -

R-B-—N\F LHAEREBEETRH(ERILT
X)i& ARREFEERBREATRAEBH
HHREE RNEGMEEER RZE-NF=A
=t -AoREEREETNREEBEERER
EnEBAFENEREE Bt LEFED
h 0 B 48 1 A A7 HO PR B AR (143,494,000 78
TL-RZZE-NAF=A=+—8 BARBFEE2
ER(E - MEHZEE—2RE -

22. BLEE

2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-N\F
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FET FET
The amount represents: FHeER

Customer list and the securities BEEE R EA KRR
brokerage licenses (Note i) GED) 7,207 11,000
Brand name (Note ii) mm ke (M sEii) 167,650 167,650
174,857 178,650

Notes:

(ii)

HK$7,207,000 (2018: HK$11,000,000) of the total amounts
represents amount paid for the customer list less accumulated
amortisation and the securities brokerage licenses acquired by the
Group, which amounted to HK$3,707,000 (2018: HK$7,500,000) and
HK$3,500,000 (2018: HK$3,500,000) respectively, through its
acquisition of Hao Tian Securities.

The recoverable amount of intangible asset has been determined
based on a value in use calculation. That calculation uses cash flow
projections based on financial budgets approved by management
covering a five-year period with a discount rate of 10.7% (2018:
11.8%). Cash flows after five years period are extrapolated at 3%
(2018: 1%) growth rate. Another key assumption for the value in use
calculation is the budgeted revenue and gross margin, which is
determined based on the units’s past performance and
management's expectations for the market development.

HK$167,650,000 of the total amounts represents for the brand
name acquired by the Group through its acquisition of Hao Tian
International Construction. The directors of the Company consider
the brand name acquired has indefinite useful life. The recoverable
amount of the intangible asset has been determined based on
basis detailed in note 21.
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GEE

(ii)

#8 % #7,207,0007% 7T (= F — /U4 : 11,000,000
AT EAREBBKBERRESMES SRS
B #%3,707,0007# 7T (=% —/\4 : 7,500,000 47T
% 3,500,0007% 7T ( = % — JU4F : 3,500,0005% 7T )
ZEFBE (R R H) RE 7 EACREIRM X
N2z&® -

BREEZAIRESEDERFEEAEEE
E oA ETEEREEERBRZIAI07%(=F
—\% : 11.8%) BRR KRG HN A FHBRIAEME
MIRERETN - AFRZASREHETERI%(=
FN\F AR EEE - FREEFENS B
TERB/ARERARENE - HIRZEMBE
ZREREEREBEM SRR IAPETE

4855 167,650,000 BT EAEE S BKER KR
BREREMKE T REETE AAREERA AT
BRZMEEBAERACATH BHEEZ
AU B 6 2B YRR M RE 21 Fratat o HERTFE -
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 #E—T—AF=A=+—HBI-FE

23. FINANCE LEASE RECEIVABLES 23. MEHERWFIE
2019 2018
—B-NF —E-N\F
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Non-current finance lease receivables FERNEARL & 1H & e Y RIE 6,901 9,529
Current finance lease receivables B HA gl & 6 & e kI 7,104 6,959
14,005 16,488
Leasing arrangements HEZH
Certain of the Group’s machinery are leased out under AEEEFHRBOBERERAES LM - AR
finance leases. All leases are denominated in HK$. The term B LA TTEHE - Y MARE Y HENT
of finance leases entered into ranges from 2 years to 5 years 2EBSE(—E—N\E 1EAESE) -

(2018: 1 month to 5 years).

Amounts receivable under finance leases MEEEEWHIESEE
Minimum Present value of
lease payments lease payments
REAE MR HENHBRE
2019 2018 2019 2018
—“E-hE —T-N\F ZB-h&E —T-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FHET THER FET
Not later than one year T\EﬁA—i 8,321 8,042 7,104 6,959
Later than one year and EBR—FEMERAS
not later than five years 7,335 10,226 6,901 9,529
15,656 18,268 14,005 16,488
Less: unearned finance income i : AREEUA R E A (1,651) (1,780)  N/ATERB N/A i@ A
Present value of minimum REEKEENFEAE
lease payments receivable 14,005 16,488 14,005 16,488
The effective interest rates of the finance leases as at 31 RZZE—hF=A=1+—H REHEZEK
March 2019 range from 4.55% to 12.00% per annum (2018: FENFFFL55%F12.00% (=T — )\ F :
4.55% to 10.20% per annum). FF455% 2 10.20%) °
There was no unguaranteed residual value in connection with RIEPR  AEEVEEHREHE LK
finance lease arrangements or contingent lease arrangements SAEE LR 2 RERFIREBEE TIARE

of the Group that needed to be recorded as at the end of the
reporting period.
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z —F— A F=A=+—HBIFE

24. DEPOSIT PAID FOR ACQUISITION OF A

25.

SUBSIDIARY

On 20 January 2018, the Group entered into a sales and
purchase agreement with an independent third party to
acquire the entire share capital of 55 Mark Lane S.A R.L. (“55
Mark Lane”), a company incorporated under the laws of the
Grand Duchy of Luxembourg with limited liability, for a total
consideration of GBP 130,000,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$1,402,422,000) (the “55 Acquisition”). A
non-refundable deposit of GBP 12,770,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$137,761,000) was paid by the Group during
the year ended 31 March 2018. The details of the 55
Acquisition are set out in the circular issued by the Company
on 22 March 2018.

55 Mark Lane is holding a mixed-use property in London,
United Kingdom and the 55 Acquisition has been completed
on 12 April 2018.

4. WiE—EMNBARMNR £

RZZE—N\F—A=1+H AEEHE—ZEL
B=FINBEERE  UBE—RHREERE
KA B A 72 5% MK 3 /9 B BR 2 /55 Mark
Lane S.A R.L.([55 Mark Lane]) )2 ZEASAN -
# K {8 /&130,000000% &( # & B 9
1,402,422,0007%870) ([55WEBEE]) - H=E—
T N\F=ZA=1T—HLFE  AKEEZ[
AR 8 5] £12,770,0003 (8 & R 4
137,761,000 7T ) - BRAS5 WHEEIBHFFIEH
RARBR=ZZE—N\F=A =+ =—HFFTIEN
LK o

55 Mark Lane B LBl m—EREE A&
¥ SSWBEEEN-_Z—/\FNA+-H=
W °

INVENTORIES 25. 78
2019 2018
—ZE-hF —E-N\F
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FERT FHET
Consumables and others SRR R H A 3,776 6,433
Machinery T 389 559
Spare parts HRZMH 1,327 1,333
Construction materials BEME - 12,518
Men’'s and women's apparels SRREE 21 2,033
5,513 22,876
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 #E—T—AF=A=+—HBI-FE

26. OTHER CURRENT FINANCIAL ASSETS

Trade receivables

26.

HivRigemEE
JE Uk BR =X
2019 2018
—ZE-hF —E-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FHT

Trade receivables from clients arising from LA TIER E4A 7 EWE SR

— construction machinery and sales of — PR SRR B & TS
construction materials business 46,585 86,756
— commodities and futures brokerage — AR R EERLD - 321
— securities brokerage — BHLL 51,126 41,263
— retailing of men'’s and — BERTETE
women's apparels = 97
— rental income from —REMEZHSBA
investment properties 1,621 =
Margin and other trade related deposits AT E &4 2 FHIR &4 K&
with brokers and financial institutions SRIEEZRES R
arising from Hih BEEEMRE
— commodities brokerage — AL - 2,435
— futures brokerage — HEKe 3,005 1.170
Less: Allowance for impairment B ORERE (18,714) (5,161)
Interest receivables in relation to EWEERA B B S ()
money lending business (note) = 50,276
83,623 177,157

Note: In order to conform the current year's presentation and
classification, the interest receivables as at 31 March 2019 is
classified under loan receivables. Please refer to Note 27.

As at 31 March 2019, included in the Group's trade
receivables were receivables of HK$1,531,000 (2018:
HK$14,558,000) denominated in the currency other than the

functional currency of the respective group entities.

M : RREAFEZE2RESE R-2E-NF=A
=t HZEKRMEDBERKER - F2HM
FL27 °

RZZB-NEF=A=+—0H  FEEREKRX
451,531,000 7T ( —ZF — /L4 : 14,558,000
B HEKERR  DASEEERBEEE
LASh 2 EH¥EETHE -
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z —F— A F=A=+—HBIFE

26. OTHER CURRENT FINANCIAL ASSETS 26. HittRBEmMEE (&)

(continued)
Trade receivables (continued)

The Group allows an average credit period of 0-30 days to its
trade customers arising from construction machinery and
sales of construction materials business and 0-90 days for
retailing of men’s and women'’s apparels business. The credit
period provided to customers can be longer based on a
number of factors including the customer’s credit profile and

relationship with the customers.

The following is an aging analysis of trade receivables from
client arising from construction machinery and sales of
construction materials and retailing of men’s and women's
apparels business, net of allowance for impairment, presented

based on invoice dates at the end of the reporting period:

e Rk (48)

B2 B 5 Bl [R) R SE A 2 2 SE W R B S LA
RBERZETEEBNEHRELELFH0
FHNUKOENBEKEER -AEFPEEZ
EEHNEEEFPHNERAERRETFPH G
ELEEARAAHMLER -

AT BRHRE R A ZERR LR HE
EBUARBRRZETEXBELZREETR
R CHRBRERRE) RIFERE A2 2 Rk
DT

2019 2018

—ZE-hF —E-N\F

HK$’'000 HK$'000

FET FHET

0-30 days 0-30H 8,712 37,852
31-90 days 31-90 H 13,680 20,408
91-180 days 91-180 H 2,403 8,059
181-365 days 181-365 H 3,135 13,496
Over 365 days HBiE 365 H 5,981 1,877
33,911 81,692

Before accepting any new customer, the Group assesses the
potential customer’s credit quality and defines credit limits by
customer. Limits attributed to customers are reviewed
regularly. The Group has policy for allowance of bad and
doubtful debts which is based on an evaluation of the
collectability and aging analysis of accounts on every
individual trade debtor basis and on management’s judgment
including creditworthiness and the past collection history of

each customer.
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z—T—AF=A=+—HItFE

26. OTHER CURRENT FINANCIAL ASSETS 26. HtbigemEE (&)
(continued)

Trade receivables (continued) FEWBRRR ()

Aging of trade receivables from clients arising from BREMW SRR EEB AR BE R
construction machinery and sales of construction materials REEEBELEZEBHMERRELREETF
and retailing of men’s and women'’s apparels business which R R

are past due but not impaired:

2018
—E-NF
HK$'000
FABT

Overdue: B
1-90 days 1-90 A 20,794
91-180 days 91-180 H 10,004
181-365 days 181-365H 11,447
Over 365 days 838 365 B 1,595
43,840
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z —F— A F=A=+—HBIFE

26. OTHER CURRENT FINANCIAL ASSETS 26. HittRBEmMEE (&)

(continued)

Trade receivables (continued)

e Rk (48)

Movement in the allowance for bad and doubtful debts RIBRRELE

2019 2018

—E-hEF —E—)\F

HK$’'000 HK$'000

FERT FH&T

At the beginning of the year F1) 5,161 16,339
Effect of adoption of HKFRS 9 RNEBM B HRELNE R B 9,024 5
14,185 16,339

Impairment losses recognised ERRREEE 5,450 921
Amount written-off as uncollectible L e e ko (921) (3,214)
Recovery of bad debts Uy (o] 22 BR - (8,885)
At the end of the year FR 18,714 5,161

For those commodities, futures and securities trading clients,
it normally takes two to three days to settle after trade date of
those transactions. These outstanding unsettled trades due

from clients are reported as trade receivables from clients.

The margin clients of the commodities, futures and securities
brokerage business are required to pledge their investments
to the Group for credit facilities for commodities, futures and

securities trading.

The settlement terms of trade receivables from clearing

houses are usually one to two days after the trade date.

Trade receivables from cash and margin clients arising from
the commodities, futures and securities brokerage business
are repayable on demand subsequent to settlement date. No
aging analysis is disclosed as in the opinion of directors, the
aging analysis does not provide additional value in view of
the nature of commodities, futures and securities dealing

business.
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 #E—T—AF=A=+—HBI-FE

26. OTHER CURRENT FINANCIAL ASSETS

(continued)
Trade receivables (continued)

Credit is extended to brokerage clients on a case-by-case
basis in accordance with the financial status of clients such as
their financial conditions, trading records, business profile
and collateral available to the Group. Clients trading in
commodities and futures and obtaining securities margin
financing from the Group are required to observe the Group's
margin policies. For commodities and futures, initial margins
are required before trading and thereafter clients are required
to keep the equity position at a prescribed maintenance

margin level.

Interest in relation to money lending business is accrued on a
time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at
effective interest rate applicable. Settlement of interest
receivables is in accordance with the terms stated in
agreements entered with its customers ranges from 1 month
to 6 months (2018: 1 month to 6 months).

Upon application of HKFRS 9 on 1 April 2018, the Group
applies simplified approach to provide for ECL prescribed by
HKFRS 9. To measure the ECL of trade receivables, trade
receivables have been grouped based on shared credit risk
characteristics. The ECL of trade receivables as at 1 April 2018
(upon the application of HKFRS 9) and 31 March 2019 was
approximately HK$14,185,000 and HK$18,714,000 respectively
based on the counterparties’ past repayment history. The
estimated loss rates are estimated based on historical
observed default rates over the expected life of the debtors
and study of other corporates’ default and recovery data from
international credit-rating agencies and are adjusted for
forward-looking information that is available without undue

cost or effort.

6. HtRBERMEE (B)

e Rk (48)

REEFPZEERAREBER ZWHIRUE 5
TUER  BEREPZMBEIRR X F0H -
EREERAER T AEE 2B - EED
mMHIEREE AR A A REREGEFRE S R
B2REPHABTARBZRESHE - B
mEHEME REEMARBN VT RES -
HEREPZHRBARFERENRERKF

BERANEXBZANB N2 EHNAREERNSER
B EERBERERNREHE o BUCHIETD
RIBEEZPRII 2 BHRMBENFIEAZE
SEA(ZE-NF:1EAZEER) <R

H o
Ft

RZZT— N\ A—HEREENBEIREZER
FoWRE  AEEERE LT ERBBU B
HERFIOFERTE 2 BHREEEIEFREE -
RABEFRKFIAZEREEEE  BE5E
WHIBEEREBELRIEERB RS HE - ERR
SHFZRTENGCE  BHEWRER =T
—N\FMA—B (ERAEBMBREERIE IR
BIR—_E-—NE=ZA=+—HBZBEHEEE
855 Bl #) 414,185,000 7T 5 18,714,000 7T ©
HE BB EDRBEKARRTEA FHAN 2 BT
BERENEUARBBREETREEEEMmrE
B REIWEIE 2 R mEst - WHEAEN D
TNE Z AR T Al 15 2 ATIE B RHEL 3

B, o
=
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26. OTHER CURRENT FINANCIAL ASSETS 26. HittRBEmMEE (&)

(continued)
Other receivables, deposits and prepayments

Other receivables and deposits comprise amounts receivable

from third parties and recoverable within one year.

Included in the Group's other receivables, deposits and
prepayments are the funds deposits to financial institutions
for securities investment and trading of futures purposes of
HK$2,333,000 (2018: HK$4,735,000).

Other receivables, deposit and prepayments of HK$3,649,000
(2018: HK$1,440,000) are denominated in currencies other

than the functional currency of the respective group entities.
Bank balances and cash and pledged bank deposits

As at 31 March 2019 , bank deposits amounting to
HK$4,654,000 (2018: HK$19,627,000) have been pledged to
banks as security, carrying effective interests range from 0.3%
to 0.8% (2018: range from 0.3% to 0.52%) per annum.

Bank balances and cash comprise cash held by the Group and
short-term bank deposits with original maturity date less than
three months, carrying effective interest at 0.2% (2018: 0.2%)

per annum.

The bank balances and cash of HK$126,595,000 (2018:
HK$396,311,000) are denominated in currencies other than

the functional currency of the respective group entities.
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H it EUHIB R & B IR E =TT AR
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REEZ A EIE - 71 RERNFIERE
SR TFEmMEBBIEEFRERMEEERAR Y
& & 7] £2333000% (=T — J\ F:
4,735,00077T) °

EH b EUSRIE « 7] & R TENT 5RIE 3,649,000 7 7T
(== —)\£F : 1,440,000870) WA EE TR
NEE S AN B HEEHE -

BAEBRES LR EEMRTER

RZZE-NE=A=+—H8  £8/54,654,000
BIL(ZZ—)\4F : 19,627,000 7T) 2 R1T1F
REERTFRITIEREF - BEFHENT
0.3%Z%0.8%(=ZF—/\F : NF0.3%ZE0.52%) °

RITERRA S ERAKRERFENRESUARR
MBI R=ZEARERFMNE02%(=F
—/\F 1 0.2%) 7T SR HRITIE K ©

RITHEEEA IR L 126,595,000 T (—F— )\ & -
396,311,000/ 70) A S E B EREINEEE A
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27.
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 #E—T—AF=A=+—HBI-FE

OTHER CURRENT FINANCIAL ASSETS 26. HivRBE@mMEE (8)
(continued)
Bank balances, trust and segregated accounts SRITHEER  BFRERBYERF
The Group maintains segregated trust accounts with AEBERRAIEERRBZETERS - UFEK
authorised institutions to hold clients’ monies arising from its BEPRIEFEBBIZRAEENIE - AEE
normal course of business. The Group has classified the B EEPNRIED B RIRE BRI RE 2
clients’ monies as bank balances, trust and segregated MEBEEIR T 2 IRITHERR - EERBULEP -
accounts under the current assets section of the consolidated WEREBRET P HRIERERBELRIPBAE £
statement of financial position and recognised the HEEMSEEMERENBRES P 88 EESR
corresponding trade payables (note 33) to respective clients FH(MIFE33) - RITAER - ERERBILRPER
on the grounds that it is liable for any loss or misappropriation PRIBXFHRAEKRAIET 2 EHFRBE(E
of clients’ monies. The clients’ monies as bank balances, trust P FI8) IR &I AR E ©
and segregated accounts is restricted and governed by the
Securities and Futures (Client Money) Rules under the
Securities and Futures Ordinance.
LOAN RECEIVABLES 27. BEIRER
2019 2018
—E-NF —T-)N\F
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FHET FH&T
Non-current: FEENER
Secured, fixed-rate loan receivables B - EUWEEFRERK 116,497 192,615
Unsecured and guaranteed, EEAREER - B
fixed-rate loan receivables & E F = E K 4,000 3,101
Less: Allowance for impairment ORI E RS (5,808) -
114,689 195,716
Current: BNES
Secured, fixed-rate loan receivables HEA  ERETHEER 219,612 362,004
Unsecured and guaranteed, fixed-rate EIRMREER - B
loan receivables ElEFEERK 298,032 168,281
Less: Allowance for impairment B RERE (77,061) -
440,583 530,285
555,272 726,001

Note: The loan receivables are secured by properties and equity
securities held by the borrowers.

Bt : EUESUABRARE 2 WE RRAFH R o
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27. LOAN RECEIVABLES (continued) 27.

Movements on the Group’s impairment of loans receivable

are as follows:

EWEMR(E)

AEBRKEFREZZEIT

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
E—MEER EIEER EZRR st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FHT FHAT FAT
Balance at 31 March 2018 RZZE—-N\F=RA=+—H
as originally presented 2 i (RREZ5) - - - -
Impact of adopting HKFRS 9 RNE BB REER
FIR B 13,610 - 73,378 86,988
Balance at 1 April 2018 RZZE-\FENA—HZ
as restated wEeh (IR E7) 13,610 = 73,378 86,988
New loans originated/ FEER R EMT
over-provision written back 10,693 536 (15,348) 4,119)
Balance at 31 March 2019 RZZB-NF=RA=+—H
o =i 24,303 536 58,030 82,869

In general, loans receivable are considered as default when
the loans receivable or its related installments are overdue by
over 90 days. As at 31 March 2019, loans receivable of
HK$58,030,000 was default under lifetime ECL and a over-
provision of HK$15,348,000 was written back.

For loans that are not credit-impaired without significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition “Stage 1", ECL
is measured at an amount equal to the portion of lifetime ECL
that result from default events possible within the next 12
months. If a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition is identified (“Stage 2") but not yet deemed to
be credit impaired, ECL is measured based on lifetime ECL.
In general, when loans receivable or its related installments
are overdue by 30 days, there are significant increase in credit
risk. During the year ended 31 March 2019, total provision of
HK$11,229,000 under Stage 1 and Stage 2 was released and
over-provision of HK$15,348,000 was written-back to the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income based on

assessment from ECL model.
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 #E—T—AF=A=+—HBI-FE

28. REHEQRIZRE

2019 2018
—E-NF —E-NF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FH&T
Share of net assets DMEEBEFE 78,402 6
Country of Principal place Proportion of ownership
Name of entity registration of business by the Group Principal activity
BEREE B3R TEERMH FEEFMEHEERELG TEER
2019 2018
—E-NFE —TNF
Fujian Province Qingliu County PRC PRC 49% 49%  Manufacturing and
Jiuli Youzhi Co., Limited A A trading of Camellia
("Jiuli Youzhi")* Oleifea related
BEABERBNIHEERAR products.
(T hAERE ) * HEEREEBR
1BRAEm -
Grand Peaceful Global Limited BVI Hong Kong 49% N/A  Licensing of multimedia
("Grand Peaceful ") RERUHE B TNE A animation
BEIRBER A A ([ BRERR]) entertainment
SRV S-Egs
BB IREE
# One out of three directors of the entity is appointed by the Group. # ZER=FZEEH I —EHAEEEE - ES

In the opinion of the directors, the Group has significant influence

over this entity.

On 22 February 2019, Hao Tian Media & Culture Co. Ltd
acquired 49% of issued equity interest of Grand Peaceful for a
total consideration of 372,585,332 new shares by Hao Tian

Development under the General Mandate, the fair value at

date of completion was at HK$0.2168 per share (equivalent to

HK$78,243,000).

R AEEHZEREEAYES -

RZZE—NAF-_A=-+=-H 2XREELE
BRA R R ERIRER 2 49% O 31T HE » AR
BRERERBE —MRIEERET372,585,332 K%
MR - R B B2 AFERER0.21687%

7t (FBE 278,243,000/ 7T) °
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28. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued) 28. R QT ZRE(E)
Summarised financial information of material EABE AN EERBE
associate
Summarised financial information in respect of the Group's EHEREEBERR 2B ERBEZH W
associate is set out below. The summarised financial T o U THBERBEERNIRIESAMBRE
information below represents amounts shown in the HRIRE B E R RIMTEREZ AR 258 °
associate's financial statements prepared in accordance with
HKFRSs.
The associate is accounted for using the equity method in Bt N AT AR AN SR e M HREAR

these consolidated financial statements.

Jiuli Youzhi
RR AR
2019 2018
—E—-hEF —E-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Current assets TMENEE 5,905 7,011
Non-current assets EmEEE 5,287 6,793
Current liabilities mEAE (13,503) (13,792)
Revenue WA 1,834 2,299
Loss and total comprehensive FREBREERA A
expense for the year (5,337) (1,569)
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z—T—AF=A=+—HItFE

28. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued) 28. Rt DT 2RE ()

Summarised financial information of material ERBEQATNMBERME(E)
associate (continued)

Reconciliation to the Group's interest in the associate: NS N[ Z e o
Jiuli Youzhi
FURI e P
2019 2018
—EB-NF —E-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT T
Net (liabilities)/assets (aEFR) EEFE (2,311) 12
Proportion of the Group’s ownership REBEPTAEER LB
interest 49% 49%
Carrying amount of the Group's interest ~ AEE#EZ 2 BREE (1,132) 6

Grand Peaceful

EEERIRER

2019

—E-hF

HK$'000

FET

Current assets MENEE 159,355
Non-current assets EREEE 8,750
Current liabilities MEAE (46)
Revenue A 8,750
Profit and total comprehensive income for the year FERNHEF N 2R AAEE 3,209
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28. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued) 28. REt&E QR 2RE (B)
Summarised financial information of material ERBEQATNMBERME(E)

associate (continued)
Reconciliation to the Group's interest in the associate: NS N[ Z e S

Grand Peaceful

ERERIRIR
2019
—E-hF
HK$'000
FHExT
Net assets BEZEE 168,059
Proportion of the Group’s ownership interest REBFREERERS 2P 49%
Carrying amount of the Group's interest REE R 2 REE 82,349
29. INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES 29. REELEZRE
2019
—E-hF
HK$'000
FExT
Share of net assets DIEEERE 165,387
As at 31 March 2019, particulars of the joint venture were as RIZB-NF=A=+—HB BHaLELEZ
follows: BTN
Percentage of
ownership
Form of business Place of interest/
structure incorporation voting rights  Principal activities
Fak s/
EREBEN Ry A RAEBEIL FEXK
Riverwood China Growth Fund  Incorporated Cayman Islands 51.58% Investment holdings
il FMERE BREER
EREEREXRERES Incorporated PRC 35% Investment holdings
EREERAT] iz Avs A REER
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29. INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES (continued) 29. A& tEZRE (E)

Summarised financial information of the joint EELECHBEERBE
ventures
Set out below are the summarised financial information of T~ 3 & 7l Riverwood China Growth Fund 2 871
Riverwood China Growth Fund, extracted from its BEREE  FERBHREEBEE_Z—N
management accounts for the year ended 31 March 2019: FZA=+—RHIFEZERER :
2019
—E-hEF
HK$’000
FHET
Current assets mEEE 319,786
Current liabilities nEBBE (6,228)
Loss and total comprehensive expense for the year EERENEERX AR (27,838)
Reconciliation of the above summarised financial information LB E R B ER RS M IR R AR R
to the carrying amount of the investment in Riverwood China Riverwood China Growth Fund 2 #% & & H (&
Growth Fund recognised in the consolidated financial HiR -
statements:
2019
ZE-hEF
HK$’'000
THET
Equity attributable to the owners A AR 313,558
Proportion of the Group’s ownership interests REBAAERER 2 LB 51.58%
Carrying amount of the Group's investment 7N &2 B 7A Riverwood China Growth Fund
in Riverwood China Growth Fund ZRAEREE 161,733
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29. INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES (continued) 29.

Summarised financial information of the joint
ventures (continued)

Set out below are the summarised financial information of ZE
TIRBEEREFXNEESEEBR AT, extracted from its

management accounts for the year ended 31 March 2019:

REEERZRE(E)
BELRCMBEERLE(B)
TREIELZRAEREXRELSERAR

RAZMBERBE FHERBREEEE
—E-NFZA=THUEFEZEERA :

2019

—E-hEF

HK$'000

FHET

Non-current assets FEMBNE E 1,611
Current assets mBVE E 9,004
Current liabilities nEBEE (176)
Loss and total comprehensive expense for the year EBEEFRNEHERS A5 (803)

Reconciliation of the above summarised financial information
to the carrying amount of the investment in {EZ& ik B 25 R EE %
KRERESEE AR AT recognised in the consolidated

financial statements:

BB AR R BN RS M R AR R
RRREEREXREEZSEEARAR 2K
BRRmEEH K

2019

—B-hEF

HK$'000

FHET

Equity attributable to the owners WA AREIEER 10,439

Proportion of the Group’s ownership interests REB A ERERSZ LD 35%
Carrying amount of the Group's investment in FEFBRERREEREXREES

iR ERERRELACEEBR AR ERERAAZREREE 3,654
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30. CORPORATE NOTE 30. RAERIEE
2019
—E-hEF
HK$'000
THET
Corporate note issued by: IR ARIFTEITARIRE
Imperial Pacific International Holdings 1EEE KB RIERRER AR
Limited (“Imperial Pacific") (TEEAFZF]) 254,474
On 28 June 2018, the Group entered into an agreement with RZZE-—NFEXAZ+N\B  KEEEKAQF]
Asia Link Capital Investment Holdings Limited (“Asia Link"), PR R B A= IR AR AR ([REAIE )
the controlling shareholder of the Company. Pursuant to FIN W o Bk - ANAFIE R EWEE - mdnk
which, the Company agreed to purchase and Asia Link agreed BEERELERERFLFERTASER
to sell notes issued by Imperial Pacific, with the principal 30,000,000k T 2 B[ RE ] RE A
amount of US$30,000,000 (the “Notes”) at a consideration of 27,800,000 ([RE]) ([EEKWEEE]) -
US$27,800,000 (the “Consideration”) (the “Notes ERREEAFTFR T —+tF—A=-+HH
Acquisition”). The Notes was issued by Imperial Pacific on 25 BT - FHR=FRIRFFEGS%ETE - KB
January 2017 with three years tenure and bears interest of B R A3 iR (T A S E A 27,800,0003 7T &
8.5% per annum. The Consideration would be settled by the REFELO%T B ZARA—FHESF( A
Company by issuance of a one year bond of the Company AEHF &N - EREEBRARESF 2 FIEH
with the principal amount of US$27,800,000 and bears interest RARBRZZE—N\FENANBHEZEK -
of 4.0% per annum (the “Company Bond"). The details of the ERWEEEER_ZT—N\F+HA+—BRK -
Notes and the Company Bond are set out in the circular
issued by the Company on 6 September 2018. The Notes
Acquisition was completed on 11 October 2018.
31. CONSIDERATION RECEIVABLE 31. ERKRE
2019 2018
—E-hF —E-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT TR
Consideration receivable in respect of: EWARIATER 2RE
Menggang Group Disposal SEEBHEEE = 24,980
Disposal of Access Profit & hnda 96,000 =
Less: Allowance for impairment B RERE (817) -
95,183 24,980
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31.

CONSIDERATION RECEIVABLE (continued)

On 7 September 2011, the Group entered into a sale and
purchase agreement with an independent third party not
connected with the Group, Inner-Mongolia Shuangxin
Resources Group Co., Ltd. (the “Purchaser”). Pursuant to this
sale and purchase agreement, the Group agreed to dispose
of Wuhai City Menggang Industrial Development Co., Ltd.
and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Menggang
Group”) (the “Menggang Group Disposal”), which operated
the Group's coal mines in the Inner-Mongolia Autonomous
Region in the PRC, for a cash consideration of
RMB1,503,000,000 (“Total Consideration”). The Menggang
Group Disposal was completed on 30 May 2012. The Total
Consideration shall be satisfied by four installments:
RMB781,560,000 by completion; RMB420,840,000 by 90 days
subsequent to the completion; RMB225,450,000 by 180 days
subsequent to the completion and the remaining
RMB75,150,000 by fifteen months subsequent to the
completion. On 19 November 2012, the Group and the
Purchaser entered into a supplemental agreement in relation
to the Menggang Group Disposal, pursuant to which the
Group and the Purchaser agreed to reduce the Total
Consideration by RMB75,000,000. Such reduction shall be
settled by deducting the third installment by RMB40,000,000
and deducting the final installment by RMB35,000,000.

However, the Purchaser failed to settle the balance of the
Total Consideration. After a number of arbitration claims and
civil court proceedings, the Group obtained arbitral award
and judgements against the counterparty to the Menggang
Group Disposal and all unsettled consideration was received
by the Group during the year ended 31 March 2019.

On 22 November 2018, the Group have completed the
disposal of the entire issued share capital of Access Profit
Global Enterprises Group Limited (“Access Profit”), an
investment holding company with logistics project in Urumgji.
The total consideration of the transaction is HK$180,000,000.
As at 31 March 2019, an aggregate of HK$84,000,000 has
been received by the Group and the remaining unsettled
consideration was HK$96,000,000. Subsequent to 31 March
2019 and up to the date of this report, the aggregate
additional HK$40,000,000 has been settled and the remaining
unsettled consideration was HK$56,000,000. The entire issued
share capital of Access Profit has been charged to the Group
to secure the payment obligation.
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32. ASSETS/(LIABILITIES) CLASSIFIED AS HELD

FOR SALE

Chim Kee Crane Company Limited, an indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, engaged in investment of
leasehold land in Hong Kong. In March 2019, the Group
entered into agreements for the disposal of its entire interests
in Chim Kee Crane Company Limited for an aggregate
consideration of HK$100,000,000 (the “Disposal”).
Accordingly, the assets and liabilities attributable to Chim
Kee Crane Company Limited, as included in the Group's
rental of construction machinery and provision of repair and
maintenance service for segment reporting purposes, had
been classified as assets and liabilities held for sale and were
presented separately in the consolidated statement of
financial position as at 31 March 2019. By reference to the
sales consideration and the carrying value of Chim Kee Crane
Company Limited as at 31 March 2019, no impairment loss
was recorded for the year ended 31 March 2019. The Disposal
was completed in April 2019.

The major classes of assets and liabilities classified as held for

sale as at 31 March 2019 were as follows:

2. PEABELEZEE (AF)

RAREEZENB AR GLRERGR AR
REBREREHELHER - R-_T—hF
= A - REBEHE LA (E 100,000,000 7 T i
HRGRRERAR ARz ER([HES
BT - Bt - AHBRE B MR AR
SEEERREE U RIREEE RRERBEA
Rz hRERERARELREERBEES
HRFELEZAERBE  URZZT—NF
AT —BZHEEUBRABRKANERZ
7)o B2 EHERBROTCEERER AN
—E-NF=A=t—HZEEE HELH
EE-NF=A=1+—BILFEHGSEME
EEE - HESER=_Z—NLFMATHK °

RZB-NAF=A=+—0 DEARFELE
ZEERBBEZIENRMNT

2019

—E-NEF

HK$’'000

FET

Property, plant & equipments M - WE KR 68,043
Other receivables, deposits and prepayments Hib W IE - 51 MFafrtZiE 1
Bank balances and cash RITEHR LIRS 42
Total assets classified as held for sale DEABELHE  EERE 68,086
Creditors and accruals FERT IR R EFTE R 40
Total liabilities classified as held for sale DEEAFIERE B ERRE 40
Net assets BESE 68,046
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33. OTHER CURRENT FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

. HitRBEmEa s

Trade payables B BRR
2019 2018
—B-NF —E-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT T
Margin and other deposits payable to o HERBFCLEEY
clients arising from commodities, ENEFPZRES REMEZS
futures and securities brokerage 7,971 11,754
Trade payables to brokers and clearing Mm HERBAKLEEZ
houses arising from commodities, FERHE 4 RSB FTER X
futures and securities brokerage 116 42,092
Trade payables arising from construction MM K B LY R E 2 E A
machinery and sales of construction 2 FERTERFR
materials 5,922 21,980
Trade payables arising from men’s BN L EEE Z EANERR
and women's apparel 860 808
14,869 76,634
The settlement terms of payable to brokers, clearing houses RIBAFESRLEGELZ BRNER #E

and securities trading clients from the ordinary course of
business of brokerage in securities range from two to three
days after the trade date of those transactions. Margin and
other deposits received from clients for their trading of

commodities and futures contracts were payable on demand.
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33. OTHER CURRENT FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
(continued)

Trade payables (continued)

Trade payables arising from construction machinery and sales
of construction materials business and men’s and women's
apparel principally comprise amounts outstanding for trade
purchases. The normal credit period taken for trade purchases
is 0-45 days.

An aging analysis of the Group's trade payables arising from
construction machinery and sales of construction materials
business and men'’s and women's apparel business at the end

of the reporting period presented based on the invoice dates

33.

HttRnsema s (&)

FEfS RRR (48)

AWM MEEMHHERBURIBERLEK
EAZERNERIECEESIBEZHAREE
RE-BIBEZRERHH0OELSA -

REE NS IR B MM MR HE
EBARBRRZEFEHELE Z ENRRBE
BHRAH2INZREDTAOT

is as follows:
2019 2018
—E-NF —T-)N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHTT
0-30 days 0-30 H 1,581 17,188
31-60 days 31-60H 1,724 2,698
61-180 days 61-180 H 2,058 1,987
181-365 days 181-365 H 151 769
Over 365 days BB 365 H 1,268 146
6,782 22,788
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33. OTHER CURRENT FINANCIAL LIABILITIES 33. HittiEemasE (&)
(continued)
Other payables, deposits received and accruals HitEARIE - EWRFI & RETER
Other payables principally comprise amounts outstanding for HAENRIAE 2 BB AR AR ENTUR -
ongoing costs.
Included in the Group's other payables, deposits received AEBEMENFKE BRI RETERE
and accruals are other payables of HK$Nil (2018: FEEE T (ZF—/\F ¢ 7,275,000/ 7T) #) H At
HK$7,275,000) denominated in the currency other than the FENZIE TN EBEENGEEEUIINZE
functional currency of the respective group entities. WatE -
Contract liabilities BREE
31 March 1 April 31 March
2019 2018 2017
—E-hEF —2-N\F —E—+F
=ZA=+-—H mMA—H =RA=+—H
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THExT FAT FAT
Contract liabilities AHEE 628 1,951 -

The contract liabilities represented the aggregate amount of
the transaction price allocated to the performance obligations
that are unsatisfied as of the end of the reporting period. The
Group expects the transaction price allocated to the
unsatisfied performance obligations will be recognised as
revenue when the Group transfers goods to the customer.
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 #E—T—AF=A=+—HBI-FE

33. OTHER CURRENT FINANCIAL LIABILITIES 33. HtiEmemas (&)
(continued)

Contract liabilities (continued) EHEEBE(E)
Contract liabilities include short-term advances received to BHEBRRBARMEW ERZHmMIE 2
deliver machinery and spare parts. The decrease in contract REBR - RZE-—NF=A=1+T—0 &4
liabilities as at 31 March 2019 was mainly due to the decrease BERLSEEHNF R HEERMRERZMH
in short-term advances received from customers in relation to i A & P WCHR 2 58 BR B TR A ©
the sales of machinery and spare parts at the end of the year.
Contract
liabilities
EHEE
HK$'000
T
At 1 April 2018 — HKFRS 15 RZZE—N\FUA—H —BEY®
HELERNFE 1555 1,951
Decrease in contract liabilities as a result of AFRNERAERFEIAGNEBZ
recognising revenue during the year that was WABH&a @D
included in the contract liabilities at
the beginning of the year (1,951)
Increase in the contract liabilities as a result of HEHEEmAlRAI A EEN
billing in advances of sales of goods BB B 628
At 31 March 2019 R=Z—-hF=HA=+—H 628
34. SECURED NOTES 34. BEHE
2019 2018
—E-NF —T—)\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Current: BNER
— SN1 Notes (note a) — F—ERBERE (MiFa) - 155,840
Non-current: JERNER
— SN2 Notes (note b) — B-HEERER (HiEb) 350,000 350,000
350,000 505,840
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For the yea

rended 31 March 2019 &2 —Z—hF=A=+—HIFE

34. SECURED NOTES (continued)

Notes:

(a)

On 10 October 2017, the Group entered into a subscription
agreement (the "SN1 Subscription Agreement”) with an
independent third party (the “SN1 Subscriber”). Pursuant to the
SN1 Subscription Agreement, the Group agreed to issue and the
SN1 Subscriber agreed to subscribe for notes (the “SN1 Notes”) in
the aggregate principal amount of up to US$20,000,000 (or
approximately HK$155,840,000). The maturity date of the SN1
Notes is one year after the issue date. The SN1 Notes bears fixed
coupon rate at 8% per annum. As at 31 March 2018, the SN1 Notes
is secured by certain of the Group's investments held for trading
and available-for-sale investments with fair value of HK$418,740,000
and HK$58,878,000 respectively. The SN1 Notes was repaid on 8
October 2018.

The SN1 Notes is classified as financial liabilities at amortised cost
under HKFRS 9 and HKAS 39 as at 31 March 2019 and 2018
respectively. The adoption of HKFRS 9 has no material impact on
the Group's accounting policies related to financial liabilities at
amortised cost at the date of initial application 1 April 2018.

On 10 January 2018, the Group entered into a subscription
agreement (the "SN2 Subscription Agreement”) with an
independent third party (the “SN2 Subscriber”). Pursuant to the
SN2 Subscription Agreement, the Group agreed to issue and the
SN2 Subscriber agreed to subscribe for notes (the “SN2 Notes”) in
the aggregate principal amount of up to HK$350,000,000. The
maturity date of the SN2 Notes is five years after the issue date
without repayable on demand clause. The SN2 Notes bears fixed
coupon rate at 9.75% per annum. As at 31 March 2019 and 2018,
the SN2 Notes is secured by the entire issued share capital of a
subsidiary of the Company.

Pursuant to the terms of SN2 Subscription Agreement, the Group
may redeem the SN2 Notes within five years from the issue date.
The redemption amount of the SN2 Notes will be: i) 103% of the
principal amount if the redemption is made on the date falling the
first anniversary of the issue date; ii) 106.35% of the principal
amount if the redemption is made on the date falling the second
anniversary of the issue date; iii) 110.15% of the principal amount if
the redemption is made on the date falling the third anniversary of
the issue date; iv) 114.35% of the principal amount if the
redemption is made on the date falling the fourth anniversary of
the issue date; and v) 119.1% of the principal amount if the
redemption is made on the date falling the fifth anniversary of the
issue date.

The effective interest rate of SN2 Notes is 12.68% per annum.

The SN2 Notes is classified as financial liabilities at amortised cost
under HKFRS 9 and HKAS 39 as at 31 March 2019 and 2018
respectively. The adoption of HKFRS 9 has no material impact on
the Group's accounting policies related to financial liabilities at
amortised cost at the date of initial application 1 April 2018.
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34. BEEHERE(B)

Wi

(a)

RZZ—+F+A+E AEERE-—ELBIFE=
I E—REERFEZERBAD T LRE RS
((E—rEEREEIBHR]) - REF—0HA
ERZERBEGE  ASEREHTME—H

RAZERBARNERBACLERS A
20,000,000 3% 7T ( Bk #9155,840,0007% T ) 2 2 i
([E—0REERER]) - F—HERRZREZE
HBEARITHNE —F - F—HAREZRKE
FervBEEZEMEFE - R=ZFE—-—N\F=A
=+—8  EF—HEEREBRUREERFESD
7l 5 418,740,000 7% 7T &2 58,878,000 78 7T 2 & T
EEERERAIEHEREFERR - E—HAK
WEEER=_F—N\F+HA/N\BEE-

RIEB-NER-ZF-NF=ZRA=+—H F—
DEERZBI D BATEMBHREERE9
SERE B RS ERIE 395K MREE A AR SIR Z
SREE - RRBBPHRELRFORLEY
AEBERRERBH T N\FNA—BiZ
KA SR A EAAMZ & BERBKIE
REATE -

RZZE—N\F—A+B AEEHE-—ELBHIFE=
HFE-—REERZEBRBADITURERZ
([BF-—REEAEEIBHE]) - BREE_H

BEZERE RS  ASBREFTME_HE
BAZERABARNERBACBLERS A
350,000,000/ 02 & ([ E—REEFERE]) -
FBE_MBEFRBE AR ARTERERE(CR
BEERZERERGER) - E_HARFRERS
FO%ZEEREMAEFE - RZZE—NFR
- )\F=ZA=t+—H ' ' FZHHRBPEEIN
ARARMER B2 HE BITRAMEER o

BEE_MEERAZBERERRNER  A5E
ARETEHBRTAFANERE —HEERHFR
B-F_HEERRRNBEOSEEA ) MWE
BRSNS —@EFAETEE - AAXLE
#)103% : i) fWAEE1T A HIR 3 — (S AETIE
[ - Bl AL %R 106.35% i) 21T H H/
FoEAFHETER - BAKRSTEN110.15%
iv) MEEETT A AR ENEE S B#TER - AlA
ANEER114.35%  Rkv) HEETEHNERR
BAFEBETER - AARESTER119.1% ¢

F_MABRRZBENOERENES12.68% °

RIEB-NER-ZF-NF=ZRA=+—H F=
DEEREBRD D BATEMBHREERE9
SERE B GRS 395K IR T REE A AR SIER Z
SREE - RRBBPHRELRFORLEY
AEBERMRERBH -_T—-N\FNA—BiZ
KSR SR A EAMZ & BERBKIE
REATE -
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 #E—T—AF=A=+—HBI-FE

35. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS AND LIABILITIES 35. EEBBEERERE
The following is the major deferred tax (liabilities) assets NTRAFEEHRATIZEEHIB(BE) EE
recognised and movement thereon during the current year: NMEE
Fair value Fair value
change of  adjustment
investments  on property,
held for plant and
trading/  equipment
financial and
assets at intangible  Impairment
Accelerated fair value assets on losses of
tax through  acquisition of financial
depreciation Tax losses  profitorloss  subsidiaries assets Total
BEEERE/ R
UATEHE  WEARN
BEB{GFA 0% BE
BEzER  RREUR
ilpid BBz HBREEz SREEZ
BRITE WEEE AVESE ATESEER HEEE e
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TiER TEL TEL THEL THEL TEL
At 1 April 2017 RZZ—t4MA-H (30,781) 6,364 (51,025) (52,554) - (127,996)
Credit (charge) to profitor loss ~ RE&ESE (1) 2,023 (1,586) 21,253 5,129 = 26,819
At 31 March 2018 RIE-\F=A=1—H (28,758) 4,778 (29,772) (47,425) - (101,177)
Effect of adoption of HKFRS 9 RAEAH B EE8
FORTE = = = = 13,250 13,250
At 1 April 2018 (restated) R-ZE-N\ENA—A
(i &E5) (28,758) 4778 (29.772) (47,425) 13,250 (87.927)
Credit (charge) to profitor loss R E&#E % (H1F) 2,106 (865) 65,465 9,535 = 76,241
At 31 March 2019 RZZ2-AE=A=+-H (26,652) 3913 35,693 (37,890) 13,250 (11,686)

The following is the analysis of the deferred tax balances for

financial reporting purposes:

TR BREM 5 2BLEFRIRRBIN

2019 2018

—E-hEF —E-N\F

HK$'000 HK$'000

TET TFETT

Deferred tax assets RIEF B EE 52,856 4,743
Deferred tax liabilities FEEFIEEE (64,542) (105,920)
(11,686) (101,177)
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z —F— A F=A=+—HBIFE

36. BORROWINGS 36. BE
2019 2018
—E-hF —F-N\%F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET THET
Bank loans — secured (note a) RITER — BEM (HEa) 361,201 394,355
Corporate bonds and notes — unsecured ¥ EAREFE — EEMA
(note b) (i b) 155,000 162,550
Securities margin loans — secured (note ¢) B HRBFLEH — GHEB (HzEc) 168,993 148,000
Other borrowings — secured (note d) HipfEE — AHEA (M) 1,325,709 108,680
Other borrowings — unsecured (note e) HipfEE — &M (HEe) 70,000 40,000
2,080,903 853,585
Carrying amounts repayable (based onthe  EEEZRESZE (BEERHZ
scheduled repayment dates set out in FrEl 2z TAEER B HETHE) ¢
loan agreements):
Within one year —F7R 622,645 547,685
More than one year but not exceeding BB —FERBAMTE
two years 473,058 57,355
More than two years but not exceeding BB EARBAAF
five years 187,439 244,776
More than five years BBRF 797,761 3,769
2,080,903 853,585
Less: Amounts due within one year shown 3§ : R —F 2 ABIHL 51| A
under current liabilities: MEBAEZ SR
— the carrying amounts of bank loans — M BBIRESGERIGERZ
that contain a repayment on RITERZEEERE
demand clause (shown under G AREBEE) -
current liabilities) but repayable: WARA T BEEE -
Within one year A 331,087 508,163
More than one year but not HRiB— A RBBME
exceeding two years 9.854 18,220
More than two years but not HRBRN A RBBRF
exceeding five years 18,170 36,906
More than five years BERF 3,789 3,769
362,900 567,058
— carrying amounts due within — WEM A AR EIER
one year without repayable on BRZR—F2ZA
demand clause gl o T ok
259,745 39,522
622,645 606,580
Amounts shown under non-current liabilities 3| AJEREIBE 2 &5 1,458,258 247,005
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36. BORROWINGS (continued)

Notes:

(a)

As at 31 March 2019, the Group's bank loans and other banking
facilities approximately of HK$61,202,000 (2018: HK$56,590,000)
were secured by leasehold land and building of HK$7,200,000
(2018: HK$6,296,000) and pledged bank deposits of HK$4,654,000
(2018: HK$4,627,000). The bank borrowings carried floating rates
ranged from 2.79% to 6.13% (2018: 3.5% to 4.88%) per annum.

As at 31 March 2019, the Group's bank borrowings approximately
of HK$300,000,000 (2018: HK$70,000,000) were secured by the
Group's financial assets at FVTPL/investments held for trading of
HK$869,102,000 (2018: HK$270,000,000). The bank borrowings
carried fixed rates of 7.0% (2018: 6.5%) per annum.

As at 31 March 2019, the Group's bank borrowing approximately of
HK$Nil (2018: HK$247,765,000) was secured by the Group's
investments held for trading and available-for-sale investments of
HK$Nil (2018: HK$358,580,000 and HK$405,098,680). The bank
borrowing carried interest at HIBOR plus 5.6% per annum.

The borrowings are unsecured, carried fixed rate ranges from 3.25%
to 7.5% per annum (2018: 3.25% to 7.5% per annum) and will
mature in year 2020 to 2023 (2018: year 2018 to 2023).

As at 31 March 2019, amount represented loan facilities received
from securities broking house and were secured by investments
held for trading of HK$347,190,000 (2018: HK$204,800,000). The
entire loans were repayable on demand and carried fixed interest
rate of 3.55% per annum (2018: 3.75% per annum).

It is the Group policy to lease certain of its motor vehicles and
machinery under financing arrangement. The Group entered into
financing arrangement with several financial institutions, pursuant
to which the Group transferred the legal title of certain machinery
of the Group to these financial institutions at net consideration of
HK$28,459,000 (2018: HK$87,817,000). The Group is obligated to
pay monthly instalments in accordance with respective agreements.
Upon the maturity of the lease, the Group is entitled to purchase
back the machinery at cash considerations in accordance with
respective agreements which are expected lower than the market
values of respective machinery. Despite the fact that the
arrangement involves a legal form of a lease, the Group accounted
for the arrangement as a collateralised borrowing at amortised cost
using effective interest method, in accordance with the substance
of the arrangement.

36. EE(%E)

B

(a)

RZF-—AF=A=1+—8 ' AEEHNRITER
R E A RITE A #961,202,00058 7T (ZF— )\ 4 :
56,590,000 7% 7T ) LA 78 & + #b & 1 577,200,000 7
TT(ZZ— )\ : 6,296,0007870) Rk EEIBIRITIFE
04,654,000 7t ( = F — J\4F : 4,627,000 7T )
BRI - RITEBEUZSHFREFIR279%E
6.13% (ZF— \F : 35% £ 4.88%)+t 8 °

RZZE—NEF=ZA=1+—0  XEEHRTEE
#9300,000,0007% 7t ( = & — J\ & : 70,000,000 7
) AAEBHAAFEFE RS AR
ZEREE FEBEERE 869,102,000 T (=
=T — J\4F : 270,000,000 7T ) {48 - SRITIEE
IABE R R GERT.0%( =B —/\F : 6.5%)5H8 o

RZZ—AEFE=ZA=+—H8 A"EENRITEE
HTHBTT(ZF— )\F : 247,765,000/ 70) AR E
ENREEERERITHEERETHET(ZS
— J\£ : 358,580,000% 7T & 405,098,680 % 7t ) {E
A - RITIEEEFREABITRERSMNG.6%
B e

BEAEIER BN TEFIBRETSN(ZT
— )\ : §E325%E7.5%) ZEFEMERTS - X
BR-_B-_ZFEF_E_=F(ZZ2—\F: =
T N\FE_ZT_=F)FH-

RZZE—NEF=ZA=1+—0 2BEAKABLE
BARNERRE  FEREUREEERE
347,190,000 7T (=2 — J\ 4 : 204,800,000 7% 7T.)
EIEHR - 2MERHLEREE - WAETER X
BFIEIHSWE(ZE—NF : BF375%) ©

AEENBRARERELRHHEES T /98 ki
W AEBESZReMEEILRMERH B
It - AN 5 8 DA R R B 28,459,0008 T (=2 — \
4+ 87,817,000 70 ) i H A& T HAR )5 TE S M
ETZECREE AEEERBRBSENH
FRAS AR - RAEERH%  AEERER
RBE AN BEABHEAEBARMETENRSNR
BREEEWN BREZLEPRHEERNEEZRA
EAREBEREZLHEE - RABRA A RS
R AT EARARIFEE -
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36. BORROWINGS (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(d

36. EE(%E)

Bt - ()

(continued) (d) (%)
The lease terms range from 3 to 5 years (2018: 3 to 5 years) under BIFEREEZH  ABENTFIZESF(ZT—N
sale and leaseback arrangement. Interest rates underlying all F:3E5F)  FTAABRENFNEREEHE
arrangements are either fixed ranging from 2.88% to 4.97% per HETE  FHMER288%ELIIW(ZT—N\F:
annum (2018: ranging from 7.14% to 11.97% per annum) or variable FRNKRTN4%EN197%) R FF E354%=
ranging from 3.54% to 5.15% per annum (2018: ranging from 5.49% 5.15% (=& — )\ & : F | E5.49% £9.82%) T
to 9.82% per annum) at respective contract dates. None of the % - MEHTREXAESE -
leases include contingent rentals.
Present value of minimum
lease payments
BREEENRZRE
2019 2018
—E-hF —E-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTERT FHET
Principal amount: REHE -
Within one year —F 2N 56,915 42,399
Within a period of more than one year but BB —FERBEMRT
not more than two years 26,457 34,513
Within a period of more than two years but BB EERBBTE
not more than five years 11,224 31,768
94,596 108,680
Less: Amount due for settlement within 12 B R A B AR HEE B
months (shown under current liabilities) HIE G ARBEE) (56,915) (56,675)
Amount due for settlement after 12 months R+ B A BB E A ERFKIE 37,681 52,005

Other borrowings are effectively secured by the underlying assets
of HK$125,981,000 (2018: HK$165,787,000) as the rights to the
leased assets would be reverted to the lessor in the event of default
by repayment by the Group.

As at 31 March 2019, the Group's other borrowings approximately
of HK$391,400,000 (2018: HK$Nil) were secured by 56% of issued
share capital of the Group's subsidiaries, Hao Tian International
Construction Investment Group Limited. The other borrowings
carried fixed interest rates of 8.0% and handing fee of 1.0% per
annum.

As at 31 March 2019, the Group's other borrowings approximately
of HK$837,712,000 (2018: HK$Nil) were secured by investment
property in London, 55 Mark Lane. The other borrowings carried
fixed interest rates of 3.24% per annum.
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H A& & R ARRE & & 125,981,000 T (Z T — N\
4 165,787,0008 7T ) 1B LA » 1k TY 6 7
EAEBRBRER  MEESEENENSSET
HAEA °

RZZE-—NF=A=+—8 A5BEHD
391,400,000 T (=T — N\F : THx) 2 Hfbfs
BENUAEERBARZABEBERRESES
PRAFIE BT 2 56% (EHE 1 - HbfEEIRE
TEFFELO%ETE  WHFEW1.0% 2 FEE -

R-ZZE—-hE=ZA=1+—0 2B AHYH
837,712,000 (ZF—\F : THIT) 2 Hthfg
BT AR Z B WSS Mark Lane {EIKIE - H
fibf& IR E E G 7K 3.24% 51 8. »
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 #E—T—AF=A=+—HBI-FE

36. BORROWINGS (continued)

37.

Notes: (continued)

(e)  Amount represents a borrowing from a director of a subsidiary of
the Company. The borrowing carried a fixed interest of 2.0% per
annum, unsecured and without repayable on demand clause.

Included in the Group's borrowings are borrowings of
HK$391,400,000 (2018: HK$Nil) denominated in the currency
other than the functional currency of the respective group

entities.

36. fEE(%E)

BaE - (&)

() SHEAKBARAMBARNEFEMNEE - BES
FREFENE20%5HE - BERALERERHIZE
SRABE R ©

AEEEEREASEBTENINEEB AN
EikHE 2 £ 5 391,400,000/ T (=ZF — \4F :
THIT) ©

OBLIGATIONS UNDER FINANCE LEASES 37. MEHERE
2019 2018
—B-NF —B-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET

Analysed for reporting purposes as: MRERAEINE

Current liabilities BB E 4,153 4,340
Non-current liabilities EmENAE 5,704 8,341
9,857 12,681

It is the Group's policy to lease certain of its motor vehicles
and machineries under financing arrangement. The lease
terms ranged from 3 to 5 years (2018: 3 to 5 years). Interest
rates underlying all obligations under finance leases are fixed
ranging from 1.40% to 4.14% per annum (2018: 6.00% to
11.27% per annum) at respective contract dates. None of the

leases include contingent rentals.

AEBZBRAREREALCHAEHETASE
KRR - N FIESF (2T —\F : 3E5
F) FERMEAHERAEMEBRNEREEEH
BEN TEF140%E414%( =F — )\ F :
6.00%Z11.27%) 2 EEF = - HETBIEK
SRS -
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37.
(continued)

OBLIGATIONS UNDER FINANCE LEASES

Minimum

lease payments

37. MEMEERE(B)

Present value of
minimum lease payments

BRIEBE A BREHEMNRZRE
2019 2018 2019 2018
—®-NEF —T-\F ZB-NEF —T-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET THT FHET TR
Obligations under finance BT RV E TR EAGE -
leases payable:
Within one year —F7NA 4,478 4,776 4,153 4,340
Within a period of more BB —FRRBBME
than one year but not
more than two years 3,647 3,846 3,485 3,445
Within a period of more BB EERBBARS
than two years but not
more than five years 2,260 4,906 2,219 4,896
10,385 13,528 9,857 12,681
Less: future finance charges  Ji : HERE S H (528) (847) N/ATER N/ATEA
Present value of lease HEREZIRE
obligations 9,857 12,681 9,857 12,681
Less: Amount due for B A {8 A B H
settlement with twelve HEIBHRIE (B A
months (shown under mENEE)
current liabilities) (4,153) (4,340
Amount due for settlement 1 —{E A& 28
after twelve months 4EEMFRIA 5,704 8,341
Obligations under finance leases are effectively secured by EAEEBRERNBRT  HEEENER
the underlying assets as the rights to the leased assets would BEELEA  MEEHEREETRAERBE
be reverted to the lessor in the event of default of repayment EEA -

by the Group.
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38. CHANGE OF GROUP’S INTEREST IN
SUBSIDIARIES/OTHER LIABILITY

(A)

During the year ended 31 March 2019, the Group's
interests in Hao Tian International Construction was
increased from 62.50% to 70.18% as a result of the

following transactions:

(i) On 8 August 2018, Hao Tian International
Construction completed right issues of
1,200,000,000 right shares on the basis of one
rights share for every two existing shares (the
"Rights Issue”), the details of which are set out in
the announcement issued by the Company and
Hao Tian International Construction on 8 August
2018. The Group subscribed 914,769,376 rights
shares and the Group's interests in Hao Tian
International Construction increased from 62.5%
to 64.79% upon the completion of the Rights

Issue.

The difference between the fair value of the total
consideration and the proportionate share of net
assets of Hao Tian International Construction of
HK$1,792,000 is recognised directly in equity; and

(i)  On 21 March 2019, the Group acquired of
30,104,000 shares of Hao Tian International
Construction at an average price of HK$0.36 per
share in the secondary market (the “Secondary
Market Acquisition”). Upon completion of the
Secondary Market Acquisition, the Group's
interests in Hao Tian International Construction
was increased from 64.79% to 70.18%.

As at 31 March 2019, the Group owns 70.18% of
issued share capital of Hao Tian International

Construction.

As the above transactions do not result in the
Group losing control over Hao Tian International
Construction, they are accounted for as equity

transactions.

38. AEERMELARZERSE Hitt

&8\

(A)

BE-_ZE—NF=A=+—HBILEE "
EUTRSTKE  AEBRZRBER
2R 7 RS R 62.50% 18 AN E 70.18%

i) RNZZE-—NFENANB ' 2XREE
ERTHIRTIEEMRIRE RN E
B —RRUEAR AR 19 2 B XELAEEAR 75 =X
([ £ B 1) %% 77 1,200,000,000 % £
RS - BEAFBEHERAREIRR
FEBZER - N\FNANH
iz nE AEBRE
914,769,376 % AR AR 1+ 1 7£ 4
REMKE @ AEBRRRERER
ZHERT H62.5% T 64.79% °

BREQTFEESREREBRER
BEFEZ LB Z Z%581,792,000
BITHEBERESER &

iy R=ZFE-—NAF=A=+—8 %%
BN —FmiseER0.368 T2 F
¥ (& Uk BE 30,104,000 i% 2 KBRS 32
ZRH((=ZFhiaREEE]) - X
TER—FHBWEFIEE AR
RERABEEZZERE S#
64.79% 38 NN 70.18% ©

R-ZE—NF=A=1+—8 K&
E#E R ABBRERCBRITRAZ
70.18%

BN Bl R S EEHAEERE

HERERZROESIE - gUtE
AP TIIARBEARS
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38. CHANGE OF GROUP’S INTEREST IN
SUBSIDIARIES/OTHER LIABILITY (continued)

(B)

Hao Tian Management

On 22 May 2016, Hao Tian Management, an indirect
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into
a subscription agreement (the "HTM Subscription
Agreement”) with Vandi Investments Limited (“Vandi”),
an independent third party, pursuant to which, Vandi
agreed to subscribe for, and Hao Tian Management
agreed to issue, 821 new ordinary shares for a
consideration of US$40 million (equivalent to
HK$311,561,000) (the “HTM Subscription”). The HTM
Subscription was completed on 23 August 2016. Upon
the completion of the HTM subscription, Hao Tian
Management remains as an indirect non-wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company and will be owned as to
approximately 92.41% and approximately 7.59% by the
Company and Vandi respectively. As part of the HTM
Subscription Agreement, upon the completion of the
HTM Subscription, the Company entered into a call
option deed ("HTD Option Deed”) with Vandi,
pursuant to which, the Company granted a call option
to Vandi to subscribe up to 389,940,000 shares of the
Company (the "HTD Option”) at an exercise price of
HK$0.8 per share (adjusted to 454,930,000 shares and
HK$0.69 per share after completion of the Year 2017

Bonus Issue, as defined in note 41).

The difference between the increase in non-controlling
interests of HK$45,579,000, the cash consideration of
HK$311,561,000, and the aggregated carrying value of
the option arising from HTM Subscription of
HK$271,472,000, i.e. HK$5,490,000, has been debited to

other reserve at initial recognition.
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38. AEERMELARZERSE Hit
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Bt - Vandi AERE MEAEERE
17821 IR AR - 1X{8 /% 40,000,000
ZE7t (ABE R 311,561,000 7T) ([RXE
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38. CHANGE OF GROUP’S INTEREST IN
SUBSIDIARIES/OTHER LIABILITY (continued)

(@)

Hao Tian Finance

On 9 April 2015, Hao Tian Finance, entered into a
subscription agreement (the “First Subscription
Agreement”) with Rui Sheng Global Holdings Limited
("RSGHL"), an independent third party. Pursuant to the
First Subscription Agreement, RSGHL agreed to
subscribe for and Hao Tian Finance agreed to issue,
Hao Tian Finance's new shares at a consideration of
HK$100 million (the “First Subscription”). The First
Subscription was completed on 13 May 2015.

As part of the First Subscription Agreement, the
Company granted RSGHL a right with a consideration of
HK$1.00 that on the occurrence of Hao Tian Finance
and the Company fails to have all the shares of Hao Tian
Finance to be listed on either the Main Board or the
GEM of the Stock Exchange within three years after the
completion of the First Subscription (the "Event”), i.e. 8
April 2018, RSGHL shall have the right to request the
Company to purchase all or part of the shares at a price
of HK$1.15 per share (the “HTF Put Option”) at any
time within three months after occurrence of the Event.
As at date of issue, the present value of gross liability of
HK$91,291,000 of the HTF Put Option has been
accounted for as other liability in the consolidated
statement of financial position. The effective interest
rate of the other liability is 8.00% per annum.

During the year ended 31 March 2019, an imputed
interest on the other liability of HK$Nil (2018:
HK$7,930,000) is recognised as finance costs in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other

comprehensive income.

As at 31 March 2019, the present value of the other
liability is HK$Nil (2018: HK$114,420,000).

e B RRE

NE=ZRA=+—HLFE

38. AEERMELARZERSE Hitt
aEGE)

(€
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z —F— A F=A=+—HBIFE

38. CHANGE OF GROUP’S INTEREST IN
SUBSIDIARIES/OTHER LIABILITY (continued)

(€

(D)

Hao Tian Finance (continued)

On 9 April 2018, RSGHL has exercised the put option
and put back its entire interest, i.e. 100,000,000 shares,
in Hao Tian Finance to the Group at a total
consideration of HK$115,000,000. Subsequently, the
Group's interests in Hao Tian Finance has increased

from approximately 75.2% to approximately 83.5%.

As the above transaction did not result change in the
Group's control over Hao Tian Finance, it is accounted
for as equity transaction. The difference between the
fair value of the total consideration and the
proportionate share of net assets of Hao Tian Finance of
HK$78,913,000 is recognised directly in equity.

Access Profit Group

On 9 November 2018, Tenfield Investments Limited, a
directly wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
entered into a sale and purchase agreement with an
independent third party to dispose of its entire equity
interests in Access Profit Global Enterprises Group
Limited (“Access Profit”) and its subsidiaries, at a
consideration of HK$180 million. The transaction was
completed on 22 November 2018. Upon the date of
completion, the Group does not have any interests in

Access Profit.
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 #E—T—AF=A=+—HBI-FE

38. CHANGE OF GROUP'S INTEREST IN 38. XEERMBARIZESZES Hit
SUBSIDIARIES/OTHER LIABILITY (continued) a8E (&)
(D) Access Profit Group (continued) (D) MHBEE(E)
Details of the net assets of the subsidiaries at the date RHEBHHBRARZEEFEZHB
of disposal were as follows: Ul

22 November 2018
2N\ +—-HA=+=H

HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FAT
Property, plant and equipment M - BE MR 505
Prepaid lease payment TAREEFRIE 15,662
Premium over prepaid lease payment TENHERIE 2 R(E 123,742
Other receivables, deposits and Ha WA - Fl2 Rk
prepayments AL 1
Bank balances and cash RITHEER LIRS 92
Other payables and accruals H{th f& A~ 5RIE M AT B (17,295) 122,707
Gain on disposal of subsidiary FABFARMZEE
included in profit for the year M ARz Was 57,293
Total consideration BR(E 180,000
Satisfied by: ATRB) A ER
Cash Re 84,000
Deferred consideration EIERE 96,000
Total st 180,000
Net cash inflow arising on disposal: HEEECZHESRAFE
Cash consideration REREB 84,000
Cash balances disposed of HER S &5 (92)
83,908
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z=%

39.

40.

—NhE=ZA=+—RLFE

RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
(the "Scheme”) for all qualifying employees of the Group in
Hong Kong. The assets of the Scheme are held separately in
an independently administrated fund. The Group has chosen
to follow the minimum statutory contribution requirement of
5% of eligible Hong Kong employees’ monthly relevant
income but limited to the cap of HK$1,500 per month. The

contributions are charged to profit or loss.

The employees of the Group's subsidiaries in the PRC are
members of state-managed retirement benefit schemes
operated by respective local governments. The subsidiaries
are required to contribute a specific percentage of their
payroll costs to the retirement benefit schemes to fund the
benefits. The only obligation of the Group with respect to the
retirement benefit scheme is to make the specified

contributions.

During the year, the total amounts contributed by the Group
to the schemes and cost charged to profit or loss of
HK$3,467,000 (2018: HK$3,186,000) represent contribution
paid or payable to the schemes by the Group at rates

specified in the rules of the schemes.
CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 March 2019, the Group provided corporate
guarantees and performance guarantee amounting to
approximately HK$Nil (2018: HK$333,000) and HK$10,170,000
(2018: HK$11,200,000) to banks in respect of obligations
under finance leases and the Group's obligations under
contracts with certain third party customers. Under the
guarantees, the Group would be liable to make payments to
the banks if the bank is unable to recover the amounts under
these finance leases from these customers or the Group failed
to perform the relevant obligations to these customers. As at
31 March 2019 and 2018, no provision for the Group's
obligation under the guarantee contracts has been made as
the directors of the Company considered that it was not
probable that the repayment of the finance lease obligations
would be in default and it was not probable that a claim will

be made against the Group.
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 #E—T—AF=A=+—HBI-FE

41. SHARE CAPITAL 41. R
Nominal value Number of Share
per share shares capital
BREE REEE [
HK$ HK$'000
BT FET
Ordinary shares gl
Authorised: B
At 1 April 2017, 31 March 2018 R-ZE—+H&@TBE—H -
and 31 March 2019 —E2-NE=A=1+—H
E—Z-h&E=A=+—-H 0.01 50,000,000,000 500,000
Issued and fully paid: BEETRAR :
At 1 April 2017 RZE—tFWMA—H 0.01 4,186,167,450 41,862
Issue of shares by bonus issue AREEITEITZRG
(note a) (ffsEa) 0.01 697,694,575 6,976
Issue of emolument shares (note b) BITIRENIRD (HisEb) 0.01 14,175,779 142
At 31 March 2018 RZFE—-\F=A=+—H 0.01 4,898,037,304 48,980
Issue of consideration shares BITRERSD (Hiitc)
(note c) 0.01 372,585,332 3,726
Issue of emolument shares (note b) BITHREIID (HREb) 0.01 14,175,779 142
At 31 March 2019 R-B-hE=A=+-8 001 5284798915 52,848
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—NhE=ZA=+—RLFE

41. SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

Details of the changes in the Company’s share capital for the
years ended 31 March 2019 and 2018 are as follows:

(a)

On 19 April 2017, the directors of the Company
proposed a bonus issue on the basis of one bonus share
for every six existing shares held. The bonus issue was
approved by the shareholders on 5 July 2017 and
697,694,575 bonus shares were issued on 25 July 2017
("Year 2017 Bonus Issue”).

On 26 September 2016, the Company entered into a
director’s services agreement with Mr. Fok covering
period from 27 September 2016 to 26 September 2019.
Pursuant to the announcement dated 25 July 2017, a
bonus issue on the basis of one bonus share for every
six existing shares was approved and issued, 41,514,782
shares of the Company will be allotted and issued to
Mr. Fok during his service period. The aggregate value
of these shares is HK$15,000,000 which was determined
by reference to the Company’s average share price of
the last ten consecutive trading dates immediately prior
to 27 September 2016, i.e. HK$0.4115. Details of which
are set out in the Company’s circular issued on 25
January 2017. The services agreement was approved by
the shareholders on 17 February 2017, 14,175,779 shares
(2018: 14,175,779 shares) has been allotted and issued
on 26 March 2019. If Mr. Fok ceases to be an executive
director of the Company before the allotment dates
specified in the circular, his entitlement will be

calculated on a pro rata basis.

Pursuant to the announcement dated 13 February 2019,
consideration share was approved and issued,
372,585,332 shares of the Company will be allotted and
issued to Hao Tian Media & Culture Co. Ltd, as a
consideration of acquiring 49% of issued equity interest
of Grand Peaceful Global Limited, pursuant to the

General Mandate.

All the shares which were issued during both years rank pari

passu with the then existing shares in all respects.
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z—T—AF=A=+—HItFE

42. RESERVES 42. #1E
Share premium g viy =
2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTET T
At the beginning of year REH] 4,273,404 4,275,522
Issue of emolument shares BT IR AR(D 4,858 4,858
Issue of new shares upon bonus issue EAT AR 31T A TRT AR (D - (6,976)
Issue of consideration shares BITRERD 74,397 -
At the end of year RER 4,352,659 4,273,404
Statutory surplus reserve EEBEREE
2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTET FAT
At the beginning and the end of year RE) R F 4L 3,539 3,539
Share option and emolument share reserve BRERRBRG#E
2019 2018
—ZE-hEF —E-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT
At the beginning of year REY) 800 1,237
Transfer to accumulated profits upon PR BRI R S B = 25T s T
forfeiture of share options lapsed - (437)
At the end of year RELR 800 800
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z —F— A F=A=+—HBIFE

42. RESERVES (continued)

42. #1E (&)

Asset revaluation reserve EEEMHE
2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTET T
At the beginning of year REF] 489,312 631,389
HKFRS adjustment (note 2) BBV BREER TR (fiE2) (489,312) -
Fair value changes on available-for-sale AHEEREN DT EED
investments - (155,880)
Reclassification adjustment to profit or loss  FREEEEF D AR E B
on impairment loss = 1,748
Share to non-controlling interests Dk IR AR = 12,055
At the end of year RE#L - 489,312
Special reserve kRS
2019 2018
—F-nEFE ZZT)N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
THExT FAT
At the beginning and the end of year REY M F 4R (5,754) (5,754)
2019 2018
—E-NF —E-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHET THBT
FVTOCI reserve UAEEFEEHESEETA
Hib 2 E Wz 2 %15
At the beginning of year REH) - -
HKFRS adjustment (note 2) BBV BREEL TR (HE2) (213,034) =
At the end of year REFK (217,598) =
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 #E—T—AF=A=+—HBI-FE

42. RESERVES (continued) 42. #E(8)

Translation reserve BE 5
2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET T
At the beginning of year REL 8,617 (9,250)
Exchange differences arising on PN ETGEE A BV IE 5 2 3R

translation of foreign operations (2,941) 20,767
Share to non-controlling interest DL FEIEIRE R = (2,900)
At the end of year TR 5,676 8,617
Other reserve HAtbf# 6

2019 2018

—E-hEF —E-N\EF

HK$'000 HK$'000

THET T

At the beginning of year RE) (65,774) (97,531)

Capital injection from ultimate shareholder K B&EME 7T E 40,235 -
Change in the Group's ownership AEERREMBARZ

interest in existing subsidiaries Fra s & 85,244 31,757
Deemed acquisition of interest in WA 2 KRBT < #Eas

Hao Tian Finance (Note 38C) (Ff$7%38C) 84,151 -
Deemed acquisition of interest in Hao Tian 1R AU 2 K BIFR#:&

International Construction (Note 38A) 2 #Ew (fEE 38A) (1,792) -
At the end of year MRELR 142,064 (65,774)
Put option reserve ROLERERE

2019 2018

—B-NF —E-N\F

HK$’'000 HK$'000

FHET FHET

At the beginning of year REY) 5,238 5,238
Deemed acquisition of interest in RARWIER 2 KB < #E

Hao Tian Finance (5,238) —
At the end of years RELH = 5,238
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z —F— A F=A=+—HBIFE

43. COMMITMENTS 43. *EifE
(a) Operating lease commitments (a) RKREHERE
The Group as lessor ZKEEERHEA
The Group sub-leased vacant space of its leased AEBERBEEEHERZIHEHEER
warehouse, leased and sub-leased its owned and leased EMEESY  HERHAHEEA LA
machinery and leased its investment property under EMEMIT SR EME -

operating lease agreements.

The minimum rent receivables under non-cancellable SR B AC 5 1H & ) R I S (B A B R IE
operating leases are as follows: T
2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FAT
Within one year — R 70,362 1,912
Within two to five years inclusive F_FEFRF
(BRREBRFEEAN) 188,401 =
More than five years HFLAE 63,419 =
322,182 1,912
The Group as lessee ZKEEEREEA
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had RIPEHR » AEBERBERYENTA
commitments for future minimum lease payments under BN 4% 70 S T B AYER T 51| BB RS B £
non-cancellable operating leases in respect of rented YR REERESMZNT

premises which fall due as follows:

2019 2018

—E-hEF —E-N\F

HK$’'000 HK$'000

FHET FAT

Within one year —E R 9,702 22,786
In the second to fifth year inclusive FE_FEFRF

(EREMEBEEN) 2,104 9,385

11,806 32,171
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43. COMMITMENTS (continued)

(a)

(b)

S B IS R R Y R

For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z—T—AF=A=+—HItFE

43. AIE(E)

Operating lease commitments (continued) (a)

The Group as lessee (continued)

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by

the Group for certain of its office and residential

premises. Leases are negotiated for lease term of one

to five years (2018: one to five years) and rentals are

fixed over the relevant lease term.

reREAE(E)
FEBEREBA (E)

REHENTEARBEREETHA
REEMREAOES - FIEEHE
HBMA—ZERF(—ZT—NF: —ZF
F) MESNEEERAREE

)
Gl

Capital commitment: (b) EAEIE:
2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-N\F
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FHET FAT
Capital expenditure in respect of MARBEWE -
addition of property, plant and VG T
equipment: BEARREY :
— contracted for but not provided — BETREXRA LGS
in the consolidated financial s mRB A
statements 19,253 145,886
Capital expenditure in respect of T ULEE 55 Mark Lane A& A F &
acquisition of 55 Mark Lane - 1,289,211
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z —F— A F=A=+—HBIFE

44. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES/AWARD SCHEME/
EMOLUMENT SHARES

(a)

Share Option Schemes

Upon passing of an ordinary resolution on 25

September 2015, the Company adopted a share option
scheme (the “New Share Option Scheme”) which will
remain valid for a period of 10 years commencing on 25

September 2015 and whereupon the Share Option
Scheme (as defined below) adopted on 16 May 2006
was terminated, while the options granted under the

Share Option Scheme are still exercisable until their

expiry. The major terms of the New Share Option

Scheme are set out below:

i)

(ii)

(iii)

The purpose was to provide incentives to the
participants;

The participants included any full-time or part-
time employees, executives and officers of the
Company and any of its subsidiaries (including
executives, non-executive directors and
independent non-executive directors of the
Company and any of its subsidiaries) and business
consultants and legal and other professional
advisors of the Company or its subsidiaries which,
in the opinion of the Company's board of
directors, has or had made contribution to the
Group;

The maximum number of shares in respect of
which options might be granted under the New
Share Option Scheme must not exceed 30% of the
issued share capital of the Company from time to
time. The number of shares issued and to be
issued in respect of which options granted and
may be granted to any individual in any 12-month
period is not permitted to exceed 1% of the
shares of the Company in issue at any point in
time, without prior approval from the Company’s
shareholders. Options granted to a substantial
shareholder or an independent non-executive
director in excess of 0.1% of the Company'’s share
capital or with a value in excess of HK$5 million
must be approved in advance by the Company'’s
shareholders;
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 #E—T—AF=A=+—HBI-FE

44. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES/AWARD SCHEME/
EMOLUMENT SHARES (continued)

(a) Share Option Schemes (continued)

(iv)

(vi)

In relation to each grantee of the options granted
under the New Share Option Scheme, the right of
the grantee to exercise the option shall be in
accordance with the terms of the New Share
Option Scheme and the period to be notified by
the board of directors of the Company to each
grantee which shall not exceed 10 years from the
date upon which the options is deemed to be

granted and accepted;

The exercise price of an option will be determined
by the board of directors of the Company and will
not be less than the highest of:

o the closing price of the share on the date of
grant;
o the average closing price of the share for the

five business days immediately preceding
the date of grant; and

. the nominal value of the share.

A consideration of HK$1 is payable on acceptance

of the offer of grant of options.

44. BIRFESTE RORBTTEREBR

(%)

(a) HBR#ERE(E)

(iv)

(vi)
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z —F— A F=A=+—HBIFE

44. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES/AWARD SCHEME/
EMOLUMENT SHARES (continued)

(a)

Share Option Schemes (continued)

The Company’s share option scheme (the “Share
Option Scheme”) was adopted on 16 May 2006. The

Share Option Scheme was expired and terminated on

25 September 2015 and was replaced by the New Share

Option Scheme. The major terms of the Share Option

Scheme are set out below:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

The purpose was to provide incentives to the

participants;

The participants included any full-time or part-
time employees, executives and officers of the
Company and any of its subsidiaries (including
executives, non-executive directors and
independent non-executive directors of the
Company and any of its subsidiaries) and business
consultants and legal and other professional
advisors of the Company or its subsidiaries which,
in the opinion of the Company’s board of
directors, has or had made contribution to the

Group;

The maximum number of shares in respect of
which options might be granted under the Share
Option Scheme must not exceed 30% of the
issued share capital of the Company from time to
time. The number of shares issued and to be
issued in respect of which options granted and
may be granted to any individual in any 12-month
period is not permitted to exceed 1% of the
shares of the Company in issue at any point in
time, without prior approval from the Company'’s
shareholders. Options granted to a substantial
shareholder or an independent non-executive
director in excess of 0.1% of the Company’s share
capital or with a value in excess of HK$5 million
must be approved in advance by the Company’s

shareholders;
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 #E—T—AF=A=+—HBI-FE

44. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES/AWARD SCHEME/
EMOLUMENT SHARES (continued)

(a) Share Option Schemes (continued)

(iv)

(vi)

In relation to each grantee of the options granted
under the Share Option Scheme, the right of the
grantee to exercise the option shall vest in three
stages: 30% of share options granted (rounded
down to the nearest whole number of shares) will
vest from the expiry of one year from the
acceptance date of the option (the “Acceptance
Date”) up to the day immediately before the
fourth anniversary of the Acceptance Date; 30% of
share options granted (rounded down to the
nearest whole number of shares) will vest from the
expiry of two years from the Acceptance Date up
to the day immediately before the fifth anniversary
of the Acceptance Date; and 40% of the share
options granted (round down to the nearest whole
number of shares) will vest from the expiry of three
years from the Acceptance Date up to the day
immediately before the sixth anniversary of the

Acceptance Date;

The exercise price of an option will be determined
by the board of directors of the Company and will
not be less than the highest of:

o the closing price of the share on the date of
grant;

o the average closing price of the share for the
five business days immediately preceding
the date of grant; and

° the nominal value of the share.

A consideration of HK$1 is payable on acceptance

of the offer of grant of options.

44. BIRETE RORBETEREBR

% (%8)

(a) HBBR#ERE(E)

(iv)

(vi)

SRR B B EREREN &
ERAME - ARAITERERES
ERNAD = (ERERFR - EREK
1 30% (R =& EZ I EHMAR
MEB) S hERERA A (M1
MBM) e FEEREMA
HmIBSRE A ILRE - BRE
P 30% (RIEESZETBEHA
Bt 8B ) i R B AR SHR
FEERRMAMMIAFANER
ISR ¢ N R O 9 40% (58
BEREOEHNBRMEE) S H
EMRBROR=FEEEERB
HmNBERE B IR

BRENTEERRARRIESS

EE - EBTEER TII=EHH

=4

o BOMNEHBHIKHE :

o EBORERRLAHAAE
BERANFHRHE Rk

e RiEI(E-

AREMR THEREZOR M1
BITHRE -

Annual Report 4%k 2018/19 251



Hao Tian Development Group Limited ® 2 KR EEFR QA

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z —F— A F=A=+—HBIFE

44. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES/AWARD SCHEME/
EMOLUMENT SHARES (continued)

44. BIRESTE RORBTEREBR
(%)

(a) Share Option Schemes (continued) (a) BRETE(E)
Details of the share options outstanding under the P 4F 19 B AR R 1 281 R B s AR =t 2178
Share Option Scheme and the New Share Option TR B ARITERERE R A B FENT
Scheme and movements during the two years were as
follows:
Number of share options
BREZA
Outstanding Lapsed Adjusted  Outstanding  Outstanding
Date of Exercise price  at 1 April during during  at31 March  at 31 March
Grantee grant Exercising period per share 2017 the year the year 2018 2019
R=B-tf R=B-NE RZB-h%
mA—H =A=+-A =ZA=t+-H
EBRA BB figid BRITHE i RATE FREN FRHAZ e RATHE W RATE
HKS (note i)
BT (P5Ei)
Director
g%
Mr. Fok 8.4.2011 8.4.2015t0 8.4.2017 0.74 666,336 (666,336) - - -
EfL 8.4.2015%84.2017
Senior Consultant
BRER
Other employees 8.4.2011 8.4.2015t0 8.4.2017 0.74 166,584 (166,584) - - -
EftfER 8.42015%84.2017
29.1.2016 3.2.2017 t0 2.2.2020 0.28 5,000,000 - 833,333 5,833,333 5,833,333
322017 £2.2.2020
5,832,920 (832.920) 833,333 5,833,333 5,833,333
Weighted average exercise price 0.34 0.28 0.28
IEFATEE
Exercisable at the end of the year 5,832,920 5,833,333 5,833,333
RELA TR
Notes: BT
(i) The numbers of share options were adjusted upon the (i) A B B R AI AR B /TR -
bonus issue.

During the year ended 31 March 2018 and 2019, no
share option expenses were recognised in profit or loss
with a corresponding credit in the Group's share option

and emolument share reserve.
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 #E—T—AF=A=+—HBI-FE

44. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES/AWARD SCHEME/
EMOLUMENT SHARES (continued)

(b)

Share Award Scheme

The Company'’s share award scheme (the “Share Award
Scheme”) was adopted on 27 September 2013. The

major terms of the Share Award Scheme are set out

below:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

The purpose was to provide incentives to the

participants;

The participants included any full-time or part-
time employees, executives and officers of the
Company and any of its subsidiaries (including
executives, non-executive directors and
independent non-executive directors of the
Company and any of its subsidiaries) and business
consultants and legal and other professional
advisors of the Company or its subsidiaries which,
in the opinion of the Company’s board of
directors, has or had made contribution to the

Group;

The number of shares issued and to be issued in
respect of which options granted and may be
granted to any individual in any 12-month period
is not permitted to exceed 1% of the shares of the
Company in issue at the date of passing of the
issue mandated at the annual general meeting of
the Company for a financial year during the term
of the Share Award Scheme. The aggregate value
of shares which may be issued to any individual at
any one time shall not exceed HK$5,000,000 as at
the date of such award granted under the Share
Award Scheme (the "Awards”). The number of
shares to satisfy the Awards shall be allotted and
issue by the directors of the Company by
obtaining a separate shareholder’s approval at a
general meeting or utilising the general mandate
granted by shareholders at a general meeting of

the Company from time to time;
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z —F— A F=A=+—HBIFE

44. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES/AWARD SCHEME/ 44. Eﬁ&j&ﬁ%ﬂ/&@ﬁ@]ﬁ%ﬂ/ﬁ@]ﬁ
EMOLUMENT SHARES (continued) % (&
(b) Share Award Scheme (continued) (b) BPERE(E)

(iv) In relation to each grantee of the awards granted (iv)  BLIRERRR (D SEED T &R B &
under the Share Award Scheme, the Awards shall EEAME @ REERARFES
vest in a period to be determined by the directors ErzHEARS  HZHEED
of the Company where the period must be at least RNER
six months;

(vy The number of shares to be granted will be v BREZBOBEBARARES
determined by the board of directors of the BRBZTIERGEE :
Company by reference to:

e monthly salary of eligible employee; s GHEAREEZAF:

e the average closing price of the share for the e BRORBEEREAHATLE
five business days immediately preceding EEBMFHKETE: &
the date of grant; and

e duration of employment of eligible s HEAREEZEESHHE-
employee.

(c) Emolument Shares (c) HBER®G

On 26 September 2016, the Company entered into a RZZE-—REAAZ+TRB KRFH

director’s services agreement with Mr. Fok covering EREFINEEFRE R EHE =T

period from 27 September 2016 to 26 September 2019. —RNEFENAZTERE-_Z-AFNA

Pursuant to which, 36,452,004 shares (adjusted to ZHARBILE . B BRELE A ZER

41,514,782 shares as result of Year 2017 Bonus Issue) of A [ 18 i 3% B 3517 36,452,004 f% (A ==&

the Company will be allotted and issued to Mr. Fok —tFEALIREITM B R41,514,782

during his service period. Details of which are set out in B ) A BB A o B B RIS BRI R

note 41(b). 41(b) °

45. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 45. BERRS
The remuneration of directors of the Company and other AABESREMEEEEEKRKERFRNE
members of key management during the year was as follows: Ban T
2019 2018
—B-NEF —ZE-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Salaries and other short-term benefits e RHE A Bt 7 20,882 22,354
Post-employment benefits HE P12 ta A 54 93
Share-based payments VAR A7 2 AR 5,000 5,000
25,936 27,447
The remuneration of directors of the Company and key RATEERFETHAENTHEHMES
executive is determined by the remuneration committee SEE[MAZRARTEBEMET -
having regard to the performance of individuals and market

trends.
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 &= =% —

46. MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTIONS

(a)

During the year ended 31 March 2019, part of the
consideration for the acquisition of additional interest in
Hao Tian Finance of HK$108,000,000 was settled by loan
receivable.

During the year ended 31 March 2019, the Group
settled part of the consideration of the investment
property through acquisition of a subsidiary by using
the deposit of HK$137,761,000 paid in prior year.

During the year ended 31 March 2019, the consideration
of US$27,800,000 for purchase of corporate note, with
the principal amount of US$30,000,000, from the
controlling shareholder of the Company was settled by
issuance of a one year bond of the Company with the
principal amount of US$27,800,000.

During the year ended 31 March 2019, the Group
entered into finance lease arrangements in respect of
purchase of property, plant and equipment with a
capital value at the inception of the leases of
approximately HK$19,551,000 (2018: HK$11,197,000).

During the year ended 31 March 2019, the Group
acquired 49% of issued equity interest of Grand
Peaceful Global Limited. The consideration was settled
by the issuance of 372,585,332 new shares of the
Company.

During the year ended 31 March 2019, the Group
subscribed for the subscription shares in a joint venture,
Riverwood China Growth Fund, at the amount of
approximately US$20,000,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$156 million), which was satisfied by
transferring the Financial assets at FVTPL — listed

equity securities to the joint venture.

e B RRE

NE=ZRA=+—HLFE

46. TEFHREXRS

(a)
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z —F— A F=A=+—HBIFE

47. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES OF 47. AQREEMEARNFE
THE COMPANY

(a) Details of the Company'’s principal subsidiaries at 31 (a) ARFRZZB-NERZZT-NF=A
March 2019 and 2018 are as follows: =T—HOFEMBRRFENOT
Place of Issued and
incorporation fully paid up Proportion of nominal value of
or registration/  Class of share capital/ issued share capital/registered
Name of subsidiary operations shares held registered capital capital held by the Company Principal activities
SRHL BRIRAR KARBEZBRTRE/
WEARAR it/ 2ERY HERGER B&/EREER SMEAEENLE TEEH
2019 2018
“B-NE —EN\E

Directly  Indirectly Directly  Indirectly
Ei M E#% I

Win Team Investments Limited BVI Ordinary Uss1 100% - 100% - Investmentholding
AERzEE Bk (B REZR
Merrymaking Investment Limited BV Ordinary US$10,000 - 100% - 100%  Investment holding
AERzEE Bk 10000%7 REZR
Pleasing Results Limited BVI Ordinary US$50,000 - 100% - 100%  Investment holding
AERZEE Bk 50,0007 RER
Hao Tian Management Hong Kong Ordinary HK$10,821 - 92.41% - 9241%  Securities investment,
2RER Eli EER 10821787 investment holding
and provision of
management services
BHRE  RERRR
RHERRK
Hao Tian Finance Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1,210,000,000 - 8347% - 7521%  Money lending
XA BA Lk 1,210,0000007 ¢ &
Esteem Ocean Limited BVI Ordinary Uss1 - 8347% = 7521%  Investment holding
HEARAR ABESHE  ERR E9 RERR
Hong Kong Energy & Mining Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1 - 100% - 100%  Trading of futures
Investment Management h LRR 1% HEgE
Limited

BENRRERAERARAR

Hao Tian Oil & Gas Development  Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1 - 100% = 100%  Investment holding
Group Limited Bl LRR 1% RERR

ERAHARRAREEBRAT

Access Profit Global Enterprises BVI Ordinary US$1,000 = = - 100%  Investment holding
Group Limited (note i) RERAEE LR 100057 RERR

AER R EEERA (M)

New Style Corporation Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1,000 - = = 100%  Investment holding
Limited (note i)

HaERAR (M) B LRk 1000%7T RERR
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 #E—T—AF=A=+—HBI-FE

47. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES OF 47. ZARIEEKBARINFHE(E)
THE COMPANY (continued)

(a)

Details of the Company’s principal subsidiaries at 31
March 2019 and 2018 are as follows: (continued)

(@) ARAR=_FZ-—NEFEIR=_FT-NEFE=A
=T —ANTERBARFBENET : (&)

Place of Issued and
incorporation fully paid up Proportion of nominal value of
or registration/ ~ Class of share capital/ issued share capital/registered
Name of subsidiary operations shares held registered capital capital held by the Company Principal activities
AEMER L BRITRAR RARREZBRIRE/
WEARAHE i/ EERS  BERGER BE/ERER EMEREEN LA IREH
2019 2018
Z2-nf —E2-)\%
Directly Indirectly Directly  Indirectly
E# A E# i
Xinjiang Xinpin Logistics Co., Ltd. ~ PRC Registered RMB15,000,000 - - - 100%  Inactive
(note i, i) i EEV) ARH 15,000,000 7T HAER
HENRYRERAR (i i)
Hao Tian International Construction ~ Cayman Island ~ Ordinary HK$1,000,000 - 7018% = 625%  Investment holding
EREBRER RERS EER 1,000,000 7 RERR
Hao Tian International (China) PRC Registered RMB50,000,000 - 100% - 100%  Investment holding
Co., Limited (note i) B B ARH50,000,000 7T REER
SRER () BRAR (M)
Beijing Hao Tian Investment Fund ~ PRC Registered US$370,000 - 100% - 100%  Investment holding
Management Co., Limited HE Bkl 370,000% 7T RERR
(note i)
FRERRERGERERAH
(B
Hao Tian Hua Tong (Beijing) Trading  PRC Registered RMBS5,000,000 - 100% - 100%  Investment holding
Co,, Limited (note i) ® Bk AR 5,000,000 72 RAER
EXERB(LR)EHARLA
(RfEin)
Hao Tian International Bullion Hong Kong Ordinary HK$10,000,000 - 7018% = 100%  Commodities brokerage
Limited 7 TR 10,000,000 7 ElEE
ERARLEERAT
Fujian Nuogi (note ii)* PRC Registered RMB122,158,800 - 59.93% - 59.93%  Retailing of men’s and
REAE (i) E Bkl AR#122,158,800 7T women's apparels
SERREZE
Chim Kee Company Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1,000,000 - 70.11% - 62.44%  Construction machinery
LR ERAR ¥ LR 1,000,000/ T and sales of
construction
materials business
BERMRREH
BERH
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z —F— A F=A=+—HBIFE

47. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES OF 47. ZAREEKBARINFE(E)
THE COMPANY (continued)

(a)

Details of the Company’s principal subsidiaries at 31
March 2019 and 2018 are as follows: (continued)

RARABIR=ZE—NFR=ZF-NF=A
=+—BMEEMBARFENT : (8)

Place of Issued and
incorporation fully paid up Proportion of nominal value of
or registration/ ~ Class of share capital/ issued share capital/registered
Name of subsidiary operations shares held registered capital capital held by the Company Principal activities
AEMER L BRITRAR RARREZBRIRE/
WEARAE i/ EERS  BERGER BA/ERER EMEREEN LA IREH
2019 2018
Z2-nf —2-)\%
Directly Indirectly Directly  Indirectly
E# A BE# it
Chim Kee Machinery Co, Limited  Hong Kong Ordinary HKS$1 - 70.11% - 62.44%  Construction machinery
GEERERAT X B 13T and sales of
construction
materials business
A R R R
BEXHK
Hao Tian Securities Hong Kong Ordinary HK$10,000 - 70.18% - 100%  Securities brokerage
SRES &k LAk 10,0007 business
BHELER
55 Mark Lane S.ar.l Luxembourg Registered EUR20,000 - 100% = - Rental business
ERE RV 20000817 BEXH
Notes: N
i These entities was disposed on 22 November 2018. i ZEEEEN -_ZT—)\F+—A=+=A8
HE

ii. English names are translated for identification purpose only.

iii. These entities are wholly foreign owned enterprises
established in the PRC.

None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities
outstanding at the end of the year or at any time during

the year.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company
which, in the opinion of the directors of the Company,
principally affected the results or assets of the Group.
To give details of other subsidiaries would, in the
opinion of the directors of the Company, result in
particulars of excessive length.
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 #E—T—AF=A=+—HBI-FE

THE COMPANY (continued)

(b)

Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries that

have material non-controlling interests

The table below shows details of non-wholly owned

subsidiary of the Group that have material non-

controlling interests:

Place of Proportion of

incorporation  ownership interests and

47. ARRAEEMBRRBFE(E)

(b) EREXRFEREZZFZENE
DNEFFE

TRINTAEBEABERFERERZ
F2EMBARFE

and principal voting rights held Profit (loss) allocated Accumulated
place of by non-controlling to non-controlling non-controlling
Name of subsidiary business interests interests interests
FERERFEZ
AL i B e rERER R DEEFER
HEBATEHR TEEXBE REROLH EEHRA (B]) RitFERER
2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018
“E-NE ZF\F ZB-0F T \F Z8-NF —TN\F
HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000
THET TET THET TET
Hao Tian Finance Hong Kong 16.53% 24.79% 8,512 16,721 127,975 210,943
=R £
Hao Tian Management Hong Kong 7.59% 7.59% (25,550) (15,097) (139,906) (114,357)
RRER BE
Hao Tian International Cayman Island 29.82% 37.50% (3,411) (76,151) 143,894 136,977
Construction HEiS
ERBRER
Fujian Nuogi PRC 40.07% 40.07%  (15,316) (6,337) 21,200 38,241
B i
(35,765) (80,864) 153,163 271,804
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z —F— A F=A=+—HBIFE

47. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES OF
THE COMPANY (continued)

(b)

Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries that
have material non-controlling interests
(continued)

Summarised financial information in respect of the
Group's subsidiaries that has material non-controlling
interests is set out below. The summarised financial
information below represents amounts before

intragroup eliminations.

During the year ended 31 March 2019, the shareholding
of non-controlling interest of Hao Tian International
Construction is changed due to the Rights Issue and the
Secondary Market Acquisition and the Placing which are
detailed in note 38(A).

47. ARREEMBRRBFE(E)

ERERFERERZIFZEWR
NAEFE(E)

ERASE s ARERIFEZERER M
BRBIZHMBERBERIIANT - %
BERBZAEE AR -

BE_Z-NF=-A=T—"HLFE"
SR BB 2 AR 0 FE 12 B v o O PR R 41
Bk —_AmEKRESEREESEEMNS
PREEE) - AR IBENHIE38(A) °

Hao Tian Finance and its subsidiaries RXHBERERBA A
2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-N\F
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Current assets M EE 1,622,751 1,775,459
Non-current assets IEMBEE 171,421 265,894
Current liabilities mEEE (671,223) (924,479)
Non-current liabilities ERFHAasE = (114,420)

Equity attributable to owners of RATIER AEIG RS

the Company 994,974 791,511
Non-controlling interests IR 127,975 210,943
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z—T—AF=A=+—HItFE

47. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES OF 47. ZAREEKBATRINFE(E)
THE COMPANY (continued)

(b)

Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries that (b)
have material non-controlling interests

(continued)

ERERFERERZIFZEWR
NAFE(E)

Hao Tian Finance and its subsidiaries (continued) REXEREM B LA (E)
2019 2018
—E—-hEF —E-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Revenue Wz 59,238 108,464
Profit for the year FE RS F 51,499 67,451
Profit for the year attributable to: FERF AR -
— owners of the Company . VNGIEZ 2= DN 42,987 50,730
— non-controlling interests — JEIEpR RS 8,512 16,721
Profit for the year F N A 51,499 67,451
Total comprehensive income FEME 24 5E
attributable to:
— owners of the Company — RATEB A 37,150 50,730
— non-controlling interests — FEEARE S 7,357 16,721
Total comprehensive income FRZEWEEEEE
for the year 44,507 67,451
Net cash (outflow)/inflow from RBEBAEIREEY),/
operating activities AR (6,958) 189,604
Net cash outflow from investing KREEHERE R FE
activities (235) (252,446)
Net cash inflow/(outflow) from MEEHERERACRE)
financing activities HEE 1,868 (142,000)
Net cash outflow e F5E (5,325) (204,842)
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z —F— A F=A=+—HBIFE

47. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES OF 47. AQREXEMB RTINS ()

THE COMPANY (continued)

(b) Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries that

ERERFERERZIFZEWR

have material non-controlling interests NEIFE(E)
(continued)
Hao Tian Management and its subsidiaries RXEEREMNE 2 A
2019 2018
—E-AF —ENEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET T
Current assets mENEE 2,434,336 2,592,794
Non-current assets IEREEE 491,965 536,920
Current liabilities TmEAaE (2,587,068) (2,478,613)
Non-current liabilities FRBAE - -
Equity attributable to owners of RREVEE ANEILER
the Company 315,365 601,683
Non-controlling interests JEPE AR FE S 23,868 49,418
Revenue o ss = -
Loss for the year FEREIE (311,868) (198,901)
Loss for the year attributable to: FEAE F g 1S
— owners of the Company . VNETEZ Z =N (286,318) (183,804)
— non-controlling interests — FEE R A (25,550) (15,097)
Loss for the year FAEE (311,868) (198,901)
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z—T—AF=A=+—HItFE

47. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES OF 47. ZAREEKBATRINFE(E)
THE COMPANY (continued)

(b)

Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries that (b) EEEXRIERERZIZTENES
have material non-controlling interests NEIFE(E)
(continued)
Hao Tian Management and its subsidiaries RAEERENE LA (B)
(continued)
2019 2018
—EB-hE —FE-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Total comprehensive expense Eh2mEAT AR :
attributable to:
— owners of the Company e VNGIEZ Z=DN (286,318) (330,582)
— non-controlling interests — JEIEpRAE R (25,550) (27,152)
Total comprehensive expense FAREMZERE
for the year (311,868) (357,735)
Net cash outflow from BEEEBR SR FE
operating activities (39,086) (318,188)
Net cash inflow/(outflow) from REFHMBRERACRE)
investing activities SRER 12,074 (1,590)
Net cash (outflow)/inflow from MEESMEBES ORE) RA
financing activities R (8,151) 308,777
Net cash outflow e R F58 (35,163) (11,007)
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z —F— A F=A=+—HBIFE

47. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES OF 47. ZAREEKBARINFE(E)
THE COMPANY (continued)

(b) Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries that (b) EBEEXRIERERZIZTENES
have material non-controlling interests NEIFE(E)

(continued)

Hao Tian International Construction and its RXERERRANE A A
subsidiaries
2019 2018
—E-hEF —E—)\F
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FERT FH&T
Current assets MEVEE 573,998 228,996
Non-current assets IERBEE 497,985 405,290
Current liabilities MENE & (210,558) (152,885)
Non-current liabilities FERBEB (101,621) (128,409)
Equity attributable to owners ZN/NEIE DN L E
of the Company 615,910 216,015
Non-controlling interests EE 143,894 136,977
Revenue g 176,518 165,869
Loss for the year FAERE (13,416) (12,526)
Loss for the year attributable to: eI F A RS
— owners of the Company o WNGIE 2SN (10,005) (7,904)
— non-controlling interests — JFIE R S (3,411) (4,622)
Loss for the year FAMEE (13,416) (12,526)
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z—T—AF=A=+—HItFE

47. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES OF 47. ZAREEKBATRINFE(E)
THE COMPANY (continued)

(b)

Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries that (b)

have material non-controlling interests

(continued)

Hao Tian International Construction and its

subsidiaries (continued)

ERERFERERZIFZEWR
NAFE(E)

RXEBERRENE A A ()

2019 2018
—B-NEF —E-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Total comprehensive expense iR M B
attributable to:
— owners of the Company o WNGIE 2SN (10,005) (7,904)
— non-controlling interests — JEE R S (3,411) (4,622)
Total comprehensive expense FAEEAS LR
for the year (13,416) (12,526)
Net cash (outflow)/inflow MEEBHABRE (L) MA
from operating activities HER (99,016) 45,452
Net cash outflow from investing WEEEEHR SR FE
activities (69,481) (158,631)
Net cash inflow from financing activities g & E B FT15IR &7 AJE 58 178,331 161,609
Net cash inflow WEMAFR 9,834 48,430
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z —F— A F=A=+—HBIFE

47. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES OF 47. ZAREEKBARINFE(E)
THE COMPANY (continued)

(b) Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries that (b) EBEEXRIERERZIZTENES
have material non-controlling interests NEIFE(E)

(continued)

Fujian Nuogi and its subsidiaries BEFTRANWBE R A
2019 2018
ZB-hE ZZ)N\F
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FHET THT
Current assets mBEE 2,520 12,047
Non-current assets IEREEE 72,806 112,018
Current liabilities mEIAE (22,376) (28,630)
Non-current liabilities SEMBNBE - -
Equity attributable to owners Z/NGIE7 2SN =g
of the Company 31,750 57,194
Non-controlling interests FEFE IR RE S 21,200 38,241
Revenue Wz 1,835 34,618
Loss for the year FERER (38,220) (15,815)
Loss for the year attributable to: FEMRFAESIE
— owners of the Company — RRRHEAA (22,904) (9,478)
— non-controlling interests — JEiE R s (15,316) (6,337)
Loss for the year FRNEE (38,220) (15,815)
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47. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES OF 47. ZAREEKBATRINFE(E)
THE COMPANY (continued)

(b)

Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries that (b) ERERFEREZZHFZENER
have material non-controlling interests NEIFE(E)
(continued)
Fujian Nuogi and its subsidiaries (continued) EEFTRENBLAE(E)
2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FABT
Total comprehensive expense JEMh 2R B85
attributable to:
— owners of the Company — AARHEEA (25,487) (5,137)
— non-controlling interests — JEE R s (17,041) (3,435)
Total comprehensive expense FRNEEMY B
for the year (42,528) (8,572)
Net cash outflow from operating activities #& & PSR &7 HF 58 (8,401) (10,710)
Net cash inflow/(outflow) from WEEHABELSRAGRE)
investing activities SRER 7 (1,369)
Net cash inflow from financing activities @& /EE TSR R AFE - 16,505
Net cash (outflow)/inflow Be Rt mAFE (8,394) 4,426
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48.

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the
Group will be able to continue as a going concern while
maximising the return to shareholders through the
optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The Group's

overall strategy remains unchanged from prior year.

The Group is not subject to any externally imposed capital
requirements except for certain subsidiaries engaged in
securities and futures dealings and broking, which are
regulated by the Hong Kong Securities and Futures
Commission (the “SFC").

During the year, the subsidiaries of the Group which are
subject to minimum capital requirements imposed by
respective regulatory authorities, complied with all the

minimum capital requirements.

As at 31 March 2019, the capital structure of the Group
consists of debt, which include borrowings, secured notes
and equity attributable to owners of the Company,
comprising issued share capital, reserves, set off with

accumulated loss.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure on
a continuous basis. As part of this review, the directors of the
Company consider the cost of capital and the risks associated
with each class of capital. Based on recommendations of the
directors of the Company, the Group will balance its overall
capital structure through new share issues, as well as the issue

of new debts or the redemption of existing debt.
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 #E—T—AF=A=+—HBI-FE

49. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING
FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

49. MEFDRMELRBENHR

Non-cash changes

E37k L]
Purchase of
As at Financing Finance property, Settlement As at
1 April cash cost plant and Exchange by loan 31 March
2018 flows  recognised  equipment loss  receivables 2019
RZZ2-N\F BERSE BRAN  BENE DEWER R-B-NF
mA-H hE BERE  HERRE EXEE #% =A=1-A
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$:000 HK$'000
TAT TAL TAL TARL TAR TAR TAR
Borrowings B8 853,585 1,110,823 98,35 18,139 - - 2,080,903
Obligations under finance leases ~ RRAT E7&1E 12,681 (4,553) 317 1412 = = 9857
Secured notes FERZRE 505,840 (197,836) 41,248 - 748 - 350,000
Accrual — interest payable E:BE — EMNFE 6,477 (426) 1,509 = = = 7,560
Other libility AfbafE 114,420 (6627) - - - (107,793) -
Non-cash changes
¥R¢88
Purchase of
Asat  Financing Finance property, Loss As at
1 April cash cost  plantand  Exchange Share onearly 31 March
2017 flows  recognised  equipment loss  issue cost redemption 2018
R-2-tF  RERE ERIN BENE. Bt  REERE R=B-N\F
mA-H hE  HMERE HERRE  EXFE  BORK B =A=t-H
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TARL FAL TAL TARL TAL TATL TAT TAL
Borrowings BE 939,019 (146,59) 61,162 - - - - 853,585
Obligations under finance leases BE M EHE 6,892 (5,734) 32 11,197 = = = 12,681
Secured notes EREZE 150,331 350,532 3,700 - 577 - 700 505,840
Accrual — interest payable et &R — ENFIE = = 6477 = = = = 6,477
Other liability Hingfs 106,490 - 7,930 - - - = 114,420
Accrued issue cost e BTA = (3,077) = = - 3,077 - -
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50. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 50. €T A
(a) Categories of financial instruments (a) EBMITEKEHR
2019 2018
—ZE-hF —E-NF
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Financial assets TREE
Financial assets at FVTPL AT EETE BEEEETA
BmremEE
— Held for trading —BEEE 1,643,817 1,258,246
Financial assets at FVTOCI AT EE BES LA
EfeElmsemEE 117,525 =
Financial assets at amortised cost TRIEHK AR S RMEE 1,299,549 =
Loans and receivables (including B kERZE(BEES R
cash and cash equivalents) BE&EEER) - 1,799,625
Available-for-sale investments A ERE = 814,059
3,060,891 3,871,930
Financial liabilities TRBE
Financial liabilities at FVTPL AT EHERHEE
FFABENEREE 185,249 238,893
Amortised cost SR AR 2,512,036 1,617,731
2,697,285 1,856,624
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50. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies

As at 31 March 2019, the Group's financial instruments
include deposits, pledged bank deposits, trade
receivables, other receivables, loan receivables, finance
lease receivables, consideration receivable, corporate
note, financial assets at FVTPL, financial assets at
FVTOCI, bank balances, trust and segregated accounts,
bank balances and cash, trade payables, other payables
and accruals, contract liabilities, borrowings, obligations
under finance leases, secured notes and other liability
(2018: deposits, pledged bank deposits, trade and
interest receivables, other receivables, loan receivables,
finance lease receivables, consideration receivable,
investments held for trading, available-for-sale
investments, bank balances, trust and segregated
accounts, bank balances and cash, trade payables, other
payables and accruals, borrowings, obligations under
finance leases, secured notes and other liability). Details
of these financial instruments are disclosed in respective
notes. The risks associated with these financial
instruments and the policies on how to mitigate these
risks are set out below. The management manages and
monitors these exposures to ensure appropriate
measures are implemented on a timely and effective

manner.

There has been no significant change to the Group's
exposure to market risks or the manner in which it

manages and measures the risk from prior year.

50. @@ T AE(E)

(b)

cRIEREREBEERBXK

RZZE-NAF=A=+—0 XEEH

SRTAREEFER CHERRITER -
FEMBR R - A YRR - EURE K

RMEHEREFIE  BBKE RARRE
B ARFEFEARBGFABRREZ
SREE  URAFEFEBHEZ(FA
Htemlis s emMEE  |RITHAH
EREMBYRFE RITEHIAS B

NERX - RMENKBEREFER &
WEE BE BREMEAE FHEF

ERREMEE(CE-N\F: FR B
ERRITER - BRER R EEFE
HpEUWHIE - EIRER  REHER
WHRIE - BRAKE HIEEBERE A
HHERKE  RITEH EERBIE
B RITESKREES - BAKRZK - Hid
ENFEREFER 8 BREHEE
AE - BEARBEREMAR) - %FE
RMTANFBECRARMETHE -F
Bz 5 2 B T A AR K R R R
FEENBRERTX - EEEEENE
maER R ARER LA B HITE

B

AREEHOTHARIAEE R E
BRE SR AEF AL T REALD -
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50. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Market risk
Foreign currency risk management

Several subsidiaries of the Company have foreign
currency sales and purchases, which expose the Group
to foreign currency risk. The Group currently does not
have a foreign currency hedging policy. However, the
management monitors foreign exchange exposure and
will consider hedging significant foreign currency

exposure should the need arise.

The carrying amounts of the Group's foreign currency
denominated monetary assets and liabilities excluding
intra-group balances at the end of the reporting period

are as follows:

50. 2@ T AE(E)

(b)

TREREEEERBEGE)

5 A

SN R B HE

AREEBRMBARETIEER <
REEEERINE R R o ANEE B AT &
SNEHRBUR o AT - BB EIEINE
RBz - WAS AT B R E KN
[\ o

MRIBE R - ANEEUINE AR S
BERBE(TRRERRLS) NERE
(ER NN

Assets Liabilities
BE afE

2019 2018 2019 2018
—E-hE —T-N\F ZEBE-hF T N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FAET
United States Dollars (“US$") £t (£ ]) 171,077 7,028 407,385 186,245
Renminbi (“"RMB") ARB(TAR%] 158 25,241 - -
Euro ("EURQO") BT ([&ocl) 5,569 11,133 145 -
Japanese dollar ("JPY") HE(TAEA]) 9,571 5,203 9,280 1,606
Singapore dollar (“SGD")  #ans T ([#Fmgx ) = 28 - -
Macau Pataca (“MOP") SBPIoT (MR 535 383 = =
British Pound (“GBP") oigE ([Ees ) 2,920 386,394 - 1,527

In addition, as at 31 March 2019, the directors of the
Company considered that the Group's exposure to
foreign currency risk arose from intra-group balances
due to foreign operation of HK$347,576,000 (2018:
HK$300,288,000), which were not denominated in the
functional currency of the respective group entities.
These intra-group loans do not form part of the Group's

net investment in foreign operations.
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 #E—T—AF=A=+—HBI-FE

50. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Market risk (continued)
Sensitivity analysis

The Group is mainly exposed to exchange rate
fluctuation of HK$, US$, EUR, JPY, SGD, MOP, GBP and
RMB against the functional currency of respective group
entities, which is mainly HK$ and RMB. The directors of
the Company considered that, as HK$ is pegged to US$,
the subsidiaries with HK$ as functional currency, are
subject to insignificant foreign currency risk from change
in foreign exchange rate of HK$ against US$, therefore
US$ is not considered in the sensitivity analysis.

5% is the sensitivity rate used by the directors of the
Company in the assessment of the reasonably possible
change in foreign exchange rates. The sensitivity
analysis below demonstrates the effect of the foreign
exchange differences by a 5% change in exchange rate
of the functional currencies against the relevant foreign
currencies of the Company and respective subsidiaries,
other than US$ for those with HK$ functional currency,
assuming all other variables were held constant. The
sensitivity analysis includes external loans as well as
loans to foreign operations within the Group where the
denomination of the loan is in a currency other than the
functional currency of the lender or borrower. A
negative number below indicates an increase in post-
tax loss (2018: an increase in post-tax loss) where the
functional currencies strengthening 5% against the
relevant foreign currencies of the Company and
respective subsidiaries, other than US$ (for those with
HK$ functional currency). For a 5% weaken of the
functional currencies of the Company and respective
subsidiaries, there would be an equal and opposite
impact on the results for the year.

50. @@ T AE(E)

(b)

TREREEEERBEGE)

5 (%)
BREZDHT

AEEE 2B X BT AE -
FOETT - BPIT - RERARER X
SEERNEER(TERETRARE)
AXERRBEAR  ARBEERR
BRETTEETTENEE - R AT AT
REERANKEAREBITEETHER
BERPYMARNIINERBIMTRE
BETY ERGRESTHEE -

ARREEFEINEERAIGEELSE
F ) AR GURE R 5% © TR
BAMIIRARRREMEB ARG
B LB (M ERSET A
NEIEETT) EREH) 5% (RRATA HM
BERFITE) HARRREHBR R
EREZRERNTE FRESFTEHE
SMBER R TARBARRIIEE 2 E
RHERZ T EELARERARER
AZNEEREELASN BH) - LT R R B
RNEARBREZHBARNINEGESE
BAAEBINE (HIEEE /AT - BT
BIEFETT) FHES%EF - TR R RIE
(ZF—N\F: BRREESEM)  TE
ARRREMER BN T ES%
- BEHAFRNRETRASEN
R E -

2019 2018

—E—-hEF —E-N\F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHEx THET

Increase in post-tax loss for the year FERFIEEEEM (42,346) (17,754)
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z —F— A F=A=+—HBIFE

50. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Market risk (continued)
Interest rate risk management

As at 31 March 2019, the Group is exposed to cash flow
interest rate risk in relation to pledged bank deposits,
bank balances, secured notes and variable-rate
borrowings (2018: pledged bank deposits, bank
balances and variable-rate borrowings) carrying

prevailing market interest rate.

As at 31 March 2019 and 2018, the Group is also
exposed to fair value interest rate risk in relation to
fixed-rate borrowings, obligations under finance leases

and loan receivables.

The Group currently does not have an interest rate
hedging policy. However, the management monitors
interest rate exposure and will consider hedging

significant interest rate exposure should the need arise.
Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined
based on the exposure to the variable rate pledged
bank deposits, bank balances, secured notes and
borrowings at the end of the reporting period. The
analysis is prepared assuming the financial instruments
outstanding at the end of the reporting period were
outstanding for the whole year. A 50 basis points (2018:
50 basis points) increase or decrease is used on variable-
rate borrowings after considering the impact of volatile
financial market conditions. The directors of the
Company used 10 basis points (2018: 10 basis points) for
assessing interest rate risk on pledged bank deposits
and bank balances because they considered that the
fluctuations on interest rate on pledged bank deposits

and bank balances would be less significant.
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 #E—T—AF=A=+—HBI-FE

50. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Market risk (continued)
Sensitivity analysis (continued)

If interest rates had been 50 basis points (2018: 50 basis
points) higher/lower for variable-rate borrowings and 10
basis points (2018: 10 basis points) higher/lower for
pledged bank deposits and balances and all other
variables were held constant, the Group's post-tax loss
for the year ended 31 March 2019 would increase/
decrease by HK$569,000 (2018: HK$1,757,000).

Price risk management

The management would manage its exposure arising
from these investments by closely monitoring the
performance of respective listed equity security and
derivatives and market conditions. The management
would consider diversifying the portfolio of these

investments as they consider appropriate.
Price risk on equity investments

The Group is exposed to equity price risk through its
financial assets at FVTPL (2018: available-for-sale
investments and investments held for trading). In 2018,
available-for-sale investments measured at cost less
impairment as the fair value could not be measured
reliably, they have not been included in the sensitivity

analysis.

50. @@ T AE(E)

(b)

TREREEEERBEGE)

w5 mE (&)
BREE DT ()

2 BB 2 F R EF RS0 @S
(ZZ2—N\F : 0EES) REHEPRT
TRREHBZFER EF TERI0EE
(ZZ—N\F 10AEZ) - mATAEAM
BERETE  AAEEHE-Z—AN
FZA=t+—RAILFEZHEEEEE
R 569,000 L( =T — N\ F -
1,757,000/ 7 ) °

1B15 /7 e & 7E

EREREBEVEE LHERAZS R
TETARAZRBEMAAEERELREZ
SREZEAR - EEEHNERRES
RERZTIREFREZHER -

RARE 2 (BT822
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z —F— A F=A=+—HBIFE

50. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 50. €M I A(E)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Market risk (continued)
Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined
based on the exposure to price risk at the end of the
reporting period. The sensitivity analysis included those
financial assets at FVTPL (2018: available-for-sale
investments and investments held for trading carried at
fair values). If the prices of the respective listed equity
investment included in financial assets at FVTPL (2018:
available-for-sale investments in listed equity securities
and investments held for trading) had been 10% (2018:
10%) higher, assuming all other variables were held

constant, the impact to the Group would be:

(b)

TREREERBEREE(E)

mEE R ()

AN EE ST BB RS ARERZ
EBREARET BEESMEEURTFE
EfE BHE (T A BRzemEE (=
T—N\FEBRAFEVEZAIHEEER
BRIFEEERE) - BREMBEMEH
RERE Mt AUAFEFEBEE
Lt ABRmzE&MEE 2 EHRARE
(ZZ—N\F : EHRABHFZAHEEE
BERFIEEERE) BB ZERS LA
10% (ZZ—/\F : 10%) ' {SHAE@E
BRAT R E -

2019 2018

—E—-hEF —E-N\F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHET THT

Decrease in loss for the year FREERD 149,281 105,064
Decrease in other comprehensive FREMEEAS D

expense for the year - 70,197
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 #E—T—AF=A=+—HBI-FE

50. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Market risk (continued)
Sensitivity analysis (continued)

If the prices of respective listed equity investments
included in financial assets at FVTPL (2018: available-for-
sale investments in listed equity securities and
investments held for trading) had been 10% (2018: 10%)
lower, assuming all other variables were held constant,

the impact to the Group would be:

50. €M T A(E)

(b)

TRREREEERERBE(E)

w5 mE (&)

BREE DT ()

RERPTE E M BRITTE - fWEt A
AFEFEBHBLFABSZZEBE
EZ EMRARE(ZE—N\F: LR
AEHZAIHEERERFEERERE)
EEMESTRBRION(ZZT — N\F:
10%) * EAREBEER A TRE

2019 2018

—ZE-hF —E-N\F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FERT T

Increase in loss for the year F N EEE 149,281 112,082
Increase in other comprehensive FEREAE R S

expenses for the year - 63,179

10% (2018: 10%) change in price represents the directors
of the Company’s assessment of the reasonably

possible change in price.

As at 31 March 2019, the Group was exposed to
concentration risk on the listed equity investments
included in financial assets at FVTPL (2018: listed
available-for-sale investments and investments held for
trading) as they comprise equity shares issued by

several companies listed in Hong Kong.

10%(—ZF—/\F : 10%) BREFRA
REEEMAEERAIEEENGEE
&) o

RZEBE-—NF=A=+—H xEE®
FETAUAFEE B EE (Lt A B
ZEMBEZ ETRAKE(ZZE—N
F EMAIHEHERERFEERRE)
ZEFPRER REAREBREHAEBH
f ETRBIEIT 2 RARD ©
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z —F— A F=A=+—HBIFE
50. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 50. @@ T A (&)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and (b) SEEMREEBZERBEE)

policies (continued)
Market risk (continued)

Price risk on financial liabilities at FVTPL

As at 31 March 2019, the Group was also exposed to
price risk through its financial liabilities at FVTPL (2018:
financial liabilities at FVTPL).

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined
based on the exposure to price risk at the end of the
reporting period. If the prices of the listed equity
securities, which was used as key input in the valuation
of financial liabilities at FVTPL (particulars are set out in
note 20), had been 10% higher/lower, assuming all other
variables were held constant, the impact to the Group

would be:

w5 mE (&)

U FEGFEARESGAABRZ M
Bi&Z(EE R

RZE-AF=ZA=+—H XEET
REARNTFEAEAERBCHAERZ
EREEMARZEBRRR(ZT—/\F:
NAFEFEEEF(CFABREZER
BfE) -

AN E DT HIREREARAZ 2
EERRRET - BRTAEME SR
NE - i ETIRA B SH 2 ES (RERE
FEARTFEMEEEE (L ABREZ
CRHARZEEZRAE(FRBHRHE
20)) EFRBE10% - AR EE K
LA 2

Increase in post-tax loss for the year FERFIBEEEM

Decrease in post-tax loss for the year SR ZEER D

2019 2018
—ZE-hF —E-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FHT
(16,873) (19,948)
16,873 19,948

In opinion of the directors of the Company, the
sensitivity analysis above is unrepresentative of the
inherent market risk as the pricing model used in the fair
value valuation of financial liabilities at FVTPL (2018:
financial liabilities at FVTPL) involves multiple variables

and certain variables are interdependent.
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 #E—T—AF=A=+—HBI-FE

50. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 50. @@ T A (&)
(b) Financial risk management objectives and (b) £MEMEEBRZERBER (&)

policies (continued)

Credit risk =B R

As at 31 March 2019, other than trade receivables, other N—_E—NE=A=+—8 " BEER
receivables and deposits, loan receivables, considerable BERERTEY RS EERR 2 EKE
receivable, pledged bank deposits, bank balances, trust Mo HMERRIE RS - BRER
and segregated accounts and bank balances and cash, JEMAAE - EHEIRRITIER - RITAERR
whose carrying amounts best represent the maximum ERERBIRP A RRITAERRIRE N -
exposure to credit risk, the Group’s maximum exposure 7N 5 (B T ¥ R B R £ B BT R it O BA T R
to credit risk which will cause a financial loss to the REBANRABESEMALHAEE
Group arising from the amount of contingent liabilities BT BERAN R EERRENM T
in relation to financial guarantees provided by the 40 °

Group is disclosed in note 40.

As at 31 March 2019, the Group has concentration of RZZE—hAhF=A=1+—H8 KxEEZ
credit risk in respect of loan receivables and EWESR L EERE(ZZ—N\F : Bl
consideration receivable (2018: loan receivables and BERRREUAREB)EEEERRER - R
consideration receivable). As at 31 March 2019, the T-NF=ZRA=1T—08 X&EEZEK
Group's loan receivables were due from counterparties BRI 5% 75 (RHEE27) « kAR
(see note 27); and the Group's consideration receivable SEZERREDER—Z(ZZ—N
was due from 1 (2018: 1) counterparty (see note 31). In F:—R)RSEH(RWE3N) - B
order to minimise the credit risk, the Group has ERREERE  AEBRAEZERER -
monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-up action LA B (R BR BN BR 17 B U5 121 280 HA R A MO (B
is taken to recover overdue debts. In addition, the o bAN - ARE BRI E RS &
Group reviews the recoverable amount of each IR A UL B 58 - LAREIR BN AT UL
individual debt at the end of the reporting period to EleRBERTYREESE Bt s -
ensure that adequate impairment losses are made for RAAREERAAEENEERBREXR
irrecoverable amounts. In this regard, the directors of e -

the Company consider that the Group's credit risk is

significantly reduced.
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z —F— A F=A=+—HBIFE

50. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Credit risk (continued)
Trade receivables

The Group measures loss allowances for trade
receivables at an amount equal to lifetime ECls, which is
calculated using a provision matrix. As the Group’s
historical credit loss experience does not indicate
significantly different loss patterns for different customer
segments, the loss allowance based on past due status
is not further distinguished between the Group's

different customer bases.

The following table provides information about the
Group's exposure to credit risk and ECls for trade
receivables as at 31 March 2019:

(b)

50. €M T A(E)

TRREREEERERBEE)

EEmLE (&)

YR

AEEZAERE2NEREERBEZE
BT ERBERZBERERE  2HEY
EEBRNERBRBREMETHE - A
RAEEBRFEEBRBERLERTN
REFE DR AREBERER - BREE
ERRARAENERBRBEELARET
RAEPRZEANMEE—FRS o

TERREHEBERAKRER_ZT-NF=A
=t+—BFES 2 EERR R ERER

ZTBEMEEEBRER
Gross
Expected carrying Loss
loss rate amount allowance

BRHERE fREAE BERE

% HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FAT

Current BNER 5.8 9,249 537
1-30 days past due #EA1Z=30H 12.0 1,727 1,405
31-90 days past due #wEA31Z90H 26.1 4,877 1,275
91-180 days past due #HEI91 £ 180 37.9 2,425 918
More than 180 days past due #EI180 H A £ 46.6 18,307 8,539
46,585 12,674

The Group has a concentration of credit risk on liquid
funds deposited with a few major banks. The credit risk
on liquid funds is limited because the counterparties are
banks with good reputation.
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 #E—T—AF=A=+—HBI-FE

50. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Credit risk (continued)

As at 31 March 2019, the Group had outstanding
consideration receivable of HK$95,183,000 (2018:
HK$24,980,000) due from 1 (2018: 1) counterparty buyer
in respect to the disposal of subsidiaries (2018: disposal
of subsidiaries). The Group is exposed to credit risk for
the amount of HK$95,183,000 (2018: HK$24,980,000)
which had been due as at 31 March 2019. The
management of the Group takes active negotiation and
follow-up action to recover the consideration
receivables in order to minimise the credit risk. Details

are set out in note 31.

As at 31 March 2019, loan receivables of HK$145,594,000
(2018: HK$86,520,000) were past due. The Group is
exposed to credit risk in the event that the loan
borrowers fail to perform its obligation to repay the
amount in full. The management of the Group takes
active negotiation and follow-up action to recover the
loan receivables in order to minimise the credit risk. In
the opinion of the directors of the Company, the risk of
non-recoverability of the amount is minimal, as the loan
receivables were secured by sufficient collateral which
could recover the amount of the loan receivables in
case the loan borrowers fail to perform its obligation.

Details are set out in note 27.
Liquidity risk

The Group manages its liquidity risk by monitoring and
maintaining a level of cash and cash equivalents
deemed adequate by the management to finance the
Group's operations and mitigate the effects of
fluctuations in cash flows. The management monitors
the utilisation of borrowings and ensures compliance

with loan covenants.

50. €@ T E(E)

(b)

TREREEEERBEGE)

EEmE (&)

R-Z—NAF=ZB=+—8 " A&EEz5
HTEMBAR(ZTE—N\F : HEHBA
AMmBREKR—R(ZE—N\F: —R)X
SHBEERZEREBEEKRNKE
95,183,000/ 7T ( =& — \4F : 24,980,000
BIL) o AEBRZEERZZE—NF=
B =++—H 5|8~ € %95,183,000/% IT
(ZZ—\F : 24,980,000/ ) &ZzE
Ef - AEEEREAKRBERRES
HITIEAREE P R AR AR IR A FE M DA PR RS
ERR o sHIEENMEEST

RZZ—NAFE=ZB=+—8" BERER
145,594,000 T( = T — N\ F:
86,520,000/ 7T) B8 H - i ERERA
KEEBTHEAEHEESE  AEAE
BEeiAZEERR ASEEEE#ET
T 15 T 7y % BREN IR #E 5 e K = E Uk B 3R
UREEBRRER - AAREERE B
FEE R RSB RER - WERE
KA KRB 1T E & A Al AT Uk ) fE U B 3R
S BEERT A E R RBREM
FEBERKIEE27 ©

HBEEmE

AEEBBEERFRELAEEFER
BRFNEEERSENBNAEEZS
BZKFEERDETRER - A NRIE
RenERBc¥E EEEEEYN
f& & e IE L FECRE ~F B K54 -
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z —F— A F=A=+—HBIFE

50. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b)

50. @@ T A (&)

Financial risk management objectives and (b) SREMEEEZERBE(E)
policies (continued)
Liquidity risk (continued) BB EE (E)
In addition, certain subsidiaries of the Company is WO RARETHEBRAASEESE
regulated by the SFC and is subject to certain requirements B WEASTEFRPE (MBER)H
under the Securities and Futures (Financial Resources) BIIETETRE At AEEAER
Rules and accordingly, the Group has to monitor the LB AR 2 RBE MR - AR
liquidity of this subsidiary to ensure compliance with the SHERTE AEEZBREEEHE
relevant rules. The Group's policy is to regularly monitor its REFHES TR UBRHEF L
liquidity requirements to ensure that it maintains sufficient MRS REELEEZTBERIBIRMEEH
reserves of cash and adequate committed lines of funding AAEEERE  NEMEERBAZRE
from major financial institutions to meet its liquidity BeFER-
requirements in the short and longer term.
The following table details the Group’s remaining contractual TRFAVNAEESHABBOFERE LB
maturity for its financial liabilities. It has been drawn up based R TRAENRAEEARFZELNE
on the undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based BREENATRRRENRKTAEM
on the earliest date on which the Group can be required to HIET o B RIE 0 HEEREEKRESE
pay. Specifically, bank loans with a repayment on demand ZIRTETF AR ERMEE (CTwmRTT
clause are included in the earliest time band regardless of BEBITHEEN 2R EM) c EthEm B
the probability of the banks choosing to exercise their rights. &2 B8 B TR IR 1% 2 (B8 B HiE -
The maturity dates for other financial liabilities are based on ZXRRABEEMNERASHRERE
the agreed repayment dates. The table includes both
interest and principal cash flows.
Weighted Within More than More than
average one year oneyear  two years Total Carrying
effective oron  butlessthan  but less than More than  undiscounted amount at
interest rate demand two years five years 5 years cash flows 31 March
mEFH —EHR —EHL MERL FBEBE R=B=1-H
EBRIZ IRER  ERENA BREMR BENE HEAE <A
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T#n T#n Ti#n T#n THn TER
2019 “E-hE
Trade payables FEfTERET N/A
TER 14,869 - - - 14,869 14,869
Other payables and accruals EtEfzER N/A
JEstER TER 56,407 - - - 56,407 56,407
Borrowings B8 5.45% 674,988 559,485 274,167 829,703 2,338,343 2,080,903
Secured notes BHAZE 9.75% 34,125 34,125 410,864 = 479,114 350,000
Obligations under finance leases AR E&E 347% 4,478 3,647 2,260 - 10,385 9,857
784,867 597,257 687,291 829,703 2,899,118 2,512,036
Financial guarantees issued FETHBER N/A
— Maximum amount quaranteed  — HEEREE TEA 10,170 - - - 10,170 -
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z—T—AF=A=+—HItFE

50. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 50. €@ A (&)
(b) Financial risk management objectives and (b) SRIEMEEEERBEGE)

policies (continued)

Liquidity risk (continued) B ELmEE ()
Weighted Within More than More than
average one year one year two years Total Carrying
effective oron  butlessthan  but less than Morethan  undiscounted amount at
interest rate demand two years 5 years 5years cash flows 31 March
METS —ENR —EH)E BENE KRS R=A=t-H
BRI FREX EmENR BRENR RENE it AR
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T T Thn T ThL TEL
2018 —Z-)\%
Trade payables ERER N/A
TR 76,634 = - - 76,634 76,634
Other payables and accruals EfERFER N/A
B ER i 54571 - - - 54,571 54,571
Borrowings B8 470 646,263 91,345 184,265 - 91,873 853,585
Secured notes FERRE 1045 196,79 34125 444,989 - 675910 505,840
Other libility A 800 115,000 = = = 115,000 114420
Obligations under finance leases ~ FYATEHE 8.70 4776 3,846 4906 = 13,528 12,681
1,094,040 129,316 634,160 S Sl 1417
Financial guarantees issued EGEES N/A
— Maximum amount guaranteed — & EREE TR 11,533 - - = 11,533 =
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z=%

—NhE=ZA=+—RLFE

50. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b)

50. @@ T A (&)

Financial risk management objectives and (b) EWEREEBERBEE)
policies (continued)
Liquidity risk (continued) B ELmEE ()
Bank loans with a repayment on demand clause are EFEEEJU EIEREE 2 BRITERGTA
included in the “on demand or between 1 to 3 months” AMEEBER DT 2 [TBRERKHK 1 = 3E
time band in the above maturity analysis. As at 31 March HJ RE &R - R—TB—-NF=A=+—
2019, the carrying amount of these bank loans B ZERITE R ZREE % 362,900,000
amounted to HK$362,900,000 (2018: HK$567,058,000). B (ZZF— )\ : 567,058,000 7T ) °
Taking into account the Group's financial position, the LERBAEE BB HRRAE  AREE
directors of the Company do not believe that it is EREB WITTARITEENBEESR
probable that the banks will exercise their discretionary B EE - NARIESRA  REEXR
rights to demand immediate repayment. The directors WEAE A EEERS  BERTE
of the Company believe that such bank loans will be TERHEPRRER - B Ne Kk
repaid after the end of the reporting period in FEREMEBABEHIIOT :
accordance with the scheduled repayment dates set out
in the loan agreements. At that time, the aggregate
principal and interest cash outflows are set out as
follows:
Weighted Within More than More than
average one year oneyear  two years Total Carrying
effective oron butlessthan  but less than More than  undiscounted amount at
interest rate demand two years five years 5 years cash flows 31 March
il 352 —EHR L MENL #ERE W=A=t-A
{71k FRERX  EREMR BRENR RBENE REAE ZRAEE
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000
T THL Th ThL TR T
Borrowings e
At31 March 2019 RIE-NE
ZA=1-H 6.83 337,553 10,888 19,519 3,841 371,801 362,900
At 31 March 2018 RZZ-N\F
=A=1-H 547 509925 20,661 3,753 9,566 573905 567,098
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 #E—T—AF=A=+—HBI-FE

50. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(c)

Fair value measurement of financial instruments

This note provides information about how the Group
determines fair values of various financial assets and

financial liabilities.

(i)  Fair value of the Group’s financial instruments
that are measured at fair value on a recurring
basis

Some of the Group's financial instruments are
measured at fair value at the end of each reporting
period. The following table gives information
about how the fair values of these financial
instruments are determined (in particular, the

valuation technique(s) and inputs used).

50. €@ T E(E)

(c)

Financial assets Fair value as at 31 March
SREE R=B=+-HMATE
2019 2018
N
HK$'000 HK$'000
TEx THT

TMTANAFETE

AT RERNEENAEEZHSHE
EREBMABEATENER -

(i)

Fair value
hierarchy

LB EMEER N FEIBHAE
EEm@T A R-FHE

AEEETEMITARSHESR
BAFERE - TRIEHRBREIM
BExzEem TANRTFEGH
A2 P50 P B il (B il B S A B3
ZEF

Valuation techniques
and key inputs

LYERR RERTRIESABE

Available-for-sale investment:
THHEERE .
Listed equity securities -

EEAES

Unlisted fund investment -

FLTEERE

Investment held for trading:
BEERRE:
Listed equity securities

EBAES

Overseas listed derivatives -
BINEMHTATA

Financial assets at FVTPL:
UATEFERRSFARRZ

EREE
Listed equity securities 1,492,777
ERRAES
Unlisted fund investment 151,040
FEMERRE

463977

237,994

1,258,195

Level 1
R

Level 2
F=fh

Quoted prices in an active market

REEMSHRE

Estimated based on the quoted price of
underlying equity securities

BEAARAES 2 BB
Quoted prices in an active market
RERTS 2 RE

Quoted prices in an active market

RERMEZRE

Quoted prices in an active market

RERMS BE

Estimated based on the quoted price of
underlying equity securities

RIERERAES BB
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M HRR M

For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z —F— A F=A=+—HBIFE

50. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(c) Fair value measurement of financial instruments
(continued)

(i)  Fair value of the Group's financial instruments
that are measured at fair value on a recurring

basis (continued)

Fair value Valuation

Financial assets Fair value as at 31 March ~hierarchy  technique
EREE R=A=t-BHATE  DVERH MBERE
2019 2018
“E-0EF ZFNF
HK$'000 HKS$'000
TiER TAL

50. €M T A(E)

(c) &RMTEMAFEINE(E)

(i) UEEMEEZNFETEHEE

B2/ T AR -FE(E)
Unobservable Sensitivity of fair value to
input Range the input

FUREBANE BE ATEHRARBNSEE

Financial assets at FVTOCI:
UATEFEAES A

At 2ENE SMEE !
Unlisted equity securities 36,946 - Level3 Discounted cash
3 FRAES F=8 flow model
BRRERERA
Unlisted equity securities 41,500 - Llevel3  Assetbased
3 FTRAES F=H  approach
BEERA

286 Annual Report 42§ 2018/19

Weighted average ~ 17.85% 5% increase/decrease in WACC

cost of capital would result in decrease/increase
("WACC") in fair value by HK$980,000

R METIAR BARMIETR AL,/ H D 5%
R(ERMNE RERATER D,/ ¥ 1M980,000
FHRA]) AT

Marketability 15.80% 5% increase/decrease in discount
discount would result in decrease/increase

in fair value by HK$2,187,000
Rt TREN/ A 5% HERATE

/102,187,005 7T

Marketability 15.80% 5% increase/decrease in discount
discount would result in decrease/increase
in fair value by HK$2,500,000
AR FREm/ B 5% HEHAT(E

D,/ 112,500,0007 7T

Minority discount 22.36% 5% increase/decrease in discount
would result in decrease/increase
in fair value by HK$2,700,000

LEE TREN/ A 5% EERATE

/502,700,000 7T
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

S B IS R R Y R

For the year ended 31 March 2019 #E—T—AF=A=+—HBI-FE

50. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(c) Fair value measurement of financial instruments

(continued)

(i)

Financial assets

basis (continued)

Fair value as at 31 March

hierarchy

Fair value of the Group’s financial instruments
that are measured at fair value on a recurring

Fair value Valuation
technique

50. €M T A(E)

(c) &RMTEMAFEINE(E)

(i) UEEMEEZNFETEHEE

E&mT AR FHE(E)
Unobservable Sensitivity of fair value to
input Range  the input

tHEE REBZ+-AWATE  AVERH HERE TUBRERARE BE ATEHBRABBNYBE
2019 2018
ZZ-hE —ZN\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
ThET TATL
Unlisted equity securities 39,079 - Level3 Market-comparable  Median Price-to- 8.82to 5% increase/decrease in multiple
FEIRAES s=m approach eamings ("P/E") 3361 would result in increase/decrease
multiple in fair value by HK$2,106,000
[k AV TP 882E3361 REIEM/H 5% BERATE
(&%) &g 5,/ W 2,106,000
Marketability 15.80% 5% increase/decrease in discount
discount would result in decrease/increase
in fair value by HK$2,340,000
AR FEEM/ D 5% EHATE
B /2,340,000 T

In the absence of an active market, the fair value

of unlisted equity securities are estimated on the

basis of an analysis of the investee’s financial

position and results, risk profile, prospects and

other factors, as well as by reference to market

valuations for similar entities quoted in an active

market, adjusted for lack of marketability discount.

I EERMS T - IFLHRAE
HFZRNFEDIEREREHR 28
BRAKES - BRI - FIRK
HiEARZ D e fbEr - B2
ZERmE LHRABRERTEIR
B Rz BRI
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M HRR M

For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z —F— A F=A=+—HBIFE

50. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 50. €M I A(E)

(c) Fair value measurement of financial instruments (c)

(continued)

(i)  Fair value of the Group’s financial instruments

THMTRANAFEFNEGE)

(i) UEEMEEZNFETEHEE

that are measured at fair value on a recurring BT AR FE(E)
basis (continued)
Fair value  Valuation techniques
Financial liabilities Fair value as at 31 March hierarchy and key inputs
SRER R=ZB=t-RWAYE DYERR MERTRIZ@ANE
2019 2018
—B-h# “2-0\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TAT
HTF Warrants - 11750  Level 3 Binomial Option Pricing Model.
SRR BRIRMEE F=R The unobservable key input is
expected volatility detailed in
note 20 (note ii) and sensitivity of
fair value to the input detailed in
note (a)
“EABREEEA  TETUER
BARB AN 20 (MaTi) A
A2 R 0E B A (@) MR 2
RYEHBARE GRE
Option arising from HTM Subscription 185,249 227,143 Level3 The present value and Monte- Carlo
ERERRESEMES 2 g EF=R Simulation Model. The unobservable

288 Annual Report 42§ 2018/19

key input are expected volatility of
the Company, expected volatility of
Hao Tian Management and
correlation detailed in note 20
(note iii) and sensitivity of fair value
to the input detailed in note (b)

RERFHRERRES - TETT

BRa ABRAME 20 (B i) A
FLZARFZ BHRE - 2R

B 2 RHRIE RARBIE A R (b)
AESIWANEEEILVN { v
HRE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S B IS R R Y R

For the year ended 31 March 2019 #E—T—AF=A=+—HBI-FE

50. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(c) Fair value measurement of financial instruments

(continued)

(i)

Fair value of the Group’s financial instruments

that are measured at fair value on a recurring

basis

Notes:

(a)

(continued)

As at 31 March 2019, there is no sensitivity of fair
value to the input as HTF Warrants was exercised
during the year. As at 31 March 2018, if the expected
volatility of the share price to the valuation model had
been 5% higher/lower while all other variables were
held constant, the aggregate carrying amount of HTF
Warrants would increase/decrease by approximately
HK$1,077,000. In the opinion of the directors of the
Company, the sensitivity analysis is unrepresentative
of the inherent price risk as the period end exposure
does not reflect the exposure during the year.

If the expected volatility of the Company to the
valuation model had been 5% higher/lower while all
other variables were held constant, the carrying
amount of HTD Option would increase/decrease by
approximately HK$24,000/HK$31,000 (2018:
HK$984,000/HK$383,000). If the expected volatility of
Hao Tian Management to the valuation model had
been 5% higher/lower while all other variables were
held constant, the carrying amount of HTD Option
would decrease/increase by approximately
HK$26,000/HK$8,000 (2018: HK$1,181,000/
HK$602,000). In the opinion of the directors of the
Company, the sensitivity analysis is unrepresentative
of the inherent price risk as the period end exposure
does not reflect the exposure during the period.

50. €M T A(E)

() ERMTIENQAFEFEGE)

(i)

LB EMEER N FEABHAE
B £/ T A2 -FE(E)

BT -

R-ZE—AE=A=+—8 @R
FARRUBERREZCEITE -
B AT ] A B 8 A BUR 2 8
RESH - R_TE—NE=A
=+—B - WiREEHGEEEXL
IR BT RER5% - AT H A
BHERFTE - AR RI B RARE
FEHHEEEBZEM R D
1,077,000 7T ° NARIERRA -
R A AR BB I S I B A )[R
B BMBEESMETREESE
TER ©

AR B FEH A ERR AR E -
Ft,/ T B5% @ FTH H b 8 2k 4
S BIHTDHI e R E(E 1
#4075 4 49 24,0007 7T,31,000
B L( = 2 — )\ £ : 984,000/
JT./383,000/&7C) - WEREEZ
BHHERA KR LA TR
5% MATAHMEHREFTE
8 HTD 54 70 BR T & 15 % 2 18
IN#926,00077T,8,000 7T (= Z
— J\ £ : 1,181,000 7T /602,000
BIL) c ARRIESFRAE AR
REB IR R - B8k
RESTAETREKRE R ERRR o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M HRR M

For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z —F— A F=A=+—HBIFE

50. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(c) Fair value measurement of financial instruments

(continued)

(i)

Fair value of the Group’s financial instruments
that are measured at fair value on a recurring

basis (continued)

Of the total gains and losses for the year included
in profit or loss, net gain of HK$37,999,000 (2018:
net gain of HK$77,679,000) relates to financial
assets at FVTPL and financial liabilities at FVTPL
held at the end of the current year. Fair value
gains or losses on financial assets at FVTPL and
financial liabilities at FVTPL are included in ‘other

gains and losses’.

Fair value measurements and valuation processes

Some of the Group's assets and liabilities are
measured at fair value for financial reporting
purposes. The board of directors of the Company
has set up an investment committee, which is
headed up by the Chief Financial Officer of the
Company, to determine the appropriate valuation

techniques and inputs for fair value measurements.

In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability,
the Group uses market-observable data to the
extent they are available. Where Level 1 inputs are
not available, the Group engages third party
qualified valuers to perform the valuation. The
investment committee works closely with the
qualified external valuers to establish the
appropriate valuation techniques and inputs to
the model. The Chief Financial Officer reports the
investment committee’s findings to the board of
directors of the Company every half year to
explain the cause of fluctuations in the fair value of

the assets and liabilities.
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50. @@ T A (&)

(c)

ERMITENAFENE(E)

(i)

LB EMEER N FEABHAE
B2/ T AR -FE(E)

RIBE N 2 ANF 5 e R E1E
#eEET - FUREE37,990,00058 7L ( =
T—)\F : FU2577,679,000%7T)
HAFERFEZUAFEFTER
HE(L ABRNSRMEERNA
FEFERES I ABEZSH
BEHEMA - LATESFEEEE L
FFABRNSREERNAATFER
ERHEB I ABEEZSHAED
NFEW KBS [H U
mREE] o

R FEEER G 1EAE

AEEHBLBEERABRMBEHRR
BHM & JDARFERTE - NRA]
EEgCKUREZBE S AR
AEREMBERYE  NEEATE
At EZEE ERNM RBARE o

KA EESRBEZAVER K
SEERAIESZMSABER
% o WE—RBARBEBTAA - Bl
AEBZREE=7 R ERMERE
ThE - REZE G HABRING
BEMZE DA EANEREEE
R REA AR - RHAEE
REBEAHERBDZERER  AFER
BESFFAARREEERER
BERBEZHREER



Hao Tian Development Group Limited ® £ X% EEEHR A7)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

S B IS R R Y R

For the year ended 31 March 2019 #E—T—AF=A=+—HBI-FE

(continued)

(i)

50. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 50. £@MTA(E)
(c) Fair value measurement of financial instruments (c) SRMTEMNAFEE(E)
Fair value of the Group’s financial instruments (i) HUEEMEEZAFHEITENEE
that are measured at fair value on a recurring E2m T AL -FEE)
basis (continued)
Fair value measurements and valuation processes AFEFERIEE AR (E)
(continued)
The Group uses valuation techniques that include REBRABELIFENAHET
inputs that are not based on observable market BEIE 2 B ABIE < MERM A
data to estimate the fair value of certain types of ETHEAGMTI A2 AFE - Wi
financial instruments. Note 20 provides detailed VHINEEZHEERABRAYT
information about the valuation techniques, inputs ERFPTE A 2 (R E R - 3 ABR
and key assumptions used in the determination of REBZBRFHERS o
the fair value of various assets and liabilities.
31 March 2019
—ZE-hE=A=+—H
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
F—R -t 1} E=ZR st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET THET
Financial assets at KA EEER
FVTPL HEBE AHE
ZEMEE 1,492,777 151,040 - 1,643,817
Financial assets at KA EEER
FVTOCI HEBLT ARM
2HEKE 2 SH
BE - - 117,525 117,525
Financial liabilities RAFEER
at FVTPL HE bt ABam
ZEmas - - (185,249) (185,249)
1,492,777 151,040 (67,724) 1,576,093
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M HRR M

For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z —F— A F=A=+—HBIFE

50. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(c) Fair value measurement of financial instruments

(continued)

(i)  Fair value of the Group’s financial instruments

that are measured at fair value on a recurring

basis (continued)

50. €M T A(E)

THMTRANAFEFNEGE)

(i) UEEMEEZNFETEHEE
E& BT AN A FE(E)

31 March 2018
—E—-N\F=ZA=1+—H

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
E— E_M F=R #Et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHBT FAET FHET T
Available-for-sale A ERE
investments 463,977 237,994 - 701,971
Investments held BIEEBEIRE
for trading 1,258,246 - - 1,258,246
Financial liabilities LAAYEE=ZA
at FVTPL HBEt ABm
Zamas - - (238,893) (238,893)
1,722,223 237,994 (238,893) 1,721,324

There were no transfer between Level 1 and 2 in

both years.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

50. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(c)

For the year ended 31 March 2019 &= =% —

Fair value measurement of financial instruments
(continued)

(i)

(i)

e B RRE

NE=ZRA=+—HLFE

50. €M I A(E)
(c) €MIEMA

FEFE(E)

Fair value of the Group'’s financial instruments (i) UEEMEEZNFETEHNETE
that are measured at fair value on a recurring BT AL -FHEE)
basis (continued)
Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value measurements PHEERTHEBESE=RLT
of financial assets and financial liabilities Ei1 2.2 #15R
Financial Financial Financial
assets assets liabilities
at FVTOCI at FVTPL at FVTPL
DN S
sTEEHESZ(L UAYE LA &
stAHM FEEHSt FEEHEZ(
2EWE sFABEZ  FAB®Z
ZEMEE SREE cRBE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET
At 1 April 2017 RZE—+FHHA—H - 27,779 (319,350)
Redemption R = (25,000) =
Total gains or losses recognised in B ER 7 BE 1A%
profit or loss
— Change in fair value — NEEE = (2,779) 80,457
At 31 March 2018 RZE—-NF=RA=+—H - = (238,893)
Effect of adoption of HKFRS 9 MBI BEREERIE 95
LB 123,243 - -
At 1 April 2018 (restated) R-ZE—N\FENA—H
(R&E5|) 123,243 - (238,893)
Total gains or losses recognised in Bz R 2 BEEE
profit or loss
— Change in fair value — ANTHEEY - - 53,644
Total losses recognised in REMEEFAZERZ
other comprehensive expense Eig4a%m (5,718) = =
At 31 March 2019 —NWE=RA=+—H 117,525 - (185,249)
Fair value of financial assets and financial (i) WHUBEMEEZL FETERN
liabilities that are not measured at fair value on CHEERSEEMEN A FE
a recurring basis
The management of the Group estimates the fair AEBEEBECRATRRESRED

value of its financial assets and financial liabilities
measured at amortised cost using the discounted

cash flows analysis.

The directors of the Company consider that the
carrying amounts of financial assets and financial
liabilities recorded at amortised cost in the
consolidated financial statements approximate

their fair values.

IOEGET EIRBER AT EN SR
BEREBRABHRFE-

ARRREER RIS W HRRT
D SERAARNEREEN SR
BEMNREEREAHERS
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M HRR M

For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z —F— A F=A=+—HBIFE

51. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND 51.

RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

RRAMBRRREHE

2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Non-current assets FRBEE
Amounts due from subsidiaries NG B 3,770,507 2,717,304
Current assets REEE
Corporate note UNGIE-5;: 254,474 =
Amounts due from subsidiaries FE Uk B B N B 3R IR 1,298,743 1,611,349
Bank balances and cash RITHEB LIRS 35,798 460,966
1,589,015 2,072,315
Current liabilities REBAE
Other creditors & accruals HibEMERR L EETE B 18,357 9,828
Borrowings =94 310,000 325,315
Amounts due to subsidiaries FEST I B A B FRIE 953,242 892,685
Secured notes BIRHEZRE - 155,840
Financial liabilities at FVTPL AT EFEBEE it AEa
ZEmAaE 109,237 238,893
1,390,836 1,622,561
Net current assets REBEEFE 198,179 449,754
Non-current liabilities FRBEME
Borrowings s 536,400 155,000
Secured notes BIEHZE 350,000 350,000
886,400 505,000
Net assets EEZFE 3,082,286 2,662,058
Equity Ew
Share capital R& 7N 52,848 48,980
Reserves s 3,029,438 2,613,078
Total equity eSS4 3,082,286 2,662,058
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 &= =% —

51. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND

RESERVES OF THE COMPANY (continued)

Note: As at 31 March 2019, reserves of the Company included share
capital of HK$52,848,000 (2018: HK$48,980,000), share premium of
HK$4,352,659,000 (2018: HK$4,273,404,000), share option and
emolument share reserve of HK$800,000 (2018: HK$800,000), debit
of other reserve of HK$5,490,000 (2018: debit of HK$5,490,000), put
option reserve of Nil (2018: HK$5,238,000) and accumulated losses
of HK$1,364,124,000 (2018: HK$1,660,874,000). Movements of the
Company's share capital, share premium and share option and
emolument share reserve are disclosed in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity. The movements of the Company’s
accumulated losses is attributable to losses for the respective
financial years.

52. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

On 16 April 2019, Fujian Nuogi entered into the Sale and
Purchase Agreement with the an independent third party (the
“Purchaser”), pursuant to which, Fujian Nuogi conditionally
agreed to sell, and the Purchaser conditionally agreed to
purchase, the land and the buildings for a consideration of
RMB50 million (equivalent to approximately HK$58.1 million)
subject to and upon the terms of the Sale and Purchase
Agreement.

On 29 April 2019, the disposal of Chim Kee Crane Company
Limited, a company incorporated in Hong Kong with limited
liability and an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, was completed and it took place pursuant to the
terms of the sale and purchase agreement (the “SP
Agreement”). Chim Kee Crane Company Limited ceased to
be a subsidiary of the Company and the Company ceased to
have any interest in Chim Kee Crane Company Limited.

On 10 May 2019, Fortune Jumbo Limited, a company
incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability and is an
indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, has
redeemed the interest in the unlisted fund investment at the
aggregate redemption price of US$24.4 million (equivalent to
approximately HK$$190.6 million) as at 9 May 2019.

On 10 May 2019, Fortune Jumbo Limited placed an order
with Haitong International Securities Company Limited
(“"Haitong Securities”), pursuant to which Haitong Securities
shall subscribe for the subscription shares in the fund —
Riverwood China Growth Fund on behalf of Fortune Jumbo
Limited at the subscription amount of US$16.0 million
(approximately HK$124.8 million).

Hao Tian Development Group Limited ® £ X% EEEHR A7)

Hle

52.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B RRE

NE=ZRA=+—HLFE

KRR BHBARRRE R (E)

Mz : R=T—NE=A=+—8 AARNFHBERIE
Hx$52848000,%7z(77 J\4E : 48,980,000
JT) ' {8 4,352,659,000/8 7 (= F — )\ F :

4,273,404,000,% L) ERERERRGFE
800,000/ 7t (== — J\4F : 800,000 7T) + Efh
2 87754900008 T( =T —N\NF: &F
5,490,000/7T)  ROLAREFEESET(ZF—
£ : 5,238,000/ 7T ) &5%%+E§T§1,364,124,0005%
TL(ZF— )\ : 1,660,874,000/8 7T) ° AN A BIRK
PN Hﬂﬁ@ﬁ*&%ﬂﬂg&ﬁﬁbﬁxmﬁﬁ%E’J“@J?&
BRGARSZHET - AARIRBBLHESE
&) - NEARESVMBREENESE -

BREPRER
Z-NFMOA+TRE  BEmTE—EE

VE=ZAR(EADILESHE Bt &2
EAAKGEREEEMERBERHEREEEZ
T R W?éf;%)&ﬁ%soﬁ%’ﬁ(m%‘#
A58 EBETT)  XRHBELEBE i 2GR

IR TH#ETT ©

—NEMA-TNA  BERRFZHE

E2EMBARSLEEXAR AR (—HR
FEEMKRLZBERAR) ELTK © ZAH

ENREBEER D (EEWBR]) 2 GRKET -
HLEERBERAFATBRARAZHB L
8l MARBNTTBEESCEERERAR
Z (EftEss o

T-NFRA+H  ARRZEEEZEW
RIEHRARAR(—HREAFEMKILZ
AR EEBERRIELTESTRE 2%
TE-NFRANBZHBEEER244EE
EXL(HERL1906B8HETT) °

T-NFRATHE EBEARARMER
T\M%ﬁﬁﬁ A(eEEE ) HHES &

HBEFEREREHRERARRERES —
Rlverwood China Growth Fund A 32 & i% 15 -

RERIEA160AEETL(N1248FEETT) ©
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY

M=

For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z —F— A F=A=+—HBIFE

RESULTS 7
2015 2016 2017 2018 2019
ZE—RF ZE—RF ZZT—+tF ZT)N\F ZE-hHF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET FET
Revenue A 60,899 129,986 206,313 330,017 319,513
Profit (loss) for the year T ALEEER
attributable to: s Al (E518)
— owners of the S VNCIE 2 =N
Company 1,522,565 524,398 (3,078,201) (444,906) (380,871)
— non-controlling — FEPRRR R
interests (187) (58,424) (109,947) (80,864) (35,765)
Profit (loss) for the year FARRA (EE) 1,522,378 465,974 (3,188,848) (525,770) (416,636)
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EENRERE
As at 31 March
R=A=+—H
2015 2016 2017 2018 2019
—E—0F ZET—RF T—+tF ZT)N\F ZE-NEF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’'000
FET FET FET FET FH&T
Total assets AR 6,193,193 8428362 5343202 5029511 5,554,505
Total liabilities BEERE (1,267,883)  (1,560,233) (1,781,718)  (1,966,077) (2,770,538)
4,925,310 6,868,129 3,561,484 3,063,434 2,783,967
Equity attributable to iN/NETE Z= N
owners of the Company  JE{H#EZS 4,925,310 6,659,881 3,323,989 2,791,630 2,630,804
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